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Corporate Information
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Corporate Information (Continued)

Securities Affair Representative
Wang Li

Section A 197, Fu Shou East Street

High Technology Industrial Development Zone
Weifang

Shandong Province

The People’s Republic of China

Postal Code: 261061

Tel: (86) (536)-819 7069

Fax: (86) (536)-819 7073

Website: http://www.weichaipower.com

Authorised Representatives
Xu Xinyu

Kwong Kwan Tong

Registered Address and Headquarters
of the Company

Section A 197, Fu Shou East Street

High Technology Industrial Development Zone

Weifang

Shandong Province

The People’s Republic of China

Postal Code: 261061

Tel: (86) (536)-819 7069

Fax: (86) (536)-819 7073

Website: http://www.weichaipower.com

Place of Business in Hong Kong
Room 3407-3408

34/F Gloucester Tower

Landmark

15 Queen’s Road Central

Central, Hong Kong

Legal Advisors

Reed Smith Richards Butler

Auditors
Ernst & Young Hua Ming LLP
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Corporate Information (Continued) A AV ER ()
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Corporate Information (Continued)

Hong Kong H-share Registrar and Transfer
Office

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

Shops 1712-1716 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

Share Information

1,999,309,639 Shares
(1,513,549,639 A Shares,
and 485,760,000 H Shares)

Number of issued shares as at
30 June 2015:

Board lot (H Shares)
(A Shares)

1,000 H Shares
100 A Shares

Abbreviation of the Company’s share and Stock Codes

A Shares: Weichai Power (4228 /7) 000338

H Shares: Weichai Power (#4£%) /) 2338

Stock Exchange Listings

A Shares: Shenzhen Stock Exchange

H Shares: The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "Hong Kong Stock Exchange”)

Investors and Media Relations

The Company: Securities Department
Tel: (86) 536-819 7069
Fax: (86) 536-819 7073

Website: www.weichaipower.com

Hill & Knowlton Asia Ltd
Tel: (852) 2894 6321
Fax: (852) 2576 1990

Website: www.hkstrategies.com

Public Relations Consultant:
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Financial Summary

Revenue amounted to approximately RMB36,455 million, increased by

approximately 6.9%.

Net Profit Attributable to the Shareholders of the Parent amounted to
approximately RMB969 million, decreased by approximately 74.3%.

Basic Earnings Per Share was approximately RMB0.24, decreased by

approximately 74.5%.

(Important notice: This report is published in Chinese and English versions. In

case of inconsistency, the Chinese version shall prevail.)
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Chairman’s Statement

Interim Report 2015 FRHEAZRE

ESViE S

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board, | would like to present the reviewed interim results of
the Company for the six months ended 30 June 2015 (the “Period”).

Review of Operations

In the first half of 2015, amidst the complexity and adversity of the
macroeconomic conditions and the increasing downside pressure, the
Central Committee of the Communist Party of China and the State
Council stood firmly by the main theme of making progress while
maintaining stability in their work. Efforts were made to actively adapt to
and lead the “new norms”, implement macroscopic austerity measures
in a scientific and precise manner, and steadfastly foster institutional
reforms and innovations. The national economy was within a reasonable
range, demonstrating a trend of gradual development towards stability
and positivity amidst stability. In the first half of the year, gross domestic
product reached RMB29.69 trillion, representing a year-on-year growth of
7.0%. On a quarter-to-quarter basis, it grew by 7.0% in the first quarter

and 7.0% in the second quarter.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued) F R E ()

During the reporting period, under the influence of a multitude of
factors including the slackened growth of the general economy, the
drop in the pace of growth of fixed-asset investments, the doldrums
of the development of the manufacturing industry, and the advanced
spending under the implementation of the China IV Emission Standards,
the heavy-duty truck market in the PRC remained gloomy and reported
a substantial drop of sales volume, delivering sales of 295,500 units,
representing a year-on-year decrease of 31.1%. Under such influence,
during the reporting period, the Company reported sales of 64,900 units
of heavy-duty truck engines, representing a year-on-year drop of 61.5%.
The Company’s market share in the auxiliary market for heavy-duty truck
with a gross weight of above 14 tonnes reached 22.0%, maintaining the
Company’s leading position in the industry. Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor
Company Limited (BRFAEARFEBR/AR]), a controlling subsidiary of
the Company, reported an aggregate sales of 27,900 units of heavy-duty
trucks for the first half of the year, representing a year-on-year decrease
of 43.6%, maintaining its ranking within the top five in the domestic
heavy-duty truck industry in the PRC. Shaanxi Fast Gear Co., Ltd. (B&FG
EHEER AR EEAR), a controlling subsidiary of the Company, has
maintained its leading position in the industry with its aggregate sales
of 229,300 units of gear boxes, representing a year-on-year decrease of
41.3%.

In the first half of 2015, fixed-asset investments in the PRC (excluding
agricultural households) reached RMB23.71 trillion, representing a year-
on-year growth of 11.4%, a drop of 5.9 percentage points in growth
rate year-on-year. The total planned investments for newly-commenced
construction projects reached RMB19.19 trillion, representing a year-on-
year growth of 1.6%, a drop of 12 percentage point in growth rate year-
on-year. Investments in property development reached RMB4.40 trillion,
representing a year-on-year growth of 4.6%, a drop of 9.5 percentage
points in growth rate year-on-year. Generally speaking, the pace of
growth of fixed-asset investments in the PRC further decreased in the
first half of the year, resulting in an inability to supply adequate drive
for construction projects. As such, the construction machinery industry
continued to show a pattern of suppressed performance as in last year,
with a substantial drop in the sales of all of its segment markets. During
the reporting period, the construction machinery market in the PRC
reported sales of approximately 299,000 units, representing a year-on-year
decrease of 23.4%, and among which, the sales volume of wheel loaders
with a load capacity of 5 tonnes was 24,900 units, representing a year-
on-year decrease of 56.3%. The Company sold a total of 17,300 units of
engines for wheel loaders with a load capacity of 5 tonnes, representing
a year-on-year decrease of 48.5% and accounting for 69.4% market
share in the market of wheel loaders with a load capacity of 5 tonnes,
representing an increase of 10.5 percentage points and maintaining its
leading position in this sector.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

During the reporting period, the passenger vehicle market achieved
growth while maintaining stability. Benefiting from favorable factors
including urbanization, China’s passenger vehicle market reported an
aggregate sales figure of 282,000 units, representing a year-on-year
growth of 0.9%. Among such, the light passenger vehicle market further
expanded in terms of proportion and continued to maintain its relatively
fast growth momentum, registering a 4.4% growth year-on-year, and
became the major force in driving the growth of the passenger vehicle
market. Supported by national policies, the new-energy passenger
vehicles segment demonstrated a pattern of rapid growth and fueled the
passenger vehicles market with a positive driving force, and is poised to
achieve further growth in future. On the other hand, with a share of the
transportation market having been taken up by China’s national express
rail, and the increasingly stringent regulatory regime on the supervision
of passenger transportation, market sectors including the public
transportation market did not perform well, with a 9.2% year-on-year
drop of the market of large-sized and medium-sized passenger vehicles.
Affected by the aforesaid, during the reporting period, the Company’s
aggregate sales of engines for use in passenger vehicles amounted to 9,300
units, representing a year-on-year decrease of 7.5%), and accounted
for 14.5% of the market share of the large-sized and medium-sized
passenger vehicles, representing an increase of 0.3 percentage points

year-on-year.

During the reporting period, the Company worked around the needs of
the market in fostering structural adjustments of its products. Equipped
with innovation, the Company led the trend of industrial development and
continued to maintain a pattern of steady growth. In the first half of 2015,
the Company reported a sales figure of 92,000 units of 10L, 12L and 13L
engines, maintaining the stable leading position of heavy-duty engine
products in the heavy-duty truck market, the market of wheel loaders
with a load capacity of 5 tonnes and the market of passenger vehicles
with a span of over 11 metres. Meanwhile, the Company’s self-researched
and self-developed “Landking” WP5 and WP7 engines, to which it owns
intellectual property rights, generated total sales of 5,905 units during the
first half of the year, representing a year-on-year decrease of 18.5%, and
among which, 4,548 units were used in passenger vehicles, representing
a year-on-year decrease of 20.5%. This demonstrated the prominent

competitive advantages of our integrated engine products and the ample

Interim Report 2015 FRHEAZRE

= E R ()

HREBRAN BAEEMBEBREA 5B
RMELESEENEEZ  BARELE
RHE28.28 5 ALIER0 9% ° Hqﬂ :
WEAISIGLLE— ) BEERER
RIEEHTE - FHERLIA%  KANBE
Eﬁ%iﬁméz@m BN EREE
Y HEREE2REERED  HE
Em%ﬁﬂfhﬁﬂﬂ@ﬂ’ﬁﬁﬁ RRELER
SR MZe@SHESR - %ﬂ@
ENEBBRSARFE  RRFES

RETE 7&EP5<$mtﬁlattT>a9.z% o
RhEE  mEHA - ARHHEREA
L0938 E - AL TMR7.5%  EAH
MEEMHEBEELEAE145% * REIRFA03
(EEPE

E)

\D]]}

sﬁﬁﬁﬁ

*&iﬁﬂw CRRIBEETISHEEEREER
KRS BITEESLS R - BER
hTﬂﬁa%ﬁ‘E‘e*’wﬁ 2015 E¥F - ARlH
SHETOL ~ 12LM13LE BN 2E S » &R
BEMEREE RN  SERRESHEMIS -
TR EBEEMISHEZ A NAER -
R AAAFMENEAENBERNE
BWPS - WP7E B | 3 F H 565,905
& FELLTE18.5% « Hb : REMIGHA
E4548% ' R TF£20.5% @ EHHEEM
MAEBFESEMAE  CEBRENSD
RER - RE - AAFHERTFAFIKRAS
AREERAFRREBENRE L, FRY
EmRit R MGHEESBERS
WmFCEBETERR  HEEMSHEE

09



10 Weichai Power Co., Ltd. L8N HIRDERA B

Chairman’s Statement (Continued) F R E ()

prospects for corporate development. During the reporting period,
Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Company Limited, a controlling subsidiary of
the Company, explored the possible implementation of products series
operations business model with the interdisciplinary connections among
product design, delivery, marketing etc. based on customer requirements.
Remarkable growth was reported in sales volume of truck market. The
growth of the gear box business of Shaanxi Fast Gear Co., Ltd. amidst the
adversity faced by the market, together with the steady rise of its overall
market share and market sales volume, acted as an important support
to guard against the market fluctuations in the industry, and further

articulated the effectiveness of the adjustment of product structure.

During the reporting period, the Company remained committed to the
main theme of reforms and innovations. It adhered to the scientific
approach of development under the notion of “Grow organically
and driven by innovation”, expedited its transformation, uplifted
the all-round quality of development, and attained sound and stable
development. Firstly, we became a pioneer in the market by launching
its “Smart Power Platform” by integrating Weichai's WOS operation
management system, the global research and development community,
the global supply chain system and the whole-life-cycle membership-
based dedicated service system, and leveraged on the smart products
including the high-power and high-performance heavy-duty engines
WP13 products, the medium-to-heavy-duty series Jing V (;2V) Products
(including both General Jing V and Special Jing V), to lead the pace of
replacement of internal combustion engines in China. Secondly, we
adhered to a market-oriented approach in the adjustments of our product
structure and our fostering of the collaborated development of traditional
products and strategic products. Meanwhile, we adjusted our market
strategies timely to better respond to the threat arising from the vertical
integration of the industry. Thirdly, we intensified our efforts on the
after-sales market business. By focusing on the potential needs of our
customers and proactively innovating our business models, the Group
has, on the foundation of its business of assembling parts, expanded
its scope of business to two new areas, namely, repairing parts and re-
engineering parts, thus forming a three-in-one system of spare parts and
components and achieved important breakthroughs. Fourthly, we have
gained solid progress in respect of international development. With the
commencement of operation of the Linde Hydraulics factory in China,
the localization of hydraulics products entered a new stage, better

augmenting the synergy presented by the availability of global resources.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

II.

With the stable implementation of our factory construction projects in
India and the technology export projects in Myanmar and Ethiopia, the
model of local manufacturing in overseas market has become more
sophisticated. We also forged closer cooperation with strategic customers
in countries including Vietnam, Russia and Iran, setting new scene for
exploring international markets for the products of Weichai. Fifthly, we
stood firmly by management innovation to achieve higher efficiency in
the Company'’s operation. Under the guiding notion of “Authorization in
place, Duties in place and Assessment in place”, we further rationalized
our model of management of control, and continued to optimize our
organizational structure, processes and systems. In tandem with our
development planning and taking into account our business requirements,
we embarked upon the analysis of job positions and engaged the work of
matching right persons with the right positions, thereby uplifting the level
of fundamental management and raising the operational efficiency of the

organization.

During the reporting period, the Company’s revenue increased by
approximately 6.9% compared with that in 2014 to approximately
RMB36,455 million. The net profit attributable to shareholders of the
parent company was approximately RMB969 million, representing a
decrease of approximately 74.3% compared with that in 2014. The
basic earnings per share was RMBO0.24, representing a decrease of

approximately 74.5% compared with that in 2014.

Dividends and Capitalisation of Surplus Reserve
On 30 June 2015, the 2014 profit distribution scheme was considered and
approved on the 2014 annual general meeting, the first general meeting
of holders of A Shares in 2015 and the first general meeting of holders
of H Shares in 2015. Based on the total share capital of 1,999,309,639
shares as at 31 December 2014 of the Company, the Company distributed
to all shareholders a cash dividend of RMB1.50 (including tax) for every
10 shares held and issued 10 shares to all shareholders by capitalisation of

surplus reserve for every 10 shares held.

On 27 August 2015, under the authority granted by the shareholders of
the Company, the Company considered and approved the distribution to
all shareholders of a cash dividend of RMB1.00 (including tax) for every
10 shares held based on the 3,998,619,278 shares, representing the
total share capital of the Company, without any capitalisation of reserve.
Please refer to the further announcement to be issued by the Company
for further details of the closure of register of members for the purpose
of determining the entitlement of shareholders in receiving the interim
dividend for 2015.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

I1I.

IV.

Acquisition and Consolidation

In the first half of the year, in order to enhance the core competitiveness
of the Company and uplift the level of its international operation, and
in view of the sound business performance of KION Group AG (“KION")
during the period, it was resolved by the Board of Directors that the
Company shall acquire 4.95% of shares of KION held by Superlift,
pursuant to which our shareholding in KION increased from 33.3%
to 38.25%, maintaining the Company’s status as the single largest
shareholder of KION.

Outlook and Prospects

In the second half of 2015, the macroeconomic conditions are still
expected to be complicated. On a global perspective, the economy will
maintain its trend of slow recovery with an anticipated annual growth of
approximately 2.8%. The generally positive economic outlook in major
developed economies including Europe, the United States and Japan is
bringing an upturn in their contribution rate to the global growth, whilst
the economic growth in emerging economies will remain slow given the
existing uncertainties and instability. In China, the economy is undergoing
a key stage of transformation and structural adjustments. Despite the
downside pressure of the economy in the short run under the persistent
impact of the overlapping among the period of switching pace of
economic growth, the period of agony amidst structural adjustments and
the period of digesting previous stimulus policies as well as the transition
between old and new drives for growth, there is still ample room for
economic growth in the long run with the ongoing release of reform
benefit. Generally speaking, economic growth of China in the second half
of the year is not expected to experience significant fluctuation. On the
whole, the economy will demonstrate a rising trend while maintaining
stability. It is expected that the full-year GDP will grow at about 7.0%, and
a higher GDP growth in the second half of the year is highly-probable.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

The Company is cautiously optimistic about the development trend of
its related industries. In the second half of 2015, with the successive
introduction of national policies to stabilize growth, the economy is
expected to show signs of stability, which will be beneficial to the
development of heavy-duty truck market: The steady progress of the
three major strategies, being “One Belt and One Road”, the economic
integration of Beijing, Tianjin and Hebei and the development of Yangtze
River Economic Zone, will lead to a new trend of investment boom; the
expedition of China’s “new-model” urbanization will drive growth in
related industries such as infrastructure construction; new opportunities
for the development of the logistics industry will be opened up by the
establishment of new free trade zones and e-commence development;
the expedited elimination of yellow-label (i.e. highly polluting) vehicles will
also stimulate the sales of heavy-duty trucks to a certain extent. Briefly
speaking, the heavy-duty truck market will experience a rebound in the
second half of the year. The overall decline is expected to be further
narrowed, and truck sales is expected to attain approximately 600,000
on a full-year basis. But, the situation still remains difficult, and the
industry will enter into an adjustment cycle. Revitalization of the market
is still dependent on the support of the sustainable, robust and effective

national policies.

The driving force generated by the national policy on stabilizing growth
will further expedite the construction of infrastructure facilities including
railways, highways and hydraulic works. In the second half of the year,
the construction machinery industry is expected to stabilize and come to a
rising period, following the previous decline. In the first half of 2015, 228
projects under the “seven key investment projects” have commenced,
with an accumulated investment amounting to RMB3.3 trillion. Together
with the recent addition of four new major construction projects, there
are a total of 11 construction projects, which will undoubtedly lead to
a new round of infrastructure construction boom. The efforts in railway
construction have been increasingly expanding with its annual total
investments amounting to RMB800 billion. In the first half of the year,
only RMB265.13 billion of the investment has been utilized, which means
there is tremendous room for further construction. In addition, the
favorable news including the “Made in China 2025"” strategy, “One Belt
and One Road”, China’s “new-model” urbanization and the large-scale
renovation of shack areas, will bring forth sound opportunities for the
growth of the industry. However, due to the present structural problems
such as the excessively high inventory holding, a longer period of time for

the release of investment will be required for the recovery of the industry.
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Chairman’s Statement (Continued) F R E ()

At present, regulations on emissions are increasingly tightened and the
upgrade of technology is undergoing development at an accelerated
pace. The relevant national authorities are actively raising the emission
standard on motor vehicles and are planning to fully implement the China
V Emission Standards on petrol-driven and diesel-driven vehicles in major
cities of the Beijing-Tianjin-Hebei Area, Yangtze River Delta and Pearl
River Delta with effect from 2016; whilst China VI Emission Standards to
be applicable to heavy-duty diesel vehicles has also been officially been
released and the switching process is expected to be completed by the
end of 2016. As such, some segments of the market will experience a
new round of shuffling and the elimination of backward production
capacities shall be accelerated. Leveraging upon its advanced technology,
large-scale production of high-quality products, synergy presented by the
availability of global resources and strong base of loyal customers, the
Company has started its preparation work in advance and made positive
progress, capturing a leading position in the new round of upgrade and
will be poised to maintain its leading position in the market of high power
engines, heavy-duty gear boxes and complete heavy-duty truck. The Board

has full confidence in the development prospect of the Company.

In 2015, the Company identified eleven battles that it must win, covering
various aspects of business operations such as cultural construction,
management enhancement, formation of core product competence, cost
saving, efficiency enhancement, and international corporate development,
etc. constituted a new target to direct the Company’s next round of
reforms and innovations. In the second half of the year, the Company will

work strenuously on the following:

Firstly, the Company will adhere to a customer-oriented approach,
stand firmly by producing good products, benchmark itself against
leading industry standards and build new engines to drive corporate
development with internal capability and innovation. Through the
competitive advantages in managing as well as controlling costs with
the perspective of the whole value chain and products diversity which
creates value for customers, the Company will shape products with the
“Three Core Competitiveness” in terms of cost, technology and quality,
ensuring that it will maintain its leading position in the market amidst the
increasingly fierce market competition. Secondly, by taking into account
its business operations, the Company will enhance the Weichai WOS
operation management model to systematically streamline the indicators,

processes and systems, establish a hierarchical meeting management

EAT  BERUAAR ABESE - RITBEAR
K%M%oﬂ%ﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬁ%@%%%
B HMPERUEEE - Wt EIE2016F A
ESERRE RZA WK-ZASREEN
MEMBTEEERS  SRBEMNEVIEZ
A MERLHERV HERIZEBLE ER
BB 5HEI7E2016F KT » UL E
BAWHTIBEEET — RGNS - Bk
EREKRE KE— SR - XARIERE
EEMBMES - KEE - aRENESR
BiE - 2HEROBREDUREEEH
MEFERE  CRAIMRBEGIIELRG
BIRER T —SHARBRRFEEL
B RRIERNER WK - B IREN
EREEMSKEBEERIBEL EESY
RATRKRERA=TMELD °

1

20154 - RAIRH T BAT RO+ — 5
- RETEER BERA Ea
DERFNER  RAEBARBEBE I ER
EhFELCHNRERE  TEFT—HhN
FRFTMEMIZE o THF - ARIKEERK
AT IE -

—RUREP  MEBRFIBMUES -
HIEITE KT - LB XEIFITERE
BRFSIE BBEEEEEBERSE
HEEY AERCERRTFPAIALE
B BEETESAKAE Kl - mE=
AZOBEFNOER » BHRAE R @R
SR FREERBIEEMN - — B4
BREREER  TEHEWOSEZE
BRA - ARMEBEERERR  BEE
@Qﬁﬁﬁﬂr e —ErEE - A%
o AHENELERERBR  E—TRE
Eﬁﬁf'ﬁ EEET c —RHEHE

BUEITRERMERERE - BEH

o

m

R



Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

system, forming an operation management system that is replicable,
feasible and evaluable, in order to further regulate management order
and unify management language. Thirdly, the Company will solidly foster
the construction of IT engineering infrastructure and smart manufacturing
projects, and closely align the Internet’s DNA with the actual reality
of Weichai to construct a smart manufacturing model with Weichai’s
characteristics so as to uplift the standards of smart manufacturing
for the enterprise. Fourthly, the Company will implement innovative
business models by relying on resources including customer relationship
management system, all-process service system and global distribution
system for accessories, explore the setting up of an e-commence platform,
and create a responsive, highly effective and comprehensive customer
service network to achieve positive interactions between online and
offline resources and assist the enterprise to migrate from production-
based manufacturing to service-based manufacturing. R&D efforts on
the new-generation heavy-duty truck products will steadily proceed for
the heavy-duty truck segment. The Company will continue to explore
the integration potentials of the existing products of tractors and self-
unloading vehicles, seeking to expand the market share of the natural-
gas-driven vehicles and doing full preparation work in anticipation of
subsequent growth. Companies producing gear boxes will carry on with
their efforts on products which are light-weighted, automated and multi-
gear by expediting the progress of major R&D projects on AT/AMT,
S-series gearboxes and gearboxes for passenger vehicles and stepping up
marketing efforts for new products. For the components segment, we will
intensify our research and innovation, enhance core competitiveness of
our products and make good use of the synergy between the component

business segment and the engine business segment.

At the same time, we will follow the notion of global development.
Under the principle of “Unified Strategy, Independent Operation,
Resources Sharing”, we will further streamline the mechanism for the
control over overseas branches and subsidiaries, coordinate the needs
for expanding the domestic and international markets and international
business development, accelerate the coordinated development of our
business in complete vehicles, powertrains, hydraulics controlling parts,
automobile components and after-sales market business segment, in
order to fully utilize the synergetic advantage of the brands, technology,
manufacturing, market and management of the domestic and overseas
companies, continue to enhance the quality and image of the Company’s

development, and boost the overall capability to manage risks.

Interim Report 2015 FRHEAZRE

= E R ()

PEAFNBEALERERES  BEARHS
LN EREREER  UEFHEES
AL BREKTHREA - MEEREEER
Bl¥T - RIEREFRGRERZRS  2BRH%
AEM2HREHOHEERSER KR
NEFEAKTE  BREERR - EiTe
MBAEENRPRGEES  ERAEL
BRTERNRERS - %ﬁm%miﬁ%
ERREREER - EATBEREERES
HEF—REFERMLETIE BEZRE
REESE  AHEEMNRAERE 8
NERRARARENTBNE - AEENER
MR  BRBARBEEMTERD
H2 - BEEMEZEIE - NRAT/
AMT ~ SE%| - REZREZFEHHEIE
R MAHERMBSHENE - T
IR SR 4G N A RIER AR - 4858 2 A AR O 3R
F o BB T I AR R B E AR
PR 155 [E] UHE o

FT«T}

R RAIEARHICBERED - ?Eﬁ’sifﬁ
BE g — - BER - BRAZ IMRA
—HEEHEIN D FRBNEEES
EBNITSHEAMBEBRCEBES b[l
RAR R EEERRGE - B HAKRE -
BREBZEHIRE - TET R RIET IS
EBRENHHARRE > THOBREBAIINR
AR mE - XM R WiE - EE
FERMRAES T\ﬁﬂ%ﬂﬁ%%)ﬁgi
MR BB AR BEIRERAES

15



16 Weichai Power Co., Ltd.  #seB) H IR HERA T

Chairman’s Statement (Continued)

V. Appreciation
Last but not least, | would like to express my sincere appreciation to all
our shareholders, the general public and our customers for their care and
support, as well as all of our staff for their hard work and dedication in

the last six months!

Tan Xuguang

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 27 August 2015
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Directors are pleased to present a management discussion and analysis of

the results of operations of the Group for the Period as follows:

I. Industry Analysis
The Company is one of the vehicles and equipments manufacturing
conglomerate in China with the best comprehensive strengths. It is a
leading company in the market of powertrain, complete vehicles and
machines, hydraulic controlling parts and automotive electronics parts and
components. It is equipped with the most comprehensive supply chain of
engines, gear boxes and axles and offers the related after-sales market

services.

1. Heavy-duty Vehicle Industry
In the first half of 2015, the macroeconomic conditions in the PRC
continued to sustain a slowing pace of growth as in the previous
year. In the first half of the year, gross domestic product reached
RMB29.69 trillion, representing a year-on-year growth of 7.0%.
Influenced by a multitude of factors including the doldrums of the
development of the manufacturing industry, the drop in the pace
of growth of fixed-asset investments, and the advanced spending
under the implementation of the China IV Emission Standards, the
heavy-duty truck market in the PRC reported substantial drop of
sales volume. During the Period, the heavy-duty truck market in the
PRC delivered sales of approximatety 295,500 units, representing a

year-on-year decrease of 31.1%.

2. Construction Machinery
During the Period, fixed-asset investments of China reached
RMB23.71 trillion, representing a year-on-year growth of 11.4%,
a drop of approximately 5.9 percentage points year-on-year. Both
the total planned investments for newly-commenced construction
projects and investments in property development grew at much
lower rates, with a drop of approximately 12 and 9.5 percentage
points respectively. As such, the construction machinery industry
reported substantial drop in the sales of all of its segment markets.
During the Period, the construction machinery market in the PRC
reported sales of approximately 299,000 units, representing a year-

on-year decrease of 23.4%.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

II.

3. Passenger Vehicle Market
During the Period, supported by the government'’s policy concerning
new-energy vehicles and in view of urbanization construction, the
light passenger vehicle and the new-energy passenger vehicles
segment became the driving force for the passenger vehicles
market. In the first half of 2015, the passenger vehicle market in the
PRC achieved growth while maintaining stability. China’s passenger
vehicle market reported an aggregate sales figure of 282,000 units,

representing a year-on-year growth of 0.9%.

4. Forklift Truck Industry

In the first half of 2015, benefiting from low oil prices, export
growth of the Eurozone as driven by the weak Euro, and the
expansionary monetary policies adopted in a number of countries,
the global order for forklift trucks increased to approximately
575,000 units, representing an increase of 3.4% year-on-year.
The markets of Western Europe and North America continued
to recover, while emerging markets demonstrated downturns of
varying degrees, with Russia, Brazil and China reporting a drop of
51.4%, 37.4% and 10.2% respectively.

The Group’s Business
An analysis of the Group's business segments is set out in Note XIV.2 to
the consolidated financial statements. The following are the highlights of

the operation conditions of the major products of the Group:

1. Sale of Diesel Engines

For use in Heavy-duty Trucks

In the first half of the year, under the substantial drop of sales
volume in the heavy-duty truck market in the PRC, the Company’s
aggregate sales of heavy-duty truck engines amounted to
approximately 64,900 units during the Period, representing a year-
on-year drop of 61.5% from approximately 168,300 units in the
corresponding period last year. The Company’s market share in the
heavy-duty truck with a gross weight of above 14 tonnes reached

22.0%, maintaining the Company’s leading position in the industry.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

For use in Construction Machinery

The Group is also the largest supplier of diesel engines to major
manufacturers of construction machinery (mainly wheel loaders)
with a load capacity of 5 tonnes in the PRC. During the Period, the
Group's sales of engines for wheel loader with a load capacity of 5
tonnes were approximately 17,300 units, representing a year-on-
year decrease of 48.5%. The Company’s market share in the market
of wheel loader with a load capacity of 5 tonnes was approximately
69.4%, representing an increase of approximately 10.5 percentage
points from the same period last year, and maintaining the

Company's leading position in the market.

For use in Passenger Vehicles

During the Period, despite the slight growth of the domestic
passenger vehicle market, the segment market of large-sized and
medium-sized passenger vehicles reported a decrease of 9.2%
year-on-year in light of the weak demand in the public passenger
transportation market. The Company’s aggregate sales of engines
for use in passenger vehicles amounted to approximately 9,300
units, representing a year-on-year decrease of approximately 7.5%,
and accounting for approximately 14.5% of the market share of
the large-sized and medium-sized passenger vehicles, representing

slight year-on-year increase from the corresponding period last year.

Forklift Trucks Production and Warehousing
Technology Services

Benefiting from the growth of the forklift truck industry, the
ongoing recovery of the Western European market and the robust
growth in the North American and Asian markets, the Group
reported an increase of orders for forklift trucks to approximately
85,400 units in the first half of 2015, representing an increase of
6.9% year-on-year. Orders on hand amounted to EUR2,565 million,
representing an increase of 8.2%. Before elimination of intra-group
sales, the forklift trucks production and warehousing technology
services business contributed sales revenue of approximately
RMB 16,782 million to the Group during the Period.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued) B B B AT (%)

Sale of Heavy-duty Trucks

During the Period, the Group reported an aggregate sales of
approximately 27,900 units of heavy-duty trucks, representing a
decrease of 43.6% from approximately 49,500 units sold during
the corresponding period of 2014. Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor
Company Limited, a controlling subsidiary of the Company,
maintained its ranking within the top five in the domestic heavy-
duty truck industry in the PRC. Before elimination of intra-group
sales, the heavy-duty trucks business contributed sales revenue of

approximately RMB8,151 million to the Group during the Period.

Sale of Heavy-duty Gear Boxes

During the Period, the Group sold approximately 229,300 units
of heavy-duty gear boxes, representing a decrease of 41.3%
compared to approximately 390,000 units sold in the corresponding
period of 2014, and maintaining its leading position in the industry.
Before elimination of intra-group sales, the gear boxes business
contributed sales revenue of approximately RMB3,246 million to the

Group during the Period.

Sale of Parts and Components of Engine and
Heavy-duty Trucks and Hydraulics Controlling
Parts

Apart from the production and sale of diesel engines for trucks
and construction machinery, heavy-duty trucks and heavy-duty
gear boxes, the Group is also engaged in the production and
sales of engine parts and components and other truck parts and
components such as: spark plugs, axles, chassis, air-conditioner
compressors, hydraulics controlling parts etc. During the Period,
the Group's sales of parts and components of engines and trucks
and hydraulics controlling parts were approximately RMB2,634
million, representing a year-on-year decrease of approximately
15.0%, compared to the sales revenue of RMB3,100 million in the

corresponding period in last year.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

III. Financial Review
The Group’s Results of Operations

1.

a.

Revenue

The Group's revenue increased by approximately RMB2,344
million or approximately 6.9% from approximately
RMB34,111 million in the corresponding period of 2014
to approximately RMB36,455 million for the Period. In
particular, the revenue from principal operations increased
by approximately 8.6%, from approximately RMB32,838
million in the corresponding period of 2014 to approximately
RMB35,652 million for the Period. The revenue of the period
increased by approximately RMB16,357 million after the
consolidation of KION Group AG (“KION") during the Period.
Disregarding the effect of consolidation of KION, the revenue
would have decreased by approximately 41.1%. This was
primarily due to the substantial decrease in the sales of the
heavy-duty truck industry during the Period. Other revenue
decreased by approximately 36.9%, from approximately
RMB1,273 million in the corresponding period of last year to

approximately RMB803 million for the Period.

Profit from Principal Operations

During the Period, the Group generated gross profit
from principal operations in the amount of approximately
RMB8,338 million, representing an increase of approximately
RMB1,497 million or 21.9% as compared to approximately
RMB6,841 million recorded in the corresponding period
of 2014. The Group's efforts in fostering international
development, diversifying product mix, innovating and
optimizing product structure, as well as controlling the cost
effectively increased the profit margin of principal operations.
The profit margin of principal operations increased by
approximately 2.6 percentage points, from approximately
20.8% in the corresponding period of 2014 to approximately
23.4% for the Period.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued) B B B AT (%)

Distribution and Selling Expenses

Distribution and selling expenses increased by approximately
RMB1,327 million or 86.0% to approximately RMB2,870
million in the Period from approximately RMB1,543 million in
the corresponding period of 2014. The increase of distribution
and selling expenses was primarily attributable to the
consolidation of KION Group AG. At the same time, with the
different business model of KION, the distribution and selling
expenses as a percentage of revenue was relatively higher
at approximately 12.1%, leading to the increase in overall
percentage from approximately 4.5% in the corresponding

period of last year to approximately 7.9% in the Period.

General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses increased by approximately
RMB1,479 million or 71.1% from approximately RMB2,078
million in the corresponding period of 2014 to approximately
RMB3,557 million in the Period, which was mainly due to the
increase of approximately RMB1,789 million in the general
and administrative expenses after the consolidation of KION

during the period.

Operating Profit before Finance Expenses

During the Period, the Group's operating profit before
finance expenses and income tax expenses decreased by
approximately RMB2,656 million or a substantial decrease
of approximately 58.0% to approximately RMB1,925 million
in the Period from approximately RMB4,581 million in
the corresponding period of the last year. It was primarily
attributable to the substantial decrease of revenue in the
PRC during the Period and one-off gain of approximately
RMB1,671 million arising from the consolidation of KION
in the corresponding period of the last year, causing the
Group’s operating margin to drop to approximately 5.3%
from approximately 13.4% for the corresponding period of
2014.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Finance Expenses

Finance expenses increased by approximately 74.7 %
to approximately RMB183 million in the Period from
approximately RMB105 million in the corresponding period
of 2014. The consolidation of KION increased the financial
expenses, which eliminated the saving in interest expenses
upon the repayment of RMB1.3 billion medium-term notes
as in the second half of 2014. By the end of this Period,
the bank borrowings and corporates bonds of KION was

approximately EUR 934 million in total.

Income Tax Expenses

The Group's income tax expenses decreased by 9.4% from
approximately RMB482 million in the corresponding period
of 2014 to approximately RMB436 million in the Period.
During the Period, the Group's average effective tax rate was
approximately 25.0%, representing a substantial increase
as compared to approximately 10.8% in the corresponding
period of last year, which was primarily because the average
effective tax rate of KION during the period was up to 31.7%
and the comparative number in the corresponding period
of 2014 was affected by the one-off gain arising from the

consolidation of KION.

Net Profit and Net Profit Margin

The Group's net profit for the Period decreased by
approximately RMB2,688 million or 67.3% from
approximately RMB3,994 million in the corresponding
period of 2014 to approximately RMB1,306 million in the
Period. Net profit margin for the Period was approximately
3.6%), a substantial decrease of 8.1 percentage points
from approximately 11.7% in the corresponding period of
last year. This was primarily attributable to the decrease of
revenue in the PRC, the lower net profit margin of KION and
the one-off gain incurred arising from the consolidation of

KION in the corresponding period of last year.
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Liquidity and Cash Flow

During the Period, the Group generated operating cash
flows of approximately RMB1,528 million. A portion of
such proceeds was applied to acquiring 4,900,000 KION
shares held by Superlift (representing 4.95% of the issued
share capital of KION), and for paying for the acquisition
of property, plant and equipment for the expansion of the
Group’s business. As at 30 June 2015, the Group had a net
cash (cash and cash equivalents net of interest-bearing debts)
of approximately RMB910 million (31 December 2014: net
cash (cash and cash equivalents net of interest-bearing debts)
of approximately RMB 1,877 million). Based on the calculation
above, the debt to equity ratio was not applicable to the
Group as the Group was in a net cash position (as at 31
December 2014: N/A).

2. Financial Position

a.

Pursuant to the Consultation Conclusions on Acceptance of
Mainland Accounting and Auditing Standards and Mainland
Audit Firms for Mainland Incorporated Companies Listed in
Hong Kong published by the Hong Kong Stock Exchange in
December 2010, Mainland-incorporated issuers listed in Hong
Kong shall be allowed to prepare their financial statements
using Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises. As such,
on the annual general meeting 2010 of the Company held on
18 May 2011, it was resolved that with effect from 2011, the
Company would only adopt Mainland accounting standards
in its preparation of financial statements. The Company
does not consider that the adoption of China Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises in its preparation of the
financial statements has any material financial impact on the

Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued) g Y

Assets and Liabilities

As at 30 June 2015, the Group had total assets of
approximately RMB115,171 million, of which approximately
RMB59,726 million were current assets. As at 30 June 2015,
the Group had cash and cash equivalents of approximately
RMB22,121 million (as at 31 December 2014: RMB24,434
million). On the same date, the Group’s total liabilities
amounted to approximately RMB73,636 million, of which
approximately RMB43,358 million were current liabilities.
The current ratio was approximately 1.38 (as at 31 December
2014: 1.34).

Capital Structure

As at 30 June 2015, the Group had total equity of
approximately RMB41,535 million, of which approximately
RMB31,942 million was attributable to equity holders of
the Company and the balance was minority equity holders’
interests. The Group currently does not rely heavily on
borrowings. The borrowings of the Group as at 30 June
2015 amounted to approximately RMB18,846 million,
including debenture of approximately RMB5,525 million and
bank borrowings of approximately RMB13,321 million. The
bank borrowings included approximately RMB4,667 million
of fixed interest rate bank borrowings and approximately
RMB8,654 million of floating interest rate bank borrowings.
The Group’s borrowings maturing within one year from 30
June 2015 amounted to approximately RMB7,402 million and
borrowings maturing in more than one year from 30 June
2015 amounted to approximately RMB11,444 million. As
at 30 June 2015, the Group’s borrowings mainly comprised
Renminbi-denominated borrowings and Euro-denominated
borrowings. The Group’s revenue was mainly Renminbi-
denominated, while the revenue generated by KION, a
subsidiary of the Group, was mainly denominated in Euro.
The Group, therefore, does not consider its foreign exchange

risk significant. However, the management will monitor its
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foreign exchange risk and consider to hedge against any
material foreign exchange risk as and when necessary. As a
policy, the Group manages its capital to ensure that entities
in the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximizing the return to shareholders through the
optimization of the debts and equity balance. The Group’s

overall strategy remains unchanged from prior years.

d. Pledge of Assets

As at 30 June 2015, bank deposits, notes receivables and
accounts receivable of approximately RMB7,023 million (as
at 31 December 2014: RMB12,276 million) were pledged
to banks to secure the Group’s notes payables and notes
receivables issued by banks. The pledged bank deposits
carry interest at prevailing bank interest rates. The pledge
will be released upon the settlement of the relevant bank
borrowings. The fair value of the bank deposits at the balance

sheet date is approximately the same as the carrying amount.

e.  Contingencies

As at 30 June 2015, the Group provided to certain
distributors and agents bank guarantee amounting to
approximately RMB912 million (as at 31 December 2014:

approximately RMB812 million) to secure their obtaining and

use of banking facilities.

As at 30 June 2015, the Group provided guarantee for joint
liabilities in respect of failure of the leasee under finance lease
to settle instalment payments plus interest. Risk exposure in
respect of possible guarantee for joint liabilities amounted

to approximately RMB892 million (as at 31 December 2014:

approximately RMB1,142 million).

o (48)

AHHRA T ERBITHA
Pt AZR 5 (B 38 /% HL AN L i 30
TER AWM EBETESR
SMNERR X EERBERER
HHERNZIHINERR - AEH
MR REIEELERURERAR
Eléﬁ‘%ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁii’ﬁ‘«“ ]
BREBLABRERLA AR
RERMf&EARE®R - NEEER
REEBEFERTAE

EERH
RZE—RAFXNA=Z+H &
EEBEHARBET,023EETT
(RZZE—WF+=ZA=1+—
H: AR®12276 EE L)
BITHFER - ERERERERER
RERTRT  MERNEREA
BROTBELENZERERE
BEERE - BEFRITFER
RBATRITRIEF B - % IEIE
ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁﬁg—f%
LABERR - REER @ IRITTEX
R i@ﬁﬁ%ﬁ@**

HBEE
RZZT—RF~A=+H =K
E@i%%%%‘é?ﬁ&mwﬁ%
HOAREINABET(N =
—mE+=-_A=+—8: ,@)\
R#812AE L) Z IRITERIA
FHEREYFERARITEE -

RZE—FHAF<A=Z+H " &
EEARMEMHE N A S K8
XA R B E FEE S A R R A
BREETREEMT 8
BESERBABKRKONLAA
R#8na@xt(R=_F—H
F+-A=1+—8: HARE
1,142887T) °



Interim Report 2015 s 27

Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)

Commitments

As at 30 June 2015, the Group had approximately RMB2,020
million capital commitments (as at 31 December 2014:
approximately RMB2,120 million), among which contracted
capital commitments amounted to approximately RMB2,020
million, principally for the capital expenditure in respect of

acquisition of property, plant and equipment.

As at 30 June 2015, the Group had no investment

commitments (as at 31 December 2014: nil).

Other Financial Information

Employees

As at 30 June 2015, the Group had approximately 62
thousand employees (including approximately 23 thousand
employees of KION). During the Period, the Group had
paid remuneration of approximately RMB6,818 million.
The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set
up by the Remuneration Committee of the Company (the
“Remuneration Committee”) on the basis of their merits,

qualifications and competence.

Major Investment

During the Period, Weichai Power (Luxembourg) Holding S.a
r.l. ("Weichai Lux"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group,
acquired 4,900,000 KION shares, representing 4.95% of
the issued share capital of KION, from Superlift Holding, S.a
r.l. (“Superlift”) at a total consideration of EUR186,935,000
or EUR38.15 per KION share. Upon completion of the
acquisition, the Group's shareholding in KION has increased
from 33.3% to 38.25%, further consolidating the Company’s
control over KION, which is in line with the Company’s
strategy of further enhancing the strategic alliance with KION

and optimising the allocation of the Group's assets.
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Major Acquisition and Disposal

As at 7 May 2015, KION had signed an agreement with the
Belgian automation specialist Egemin Group to purchase its
Handling Automation division for approximately €72 million.
The transaction is expected to be closed in the course of the

third quarter of this year.

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not have any other

major acquisition or disposal during the Period.

Subsequent Events
(i) Issuance of Bonds by an overseas wholly-owned

subsidiary and the Company'’s provision of guarantee

Pursuant to the resolutions of the Board in its sixth
provisional meeting held on 13 July 2015, in order to
repay the bank loans involved in the Group's acquisition
of further shares in KION, Weichai International
(Hong Kong) Energy Group Co., Ltd., a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, intends to issue bonds
overseas in the total amount of EUR500 million or its
equivalent amount in US Dollars. The Company intends
to provide Weichai International (Hong Kong) Energy
Group Co., Ltd. with unconditional and unsubordinated

guarantee for this issuance of bonds.

(i) Exercise of Put Option by LMH

On 31 August 2012, the Company, through its
indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary Weichai Lux,
entered into a Framework Agreement with KION, for
the acquisition of a 70% interest in both LHY GP and
LHY Co from KION. Linde Material Handling GmbH
(“"LMH"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of KION, held
the remaining 30% shareholding in LHY GP and LHY
Co (hereinafter the “Transaction”). The Transaction

was completed on 27 December 2012. Pursuant to
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the Framework Agreement, LMH was granted a put
option to request Weichai Lux to acquire from LMH
a 20% interest in both LHY GP and LHY Co and such
option is exercisable during any time (i) within the six
months after the fourth anniversary of Completion, or
(i) within three months after the second anniversary
of the completion of the listing of KION. The trading
of the KION shares on the Frankfurt Stock Exchange

commenced on 28 June 2013 (Central European Time).

On 20 July 2015, LMH exercised the put option by
serving a written notice to Weichai Lux, to request
Weichai Lux to acquire from LMH a 20% interest in
both LHY GP and LHY Co. The consideration for this
Transaction was EUR77,429,000. As of the date of this

report, the Transaction was yet to be completed.
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Auditors” Review Report

EY:

Ernst & Young Hua Ming (2015) Zhuan Zi No. 60729920_B07
To the Shareholders of Weichai Power Co., Ltd.:

We have reviewed the accompanying interim financial statements of Weichai
Power Co., Ltd. which comprise the consolidated and company balance
sheets as at 30 June 2015, the consolidated and company income statements,
statement of changes in equity and cash flow statement for January-June 2015
and notes to the financial statements. The management of Weichai Power Co.,
Ltd. is responsible for the preparation of these interim financial statements. Our
responsibility is to issue our review report on these interim financial statements

based on our review.

We conducted our review in accordance with the Review Standard for Chinese
Certified Public Accountants No. 2101 Review of Financial Statements. The
standard requires us to plan and conduct a review to obtain limited assurance as
to whether the interim financial statements are free from material misstatement.
A review is limited primarily to inquiries of company personnel and performing
analytical procedures on the data. A review provides less assurance than an
audit. We have not performed an audit and, accordingly, we do not express an

audit opinion.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to
believe that the interim financial statements are not prepared in accordance with

the requirement in Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises — No. 32.

Ernst & Young Hua Ming LLP
Beijing, PRC

Chinese Certified Public Accountant:
Zhang Fei
Chinese Certified Public Accountant:

You Jin

27 August 2015
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20156 308 (A R#T)

Consolidated Balance Sheet

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

Note V 30 June 2015 31 December 2014
ASSETS BE fisER 20156 H30H 2014F12A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (FEEZ)

Current assets REEE
Cash and cash equivalents EKE® 1 PA PN T 24,434,414,214.89

Financial assets at fair value through

NAnBEFAEAR

profit or loss FE AEHER
BE R EE 2 22,389,004.10 66,996,021.60
Notes receivable JEW R IE 3 ) Pepl el Gyl 13,780,880,376.52
Accounts receivable FEUWBEFX 4 10,395,709,850.28 9,660,031,602.65
Prepayments AN 5 570,186,229.49 487,985,072.32
Interests receivable FE UL F B 6 139,006,064.67 134,246,230.24
Dividends receivable JrE AR A 7 25,528,566.80 3,040,000.00
Other receivables H A e U 3R 8 740,695,790.42 871,642,626.76
Inventories FE 9 13,160,511,649.97 12,614,740,002.08
Classified as held-for-sale assets EDABAEFENEE 10 35,770,735.32 35,770,735.32
Non-current assets due within one year —FRIENIERSEE 11 1,122,816,456.00 1,509,870,834.00
Other current assets HEMRENEE 12 1,140,314,706.98 772,177,588.25
Total current assets REEEASE SelypAs 0Ok TR yA | 64,371,795,304.63
Non-current assets FRBEE
Available -for-sale financial assets AHEHESMEE 13 545,517,665.51 431,617,288.51
Long-term receivables B e R 14 ka0 2,574,098,089.20
Long-term equity investments REIRERE 15 1,491,694,230.58 1,477,725,658.30
Investment property KEEEE 16 592,751,797.75 522,163,315.32
Fixed assets BEEE&E 17 PR AN IO 23,509,392,694.25
Construction in progress HwEIR 18 3,058,897,979.09 3,421,243,155.61
Materials used in construction TEME 687,692.29 2,692.31
Disposal of fixed assets BEEEESE 2,132,140.68 1,965,332.73
Intangible assets B AE 19 PXY T PL I R 13,842,471,750.91
Development expenditure e H 20 477,311,949.76 533,706,390.76
Goodwill [HES 21 7,234,097,649.29 7,774,054,477.18
Long-term prepaid expenses REGHER 22 257,077,902.49 168,785,139.70
Deferred tax assets BIEFTSRHEE 3,275,429,822.93 3,453,989,113.43
Other non-current assets HiIEREEE 23 204,191,911.35 172,564,779.00
Total non-current assets IEREBEESET Sy Auvp L ibicA s 57,883,779,877.21
Total assets BERET ANERVOR:PARSV WV 122 255, 575,181.84
The financial statements have been signed by: IR RBIUNTALTEZE

Legal Representative: Principal in charge of accounting: Head of accounting department:

EERRKRA TEGHIEEREA: BRRBREA
Tan Xuguang Kwong Kwan Tong Wang Junwei
BB BIRE T&E
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Consolidated Balance Sheet (Continued)

aHEEAMRE ()

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2015F6 H30H (AR ¥oT)
Note V 30 June 2015
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY BEMKRRES Mz R 201566 H30H
(Unaudited)
(REER)
Current liabilities mEBEE
Short-term loans EHIER 24 4,161,707,790.15
Financial liabilities at fair value through NRnBEFZEEH
profit or loss ZEH AEHER
otz SRy 25 124,022,304.70
Notes payable EANES 26 6,644,024,276.00
Accounts payable FEFBRR 27 15,173,542,800.94
Advances from customers T8 Wk IE 28 1,411,293,211.37
Payroll payable JE A<F 58 T 55 B 29 2,869,006,620.07
Taxes payable ER BB 30 1,205,880,045.49
Interests payable EAFA 31 210,197,039.13
Dividends payable FE AR A 32 291,758,447.43
Other payables H e 3R 33 3,763,711,394.85
Non-current liabilities due within one year —FRNEHNIERBAR 34 5.477,862,601.76
Other current liabilities Hipngh & s 35 2,024,643,393.76
Total current liabilities mEBEASE 43,357,649,925.65
Non-current liabilities FEREEE
Long-term borrowings RAEBER 36 6,717,149,202.20
Bonds payable A EAE 37 4,726,183,850.47
Long-term payables RAEFET IR 38 5,895,869,048.30
Long-term payroll payable = B FE 1< B T % A 39 6,356,262,007.82
Special payables EIFEMNR 40 43,000,000.00
Accruals and provisions TEFtA R 41 392,477,387.00
Deferred income RREW 2= 42 2,060,907,177.01
Deferred tax liabilities BIEFSHARE 3,971,397,724.12
Other non-current liabilities HEMIEREBEE 114,982,441.32
Total non-current liabilities EREBEEAFT 30,278,228,838.24
Total liabilities BERE 73,635,878,763.89
The financial statements have been signed by: MEMEREAATALESE

Legal Representative:

EEREKA

Principal in charge of accounting:
EEBHIEREA

Tan Xuguang
BB

Kwong Kwan Tong

BIRE

Wang Junwei
FEE

31 December 2014
201412 A31H
(Audited)
(&%)

2,765,864,402.35

76,807,591.20
10,867,683,844.51
15,922,080,225.78
1,479,206,814.82
3,115,024,045.45
1,249,956,877.43
196,311,317.66
34,772,276.45
4,235,819,685.51
5,634,124,985.20
2,482,364,929.13

48,060,016,995.49

7,271,880,584.20
5,834,582,252.32
5,185,606,146.40
7,073,983,911.20
43,000,000.00
444,249,381.60
1,983,761,896.93
4,384,956,540.33
31,649,140.04

32,253,669,853.02

80,313,686,848.51

Head of accounting department:

SREBREA



Consolidated Balance Sheet (Continued) A EEAER (E)
30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2015F6 H30H (AR ¥oT)
Note V 30 June 2015
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY (Continued) BEMBKRRES(H) s 2015%6H30H
(Unaudited)
(REER)
Shareholders’ equity IR A 2
Share capital A% A 43 1,999,309,639.00
Capital reserve YN 44 209,900,265.42
Other comprehensive income Hitndr & W 45 (451,349,031.64)
Special reserve HIE#EE 46 65,829,550.69
Surplus reserve BHBAE 47 3,051,742,591.19
Retained earnings Ao E R HE 48 27,066,784,607.55
Total equity attributable to the shareholders of (BRI R A REER AT
the parent 31,942,217,622.21
Minority interests D E R R S 9,592,725,128.34
Total shareholders’ equity R R AT 41,534,942,750.55
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity BEMBREESE 115,170,821,514.44
The financial statements have been signed by: MEREABATATES

Legal Representative:

EEREA

Principal in charge of accounting:

TEEHIFEEEA:

Tan Xuguang
BB

Kwong Kwan Tong

BIRE

Interim Report 2015 AR HARE

Wang Junwei
TER

31 December 2014
2014912 A31H
(Audited)
(&%)

1,999,309,639.00
1,288,252,938.51

(388,485,902.69)

51,026,772.11
3,051,742,591.19
26,397,531,915.03

32,399,377,953.15
9,542,510,380.18

41,941,888,333.33

122,255,575,181.84

Head of accounting department:

BREBEAREA

33



34 Weichai Power Co., Ltd.

B D RHBRA A

Consolidated Income Statement

January to June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

& R 2%

2015F1-6 H( AR T)

January to June
2015
2015%1-6 A
(Unaudited)
(RBER)

Note V
{hrzaeal

49 36,455,259,868.68
49 28,028,944,784.66
50 96,052,633.89
51 2,870,010,696.32
52 3,556,548,533.74
53 183,034,068.43
54 192,603,210.24
55 (9,163,435.00)
56 100,744,461.39

66,804,707.15

Revenue EERA
Less: Cost of sales o B R
Taxes and surcharges EE il
Distribution and selling expenses HEER
General and administrative expenses EEER
Financial expenses HBER
Impairment loss of assets BERMEEX
Add: Gains and losses on fair value changes m: AnEELZIHER
Investment income & W as
Incl: Share of profit of associates and Hrb o e
jointly-controlled enterprises MEE R
®E W=
Operating profit EENE

Add: Non-operating income
Incl: Gain on disposal of non-current

s ERIMEA
Hep: FRBEE

1,619,646,967.79
57 219,634,183.48

26,139,266.14
58 96,963,421.27

14,763,360.50

assets B MG
Less: Non-operating expenses W EEINE
Incl: Loss on disposal of non-current He: ERBEE
assets BREEK
Total profit A 4 g8

Less: Income tax expense

W FTIS T E A

59 1,742,317,730.00
60 436,181,443.41

Net profit

%8

1,306,136,286.59

Net profit attributable to the shareholders of
the parent

5 BB A R IR Y F B

969,149,138.37

Minority interests

PHERBRE

336,987,148.22

Details of dividends payable and proposed to be paid during the period are

disclosed in Note V.48 and Note XlIl to these financial statements.

The financial statements have been signed by:

Legal Representative:

EERRA

Tan Xuguang
EB

Principal in charge of accounting:
B IEREA

Kwong Kwan Tong

BRE

January to June
2014

201445 1-6 A
(Unaudited)
(RIEERZ)

34,111,434,568.32
27,143,799,729.80
146,790,621.00
1,543,287,260.29
2,078,454,681.26
104,747,315.66
273,454,327.04
(150,137,868.78)
1,743,670,915.56

94,884,597.49

4,414,433,680.05
74,116,130.10

1,246,684.75
12,397,585.18

6,156,044.70

4,476,152,224.97
481,695,914.07

3,994,456,310.90

3,764,836,231.86

229,620,079.04

REARE S 32 R BB 2 BRI R MY ot

ho 48RMEE T =HEE -

MBImEABATALESE

Head of accounting department:

SREBAREA

Wang Junwei
TERE



Consolidated Income Statement (Continued)

January to June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

Interim Report 2015 AR HARE

A HEFIE R ()
2015F1-6 H( AR T)

January to June
2015

2015%1-6 B
(Unaudited)
(REBER)

Note V
MsER

Net other comprehensive income after tax
Net other comprehensive income attributable to
shareholders of the parent after tax
Those other comprehensive income not to be
reclassified into profit or loss in subsequent
periods
Changes arising from re-measuring net assets or
net liabilities of defined benefit plan
Share of investee’s other comprehensive income
not to be reclassified into profit or loss using
the equity method

Hipsr e W& %58
BENE QR

Hiphr & W m 1R %5

AR TN BEE D AR

HaRa Wat

B EREX &S
FRENFEENED

BEEA N ERIRE BN
TeeEDBEREN
Hipr e Wasmhm=Eh
CokvE: ]

(62,863,128.95)

70,669,720.12

Those other comprehensive income to be
reclassified into profit or loss in subsequent
periods
Share of investee’s other comprehensive income

to be reclassified into profit or loss using the
equity method

Change of fair value of available-for-sale
financial assets

Effective portion of cashflow from hedging
instrument

Exchange differences on foreign currency
translation

RS E D FBERED

Hip#r & Was

R T ERIRE B
HEDEE RSN
Hipfr A Wamhm=EH
#170 &8

At ESREE
RREEEZS

RenEEMTAN
BHED

SINEMBEBRRITEER

(87,328.44)
87,380,000.00

(15,796,243.61)

(205,029,277.02)

Net other comprehensive income attributable to

BERNDBBRROEMES

120,048,918.54

1,363,322,076.18

minority owners after tax 25 8O B 18 7H 58
Total comprehensive income RE W= TE
Incl: Er o

Total comprehensive income attributable to
the shareholders of the parent

Total comprehensive income attributable to
minority owners

HENERRRROES
W a5 48 R
BERLBRROGEE
W a5 48 R

906,286,009.42

457,036,066.76

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share

e
AR
i

The financial statements have been signed by:

Legal Representative:

Principal in charge of accounting:

EERRA TEGHIHERBRA
Tan Xuguang Kwong Kwan Tong
ek B

January to June
2014

2014%1-6 A
(Unaudited)
(REEEZ)

(160,348,224.24)

(162,692,384.76)

37,789,447.00

(35,445,286.48)

(2,471,923.47)

3,831,636,163.19

3,604,488,007.62

227,148,155.57

0.94
0.94

61
0.24
0.24
MSIMERBATALESE
Head of accounting department:
BREIBREA
Wang Junwei
TER



36  Weichai Power Co., Ltd.

B D RHBRA A

Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity

January to June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

(Unaudited)

(REEH)

At beginning of period, before adjustment
1. Adustment for purchase price

allocaton of business combinztion
Atbeginning of period, after adjustment
Movements in current period

() Total comprehensive income

AEHAZENRE
1. bxeliEEIBAE

(1) Capital injection and reduction

from shareholders

1. Capital njecton from
Shareholders

2. Amount of share-based
payment taken to
owners' equity

3. Acoisttion of minorfty interests

(2) BREANESER
1. BREAZE

2 Bh%fHAER
ek

3 MEVERRES

() Profit appropriation (2) HESE
1. Disrbuton to owners 1. SREHAR
V) Special resere (B) 2BRE
1. Appropriation during 1. KRR
the period
2. Used during the perod 1. $HER
N, Atend of priod I FHERHE

NEG Capital

capital Teserve

LN |

199930963900  1,288,252938.51

199930963900  1,288,252938.51

296,934.25
(1,078,649,6

199930963900 209,900,265.42

£ 1 I SRR 25
)%

2015 1-6 H(AR#T)

Equity attributable to shareholders of the parent

Other
comprehensive
income

4

FeyE

(342,209472.70)

(451,349,031.64)

BERBLARRER

Special

reserve

Ly

51,026,772.11

51,026,772.11

31,138 54757
(16,335,768.99)

6582955069

Surplus

feserve

BIR

3051,742,591.19

3051,742,591.19

3051,742,591.19

Retained

earnings

FARAR

26,419,607,056.45

(207514140
16,397,531915.03

969,149,138.37

299,896,445.85)

27,066,784,607.55

Subtotal

I ﬁ

32,467,129,524.56

(68351,571.41)
32,399377933.15

906,286,009.42

296,934.25
,649,607.34)

(299,896,445.85)

31,138,547.57
(16,335,768.99)

31922176001

Minority
interests

H8
RREE

8,386,683,156.04

1,155,827, 224.14
9,542,510,380.18

457,036,066.76

18,758,428.75

479,364.45

208,523,246.02)

(225,059,398.69)

16,220,125.63
(8,6%,592.72)

959272512834

Total
equity
L

at

40,854 412,680.60

1,087475,652.73
41,941,888333.33

1,363322,076.18

18,758,428.75

776298.70

(1.287,172,853.36)

(524.955,844.54)

4735867320
(25032361.71)

41,534 94275055

BBSIMEABATALESE

The financial statements have been signed by:

Legal Representative: Principal in charge of accounting: Head of accounting department:

EERERA FTEGHIEGEA BRTEBEAREA
Tan Xuguang Kwong Kwan Tong Wang Junwei

E B BRIRE TER



Consolidated Statement of
Changes in Equity (Continued)

January to June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

Interim Report 2015 FRHEAZRE

A P IR R 4
BER ()
2014F1-6 H(AR#T)

Equity attributable to shareholders of the parent

SENENIRRER
Other
Share Capital ~ comprehensive Spedial Surplus Retained Minority Total
(Unaudited) Note V capital eserve income reserve reserve eanings Subtotal interests equity
it S8 BzRE
(%0 B ies ER0E REWE Evt i BYIE FHRAR it L 3 aif
. Atbeginning of period - FHEISE 199930963900 758458,887.62 (17.960938.21) 3160588968 268322333461 2226453681892 217317363162 6,604,137,739.77 3432731137139
Il Movements i current period o FEENERLE
(I Tote comprehensie ncome (-) GadagE - - (16034820424) - - 3TeAB6NE  3G0L48B0076  27MBIHST 383163616319
(1) Capita inecton and reduction (2) BERAMELOER
from shareholders
1. Capitlinjection from 1. RERAER
sharcholders B = B B = - - 495,732.886.00 495,732,886.00
2. Minortyinterests arsing 1 WEBEENDE
from acquisiton hxEa - - - - - - - 18196304179 181963041792
3. Acquision of minorty nterets 3 KB EREES “ - (15073257509 - - - < (SOTREB0Y (1205M5829  (271.37,15738)
4 Others 4 i I B 46,520039.18 - B = - 46,520039.18 - 46,520039.18
() Profit approprition (2) HESE
1. Distroution to owners 1. HRRNAR 8 B = B B - (29989644585 (299,896,445.85) - (299,89,445.85)
V) Special reserve (m) E%EE
1. Appropriaton during 1. KRR
the perod & - = B 28414816.11 = - 141481611 14585,233.11 43,000,049.2
2. Used during the period 1. $HER & - - - (17201,943.72) = - (17.20193.72) (8,829408.14) (26,031,351.86)
() Othes (T) £
1. Putoptonsin eltion to | B URRERER
minorty inerests NiEHE W - 63999905188 - - - - - - 63999905188
Il Atend of perod = FEERHE 1999309639.00 129424540359 (178,309,162.45) 481876207 268322333461 2572947660493 3157476458175 9,031,900,441.94  40,606,665,023.69
The financial statements have been signed by: MBEHETBUATALTESE

Legal Representative:

EEREA

Tan Xuguang
BB

BIRE

Principal in charge of accounting:
IBEGHIEREA

Kwong Kwan Tong

Head of accounting department:

BREBAREA

Wang Junwei

TER
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38  Weichai Power Co., Ltd. %58 H R 5 E R 2

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

January to June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

B OF B 4B i B AR

2015 1-6 H(AR#T)

Note V
MR

January to June
2015

2015%1-6 B

(Unaudited)
(REER)

January to June
2014

2014F1-6 A
(Unaudited)
(REEZ)

21,200,151,754.97
154,939,433.90

456,371,169.05

21,811,462,357.92

14,173,369,728.85

2,538,607,093.78
2,207,309,421.19

2,203,972,979.14

21,123,259,222.96

688,203,134.96

50,000,000.00
98,973,772.65

630,278.96
1,217,462,120.87

1,367,066,172.48

717,399,184.35
1,097,137,945.32

1,814,537,129.67

(447,470,957.19)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING - REEHELNESD
ACTIVITIES meE
Cash received from sales of goods or HEMm  RRHEH
rendering of services WEIE IR & 36,634,743,199.53
Refunds of taxes B 89 750 B R & 180,529,707.47
Other cash received relating to U 3] L fh B A 07 )
operating activities BEANRE 62 437,778,818.46
Subtotal of cash inflows from LEFFHESAA
operating activities et 37,253,051,725.46
Cash paid for goods and services BEEMD  BEXYB
AT & 23,252,024,940.75
Cash paid to and on behalf of employees SRHEBTIANS
BIXIHERe 6,361,564,567.00
Cash paid for all types of taxes XN EERE 1,745,336,372.42
Other cash paid relating to operating S E At B A &R B
activities BEMNES 62 4,366,366,898.99
Subtotal of cash outflows from operating R ESEENIR £
activities NS 35,725,292,779.16
Net cash flows from operating activities KEEHEENRS
MEFRE 63 1,527,758,946.30
Il.  CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES = + & EEFERMRE
"=
Cash received from sale of investments W B E W R &R 2 3,000,000.00
Cash received from return on investments 55 E e i B Y
R4 76,925,284.83
Net cash received from disposal of BETRARMREAMm
subsidiaries and other business units EEEMIWEN
b ok 63 47,394,059.61
Net cash received from disposal of fixed RERETEE B
assets, intangible assets and other EEME MR
long-term assets BEKEMHIES
HER 344,209,554.44
Other cash received relating to investing W B E Ath B2 45 &R E
activities BHNE S 62 49,862,642.60
Subtotal of cash inflows from investing KEETEHEERA
activities N 521,391,541.48
Cash paid for acquisition of fixed assets, BREETEE 8
intangible assets and other long-term EEME MR
assets BEINNES 2,051,627,219.95
Cash paid for acquisition of investments KELREE 103,326,869.99
Subtotal of cash outflows from investing KB EZHEERL
activities N 2,154,954,089.94
Net cash flows from investing activities KEEZHNEANES
mEER (1,633,562,548.46)
The financial statements have been signed by: MEMERBUATALESE
Legal Representative: Principal in charge of accounting: Head of accounting department:
EEREA FESHIEEEA: SRREEEA
Tan Xuguang Kwong Kwan Tong Wang Junwei
& fIB BB IR = FERE



Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (Continued)

January to June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

Interim Report 2015 AR HARE

S H SR ER (4)
2015F1-6 H( AR T)

January to June January to June

Note V 2015 2014
B 5E 7 2015%1-6 A 2014%F1-6 A
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

(REBER) (REEEZ)

M. CASH FLOWS (USED IN)/FROM FINANCING = -
ACTIVITIES
Cash received from capital contributions
Incl: Cash received by subsidiaries

EEEH(EM)
EENRERE
UL E KB R &
Her: FRAIRK D

from capital contributions R REE
of minority owners WEMR e
Cash received from borrowings BEFREHIES

ﬂﬂﬂ%ﬂﬁuﬂé’\]iﬁ%
W R B R B

Cash received from issuance of bonds
Other cash received relating to financing

18,758,428.75 495,732,886.00

18,758,428.75 495,732,886.00
7,047,612,195.20 627,785,309.90

62 93,268,650.92 =

7,159,639,274.87 1,123,518,195.90

activities AENRE
Subtotal of cash inflows from financing BEAFPHRSARA
activities NEE
Cash repayments of borrowings BEEEEINHIRS
Cash paid for distribution of dividends or DERRA - FMEHE

NHEXHRE

profits and for interest expenses

5,653,421,303.40 455,092,455.38

674,111,635.12 382,285,910.96

383,456,454.58 176,065,689.95

62 1,395,358,601.93 15,784,702.16

7,722,891,540.45 853,163,068.50

(563,252,265.58) 270,355,127.40

(69,496,482.87) (18,241,733.92)

Incl: Cash paid to minority owners Hep  FREIENE
for distribution of dividends DB R A
or profits by subsidiaries A~ 7]
Other cash paid relating to financing YTHHEMEEEEH
activities BEAMNRSE
Subtotal of cash outflows from E5EHHE LSRN
financing activities INET
Net cash flows (used in)/from EE8EH(ER)E
financing activities NG REFHE
IV.  EFFECT OF CHANGES IN EXCHANGE M. ERFEHEREH
RATE ON CASH TE
V. NET (DECREASE)/INCREASEINCASHAND F + IRERIBESEEY

CASH EQUIVALENTS
Add: Cash and cash equivalents

FORD) /B IngE
mEmReRkRe

(738,552,350.61)

492,845,571.25

PR EA RN XY 16,596,941,296.20

at beginning of period ZEYEREE
VI. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END N HRBEEeREEE
OF PERIOD BYeEE

63 19,756,065,767.81 17,089,786,867.45

The financial statements have been signed by:

Legal Representative:

EERRKRA

Principal in charge of accounting:

FEGHIERBEA:

Tan Xuguang
EEERI

Kwong Kwan Tong

BIRE

MBSMERBAATALESE

Head of accounting department:

BEIRBAERA :

Wang Junwei

T&E
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40 \Weichai Power Co., Ltd. %8 HIRODER D T

Company Balance Sheet

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

nA B ERRE

20156 308 (A R#T)

Note XV 30 June 2015
201566 H30H
(Unaudited)
(RREX)

1 12,701,058,850.82
2 6,873,042,033.86
3 959,785,345.04
59,836,658.53
138,112,977.67
6,602,978.72

4 1,870,613,830.83
1,740,938,908.23
498,088,850.89

24,848,080,434.59

384,880,000.00

6,7 10,073,803,386.24
8 1,156,884,857.95
9 2,568,908,756.72
1,432,144,123.37
271,185.57

10 332,696,920.19
579,145,043.76
5,812,336.00
241,502,273.32
474,169,944.59

31 December 2014
2014912 A831H

(Audited)
(BE:Z)

13,471,590,469.50

9,387,204,158.36
1,026,365,645.31
52,697,084.17
133,399,138.89
34,167,062.06
1,863,144,593.87
1,952,477,318.55

27,921,045,470.71

282,080,000.00

10,055,462,694.26

993,797,538.54
2,620,753,452.52
1,680,803,418.53
244,955.71
335,448,373.29
579,145,043.76
7,057,834.00
319,596,572.97
383,161,196.00

17,250,218,827.71 17,257,551,079.58

ASSETS BE M+ R
Current assets mENEE
Cash and cash equivalents B¥ES
Notes receivable EEE
Accounts receivable JE W AR K
Prepayments TET FRIE
Interests receivable JE W 2
Dividends receivable JE U5 R
Other receivables H th & U 5K
Inventories rE
Other current assets Hithmeh & &
Total current assets MENEESET
Non-current assets FERBEE
Available-for-sale financial assets AHHESRERE
Long-term equity investments REIRERE
Investment property KREEEHE
Fixed assets & E & =
Construction in progress fERETIR
Disposal of fixed assets EEERE
Intangible assets mEE
Goodwill Bk
Long-term prepaid expense RGHER
Deferred tax assets RIEFSHEE
Other non-current assets HitnIERBEE
Total non-current assets FERBEESF
Total assets BEME

CPANEri A PAsPAR 0l 45,178,596,550.29

The financial statements have been signed by:

Legal Representative:

EEREA

Tan Xuguang
BB

Principal in charge of accounting:

ETEEHIFEEEA:

Kwong Kwan Tong
BPIRE

MEHmERBEATALES

Head of accounting department:

BRTHBAREA

Wang Junwei
TR



Company Balance Sheet (Continued)
30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

Interim Report 2015 iR 41

NEEEAER ()
20156 308 (A R#T)

Note XV 30 June 2015 31 December 2014
B+ R | Gz e D =R 2014F12 8318
(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REEX) (e=%)

3,598,205,687.50 6,095,957,306.04
3,305,647,129.02 4,426,815,259.81

106,228,475.18 35,614,863.96
1 580,183,960.42 542,818,361.66
12 12,870,769.47 183,907,771.93

72,508,333.49 32,958,333.47
286,896,445.85 =

1,896,490,064.30 2,098,746,409.80
13 564,010,595.83 722,824,200.00

(APEFVEEZEEEOEEY  14,139,642,506.67

1,399,583,892.71 1,398,219,228.23
25,652,708.61 15,815,305.29

20,000,000.00 20,000,000.00
14 254,618,968.86 259,363,246.49

1,699,855,570.18 1,693,397,780.01

AP0 ER PR 15,833,040,286.68

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY BEMRRER
Current liabilities nEAaE
Notes payable EARE L
Accounts payable JE T BR K
Advances from customers TE W FRIE
Payroll payable P 1<+ B T 357
Taxes payable ER T B
Interests payable FERTAIE
Dividend payable JE - IR F)
Other payables H eI 3R
Other current liabilities HitvmeaE
Total current liabilities mEAEEET
Non-current liabilities FRBARE
Bonds payable JERHE S
Long term payroll payable £ B & {<F B T % A
Special payables HIERER R
Deferred income IRAE W 2
Total non-current liabilities FRBDEESF
Total liabilities AfEEF
Shareholders’ equity R R
Share capital [
Capital reserve BEARRNIE
Other comprehensive income Hthira e
Special reserve HIARE
Surplus reserve BARNE

Retained earnings

RO EEHME

1,999,309,639.00 1,999,309,639.00
1,011,431,890.64 1,011,431,890.64
135,320,000.00 47,940,000.00
37,553,054.52 31,283,539.94
3,051,742,591.19 3,051,742,591.19
VR OESHVEIWARSY 23,203,848,602.84

Total shareholders’ equity

BoRER AR

PERYLRR VPRI 29,345,556,263.61

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity

BEMBRR SR

ZyM ki iy VIl 45,178,596,550.29

The financial statements have been signed by:

Legal Representative: Principal in charge of accounting:
EFERRA FEEFTIEREA

Tan Xuguang Kwong Kwan Tong

ZEY BR =

MBHMERBAATALESE

Head of accounting department:

BRRBAERA :

Wang Junwei
TER
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yNCIRIREES
Company Income Statement s FL A
January to June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2015F1-6 H(ARKT)
January to June January to June
Note XV 2015 2014
M+ R 2015%1-6 8 2014%1-6 8
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REEER)
Revenue EESON 15 6,735,199,082.09 13,766,604,152.49
Less: Cost of sales B B ERK A 15 5,179,554,626.68 9,689,981,479.84
Taxes and surcharges EEB® KM 38,453,264.20 86,062,623.12
Distribution and selling expenses HEER 224,609,685.92 544,314,799.75
General and administrative expenses EEER 686,471,132.58 917,859,211.84
Finance expenses HBER (79,257,580.68) (31,978,303.31)
Impairment loss of assets BERMEERX (3,865,780.28) 77,421,690.85
Add: Investment income AR 16 223,274,540.60 101,549,790.57
Incl:  Share of profit of associates and Hrp o S
jointly-controlled enterprises MEELE
B & W 15,415,407.47 5,250,690.81
Operating profit EERE 912,508,274.27 2,584,492,440.97
Add: Non-operating income s EmEIMEA 9,958,078.32 4,264,998.69
Incl:  Gain on disposal of non-current Eah o ERBEE
assets RENE 351,408.77 448,161.89
Less: Non-operating expenses W BEITH 73,050.50 1,811,052.28
Incl:  Loss on disposal of non-current HEih o EREBEE
assets REEK 8,578.28 131,212.28
Total profit FlMesE 17 CPRPIECERENP R 2,586,946,387.38
Less: Income tax expenses o FEHER 18 86,300,403.37 357,730,360.35
Net profit F 836,092,898.72 2,229,216,027.03
Net other comprehensive income after tax HiR AW Emm iz F58
Net other comprehensive income attributable FBEBRANARRERNEA
to shareholders of the parent after tax REWENTERFE 87,380,000.00 -
Those other comprehensive income to be A E D EEERRD
reclassified into profit or loss change of fair Efpir s W mn b E
value of available-for-sale financial assets CRMEEAAEBEESD 87,380,000.00 -
Total comprehensive income AR LR 923,472,898.72 2,229,216,027.03
The financial statements have been signed by: MM RHATALESE
Legal Representative: Principal in charge of accounting: Head of accounting department:
EEREKA FESHIEBEREA: FEIHEAEA
Tan Xuguang Kwong Kwan Tong Wang Junwei

21 . EBAR F&E



Company Statement of Changes in Equity 2~ 7} % R

January to June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

(Unaudited)

(REEH)

. Atbeginning of period - REBNSE
I Movementsin current period o KEEEEYLE

() Total comprehensive income

(=) Gakaeg

(1) Profit appropriation (2) 7lEAR
1. Distribution to owners 1. HRENAE
() Special reserve (Z) 2BkE
1. Appropriation during the period 1. RERR
2. Used during the period 2. TEFA
Il Atend of period = FHBRHE

Share capital

e

1,999,309,639.00

1,999,309,639.00

January to June 2014 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

Capital reserve

EALE

1,011,431,890.64

1,011,431,890.64

Interim Report 2015 s 43

2015F1-6 H( AR T)

Other
comprehensive

income

Ak

Special reserve

ARG

Surplus reserve

BHLE

47,940,000.00 31,283,539.94  3,051,742,591.19

87,380,000.00

8,566,760.99
(2.297,246.41)

135,320,000.00 37,553,05452  3,051,742,591.19

2014 1-6 H(AE¥T)

2

Retained earnings

RARAE

23,203,848,602.84

836,092,898.72

(299,896,445.85)

23,740,045,055.71

%

Total equity
REBEAT

29,345,556,263.61

923,472,898.12

(299,896,445.85)

8,566,760.99
(2.297,246.41)

29,975,402,231.06

Other
comprehensive
(Unaudited) Share capital Capital reserve income Special reserve Surplus reserve  Retained eamings Total equity
(REFH) o U Efirala EBRA BHLR AHEFE BRERSH
. Atbeginning of period - FYEN%E 1,999,309,639.00  1,010,975,033.38 8,500,000.00 2131970995  2,683223334.61  20,387,002,70339  26,110,330,420.33
I Movements in current period o REE2HLE
() Total comprehensive income (-) Gak#aE - - - - - 2229216027.03 222921602703
(I Profit appropriation (2) #EAE
1. Distribution to owners 1. HRENAE - - - - - (29989644585 (299,896,445.85)
() Special reserve (Z) 2BRE
1. Appropriation during the period 1. RERR - - - 849437478 - - 849437478
2. Used during the period 2 TEER - - - (2,811,177.55) = = (2,811,177.55)
Il Atend of period = FERRE 1999,309,639.00  1,010,975,033.38 8,500,000.00 27,002,907.18  2,683223334.61  22,316,322,284.57  28,045,333,198.74
The financial statements have been signed by: BBBREREAATALESE

Legal Representative:

EERRKRA

Principal in charge of accounting:
FEGHIEAERA

Head of accounting department:

SEBBEEA

Tan Xuguang
sk

Kwong Kwan Tong
BPIRE

Wang Junwei

T&E
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Company Cash Flow Statement

January to June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

o~ F) B4R i B AR

2015 1-6 H(AR#T)

Note XV

M+

January to June
2015
2015%1-6 8

(Unaudited)
(REBER)

January to June
2014
2014%1-6 8
(Unaudited)

(RigE=Z)

10,302,825,381.83
321,905,398.30

10,624,730,780.13

8,298,784,774.60

640,734,579.37
1,159,555,646.15

402,051,395.62

10,501,126,395.74

123,604,384.39

67,009,108.44

64,228.80
38,232,850.00

105,306,187.24

64,093,630.47
865,279,060.00

929,372,690.47

(824,066,503.23)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING — REERHELNRD
ACTIVITIES me
Cash received from sales of goods or HE®E M RESEH
rendering of services WRIHIR S 9,486,776,859.24
Other cash received relating to operating W BN Ath B 4K 2R B
activities BEHIE 316,630,009.23
Subtotal of cash inflows from operating KEEHRSMA
activities N 9,803,406,868.47
Cash paid for goods and services BEED BEXEB
B S 8,480,169,492.98
Cash paid to and on behalf of employees YRGBT UARS
BIMHERE 492,669,869.13
Cash paid for all types of taxes IS ERE 548,590,706.21
Other cash paid relating to operating AN Ho At BRAT 1 E B
activities BEME S 483,539,693.86
Subtotal of cash outflows from operating K EHE SR L
activities NEt 10,004,969,762.18
Net cash flows (used in)/from operating wEEB(FER) B
activities AR REFRER 19 (201,562,893.71)
Il.  CASH FLOWS USED IN INVESTING — - REEDEANESD
ACTIVITIES mE
Cash received from sale of investments I B35 & W EI /3R & 70,000,000.00
Cash received from return on investments S E Wz W B /Y
R4 224,195,465.32
Net cash received from disposal of BETRARMEAM
subsidiaries and other business entities BB
BeFRE 49,893,098.00
Net cash received from disposal of fixed REBETEE « B
assets, intangible assets and other long- BEMHEMKE
term assets BEKEMHIE S
FER
Other cash received relating to investing U B H A B B R B
activities BENRS
Subtotal of cash inflows from investing KEEHEERA
activities /NET 344,088,563.32
Cash paid for acquisition of fixed assets, BRETEE 8
intangible assets and other long-term BEEMEAM R
assets BEEXNHNERS 253,854,976.48
Cash paid for acquisition of investments KESTMNEE 632,297,213.95
Subtotal of cash outflows from investing KRETEHEE R
activities N 886,152,190.43
Net cash flows used in investing activities KREEFFRANRE
MEFH (542,063,627.11)
The financial statements have been signed by: MBEmMERBUATALESE
Legal Representative: Principal in charge of accounting: Head of accounting department:
EEREKA EFEEFIEARA SHEEEEA
Tan Xuguang Kwong Kwan Tong Wang Junwei
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Company Cash Flow Statement (Continued) AR B aER ()
January to June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2015F1-6 H(ARKT)
January to June January to June
Note XV 2015 2014
Ms+h 2015%1-6 B 2014%F1-6 A
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REBER) (RIEEEZ)
lll.  CASH FLOWS USED IN FINANCING = EREPFEANRS
ACTIVITIES meE
Other cash paid relating to financing YN EMEEEEE
activities HHEMR S 10,835,481.60 15,665,820.00
Subtotal of cash outflows from financing &8 FeREnE
activities NEF 10,835,481.60 15,665,820.00
Net cash flows used in financing activities EEEYFHNRS
e R (10,835,481.60) (15,665,820.00)

IV.  EFFECT OF CHANGES IN EXCHANGE RATE PO « FEXREFHHIRSH

ON CASH 2] (9,516.10) 12,954.63
V. NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH T REaRRLEEY
EQUIVALENTS FORm A (754,471,518.52) (716,114,984.21)
Add: Cash and cash equivalents o YRS K
at beginning of period HeZEED
BRFE 13,418,614,444.43 11,252,295,276.97
VI.  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT N HRBEERERS
END OF PERIOD ZEYSHE 20 12,664,142,925.91 10,536,180,292.76
The financial statements have been signed by: MEmMERBUATALESE
Legal Representative: Principal in charge of accounting: Head of accounting department:
EEREKA FEEFIEEEA SrHEBAEA
Tan Xuguang Kwong Kwan Tong Wang Junwei
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46  Weichai Power Co., Ltd.

HRBORHBERDE

Notes to Financial Statements

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

L.

Corporate Background

Weichai Power Co., Ltd. (the “Company”) is a joint stock company limited
by shares incorporated in Shandong, the People’s Republic of China. It
was established on 23 December 2002.

The RMB ordinary A shares and overseas listed foreign H shares issued by
the Company were listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, respectively. The registered address of
the Company’s headquarters is 197, Section A, Fu Shou East Street, High
Technology Industrial Development Zone, Weifang, Shandong Province.
The Company operates in the transportation equipment manufacturing
industry. The approved scope of operations of the Company covers:
Design, development, production, sale, repair, import and export of diesel
engines and auxiliary products; automobile (except sedans), automobile
axle and components, gear boxes and components and other automobile
components, hydraulic pumps, hydraulic motors, hydraulic valves, gears
and gear transmission devices, ancillary casting and casting products
of hydraulic components; technical consultation and technical services;
leasing of self-owned houses; sale of steel; business management service;
forklift trucks and warehouses technology services (should hold operating

permit(s) for operations requiring administrative permission).

Weichai Group Holdings Limited and Shandong Heavy Industry Group
Co., Ltd., established in the PRC, are the parent company and ultimate

parent company of the Group respectively.

These interim financial statements were approved by the board of

directors of the Company on 27 August 2015.

The consolidation scope of consolidated financial statements is determined

on the basis of control. Please refer to Note VI for changes this year.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

II. Preparation basis of the financial statements  — ~ [ % i 3¢ 0 4 S 5L i

These interim financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises — No. 32 Interim Financial

Reporting issued by the Ministry of Finance (the “MOF").

These interim financial statements include selected explanatory notes,
which are provided for easy understanding of the Group’s important
events and transactions leading to its financial position and change of
results of operations since the financial statements for the year 2014.
These selected notes do not include all information and disclosures
required under the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises for a
full set of financial statements. As such, these statements shall be read in

conjunction with the financial statements for the year 2014.
The interim financial statements are presented on a going concern basis.

There are no significant uncertainties which would otherwise affect the
Company's ability for its going concerns in the next 12 months as from
the date hereof.

Other than certain financial instruments and held-for-sale assets, these
financial statements have been prepared at historical costs. Non-current
assets classified as held-for-sale and assets under disposal group classified
as held-to-sale are carried at the lower of fair value less foreseeable
expenses or original carrying amount upon satisfying conditions for
held-for-sale. If the assets are impaired, corresponding provisions for

impairment shall be made according to relevant provisions.

Significant Accounting Policies and

Accounting Estimates

1. Accounting year
The accounting year of the Group is from 1 January to 31 December
of each calendar year. This accounting period is from 1 January to
30 June.
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48  Weichai Power Co., Ltd.

HRBORHBERDE

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

2.

Functional currency

The functional currency of the Company and the currency used in
preparing the financial statements were Renminbi. The amounts
in the financial statements were denominated in Renminbi, unless

otherwise stated.

The subsidiaries, jointly controlled enterprises and associates of the
Company may determine their own functional currencies based
on the major economic environment in which they operate the
business. In preparation of financial statements, their functional
currencies shall be translated into RMB.

Business combination

A business combination is a transaction or event that brings
together two or more separate entities into one reporting entity.
Business combinations are classified into business combinations
involving entities under common control and business combinations
not involving entities under common control.

Business combinations involving entities under common
control

A business combination involving entities under common control
is a business combination in which all of the combining entities
are ultimately controlled by the same party or parties both before
and after the combination, and that control is not transitory. For
a business combination involving entities under common control,
the party that, on the combination date, obtains control of another
entity participating in the combination is the absorbing party, while
that other entity participating in the combination is a party being
absorbed. Combination date is the date on which the absorbing

party effectively obtains control of the party being absorbed.

Assets and liabilities that are obtained by the absorbing party in
a business combination involving entities under common control,
including goodwill arising from the acquisition of the party being
absorbed by the ultimate controller, shall be accounted for on
the basis of the carrying amounts on the financial statements of
the ultimate controller at the combination date. The difference
between the carrying amount of the net assets obtained and the
carrying amount of the consideration paid for the combination (or
the aggregate face value of shares issued as consideration) shall
be adjusted to share premium under capital reserve. If the capital
reserve is not sufficient to absorb the difference, any excess shall be
adjusted against retained earnings.

5 i R M 5 (48)
20156 A30H (A R#¥T)

=~ 12 A BOR K| at Al wt

(%)

2.

AC AR A i

7R 73 5] 52 AR A1 B AR B2 o B
BRFARANEEIAARE - BB
BRI AARB LA ERR
7

ARABTEFRAR  AELERBE
©X - REEQEMENTBZLBR
BEITRERGCEAMLYE  REMT
BRETERARE -

o =0

©EEAG %?E#’rﬁﬁﬂﬁiﬁﬁflutﬁ
BORESHEK—ERSETROX
ZHEE - DEEHD %Iﬁ* %%‘J—F
EEAFMIER—ZF TRERG

A — 42 T A 4

LHEAHNEEESHFATRERRE—
TR S 7 RARIEF - BRI
WHIERE - RE—EH THRZE
Bt A—EZEHTHEXEH  £4
HFREBSHEMSEA G0 EER R
M—REaHT  2HEHAMFNEMD
ERWAEHTT - AHA - ZEAHD
ERRGHKAMH TEHIENA S -

BHTER—ER TRESHHIUF
MEEMBE(BREEESTKRE
WEHTMERNEE)  RAHA
EREES DM BHRERTOREER
RERETHEEREE - 67
SHRFEERABEE NS OHY
EEmEE(RBETRMEELR)
B ERE > BHEBEERNQIED R AR
B TR AAER FS



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

3.

Business combination (Continued)

Business combinations not involving entities under
common control

A business combination not involving entities under common
control is a business combination in which all of the combining
entities are not ultimately controlled by the same party or parties
both before and after the combination. For a business combination
not involving entities under common control, the party that, on the
acquisition date, obtains control of another entity participating in
the combination is the acquirer, while that other entity participating
in the combination is the acquiree. Acquisition date refers to
the date on which the acquirer effectively obtains control of the

acquiree.

The acquirer shall measure the acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities acquired in the business
combination not involving entities under common control at their

fair values on the acquisition date.

The excess of the sum of the consideration paid (or equities
securities issued) for business combination and equity interests in
the acquiree held prior to the date of acquisition over the share of
the attributable net identifiable assets of the acquiree, measured
at fair value, was recognized as goodwill, which is subsequently
measured at cost less cumulative impairment loss. In case the fair
value of the sum of the consideration paid (or equities securities
issued) and equity interests in the acquiree held prior to the date of
acquisition is less than the fair value of the share of the attributable
net identifiable assets of the acquiree, a review of the measurement
of the fair values of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities, the consideration paid for the combination (or equities
securities issued) and the equity interests in the acquiree held prior
to the date of acquisition is conducted. If the review indicates that
the fair value of the sum of the consideration paid (or equities
securities issued) and equity interests in the acquiree held prior
to the date of acquisition is indeed less than the fair value of the
share of the attributable net identifiable assets of the acquiree, the

difference is recognized in current profit or loss.
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50 Weichai Power Co., Ltd.

HRBORHBERDE

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

3.

Business combination (Continued)

Business combinations not involving entities under
common control (Continued)

For a business combination involving enterprises not under common
control and achieved in stages, the Group remeasures its previously-
held equity interest in the acquiree to its fair value at the acquisition
date. The difference between the fair value and the carrying
amount is recognized as investment income for the current period;
the amount recognized in other comprehensive income using the
equity method and relating to the previously-held equity interest in
the acquiree shall be accounted for in accordance with the same
accounting treatment for direct disposal of relevant asset or liability
by investee. Movement of other owners’ equity (excluding net profit
or loss, other comprehensive income and profit distribution) shall
be transferred to profit or loss for the current period to which the

acquisition date belongs.

Consolidated financial statements

The consolidation scope of consolidated financial statements
is determined on the basis of control, including the financial
statements for the half year ended 30 June 2015 of the Company
and all of its subsidiaries. A subsidiary is an entity that is controlled
by the Company, including separable parts of an enterprise or

investee and structured entities controlled by the Company etc.

In preparation of consolidated financial statements, the subsidiaries
use the same accounting period and accounting policies as those
of the Company. When the accounting policies of a subsidiary are
different from those of the Company, the Company shall make
adjustments to the financial statements of the subsidiary based
on its own accounting policies. All intra-group assets, liabilities,
equity, income, expenses and cash flows resulting from intra-group

transactions are eliminated on consolidation in full.

Where the amount of losses of a subsidiary attributable to the
minority shareholders in the current period exceeds their share of
the opening balance of owner’s equity of the subsidiary, the excess

shall be allocated against minority interests.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

4.

Consolidated financial statements (Continued)
For subsidiaries acquired through business combinations not
involving entities under common control, the operating results and
cash flows of the acquiree shall be included in the consolidated
financial statements, from the day on which the Group gains
control, till the Group ceases the control of it. While preparing
the consolidated financial statements, the acquirer shall adjust the
subsidiary’s financial statements, on the basis of the fair values of
the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recognized
on the acquisition date.

For subsidiaries acquired through business combinations involving
entities under common control, the operating results and cash
flows of the acquiree shall be included in the consolidated
financial statements from the beginning of the period in which
the combination occurs. While preparing the comparative financial
statements, adjustments are made to related items in the financial
statements for the prior period as if the reporting entity established
through combination has been existing since the ultimate controller
begins to exercise control.

The Group’s control over an investee is re-assessed if change in
relevant facts and situations causes changes in one or more of the
control substances.

Where there is no loss of control, the change in minority interests is
accounted for as equity transaction.

Classification of joint arrangements and joint
operation

Joint arrangements are in the form of joint operation or jointly-
controlled enterprise. A joint operation is a joint arrangement under
which the joint venture parties are entitled to assets and undertake
liabilities under the arrangement. A jointly-controlled enterprise is
a joint arrangement under which the joint venture parties are only
entitled to the net assets under such arrangement.

The following items should be recognised by a joint venture party in
relation to its share of profit in the joint operation: solely held assets,
as well as jointly held assets according to its share; solely assumed
liabilities, as well as jointly assumed liabilities according to its share;
income derived from its entitled share of production of the joint
operation; income derived from the sales of production of the joint
operation according to its share; solely incurred expenses, as well as
expenses incurred by the joint operation according to its share.
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52  Weichai Power Co., Ltd.

HRBORHBERDE

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

6.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises the Group’s cash on hand and deposits that can
be readily withdrawn on demand. Cash equivalents are short-
term, highly liquid investments held by the Group, that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

Foreign currency operations and foreign
currency translation

The Group translates the amount of foreign currency transactions
occurred into its functional currency.

Foreign currency transactions are recorded, on initial recognition,
in the functional currency, by applying to the foreign currency
amount the spot exchange rate prevailing on the transaction dates.
At the balance sheet date, foreign currency monetary items are
translated using the spot exchange rate prevailing on the balance
sheet date. All the resulting differences on settlement and monetary
item translation are taken to profit or loss in the current period,
except for those relating to foreign currency borrowings specifically
for construction and acquisition of qualifying assets, which are
capitalized in accordance with the principle of capitalization of
borrowing costs. Non-monetary foreign currency items measured
at historical cost shall still be translated at the spot exchange rate
prevailing on the transaction date, and the amount denominated
in the functional currency is not changed. Non-monetary foreign
currency items measured at fair value are translated at the spot
exchange rate prevailing at the date on which the fair values are
determined. The difference thus resulted are recognized in profit or
loss for the current period or as other comprehensive income based
on the nature of the non-monetary items.

For foreign operations, the Group translates their functional
currency amounts into RMB in preparing the financial statements as
follows: asset and liability items in the balance sheet are translated
using the spot exchange rate at the balance sheet date, and
equity items other than “retained earnings” are translated using
the spot exchange rate at the date of transactions; revenue and
expense items in the income statement are translated using the
average exchange rate for the period during which the transactions
occur. The resulting foreign currency exchange differences in the
financial statement are recognized in other comprehensive income.
On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognized in the profit or loss for the current period. If the disposal
only involves a portion of a particular foreign operation, the amount
is recognized on a pro-rata basis.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

7.

Foreign currency operations and foreign
currency translation (Continued)

Foreign currency cash flows and the cash flows of foreign
subsidiaries are translated using the average exchange rate for the
period during which the cash flows occur. The effect of exchange
rate changes on cash is separately presented as an adjustment item

in the cash flow statement.

Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial
asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of

another entity.

Recognition and Derecognition of Financial Instruments
The Group recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability when
it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of a financial

instrument.

The Group derecognizes a financial asset (or part of a financial
asset, or part of a group of similar financial assets), i.e. writes off
the financial asset from the account and balance sheet, when the

following conditions are met:

(1) the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset have

expired;

(2)  the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the financial asset, or has assumed an obligation to pay
them in full without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the ownership of
the financial asset, or (b) has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the ownership of the
financial asset, but has transferred control of the financial

asset.
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54 Weichai Power Co., Ltd.

HRBORHBERDE

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

8.

Financial instruments (Continued)
Recognition and Derecognition of Financial Instruments
(Continued)

If the underlying obligation of a financial liability has been
discharged or cancelled or has expired, the financial liability is
derecognized. If an existing financial liability is replaced by the
same creditor with a new financial liability that has substantially
different terms, or if the terms of an existing financial liability are
substantially revised, such replacement or revision is accounted for
as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of
a new liability, and the resulting difference is recognized in profit or

loss for the current period.

Regular way purchase or sale of financial assets are recognized and
derecognized using trade date accounting. Regular way purchase
or sale of financial assets refers to that the financial assets are
delivered to or by the Group under the terms of a contract within a
period as specified by law or general practice. The trade date is the

date on which the Group undertakes to buy or sell a financial asset.

Classification and Measurement of Financial Assets

Financial assets are, on initial recognition, classified into the
following categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, held-to-maturity investments, loans and receivables, available-
for-sale financial assets and derivatives designated as effective
hedging instruments. A financial asset is recognized initially at fair
value. In the case of financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss, relevant transaction costs are directly charged to the profit
and loss of the current period; transaction costs relating to financial
assets of other categories are included in the amount initially

recognized.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

8.

Financial instruments (Continued)

Classification and Measurement of Financial Assets
(Continued)

The subsequent measurement of a financial asset is determined by

its category:
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss and those designated
upon initial recognition as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss. A financial asset at fair value through profit or loss
is the financial asset that meets one of the following conditions:
the financial asset is acquired for the purpose of selling it in a
short term; the financial asset is a part of a portfolio of identifiable
financial instruments that are collectively managed, and there is
objective evidence indicating that the enterprise recently manages
this portfolio for the purpose of short-term profits; the financial
asset is a derivative, except for a derivative that is designated as
an effective hedging instrument, or a financial guarantee contract,
or a derivative that is linked to and must be settled by delivery of
an unquoted equity investment (without a quoted price from an
active market) whose fair value cannot be reliably measured. For
such kind of financial assets, fair values are adopted for subsequent
measurement. All the realized or unrealized gains or losses on
these financial assets are recognized in profit or loss for the current
period. Dividend income or interest income related to financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss is charged to profit or loss for the

current period.

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity date
that the Group has the positive intention and ability to hold to
maturity. Such kind of financial assets are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method. Gains or losses
arising from amortization or impairment and derecognition are

recognized in profit or loss for the current period.
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56  Weichai Power Co., Ltd.

HRBORHBERDE

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

8.

Financial instruments (Continued)

Classification and Measurement of Financial Assets
(Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Such kind of financial assets are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method. Gains or losses
arising from amortization or impairment are recognized in profit or

loss for the current period.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are those non-derivative financial
assets that are on initial recognition designated as available for sale
or are not classified as any of the aforesaid categories. After initial
recognition, available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair
value. The discount/premium is amortized using effective interest
method and recognized as interest income or expense. Changes in
the fair value of an available-for-sale financial asset is recognized
as other comprehensive income in capital reserve, except for
impairment losses and exchange differences resulted from
monetary financial assets, until the financial asset is derecognized or
determined to be impaired, at which time the accumulated gain or
loss is transferred to profit or loss for the current period. Dividends
or interest income relating to an available-for-sale financial asset are

recognized in profit or loss for the current period.

Investments in equity investments, which do not have quoted
prices in an active market and whose fair values cannot be reliably

measured, are measured at cost.

Classification and Measurement of Financial Liabilities

The Group's financial liabilities are, on initial recognition, classified
into financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, other
financial liabilities or derivatives designated as effective hedging
instruments. For financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss, relevant transaction costs are directly recognized in profit or
loss for the current period, and transaction costs relating to other

financial liabilities are included in the initial recognition amounts.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

8.

Financial instruments (Continued)

Classification and Measurement of Financial Liabilities
(Continued)

The subsequent measurement of a financial liability is determined

by its category:
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities held for trading and those designated upon initial
recognition as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.
A financial liability held for trading is the financial liability that meets
one of the following conditions: the financial liability is assumed for
the purpose of repurchasing it in a short term; the financial liability
is a part of a portfolio of identifiable financial instruments that are
collectively managed, and there is objective evidence indicating
that the enterprise recently manages this portfolio for the purpose
of short-term profits; the financial liability is a derivative, except
for a derivative that is designated as effective hedging instrument,
or a financial guarantee contract, or a derivative that is linked to
and must be settled by delivery of an unquoted equity investment
(without a quoted price from an active market) whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured. For such kind of financial liabilities, fair
values are adopted for subsequent measurement. All the realized or
unrealized gains or losses on these financial liabilities are recognized

in profit or loss for the current period.

Other financial liabilities
After initial recognition, such kind of financial liabilities are

measured at amortized costs by using the effective interest method.

Elimination of financial instruments

The net amount after eliminating financial assets and financial
liabilities is presented in the balance sheet if the following
conditions are satisfied: A lawful right exists for eliminating
recognized amounts, and such lawful right is currently enforceable;
it is planned that the financial assets and financial liabilities are to
be netted against each other, or that they are to be realized and

settled simultaneously.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) F B i R B T (48
30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20156 H30H (A B #or)
I1I. Significant Accounting Policies and = BB EhBOR &' Ek A
Accounting Estimates (Continued) (%)
8. Financial instruments (Continued) 8. &M IA(HE)
Financial guarantee contracts BB ERE A

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer
to settle a debt or assume a liability to reimburse the holder for a
loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when
due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial
guarantee contracts are measured, on initial recognition, at fair
value. For financial guarantee contracts that are not designated as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, they are, after
initial recognition, subsequently measured at the higher of: the
amount of the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle
the present obligation at the balance sheet date; and the amount
initially recognized less the accumulated amortization determined

according to the principles of revenue recognition.

Derivative Financial Instruments

The Group uses derivative financial instruments such as forward
currency contracts and interest rate swaps to hedge its risks
associated with foreign currency and interest rate fluctuations. Such
derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value
on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as
assets when the fair value is positive and as liabilities when the fair
value is negative. A financial derivative that is linked to and must
be settled by delivery of an unquoted equity instrument (without a
quoted price in an active market) whose fair value cannot be reliably

measured is measured at cost.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of derivatives
are taken directly to profit or loss for the current period, except for
the effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognised in
other comprehensive income and later reclassified to profit or loss

when the hedged item affects profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

8.

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of Financial Assets

The Group assesses at the balance sheet date the carrying amount
of every financial asset. If there is objective evidence indicating
a financial asset may be impaired, a provision is provided for the
impairment. Objective evidence that a financial asset is impaired is
one or more events that occur after the initial recognition of the
asset and have an impact (which can be reliably estimated) on the
expected future cash flows of the financial asset. Where there arises
any of the following objective evidences indicating that accounts
receivable have been impaired, an impairment provision will be
made: a serious financial difficulty occurs to the debtor; the debtor
breaches any of the contractual stipulations (such as he fails to pay
or delays the payment of interests or the principal); the debtor will
probably go bankrupt or carry out other financial reorganisations;
other objective evidences show that the accounts receivable are

impaired.

Financial assets carried at amortized cost

If an impairment on a financial asset has incurred, the carrying
amount of the asset is reduced to the present value of expected
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not
been incurred) and such reduction is taken to profit or loss for the
current period. The present value of expected future cash flows is
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate
(i.e. effective interest rate computed on initial recognition) and
includes the value of any related collateral. Where floating interest
rate is adopted, the discount rate for determining the present value
of future cash flow shall be equal to the prevailing effective rate
which is contractually stipulated. Interest income upon impairment is
recognized at a rate equal to the discount rate used for discounting

future cashflow upon recognition of impairment loss.
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60  Weichai Power Co., Ltd.

HRBORHBERDE

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

8.

Financial instruments (Continued)
Impairment of Financial Assets (Continued)

Financial assets carried at amortized cost (Continued)

For a financial asset that is individually significant, the asset is
individually assessed for impairment, and the amount of impairment
loss is recognized in profit or loss for the current period if there is
objective evidence of impairment. For a financial asset that is not
individually significant, it is included in a group of financial assets
with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assessed for
impairment. If no impairment incurs for an individually assessed
financial asset (whether the financial asset is individually significant
or not individually significant), it is included in a group of financial
assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assessed
for impairment. Assets for which an impairment loss is individually
recognized is not included in a group of financial assets with similar

credit risk characteristics and collectively assessed for impairment.

If, subsequent to the Group's recognition of an impairment loss
on a financial asset carried at amortized cost, there is objective
evidence of a recovery in value of the financial asset and the
recovery can be related to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognized, the previously recognized impairment loss is
reversed and recognized in profit or loss for the current period.
However, the reversal shall not result in a carrying amount of the
financial asset that exceeds what the amortized cost would have
been had the impairment loss not been recognized at the date the

impairment is reversed.

Available-for-sale financial assets

If there is objective evidence that an available-for-sale asset is
impaired, the accumulated loss arising from decline in fair value
previously recognized in other comprehensive income is removed
and recognized in profit or loss. The accumulated loss that removed
from other comprehensive income is the difference between the
acquisition cost (net of any principal repayment and amortization)
and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on the financial

asset previously recognized in profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

8.

Financial instruments (Continued)

Impairment of Financial Assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

Objective evidence indicating that available-for-sale equity
investment is impaired include significant or prolonged decline in
fair value. Judgments shall be made in distinguishing “significant”
and “prolonged”. “Significant” is judged by the extent of fair
value below its cost and “prolonged” is judged by the length
of period where fair value falls below its cost. Where objective
evidence of impairment exists, the accumulated loss of the transfer
is represented by the balance of acquisition cost after deduction
of the current fair value and impairment loss previously charged to
profit and loss. The impairment loss on an available-for-sale equity
investment is not reversed through profit or loss, and any increase
of fair value that occurs after the impairment is recognized directly

in other comprehensive income.

The determination of what is “significant” and “prolonged”
requires judgment. The Group takes into account, among other
factors, the extent and duration of the period of the fair value being

lower than cost, in such determination.

If, after an impairment loss has been recognized on an available-
for-sale debt instrument, the fair value of the debt instrument
increases in a subsequent period and the increase can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the original impairment loss
was recognized, the original impairment loss is reversed with the
amount of the reversal recognized in profit or loss for the current

period.

Financial assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that such a financial asset is impaired,
the difference between its carrying amount and the present value
of expected future cash flows which are discounted at the current
market yield rate of similar financial assets is recognized as an
impairment loss in profit or loss for the current period. Once an

impairment loss is recognized, it is not reversed.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

8.

Financial instruments (Continued)
Transfer of Financial Assets

If the Group transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset to the transferee, the Group
derecognizes the financial asset; if the Group retains substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the Group

does not derecognize the financial asset.

If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, it is accounted for as
follows: if the Group has not retained control, it derecognizes the
financial asset and recognizes any resulting assets or liabilities; if the
Group has retained control, it continues to recognize the financial
asset to the extent of its continuing involvement in the transferred

financial asset and recognizes the relevant liability.

For ongoing involvement by way of provision of financial guarantee
in respect of the transferred financial assets, the assets arising from
such involvement is recognized as the lower of the carrying amount
of the financial assets and the amount of the financial guarantee.
Amount of financial guarantee refers to the maximum amount to

be repayable on demand among the considerations received.

Receivables

(1)  Receivables Which Are Individually Significant and
for Which Provision for Bad Debt Is Recognized
Separately
In judging receivables which are individually significant,
the Group takes into account accounts receivables and
other receivables due from individual customers, risks
specific to particular customers, risks specific to particular
countries, interest on long-term receivables and the extent of
guaranteed portion of receivables etc. Receivables which are
individually significant are tested for impairment individually.
When objective evidence indicates that the receivable has
been impaired, bad debt provision is made based on the
shortfall of the present value of future cash flow as compared
to its carrying amount, and is charged to profit and loss for

the current period.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)
9. Receivables (Continued)

()

Receivables for Which Provision for Bad Debt Is
Recognized by Group With Distinctive Credit Risk
Characteristics

Other than receivables for which provision for bad debts
has been recognized individually, provision for bad debt is
recognized by group based on the actual loss rate of identical
or similar group in prior year or with similar distinctive credit

risk characteristics, taking into account the current situation.

Other than business segments located overseas, the grouping
of receivables is based on their ages which are taken as
a distinctive credit risk characteristic. Ageing analysis is
conducted to determine the provision for bad debt for

trade receivables and other receivables, at the following
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Percentage provided for
Age IR FTRLL A
Within 1 year 1F AR 5%
1-2 years 1824 15%
2-3 years 2E3F 30%
3-4 years 3E4F 50%
4-5 years 4754 80%
Over 5 years S5F A E 100%

For business segments located overseas, grouping of
receivables is based on their overdue ages which are taken as

a distinctive credit risk characteristic.

If objective evidence shows a recovery in value of the
receivables, the original bad debt provision can be reversed

and carried through profit and loss in the current period.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

9.

10.

Receivables (Continued)

(3) Receivables Which Are Not Individually Significant
But Provision for Bad Debt Is Recognized Separately
For receivables which are not individually significant but
objective evidence shows that the impairment has occurred,
bad debt provision will be made according to the difference
between the present value of future cash flows and its
carrying amounts and will be carried through profit and loss

for the current period.

If clear evidence indicates that the receivables are indeed
not recoverable, such as in case of cancellation, bankruptcy
or insolvency of the debtor or its serious cash flow problem,
then it is recognized as a bad debt and written off for bad

debt provision already made.

Inventories

Inventories include materials in transit, raw materials, work in
progress, finished goods, materials under entrusted processing, self
made semi-finished goods, turnover materials and second-hand

vehicles etc.

Inventories are initially carried at cost. Cost of inventories comprises
all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs. The actual
cost of inventories transferred out is assigned by using weighted
average method, first-in-first-out method or specific identification
method. Low value consumables are amortized by using immediate

write-off method.
The Groups adopts perpetual inventory system.

At the balance sheet date, inventories are measured at the lower
of cost and net realizable value. If the cost of inventories is higher
than the net realizable value, a provision for decline in value of
inventories is recognized in profit or loss for the current period. If
factors that previously resulted in the provision for decline in value
of inventories no longer exist, so that the net realizable value is
higher than the carrying amount, the amount of the write-down is
reversed. The reversal is limited to the amount originally provided
for the decline in value of inventories. The amount of the reversal is

recognized in profit or loss for the current period.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

10.

11.

12.

Inventories (Continued)

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale and relevant taxes. The
provision for decline in value of inventories is made on an individual

basis or a category basis.

Classified as held-for-sale assets
Except for financial assets and deferred tax assets, corporate
constituents (or non-current assets) are classified as held-for-sale if

the following conditions are satisfied:

(1) The constituent (or non-current asset) shall be ready for
immediate sale merely under customary terms for this kind of

constituent in its existing conditions;

(2)  Resolution has been made by the Group concerning the
disposition of such constituent (or non-current asset) and, if

required, shareholders’ approval have been obtained;

(3) lIrrevocable transfer agreement has been entered into with

transferee;
(4)  The transfer will be completed within one year.

Individual assets or disposal groups of non-current assets classified as
held-for-sale are not subject to depreciation or amortization. They
are measured at fair value less cost of disposal, but such amount
shall not exceed the original carrying amount during a period where
the conditions precedent to being held-for-sale are satisfied. The
excess of the original carrying amount over fair value less cost of
disposal shall be taken to profit and loss for the current period as

loss on impairment of assets.

Long-term equity investments
Long-term equity investments include equity investments in

subsidiaries, jointly controlled enterprises and associates.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20156 H30H (A B #or)
I1I. Significant Accounting Policies and = HOE GG BOR &g s E
Accounting Estimates (Continued) (%)

12. Long-term equity investments (Continued) 12. REARERE (&)

A long-term equity investment is initially recorded at its initial
investment cost on acquisition. For a long-term equity investment
acquired under business combination involving entities under
common control, the initial investment cost is determined as
the initial investment cost of the long-term equity investment is
the carrying value of the absorbing party’s share of the owner’s
equity of the party being absorbed as of the date of business
combination on the consolidated financial statements of the
ultimate controller. The difference between the initial investment
cost and the carrying value of the consideration for combination is
adjusted to capital reserve (or charged against retained earnings if
there is any shortfall). Other comprehensive income held prior to
the acquisition date is accounted for on the same basis as where
the assets or liabilities are directly disposed of by the investee in
disposing of such assets or liabilities. Owners' equity recognized as
a result of changes in other owners’ equity of the investee other
than net gains and losses, other comprehensive income and profit
appropriation is taken to profit and loss for the current period upon
the disposal of such investment. In particular, those which remain as
long-term equity investments upon disposal are carried forward in
proportion, and those which are converted to financial instruments
upon disposal are carried forward in full. For a long-term equity
investment acquired through a business combination involving
entities not under common control, the initial investment cost is
the cost of business combination (Business combination involving
entities not under common control which is achieved after multiple
transactions, the initial investment cost is the sum of carrying
value of equity investments of the acquiree held prior to the date
of acquisition and the addition to investment cost on the date of
acquisition). Cost of business combination includes the sum of fair
values of the assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity
securities issued by the acquirer. Other comprehensive income
recognized on equity method held prior to the date of acquisition is
accounted for on the same basis as where the assets or liabilities are
directly disposed of by the investee in disposing of such assets or
liabilities. Accumulated fair value change of equity investments held
prior to the date of acquisition being taken to other comprehensive
income as financial instrument is taken to profit or loss for the
current period under cost method. Long-term equity investments
acquired by means other than business combination, initial
investment cost is determined as follows: for a long-term equity
investment acquired by paying cash, the initial investment cost is
the actual purchase price paid and those costs, taxes and other
necessary expenditures directly attributable to the acquisition of
the long-term equity investment; for a long-term equity investment
acquired by the issue of equity securities, the initial investment cost is
the fair value of the equity securities issued. For a long-term equity
investment acquired by the swap of non-monetary assets, initial
investment cost is determined based on Accounting Standard for
Business Enterprises No. 7 — Swap of Non-monetary Assets. For a
long-term equity investment acquired by way of debt restructuring,
initial investment cost is determined based on Accounting Standard
for Business Enterprises No. 12 — Debt Restructuring.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

12.

Long-term equity investments (Continued)

For a long-term equity investment where the Company can exercise
control over the investee, the Company uses the cost method in the
Company’s financial statements. Control refers to the power over
an investee, and exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee, and the ability to use its power over

the investee to affect the amount of the investor’s returns.

Under the cost method, the long-term equity investment is
measured at its initial investment cost. For addition or reduction of
investments, the cost of long-term equity investments is adjusted.
Cash dividend or profit distribution declared by an investee is

recognized as profit or loss in the current period.

The equity method is adopted for a long-term equity investment
when the Group holds joint control, or exercises significant
influence on the investee. Joint control refers to the contractually-
agreed shared control over an arrangement and related activities
under such arrangement shall be decided upon with the unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but cannot control or jointly control with other

parties over the formulation of those policies.

Under the equity method, where the initial investment cost of a
long-term equity investment exceeds the investing entity’s interest
in the fair values of the investee’s identifiable net assets at the
acquisition date, the excess is included in the initial investment cost.
Where the initial investment cost is less than the investing entity’s
interest in the fair values of the investee’s identifiable net assets at
the acquisition date, the difference is charged to profit or loss for
the current period, and the cost of the long-term equity investment is

adjusted accordingly.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

12.

Long-term equity investments (Continued)

Under the equity method, the Group recognizes its share of the
net profits or losses and other comprehensive income made by the
investee as investment income or losses and other comprehensive
income after the acquisition of the long-term equity investments,
and adjusts the carrying amount of the investment accordingly.
The Group recognizes its share of the investee’s net profits or
losses after making appropriate adjustments to the investee’s net
profits based on the fair value of the investee's identifiable assets
at the acquisition date, using the Group’s accounting policies and
periods, and eliminating the portion of the profits or losses arising
from internal transactions with its jointly controlled enterprises
and associates, attributable to the investing entity according to its
share ratio (but impairment losses for assets arising from internal
transactions shall be recognized in full). The carrying amount of the
investment is reduced accordingly based on the Group's share of
any profit distributions or cash dividends declared by the investee.
The Group's share of net losses of the investee is recognized to the
extent the carrying amount of the investment together with any
long-term interests that in substance form part of its net investment
in the investee is reduced to zero, except that the Group has
incurred obligations to assume additional losses. The Group adjusts
the carrying amount of the long-term equity investment for any
changes in owners’ equity of the investee (other than net profits
or losses, other comprehensive income and profit distribution) and

includes the corresponding adjustments in the shareholders’ equity.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

12.

13.

Long-term equity investments (Continued)

On disposal of the long-term equity investments, the difference
between book value and market price is recognized in profit or
loss for the current period. For long-term equity investments under
equity method, when the use of the equity method is discontinued,
other comprehensive income previously accounted for under
the equity method shall be dealt with on the same basis as if
the relevant assets or liabilities were disposed of directly by the
investee. Shareholders’ equity recognised as a result of changes in
shareholders’ equity other than the net-off of profit and loss, other
comprehensive income and profit allocation of the investee shall be
transferred in full to current profit and loss. If the equity method
remains in use, other comprehensive income previously accounted
for under the equity method shall be dealt with on the same basis
as if the relevant assets or liabilities were disposed of directly by
the investee and transferred to current profit and loss on a pro-
rata basis. Shareholders’ equity recognised as a result of changes in
shareholders’ equity other than the net-off of profit and loss, other
comprehensive income and profit allocation of the investee shall be

transferred to current profit and loss on a pro-rata basis.

Investment property
Investment property is property held to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation or both. Investment property includes a land use right

that is leased out and a building that is leased out.

An investment property is measured initially at its cost. If the
economic benefits relating to an investment property will probably
flow in and the cost can be reliably measured, subsequent costs
incurred for the property is included in the cost of the investment
property. Otherwise, subsequent costs are recognized in profit or

loss for the period in which they are incurred.

Interim Report 2015 FRHEAZRE

B i R B 5T (A8
20156 300 (AE#¥7T)
=~ HOE GG BOR K| s

(%)

12. RERERE (&)
RERMKERE  HEEEEHESE
BRESERHZERSE  FTAEHER -
RAEREZENRPRBIZE K
IFRAERZES - RgEmE2%ERNE

13.

BAEMEERERARRREEME
ERERBEEXRBERARNERE
TEFtRE - RERETRFERS
Hiptr & Wz M A E D EEDM‘\\E’\JEWJ
PRz By AE R A A R M AR

HeEARHER THT%ﬁHﬁE*ﬁE%E’\J :
[RIEAZE R E AR S IR
FRERIRE 8 ua}g ERBAEEN
BEARNEMRETSIEEL R
PIEAEHER  ARRETRFR
g3 - BERA W M AE 2 B AN
HRRERZ B M ER R RER

AR PIEAE AR -

REMEHE

RAMREE  RIEARDASRE
REE KWMERAMFANE L
EeRCHENTIeERE B
Ry -

BREMFWERRKAETING
E -HREUEREMEREBRMNEEX
ho MREZEERBONLEMNRR
ﬂééiﬁkﬂﬁﬁ%$ﬁ%%@ﬂ;ﬁmﬂg '
At AREMFEHERR -
BARGTAEHES -

A

69



70 Weichai Power Co., Ltd.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

13.

14.

Investment property (Continued)
The Group uses the cost model for subsequent measurement of its
investment property. Depreciation or amortization is calculated on

the straight-line basis over its useful life, as follows:

(7
13.

5 i R M 5 (48)
20156 A30H (A R#¥T)

=~ 2 A BOR K| atk Al wt

)

REMREME(H)
REBRBAAEAYRE S HE
EITRER - EREREHNRA
BEREFHEFERBI - FIRMT -

Estimated Estimated net Annual

useful lives residual depreciation

(years) value rate (%) rate (%)

EEHE A BEHFR FHEX

Item EH = () EE(%) (%)

Land use rights T+ P A 48.5-504F 0 2.00-2.06

Houses and buildings BEREZEY 14.5-304F 0-5 3.17-6.90
Fixed assets 14. BIEEE

A fixed asset is recognized only when the economic benefits BT EREEESBNEETZR

associated with the asset will probably flow to the Group and the AT ANER  BERALHA] =

cost of the asset can be measured reliably. Subsequent expenditure W R TIARER - BEFTEESR

incurred for a fixed asset that meet the recognition criteria shall
be included in the cost of the fixed asset, and the carrying amount
of the component of the fixed asset that is replaced shall be
derecognized. Otherwise, such expenditure shall be recognized in

profit or loss for the period in which they are incurred.

Fixed assets are initially measured at cost. The cost of a purchased
fixed asset comprises the purchase price, relevant taxes and any
directly attributable expenditure for bringing the asset to working
condition for its intended use. Other than fixed assets arising
from the use and appropriation of safety funds, special reserve
offset against the cost of fixed assets, and equivalent amounts
of accumulated depreciation recognized; and certain equipment
of the parent company, and machinery and equipment of certain
subsidiaries namely Weichai America Corp., Shaanxi Fast Gear Co.,
Ltd., Baoji Fast Gear Co., Ltd. and Xi‘an Fast Auto Drive Co., Ltd.,
for which double-declining balance method is used for depreciation,
the straight line method is adopted for the depreciation of other

fixed assets.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) B i R B 5T (A8
30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20156 H30H (AR #or)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and = E e E R e E A A

Accounting Estimates (Continued) (7%
14. Fixed assets (Continued) 14.
The expected useful lives, net residual value rates and annual

depreciation rates of fixed assets are presented as follows:

)

BE&E (#&)
ERETAENRREN ERES -
FRERRFFEXTRMOT :

Estimated Estimated net Annual
useful lives residual depreciation
(years) value rate (%) rate (%)
EEHEA AR FEE FHEX
ltem EYS s (F) BEE(%) (%)
Land use rights T b A Indefinite
i HARR 0 0
Houses and buildings BERELEY 10-50 0-5 1.90-10.00
Machinery and equipment WS R 3-15 0-5 6.33-33.33
Vehicles BHITA 4-10 0-5 9.50-25.00
Electronic equipment BFHEE 2-15 0-5 6.33-50.00
Other equipment EH b 2-15 0-5 6.33-50.00
Forklift trucks and equipment leased 7 H &) X & K 2% #& (= 5)
out (long-term) 2-15 0 6.67-50.00
Forklift trucks and equipment leased 78 H #) X B2 % 2% (&2 &7)
out (short-term) 2-15 0 6.67-50.00
Forklift trucks and equipment leased out (long-term) MEXERRE(RR)

If the risks and rewards of the leased assets remains with the
company as the lessor under an operating lease, the assets are
reported as a separate item in the balance sheet and, being
measured at cost and are depreciated. To fund leases, industrial
trucks are generally sold to leasing companies. The industrial trucks
are then leased back to companies in the KION GROUP AG (head
lease), who sub-lease them to external end customers (described
below as “sale and leaseback sub-leases”). These long-term leases
generally have a term of four to five years. If, in the case of sale
and leaseback sub-leases, the risks and rewards incidental to the
head lease are substantially borne by KION GROUP AG and are
not transferred to the end customers, the corresponding assets are
reported as forklift trucks and equipment leased out (long-term)
under fixed assets. However, if substantially the risks and rewards
incidental to the head lease are transferred to the end customers,
a corresponding lease receivable is recognized. In both cases, the
funding items for these long-term customer leases, which are
funded for terms that match those of the leases, are recognized as

lease liabilities.
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I1I. Significant Accounting Policies and = H OB AR Ko’ EE A EE
Accounting Estimates (Continued) (%)
14. Fixed assets (Continued) 14. BIEEE (&)

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

Forklift trucks and equipment leased out (short-term)

Forklift trucks and equipment leased out (short-term) arises from
short-term rental transactions as well as the sale of industrial trucks
in relation to which significant risks and rewards remain with the

Company (“sale with risk”).

In the case of short-term rentals, Linde Material Handling Ltd
("LMH") and STILL Materials Handling Ltd ("STILL”) under KION
GROUP AG, a subsidiary group under the Company rent industrial
trucks to customers directly. Short-term rental agreements usually
have a term within one year. The significant risks and rewards
remain with the aforesaid companies. The industrial trucks
are carried at cost and depreciated over the normal useful life,

depending on the product group.

In an indirect leasing arrangement, industrial trucks are sold to
finance partners who then enter into leases with end customers.
If LMH and STILL provide material residual value guarantees or
a customer default guarantee (”sale with risk”), the trucks are
recognized as assets in the balance sheet at their cost on the date
of the sale and written down to their guaranteed residual value,
or zero, on a straight-line basis over the period until the customer
default guarantee expires. If the Company provides a residual value
guarantee, an amount equivalent to the residual value obligation is

recognized under financial liabilities.

For fixed assets leased in under finance lease, depreciation for
leased assets is provided for using policy similar to that applied
to selfowned fixed assets. When it can be reasonably determined
that the ownership of a leased asset will be obtained at the end of
the lease term, it is depreciated over the period of expected use;
otherwise, the lease asset is depreciated over the shorter period of

the lease term and its useful life.

The Group reviews the useful life and estimated net residual value
of a fixed asset and the depreciation method applied at least at

each year-end, and make adjustments if necessary.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

15.

16.

Construction in progress

The cost of construction in progress is determined according to
the actual expenditure incurred for the construction, including all
necessary construction expenditure incurred during the construction
period, borrowing costs that shall be capitalized before the
construction gets ready for its intended use and other relevant

expenses.

A construction in progress is transferred to fixed asset when the asset

is ready for its intended use.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred by the Group
in connection with the borrowing of the funds. Borrowing costs
include interest, amortization of discounts or premiums related
to borrowings, ancillary costs incurred in connection with the
arrangement of borrowings, and exchange differences arising from

foreign currency borrowings.

The borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalized. The
amounts of other borrowing costs incurred are recognized as an
expense in the period in which they are incurred. Qualifying assets
are assets (fixed assets, investment property and inventories, etc.)
that necessarily take a substantial period of time for acquisition,
construction or production to get ready for their intended use or

sale.
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I1I. Significant Accounting Policies and = BBk BOR &' kA
Accounting Estimates (Continued) (%)
16. Borrowing costs (Continued) 16. BERXEA (&)

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

The capitalization of borrowing costs commences only when all of
the following conditions are satisfied:

(1)  expenditures for the asset are being incurred;

(2)  borrowing costs are being incurred;

(3) activities relating to the acquisition, construction or
production of the asset that are necessary to prepare the asset
for its intended use or sale have commenced.

Capitalization of borrowing costs ceases when the qualifying asset
being acquired, constructed or produced becomes ready for its
intended use or sale. Any borrowing costs subsequently incurred are
recognized as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

During the capitalization period, the amount of interest to be
capitalized for each accounting period shall be determined as

follows:

(1) where funds are borrowed for a specific purpose, the amount
of interest to be capitalized is the actual interest expense
incurred on that borrowing for the period less any bank
interest earned form depositing the borrowed funds before
being used on the asset or any investment income on the
temporary investment of those funds.

(2)  where funds are borrowed for a general purpose, the amount
of interest to be capitalized on such borrowings is determined
by applying a weighted average interest rate to the weighted
average of the excess amounts of accumulated expenditure
on the asset over and above the amounts of specific-purpose

borrowings.

Capitalization of borrowing costs is suspended during periods in
which the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying
asset is interrupted by activities other than those necessary to
prepare the asset for its intended use or sale, when the interruption
is for a continuous period of more than 3 months. Borrowing costs
incurred during these periods are recognized as an expense for the
current period until the acquisition, construction or production is
resumed.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

17.

Intangible assets

An intangible asset shall be recognized only when it is probable
that the economic benefit associated with the asset will flow to
the Group and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably.
Intangible assets are measured initially at cost. However, intangible
assets acquired in a business combination with a fair value that can
be measured reliably are recognized separately as intangible assets

and measured at the fair value.

The useful life of an intangible asset is determined according to the
period over which it is expected to generate economic benefits for
the Group. An intangible asset is regarded as having an indefinite
useful life when there is no foreseeable limit to the period over
which the asset is expected to generate economic benefits for the

Group.

The original useful lives of the intangible assets are as follows:
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Useful life (years)

ERAES(F)
Technology know-how HEERIM 3-20
Land use rights T b A 30-50
Computer software STEM S 2-10
License FEaT i 3-15
Orders on hand EFETE 1-25
Customer relationship BFPHRER 2-17
Intangible assets arising from in-house research NS 2K B & E
and development 5_7
Others Hb 3-10
Trademark rights IR A Indefinite

THEE
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

17.

Intangible assets (Continued)

Land use rights that are acquired by the Group are generally
accounted for as intangible assets. Buildings, such as plants that
are developed and constructed by the Group, and relevant land use
rights and buildings, are accounted for as intangible assets and fixed
assets, respectively. Payments for the land and buildings acquired
are allocated between the land use rights and the buildings; if
they cannot be reasonably allocated, all of the land use rights and
buildings are accounted for as fixed assets.

An intangible asset with a finite useful life is amortized using
the straight-line method over its useful life. For an intangible
asset with a finite useful life, the Group reviews the useful life
and amortization method at least at each year-end and makes
adjustment if necessary.

An intangible asset with an indefinite useful life are tested for
impairment at least once every year, irrespective of whether there
is any indication that the asset may be impaired. This category of
intangible assets will not be amortized and will be reviewed every
accounting period based on its useful life. If there are evidence
indicates that its useful life is limited, the asset will be accounted for
in accordance to the policy for intangible asset with definite useful
life stated above.

The Group classifies the expenditure on an internal research and
development project into expenditure on the research phase and
expenditure on the development phase. Expenditure on the research
phase is recognized in profit or loss for the period in which it is
incurred. Expenditure on the development phase is capitalized when
the Group can demonstrate all of the following: (i) the technical
feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be
available for use or sale; (ii) the intention to complete the intangible
asset and use or sell it; (iii) how the intangible asset will generate
probable future economic benefits. Among other things, the Group
can demonstrate the existence of a market for the output of the
intangible asset or the intangible asset itself or, if it is to be used
internally, the usefulness of the intangible asset; (iv) the availability
of adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete
the development and the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;
and (v) its ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable
to the intangible asset during its development. Expenditure in
the development phase that does not meet the above criteria is
recognized in profit or loss for the period in which it is incurred.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

18.

Impairment of assets
The Group determines the impairment of assets, other than the
impairment of inventories, deferred income taxes, financial assets

and assets classified as held-for-sale, using the following methods:

The Group assesses at the balance sheet date whether there is any
indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists
that an asset may be impaired, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the asset and performs test for impairment. Goodwill
arising from a business combination and an intangible asset with an
indefinite useful life are tested for impairment at least at each year-
end, irrespective of whether there is any indication that the asset
may be impaired. Intangible assets that have not been ready for

intended use are tested for impairment each year.

The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its fair value less
costs to sell and the present value of the future cash flow expected
to be derived from the asset. The Group estimates the recoverable
amount on an individual basis. If it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of the individual asset, the Group determines
the recoverable amount of the asset group to which the asset
belongs. Identification of an asset group is based on whether major
cash inflows generated by the asset group are largely independent

of the cash inflows from other assets or asset groups.

When the recoverable amount of an asset or asset group is less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to the
recoverable amount. The reduction in carrying amount is recognized
in profit or loss for the current period. A provision for impairment of

the asset is recognized accordingly.

For the purpose of impairment testing, the carrying amount of
goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated from the
acquisition date on a reasonable basis, to each of the related asset
groups; if it is impossible to allocate to the related asset groups,
it is allocated to each of the related sets of asset groups. Each of
the related asset groups or sets of asset groups is an asset group
or set of asset group that is able to benefit from the synergies of
the business combination and shall not be larger than a reportable

segment determined by the Group.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

18.

19.

Impairment of assets (Continued)

In testing an asset group or a set of asset groups to which goodwill
has been allocated for impairment, if there is any indication of
impairment, the Group firstly tests the asset group or set of
asset groups excluding the amount of goodwill allocated for
impairment, determines the recoverable amount and recognizes
any impairment loss. After that, the Group tests the asset group or
set of asset groups including goodwill for impairment, whereby the
carrying amount of the related asset group or set of asset groups
is compared to its recoverable amount. If the carrying amount of
the asset group or set of asset groups is higher than its recoverable
amount, the amount of the impairment loss firstly reduces the
carrying amount of the goodwill allocated to the asset group or
set of asset groups, and then reduce the carrying amount of other
assets (other than the goodwill) within the asset group or set of asset

groups, pro rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset.

Once the above impairment loss is recognized, it cannot be reversed

in subsequent accounting periods.

Long-term prepaid expenses
Long-term prepaid expenses are amortized using straight-line

method with amortization period as follows:
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I1I. Significant Accounting Policies and =~ HOE GG BOR K| s
Accounting Estimates (Continued) (%)
20. Payroll 20. B T %P

Payroll are all forms of consideration or compensation given
by the Group for obtaining services rendered by employees or
for terminating working relationship. Payroll include short-term
remuneration, post-employment benefits, severance benefits and
other long-term staff benefits. The benefits provided to spouses,
children, persons receiving maintenance, widows or widowers of

deceased staff and other beneficiaries are also included in payroll.

Short-term remuneration

Short-term remuneration actually incurred during the accounting
period in which the staff members provide services are recognized as
liability and taken to the profit and loss for the current period or the

costs of the relevant asset.

Post-employment benefits (Defined contribution plan)

The employees of the Group participate in pension insurance
administered by local governments. The relevant expenditure is
recognized, when incurred, in the costs of relevant assets or the

profit and loss for the current period.

Post-employment benefits (Defined benefit plan)

Some overseas subsidiaries of the group operate defined benefit
pension plan, under which contributions shall be made to a
separately-administered fund. The cost of providing benefits under
the defined benefit pension plan is determined using the projected

unit credit method.

Any re-measurements arising from the defined benefit pension
plan, including actuarial gains and losses, change to the effect on
maximum assets (net of amounts included under net interest) and
return on assets under the plan (net of amount included under net
interest), are recognized immediately in balance sheet, and included
as incurred in owners’ equity through other comprehensive income.

No reversal to profit or loss will be made in subsequent periods.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and

Accounting Estimates (Continued)

20. Payroll (Continued)
Post-employment benefits (Defined benefit plan)
(Continued)

Previous service costs are recognized as expenses for the current
period on the earlier of the following dates: when amendments are
made to the defined benefit plan; or when the Group recognizes

the relevant reorganization costs or severance benefits.

Net interest is calculated by multiplying the net liabilities or net assets
under the defined benefit plan with the discount rate. Changes in
the net obligations under the defined benefit plan are recognized
under cost of sales, general and administrative expenses and finance
expenses in the income statement. Costs of services include costs of
services for the current period, costs of services for previous periods,
and gains or losses on settlement. Net interest includes interest
income accrued upon assets under the plan, interest expenses
incurred due to obligations under the plan, and interest under the

effect of maximum assets.

Severance benefits

Where the Group provides severance benefits to its employees,
payroll payable arising from such severance benefits are recognized
on the earlier of the following dates and included in profit or loss
for the current period: when the company is unable to unilaterally
withdraw the severance benefits provided under its plan to
terminate working relationship with employees or redundancy plan;
or when the company recognizes costs or expenses relating to

reorganization involving the payment of severance benefits.

Other long-term staff benefits

For other long-term staff benefits provided to staff members, the
provisions for post-employment benefits apply for recognizing and
measuring the net liabilities or net assets for other long-term staff
benefits, but movements are taken to profit and loss for the current

period or the costs of the relevant assets.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

21.

Accruals and provisions

Except for contingent consideration transferred and contingent
liability assumed in business combinations not involving entities
under common control, the Group recognizes an obligation related
to a contingency as a provision when all of the following conditions

are satisfied:

(1)  the obligation is a present obligation of the Group;

(2) it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits from the

Group will be required to settle the obligation;
(3)  the amount of the obligation can be measured reliably.

A provision is initially measured at the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the related present obligation,
with comprehensive consideration of factors such as the risks,
uncertainty and time value of money relating to a contingency. The
carrying amount of a provision is reviewed at the balance sheet
date. If there is clear evidence that the carrying amount does not
reflect the current best estimate, the carrying amount is adjusted to

the best estimate.

A contingent liability recognized in a business combination from
the acquiree is initially measured at its fair value. Subsequently, it is
measured at the higher of (i) the amount that would be recognized
in accordance with the general guidance for provisions above; and (i)
the amount initially recognized less, when appropriate, cumulative
amortization recognized in accordance with the guidance for

revenue recognition.
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HRBORHBERDE

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

22.

Share-based payments

Share-based payments can be distinguished into equity-settled
share-based payments and cash-settled share-based payments.
Equity-settled share-based payments are transactions of the Group
settled through the payment of shares or other equity instruments

in consideration for receiving services.

Equity-settled share-based payments made in exchange for
services rendered by employees are measured at the fair value
of equity instruments granted to employees. Instruments which
are vested immediately upon the grant are charged to relevant
costs or expenses at the fair value on the date of grant and the
capital reserve is credited accordingly. Instruments of which
vesting is conditional upon completion of services or fulfillment
of performance conditions are measured by recognizing services
rendered during the period in relevant costs or expenses and
crediting the capital reserve accordingly at the fair value on the date
of grant according to the best estimates conducted by the Group
at each balance sheet date during the pending period based on
subsequent information such as latest updates on the change in the
number of entitled employees and whether performance conditions
have been fulfilled, and etc. For the fair value of equity instruments,

see Note XI.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together with
a corresponding increase in capital reserve, over the period in which
the performance and service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative
expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end of
each reporting period until the vesting date reflects the extent to
which the vesting period has expired and the Group's best estimate

of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest,
except where vesting is conditional upon a market or non-vesting
condition, which are treated as vesting irrespective of whether or
not the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided that

all other non-market conditions are satisfied.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

22.

Share-based payments (Continued)

Where the terms of an equity-settled share-based payment are
modified, as a minimum, services obtained are recognized as if the
terms had not been modified. In addition, an expense is recognized
for any modification which increases the total fair value of the
instrument ranted, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as

measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not
yet recognized for the award is recognized immediately. Where
employees or other parties are permitted to choose to fulfill non-
vesting conditions but have not fulfilled during the pending period,
equity-settled share-based payments are deemed cancelled.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award, and
designated as a replacement award on the date that it is granted,
the new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the

original award.

A cash-settled share-based payment shall be measured in
accordance with the fair value of liability calculated and confirmed
based on the shares or other equity instruments undertaken by the
Group. Initial measurement is based on fair value as at the date of
grant, and reference is made to the terms and conditions attached
to the equity instruments. Refer to Note XI. If the right may be
exercised immediately after the grant, the fair value of the liability
undertaken by the enterprise shall, on the date of the grant, be
included in the relevant costs or expenses, and the liabilities shall
be increased accordingly. If the right may not be exercised until the
vesting period comes to an end or until the specified performance
conditions are met, on each balance sheet date within the vesting
period, the services obtained in the current period shall, based on
the best estimate of the information about the exercisable right,
be included in the relevant costs or expenses at the fair value of
the liability undertaken by the enterprise, and the liabilities shall
be increased accordingly. On each balance sheet date prior to
settlement of the relevant liabilities and on the settlement date, the
fair value of the liability is re-measured and any change of fair value

is taken to profit or loss for the current period.

Interim Report 2015 FRHEAZRE

S S ¥ R MY R (A

20156 H30H (AR #¥T)

= %E@ﬁﬁ%ﬁ&@%ﬂﬁ%
(%)
22. R (&)

IMRER T ABSAEE RN N
B EORIBRE KGR B E
REVEH IR o tesh - SEINPTIR T
s TARAABENER  HEEHB
HEBTHENNEE  HEZIS RS
CoR Pl

REUH T AR S A E R T
AIRNBUE BERINERITRERIE -
BIRER AR SR - B THEM
TREHE R B AT RIRIBES
FHARBRN  (FREUBAERS
BB AR - BR - MRET
MHEETA  TENEETART
HREMRTHHEZTAZARE
RWEEM R TAR - AIAERER
R T A AEHER AR TS
A AR THOEREE TRETE
# o

NReEENROIN - RBAEE
EER RO R E MR T ARER
AEBENRBENAAEERE
RERETENAAEBEGE  XE
BERTEETANGERNGESE 28
M+ — - RTPELENAITHEN - &
B BRAEREBN R EEFAK
ASKER - HEENAE  TREF
HIAM RIS R DR EXE GRS A
TR - ESHHANETITRER
R EMARER  REAEAED
DR EE - BERREHRES AR
BRARER  BNHEERE - E£4F
MRELAENNEEEEARRAMN
REER  WRENAABEEH
B HEHHAEHES -

X5

83



84  \Weichai Power Co., Ltd. %8 h IR HER D

5 i R M 5 (48)
20156 A30H (A R#¥T)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and = BB EhBOR &' Ek A
Accounting Estimates (Continued) (%)
23. Revenue 23. KA

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

Revenue is recognized only when it is probable that the associated IWAELEEMRRAUTERARER -

economic benefits will flow to the Group, its amount can be

measured reliably, and the following conditions are satisfied.

Revenue From the Sales of Goods

Revenue is recognized when the Group has transferred to the buyer
the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods; the
Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the
degree usually associated with ownership nor effective control over
the goods sold; and the associated costs incurred or to be incurred
can be measured reliably. The amount of revenue arising from the
sale of goods is determined in accordance with the consideration
received or receivable from the buyer under contract or agreement,
except where the consideration received or receivable under
contract or agreement is not fair. Where the consideration
receivable under contract or agreement is deferred, such that the
arrangement is in substance of a financing nature, the amount of
revenue arising on the sale of goods is measured at the fair value of

the consideration receivable under contract or agreement .

Revenue From the Rendering of Services

When the outcome of a transaction involving the rendering of
services can be estimated reliably at the balance sheet date, revenue
associated with the transaction is recognized using the percentage
of completion method, or otherwise, the revenue is recognized to
the extent of costs incurred that are expected to be recoverable.
The outcome of a transaction involving rendering of services can be
estimated reliably when all of the following conditions are satisfied:
the amount of revenue can be measured reliably; it is probable
that the associated economic benefits will flow to the Group; the
stage of completion of the transaction can be measured reliably;
the costs incurred and to be incurred for the transaction can be
measured reliably. The Group determines the stage of completion
of a transaction involving the rendering of services by using the
proportion of costs incurred to date to the estimated total costs.
The total service revenue on a transaction involving rendering of
services is determined in accordance with the consideration received
or receivable from the recipient of services under contract or
agreement, except where the consideration received or receivable

under contract or agreement is not fair.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

23.

24,

Revenue (Continued)

Revenue From the Rendering of Services (Continued)
Where the contracts or agreements entered into with other entities
cover the sale of goods or provision of services, the portion of sale
of goods and the portion of provision of services are dealt with
separately if the two portions can be distinguished and separately
measured. If the two portions cannot be distinguished, or can be
distinguished but cannot be separately measured, such contract is
fully taken as to relate to sale of goods.

Interest Income

It is determined according to the length of time for which the
Group's cash and cash equivalents is used by others and the
effective interest rate.

Royalty Income
It is determined according to period and method of charging as
stipulated in the relevant contract or agreement.

Lease Income

Lease income from operating leases is recognized on a straight-line
basis over the lease term. Contingent rents are charged to profit or
loss in the period in which they actually arise.

Government grants

Government grant is recognized when the Group can comply with
the conditions attached to it and it can be received. If a government
grant is in the form of a transfer of a monetary asset, it is measured
at the amount received or receivable. If a government grant is in the
form of a transfer of a non-monetary asset, it is measured at fair
value; if fair value is not reliably determinable, it is measured at a

nominal amount.

Government grants for purchasing, building or forming long-term
assets in other methods regulated in government documents are
recognized as government grants related to assets. Judgments
should be made based on the necessary basic conditions for
obtaining the government grants when government documents are
unclearly stated. Government grants with purchasing, building or
forming long-term assets in other methods as basic conditions, are
recognized as government grants related to assets, whereas the rest
as government grants related to income.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

24,

25.

Government grants (Continued)

A government grant related to income is accounted for as follows: (a)
if the grant is a compensation for related expenses or losses to be
incurred in subsequent periods, the grant is recognized as deferred
income, and recognized in profit or loss over the periods in which
the related costs are recognized; (b) if the grant is a compensation
for related expenses or losses already incurred, it is recognized
immediately in profit or loss for the current period. A government
grant related to an asset shall be recognized as deferred income,
and evenly amortized to profit or loss for the current period over
the useful life of the related asset. However, a government grant
measured at a nominal amount is recognized immediately in profit

or loss for the current period.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is
recognized as income or an expense in profit or loss for the current
period, or recognized directly in shareholders’ equity if it arises from
a business combination or relates to a transaction or event which is

recognized directly in shareholders’ equity.

The Group measures a current tax asset or liability arising from
the current and prior period based on the amount of income tax
expected to be paid by the Group or returned by tax authority

calculated by related tax laws.

For temporary differences at the balance sheet date between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts, and
temporary differences between the carrying amounts and the
tax bases of items, the tax bases of which can be determined for
tax purposes, but which have not been recognized as assets and
liabilities according to the tax laws, deferred taxes are provided using

the liability method.

5 i R M 5 (48)
20156 A30H (A R#¥T)

=~ 2 A BOR K| atk Al wt

(%)

24.

25.

B fE B (&)

S S AR RV BT B > R 1B A
EHENEBERNBRN  BR
RIETEW S - WHERERAREE A& H
It AEHIEE  ARNEEDZELEN
HEERRELRYN  BEERFAEHIE
@ BEEMBENBFME - EAR
BT EREEECASHAY
BOE  FFAEHER - BIRREE
TR ENBRFHE - BEERFAEH

md

FriE®

P8I B 1 E B AT 1S I MR T PR 15
BeoBRNEEAHELENARRD
B REERFABRREENRF K
FEEHEMBBO ABCRERIN - 91F
RATERE RS A B8 -

245 B 410 H A B SRR 0
BB A BN AR REBARE
e ST DL
HitE -

AEERBEEELEABENEEARR
B ey B B B AT AR 2 R A B
HER URKER/EENAGBER
B IR BR T TE AT LA T8 H 5 F AL
M)A B MR E (B E R AR Z MR
ZHEENENMEEZER  KAEESR
BEREBEHRBELEREH -



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)
25. Income tax (Continued)

A deferred tax liability is recognized for all taxable temporary

differences, except:

)

where the taxable temporary differences arise from the
initial recognition of goodwill, or the initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction which contains both of the
following characteristics: (i) the transaction is not a business
combination; and (ii) at the time of the transaction, it affects

neither accounting profit nor taxable profit or deductible loss.

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, jointly-controlled enterprises and
associates, where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not be reversed in the foreseeable

future.

A deferred tax asset is recognized for deductible temporary

differences, carryforward of deductible tax losses from prior years

and tax credits, to the extent that it is probable that future taxable

profit will be available against which the deductible temporary

differences, and deductible tax losses and tax credits can be utilized,

except:

M

where the deductible temporary differences arises from a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, neither the accounting profit nor

taxable profit or deductible loss is affected.

in respect of the deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and jointly-
controlled enterprises, a deferred tax asset is only recognized
to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences
will be reversed in the foreseeable future and taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary

differences can be utilized in the future.

Interim Report 2015 FRHEAZRE

5 i R M 5 (48
20156 H308 (A R¥T)

ZoHER

(%)

at BOSR B 8wt Al Wt

25. B8R (&)
o T FE AT B 1 2 R B R

EAMEMEE -

(M

(2)

HRATENEREER - NS

BRIk

EABRERUEZEREREUATR
%¢F$m:ﬁ@mm%ﬁ
R HEEBUATHERHZ
¢§$W§E&%%WW%$
R RZXHGTREEAM A
BExGBERBRIZESH
VRN - 3 ALk AR
nEE -

HRNETFRRE - AELERE
LR ERBRATER
MER ZEREZEEEN
R BE IR I B h%%
R IE R B R ARIRA B
e -

i

LA

REENAEME BB FTER - &

EEARATAEE

RS AR EINAT R NE

Rt R - AT HI A8 B S R A
ARERBAFELR - ERHILE
ENRERSHEE - kRIF

(M)

(2)

AEAEREEZEEEENATR
SHELN  ZXHTREE
A AERXZHREREAE
B2t NBEL IR ERATAR
SEK AT ERNESE -

HREFRRE - RELENE
EEERERBORTENER
EER - FERmE &S
B HEREENREEMSHE
E:EREZRATERLANR
RARAIBERE[E - BRRIR AT &
ERAREMAENEREE
RNERATAGHE -

irEts

87



88  Weichai Power Co., Ltd.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

25.

26.

Income tax (Continued)

At the balance sheet date, deferred tax assets and liabilities are
measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period
when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, according to the
requirements of tax laws. The measurement of deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group expects at the balance

sheet date, to recover the assets or settle the liabilities.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available in future
periods to allow the deferred tax assets to be utilized. Unrecognized
deferred tax assets are reassessed at the balance sheet date and are
recognized to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax

asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities presented on a
net basis are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities on a net basis and
the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same

taxation authority.

Leases
A finance lease is a lease that transfers in substance all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an asset. An operating lease is a

lease other than a finance lease.

In the Case of the Lessee of an Operating Lease

Lease payments under an operating lease are recognized by a lessee
on a straight-line basis over the lease term, and either included
in the cost of the related asset or charged to profit or loss for the
current period. Contingent rents are charged to profit or loss in the

period in which they actually arise.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

26.

27.

Leases (Continued)

In the Case of the Lessor of an Operating Lease

Rent income under an operating lease is recognized by a lessor on a
straight-line basis over the lease term, through profit or loss for the
current period. Contingent rents are charged to profit or loss in the

period in which they actually arise.

In the Case of the Lessee of a Finance Lease

At the commencement of lease term, for an asset leased in under
finance lease, the difference between the book value of the leased-
in asset, which is determined as the lower of the fair value of such
leased asset as at the commencement of lease term and the present
value of minimum lease payments, and the book value of long-term
payables, which is determined as the minimum lease payments, is
treated as unrecognized finance costs which is apportioned to the
leasing period using effective interest rate method. Contingent
rents are charged to profit or loss in the period in which they

actually arise.

In the Case of the Lessor of a Finance Lease

At the commencement of lease term, for an asset leased out under
finance lease, the book value of finance lease receivable is measured
at the sum of minimum lease receipts and initial direct costs, whilst
risk exposure shall be recorded simultaneously; and unrealized
finance income shall be measured at the difference between the
sum of minimum lease receipt, initial direct costs and risk exposure,
and its present value. These are recognized using effective interest
rate method during the leasing period. Contingent rents are

charged to profit or loss in the period in which they actually arise.

Hedge accounting
For the purpose of hedge accounting, the Group adopts cash flow

hedging against interest rate risks and exchange rate risks.

Cash flow hedges when hedging the exposure to variability in cash
flows that is either attributable to a particular risk associated with a
recognised asset or liability or a highly probable forecast transaction,

or a foreign currency risk in an unrecognised firm commitment.
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I1I. Significant Accounting Policies and = HOE GG BOR &g s E
Accounting Estimates (Continued) (%)

27. Hedge accounting (Continued) 27. EHEE (&)

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Group formally
designates and documents the hedge relationship to which the
Group wishes to apply hedge accounting, the risk management
objective and its strategy for undertaking the hedge. The
documentation includes identification of the hedging instrument,
the hedged item or transaction, the nature of the risk being
hedged and how the Group will assess the hedging instrument'’s
effectiveness in offsetting the exposure to changes in the hedged
item’s fair value or cash flows attributable to the hedged risk. Such
hedges are expected to be highly effective in achieving offsetting
changes in fair value or cash flows and are assessed on an ongoing
basis to determine that they actually have been highly effective
throughout the financial reporting periods for which they were
designated.

Hedges which meet the strict criteria for hedge accounting are
accounted for as follows:

Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument
is recognised directly in other comprehensive income, while the
ineffective portion is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Amounts recognized in other comprehensive income are transferred
to profit or loss when the hedged transaction affects profit or
loss, such as when hedged financial income or financial expense is
recognised or when a forecast sale occurs. If the hedged item is the
cost of a non-financial assets or non-financial liability, the amount
that would otherwise be recognized in other comprehensive income
is transferred out in the same period as the profit or loss of that
non-financial assets or non-financial liability, and recognized in

profit or loss in current period.

If the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised
(with the expiry of rollover of the hedging strategic component
or unfulfilled replacement or the termination of processing of the
contract), if its designation as a hedge is revoked, or if the hedge
no longer fulfills the accounting requirement of a hedge, the
amounts previously taken to other comprehensive income remain in
other comprehensive income until the forecast transaction or firm

commitment occurs or is fulfilled in actual terms.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

28.

29.

30.

31.

Repurchase of shares

Consideration and transaction costs paid for the repurchase of
the Company’s own equity instruments are charged against
shareholders’ equity. Other than share-based payments, issuance
(including refinancing), repurchase, sale or cancellation of its own

equity instruments is treated as change in equity.

Profit appropriation
Interim and final cash dividends are recognized as liabilities upon

approval by shareholders in general meeting.

Safety funds

Safety funds provided for as required were included in cost of
product or the current profit and loss, and credited in special
reserve. And the funds are treated separately depending on
whether fixed assets are resulted when being used: funds related
to expenditure is offset against special reserve directly while those
forming fixed assets will consolidate expenditure incurred and
recognized as fixed assets when such assets are ready for their
intended use, at the same time offsetting equivalent amounts in the
special reserve and recognizing equivalent amounts of accumulated

depreciation.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its derivative financial instruments and listed
equity investments at fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair
value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement
is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset
or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal market for
the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the
most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal
or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group
at the measurement date. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants

act in their economic best interest.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

31.

Fair value measurement (Continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits
by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest

and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs only under
the circumstances where such relevant observable inputs cannot be

obtained or practicably obtained.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed
in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole: Level 1 —
based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement
date; Level 2 — based on inputs other than inputs within Level 1 that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly;
Level 3 — based on input for the asset or liability that is not based

on observable market data.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial
statements at fair value on a recurring basis, the Group re-assess
them at each balance sheet date to determine whether transfers

have occurred between levels in the hierarchy.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)

32.

33.

Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments based on the internal
organization structure, managerial requirements and internal
reporting system, identifies reportable segments based on operating

segments and discloses segment information by operating segment.

An operating segment is a component of the Group that meets all

the following conditions:

(1) it engages in business activities from which it may earn

revenues and incur expenses;

(2)  its operating results are regularly reviewed by the Company’s
management to make decisions about resources to be

allocated to the segment and assess its performance;

(3)  the Group is able to obtain relevant accounting information
such as its financial position, operating results and cash flows

of such segment.

If two or more segments have similar economic characteristics and
meet certain conditions, then they can be aggregated into a single

operating segment.

Significant accounting judgments and
estimates

The preparation of the financial statements requires management
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that will affect the
reported amounts and disclosure of revenue, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities at the balance
sheet date. However, uncertainty about these estimates and
assumptions could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities

affected in the future.

Judgments

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgments which have
significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial

statements.
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33. Significant accounting judgments and 33. ERETTHER MM (F&)

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

estimates (Continued)

Judgments (Continued)

Confirmation of Functional Currency

Since the Company owns a number of overseas subsidiaries,
associates and branch organizations, when recognizing its
functional currency, multiple factors are taken into consideration
to recognize the major economic environment of their operating
locations. Under circumstances with multiple factors and no obvious
functional currency, the Group uses judgment to confirm its
functional currency. Such judgment is the best to reflect economic
influence of the underlying transactions, events and environment.
Unless there appear material changes in the major economic
environment relating to the recognition of functional currency, once

the functional currency is recognized, it would not change.

Finance lease — in the case of the lessor

Leases where all risks and rewards relating to the ownership of the
assets are substantially transferred are referred to as finance leases.
The Group does not retain all substantial risks and rewards of the
ownership of these leased assets, and thus they are regarded as

finance leases.

Operating lease — in the case of the lessor

The Group has entered into leasing contracts for its investment
properties, certain intangible assets and certain fixed assets. The
Group is of the opinion that, according to the terms of such leasing
contracts, the Group has retained all material risks and returns of
ownership of these investment properties, intangible assets and

fixed assets and therefore they are accounted for as operating lease.

Estimation Uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the future accounting

periods, are discussed below.
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33. Significant accounting judgments and 33. ERETTHE MG (&)

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

estimates (Continued)

Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment of goodwill and trademarks

The Group determines whether goodwill and trademarks with
indefinite useful life are impaired at least on an annual basis. This
requires an estimation of the value in use of the asset group to
which goodwill and trademarks are allocated. Estimating the value
in use requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected
future cash flows from the asset group and also to choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash

flows.

Defined benefit plans

The management of the Group recognizes defined benefit plans
liabilities based on calculating model of the present value of the
defined benefit liabilities less fair value of the planned assets. The
present value of defined benefit liabilities comprises of various
assumptions, including term of benefits and discount rate.
Inconsistency between the future events and such assumptions may
subject the defined benefit plans liabilities on the balance sheet

date to material adjustment.

Fair value

Fair value of derivatives as at the balance sheet date is calculated by
the management of the Group based on models. Such calculation is
on the basis of some assumptions. Carrying value of derivatives may

differ significantly if future events deviate from such assumptions.

Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets

The Group classifies certain assets as available-for-sale financial
assets and directly recognizes movements of their fair values
in other comprehensive income. When the fair value declines,
management makes assumptions about the decline in value
to determine whether there is an impairment loss that shall be

recognized in the income statement.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

III. Significant Accounting Policies and
Accounting Estimates (Continued)
33. Significant accounting judgments and
estimates (Continued)
Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment of non-current assets other than financial assets

(other than goodwill and trademark with uncertain lifetime)

The Group assesses whether there are any indication of impairment
for all non-current assets other than financial assets at the balance
sheet date. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested
for impairment annually and at other times when such indication
exists. Other non-current assets other than financial assets are
tested for impairment when there are indication that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. Where the carrying amount of an
asset or asset group is higher than its recoverable amount (i.e. the
higher of the net of its fair value less costs to sell and the present
value of the future cash flows expected to be derived from it), it
is indicated that such asset or asset group is impaired. The net of
the fair value less costs to sell is determined with reference to the
price in sales agreement or observable market price of similar assets
in arm’s length transaction, adjusted for incremental costs that
would be directly attributable to the disposal of the asset or asset
group. When calculating the present value of expected future cash
flows from an asset or asset group, the management shall estimate
the expected future cash flows from the asset or asset group and
choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present

value of those future cash flows.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all unused deductible
temporary differences and deductible losses to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences and deductible losses can be
utilized. Significant management judgment is required to determine
the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognized, based
upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profit together

with future tax planning strategies.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

estimates (Continued)

Estimation Uncertainty (Continued)

Net realizable values of inventories

The net realizable values of inventories are based on the saleability
of the evaluated inventory and their net realizable values.
The management’s judgments and estimates are required for
determining inventory impairment on the basis of clear evidence,
purpose of holding the inventories, effect of subsequent events
and other factors. The difference between the actual outcome and
original estimate will affect the carrying amount of inventories and
provision and reversal of decline in value of inventories during the

estimated revision period.

Impairment of receivable

Impairment of receivable is based on the recoverability of assessed
receivable. The management’s judgments and estimates are
required for determining impairment of receivable. The difference
between the actual outcome and original estimate will affect the
carrying amount of receivable and provision and reversal of bad

debts of receivable during the estimated revision period.

Recognition of provision

The Group uses contract terms, existing knowledge and historical
experience, to estimate and recognize the provision for product
quality assurance. On condition that such contingent matters have
formed a present obligation and the discharge of which is probable
to give rise to an outflow of the Group’s economic benefits, the

Group recognizes the best estimate.

Estimated useful lives of fixed assets

The Group reviews the estimated useful lives of fixed assets at least
once at the end of the year. Estimated useful lives are determined
by the management based on historical experience of similar
assets and expected technological advancement. Corresponding
adjustment to depreciation expenses for future periods will be made

in case of substantial changes in previous estimates.
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IV.

5 i R M 5 (48)
20156 A30H (A R#¥T)

Taxation g~ BiIEH
1. Major categories of taxes and respective tax 1. FEBERBE
rates
Value-added tax (VAT) — Output VAT is calculated by applying 17% to the taxable
1 E income for normal taxpayers, but the Group may pay
it after deducting deductible input VAT for the current
period.
— RN AR R AR T % at EAHIATR - IR S B 7F
N EIAT IR A Z T FEER -
Business tax - It is calculated by applying 5% to the taxable income.
EEB RIETUAHIS Y% aT BE 2T -
City maintenance and construction tax — Itis levied at 7% or 5% on the actual turnover taxes paid.
YA TH MR R R T REBBMEREBIRE 7 %5 %t -
Education surcharge — Itis levied at 3% on the actual turnover taxes paid.
HE BN REBBMERERE3 % -
Corporate income tax — It is levied at 15% or 25% on the taxable profit, except that
DEMREH for oversea subsidiaries, it is levied at the statutory tax

rate of the countries or regions in which the subsidiaries

operate.

BOSINFRARIREMERRE - & e EER X

T 3!

TR ML TS EEEN 15% 3k 25 % aT 4 -

Tax benefits

Value-added tax

In accordance with the Notice Concerning Exemption from Value-
added Tax and Consumption Tax applicable to Special-purpose
Military Vehicles (KBARE RS BEERLEUEERTEER B
40)) issued by MOF and State Administration of Taxation, the sale
of special-purpose military vehicles to army and armed police by
Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company, is

exempted from value-added tax.

Corporate Income Tax

The Company was recognized as a high-tech enterprise on 27
November 2008 and became entitled to a preferential income tax
rate of 15%. The Company was recognized again as a high-tech
enterprise in 2014 and is therefore entitled to enjoy a preferential
income tax rate of 15% from 1 January 2014 to 31 December
2016.

BRER

BEH

ARBZFRARAER TEARA
BIRBMEES - BRBE AR
FRARFREMREIEERTEENDN
BAVHERER  HERMBEERAD
ERFEEmeBUEER

BEMER

ANAFHR2008F 11 A27BWRATE A
EHRMEE  TXI15%MNFEH
BEBRRE - 2014FRAEHESRS
FIBMeXER - B2014F1A18
Z2016F12A31BZR15%WFTE
TEEE -



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

IV. Taxation (Continued)

2.

Tax benefits (Continued)

Corporate Income Tax (Continued)

Weichai Power (Weifang) Reconstruction Co., Ltd. was recognized
as a high-tech enterprise and is therefore entitled to enjoy a
preferential income tax rate of 15% from 1 January 2013 to 31
December 2015.

Shaanxi Hande Axle Co., Ltd. and Zhuzhou Torch Sparkplugs Co.,
Ltd. were recognized as high-tech enterprises and are therefore
entitled to enjoy a preferential income tax rate of 15% from 1
January 2012 to 31 December 2014. The high-tech enterprise
qualifications for year 2015 were still under examination and

review.

Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd., Shaanxi Fast Gear Co., Ltd.,
Baoji Fast Gear Co., Ltd., Zhuzhou Gear Co., Ltd. (#kMEEH AR
E{E/A7]), Zhuzhou Torch Machinery Manufacturing Co., Ltd.,
(BRI B ESEBIREE AR ), Zhuzhou Euro Grace Gear
Automotive Transmission Co., Ltd ( #MEBASIREERR D BR AR ),
Weichai Power Yangzhou Diesel Engine Co., Ltd. (458 113514
AR E LA R]) and Shanghai He Da Auto Accessory Co., Ltd.
( BgMESER(HARR AT ), were recognized again as high-tech
enterprises and are therefore entitled to enjoy a preferential income
tax rate of 15% from 1 January 2014 to 31 December 2016.

Interim Report 2015 FRHEAZRE

5 i R M 5 (48
20156 H308 (A R¥T)

M~ BEIE ()

2.

HWEE(E)
EMEH(E)

W) N (D) BREGRARERA
MEFRMEERTE - B2013F1A4
1HZE2015F 12 A31HEZ15% 1
BREBERE -

PR 1R B G AR A A AR MM M AE
ANEEBREFATDBBER IR
TERE - B2012F1H18E2014
F1I2A3MBEZI5%MEHEERN
E2015FSHMBEMEEEREE
MR ERIZS o

PrPERTEAR AR - RIEE TS
BREREARA ERELTHAER
EREEAA - iMEREREER
A MR AERMBERREER
A RN IREERMHBRAA
B NGNGB BREELF R
EEMEAERHERAREFRERS
BAEMAEEER - B2014F 141
AZE2016F12A31HEX15%/FT
SREEBE -
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

IV. Taxation (Continued)

2.

Tax benefits (Continued)

Corporate Income Tax (Continued)

Pursuant to the requirement of the Notice Concerning Issues on
Taxation Policies Relating to the Thorough Implementation of
China’s Strategy of Western Development (Cai Shui Fa No. [2011]
58) (KB R AE e A0 R 5 2 BAIE A A T W R B ev3@ An))
promulgated by MOF, the State Administration of Taxation and
the General Administration of Customs dated 27 July 2011, as well
as the approval of relevant authorities, during the period from 1
January 2011 to 31 December 2020, corporate income tax is levied
at a rate of 15% on enterprises engaged in the “encouraged”
industry category in the western regions of China. The following
companies have implemented preferential tax policy for the Western
Development:

- Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd., Shaanxi Hande Axle
Co., Ltd. Xi'an Fast Auto Drive Co., Ltd. and Shaanxi Fast
Gear Co., Ltd. have received the approval of Shaan Fa
Gai Industrial Confirmation Letter { (Bt ok & 2 FEREK)
No. (2015) 205) on 8 April 2015 and the companies have
passed the examination of 2014 Taxation Filing, and they are
expected to be entitled again to enjoy a preferential policy for
the Western Development in future;

- Shaanxi Jinding Casting Co., Ltd. has received the approval of
Qi Guo Shui Suo De Jian Mian Zi (Il B P58 F) No.
(2015) 027) on 12 May 2015 and the company has passed
the examination of 2014 Taxation Filing, and it is expected to
be entitled again to enjoy a preferential policy for the Western
Development in future;

- Baoji Fast Gear Co., Ltd. has received the approval of Bao
Shi Gong Xin Fa (ZE T {3 No. (2015) 60)) on 31 March
2015 and the company has passed the examination of 2014
Taxation Filing, and it is expected to be entitled again to enjoy
a preferential policy for the Western Development in future;

- Weichai (Chongging) Automotive Co., Ltd. (45 (EE )R
HEHPR/AR]) has received the tax deduction and exemption
notice of Jiang Jin Guo Shui Shui Tong (T ZEB )
No. (2015) 28823) on 27 May 2015, and the company has
passed the examination of 2014 Taxation Filing, and it is
expected to be entitled again to enjoy a preferential policy for
the Western Development in future.

5 i R M 5 (48)
20156 A30H (A R#¥T)

M~ BEIE ()

2.

HUEE (&)

S (E)

R BE ARG ER - B
E2011F7H27 BB F2(2011]58
SR SCCRA R R AN E i 70 56 K 7 2 B R
BRABRWBRE GBI E N
MBI HE - 8201191 A1
HZ2020612A8318 @ YRAEAD
HMEMSEEEZECELRIS%HOM
KB ZERRBT o T ABRITHE
R BEBUE R

- PEZEAABEERAE - REA
EEEBRBRAR - ALEATL
BEHERET R AMBRAE
TRHERERETAR R
2015 4 A8 A EB( PRtk E
SEMEFREN(2015) 205)HIHETE -
EBELBEBE2014FNRBGE
REZ  HEit R Kb iGERS=E
SEPRARABEEERNER

- PBASSBEAERAF R
201545 7 12 B ES(K B
{58 %F(2015) 0275 YAyt
B EDLBB2014FHH
BHERFL > Bt R
BEZEBRAAZEERBREDN
B

- EBREITEFEBBREMLR
A - R2015F3 A31 B ERE
(BWIE%(2015) 605 )it
E o OLECLBIB2014FHM

BRERER B RAKEHE
BEXTABAHREBRBERRD
BA%

- HE(BEE)REERZARN
20155 A27 B EB T
B B @ (2015) 28823 % )
W ERBANE PEELR
B014FMBBHEREZ - 78
ARG ESZZABARH
BEEBERNER



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

IV. Taxation (Continued)

3.

Major categories of taxes and respective tax
rates applicable to major overseas subsidiaries
Income tax

The basis of computation and applicable rate of corporate income
tax primarily applicable to major overseas subsidiaries of the Group
are set out below:

Basis of computation Applicable country

Interim Report 2015 FAsks 101

5 i R M 5 (48
20156 A30H (A R#T)

M~ BEIE ()

3.

BONEEFLAETEHRE
CIRET
AEERITEFARTIEEMRNE
XAGHABR KRR ERB RN N
T

Jan to June 2015

SRR IE ERBER 2015%F1-6 A
Amount of taxable income Germany
JEMNTLPTIS RE e 30%

Income tax rates applicable in other countries follow the tax laws

and regulations in force in the respective countries.

Value-added taxes
The basis of computation and applicable rate of value-added tax
primarily applicable to overseas subsidiaries of the Group are set out

below:

HBEKAEHRHN R EREMREE
BIRMRERE °

BER
AREEBHEET D REANLER
SRR RBEABRIIRAT

Basis of computation Applicable country Tax rate
BRI EAER =
Amount of taxable added-value Germany

JE T B EER = 19%

Value-added tax rates applicable in other countries follow the tax

laws and regulations in force in the respective countries.

HpBEFIBERY R EREEHMRLEE
ez
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial i - & 0f i B #i 3k 2 B IH H 5B
Statements

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash at bank EFHRE
Bank deposits HRITIFH
Other cash and cash equivalents HihEBES

As at 30 June 2015, the other cash and cash equivalents of the
Group amounted to RMB2,391,771,971.04 (31 December 2014:
RMB3,959,796,096,47), all of which are used in letter of guarantee
and security monies for special accounts such as bank acceptance

bills and letter of credit.

As at 30 June 2015, the Group held cash and cash equivalents of
RMB900,331,819.05 (31 December 2014: RMB1,149,426,627.63),

which were deposited overseas.

Interest income earned on bank current deposits is calculated by
using current deposit interest rate of the bank. The deposit periods
for time deposits vary from three months to one year depending on
the cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest income at

respective deposit interest rates of the bank.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Forward contracts =HER

ERES

30 June 2015 31 December 2014
2015%6H30H 2014912 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(RREX) (&%)

45,263,770.78
18,629,188,247.73 19,945,849,452 .87
3,446,385,720.34 4,468,400,969.01

20,163,793.01

22,120,837,738.85 24,434,414,214.89

MW 2015F 6 A30H - X & H
HtEEePBRBEARE
2,391,771,971.04 7t (2014 12 A
318 : AR#3,959,796,096.477C)
FARMR A R IR SRIT AL 2%~ 15
AESEPHENRED -

R2015F 6 A30H » A& BT
MRBIHEEEETE AR
# % 900,331,819.05 st ( 2014
F12A3MHB - IEARBE A
1,149,426,627.637C) °

fETT/EHETW\BZ/EHﬁETT/EEqﬁ A &

BHEWA - ERFRNFREA
31 AEVFTE  KEEENRE
FBRME - WIRIREFE R IRTT T KA
TR BUA -

UIanREBEFEEESZS
SFAEHESENEREE

30 June 2015 31 December 2014
20156 A30H 201412 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(RREX) (feFE=z)

22,389,004.10

66,996,021.60




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)
3.

NOTES RECEIVABLE

Interim Report 2015 AR HARE

RS i 25 BT 5 (%)
20156 A30H (A R#T)
T SO R EIEH R
(78)
3. EREE
30 June 2015 31 December 2014
20156 H30H 201412 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REBER) (JeEi%)

Bank acceptance bills
Commercial acceptance bills

RITAENEZ
PEFEARAIESE

10,223,813,921.80
28,420,757.39

13,755,776,821.57
25,103,554.95

10,252,234,679.19 13,780,880,376.52

Among which, notes receivable which had been pledged are

presented as follows:

Hep CDERWERERNT :

30 June 2015 31 December 2014

20156 H30H 2014912 A831H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (fEE%)

Bank acceptance bills

RITHRER

2,721,442,673.70 6,557,183,926.52

Notes receivable which had been endorsed but not yet expired as at
the balance sheet date are presented as follows:

EEZEGEEERBRAMKREHN
EWRENT -

30 June 2015 31 December 2014

2015%6A30H 2014512 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(RBEX) (&%)
Derecognition Derecognition
KIETERR R FERR

Bank acceptance bills

RITAGLIES

3,508,475,324.52 12,796,570,508.51

Notes receivable already discounted but not yet expired as at the
balance sheet date are presented as follows:

EMBREEEEARBRAHARIHK
FEMEZIT -

30 June 2015 31 December 2014

201566 H30H 20145128318
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(RRBER) (&%)
Derecognition Derecognition
HIETER K IETER

Bank acceptance bills

RITHESRE

736,573,300.00

26,831,833.34

As at 30 June 2015 and 31 December 2014, the Group has not
transferred any notes into accounts receivable due to issuers’ failure

in performance.

201596 A30H &2014%12 A31
B A5EEEAHEAENBLHME
ERE SRR EE -
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)

4.,

Accounts Receivable

The Group trades with its customers primarily on credit terms,

and generally requires prepayments or cash on delivery for new

customers. Credit period is generally one to six months, extending

up to six months for major customers. Accounts receivable is non-

interest bearing.

An aging analysis of accounts receivable based on invoice dates is

presented as follows:

RS i 25 BT 5 (%)
20156 A30H (A R#¥T)

T~ B OF B R R IH H RE R

(%)
4, FEWBER

AEEEREFHNE S EFIAEAR
HRE  B—REFHEFPEM KK
RBERNFET ERHES
B1-6fAA TEEFANUEREG
B A - EYRIRRAL TR

RIEAZBEH  BERFTOREDT

wmr

30 June 2015
2015%6H30H
(Unaudited)
(RREX)

Within 1 year
1 to 2 years
2 to 3 years

Over 3 years

1EAR
16226
2FE3F
3FEP

9,857,731,639.66
557,247,601.27
161,855,389.30
735,824,142.83

Less: provision for bad debt

in respect of accounts receivable

o ERBORTR R E R

11,312,658,773.06

916,948,922.78

10,395,709,850.28

Changes in provision for bad debts in respect of accounts receivable

are presented as follows:

31 December 2014
2014%12831H

(Audited)
(fEEZ)

9,343,376,537.16

340,718,426.91
113,710,835.72
684,646,310.69

10,482,452,110.48

822,420,507.83

9,660,031,602.65

FEWER TR R B ZEEHIT ¢

30 June 2015
20156 H30H
(Unaudited)
(RBEX)

822,420,507.83
138,933,151.95

(18,260,302.78)
(25,012,961.12)

(1,494,867.60)
363,394.50

Opening balance 0 FHRE
Provision for the period/year NE S FRHR
Decrease during the period/year: AHERD
Reversal o]
Write-off i
Decrease upon disposal of /NI D
subsidiary(ies)
Adjustment of exchange differences FE 3, 2= 2m
Closing balance B F R

916,948,922.78

31 December 2014
2014912 A831H

(Audited)
(fE&E%)

728,922,061.65
134,945,691.88

(40,482,285.79)
(1,360,790.35)

395,830.44

822,420,507.83
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS i R M 5 (48
30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2015F6H30H (A E¥T)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. - & 0f i % it & £ HIH H 5 #

Statements (Continued) (%)
4. Accounts Receivable (Continued) 4, BWIRM (&)
30 June 2015
201556 A30A
Gross carrying  Proportion Provision for  Percentage
(Unaudited) amount (%) bad debt (%)
TR Al
(REHER) BRERE LAl (%) BERER (%)
Individually significant items EHSHEAVER
for which provision for bad debt ~ FHiRZEHEH
is recognized separately 600,025,129.16 . 343,359,102.15
Iltems for which provision for RERRRFHES
bad debt is recognized by TR AR
group with distinctive credit
risk characteristics 10,469,532,793.93 474,152,931.53

Not individually significant items ~ BIE&EAEA/E
for which provision for bad debt ~ EJBEH{RIEERE
is recognized separately 243,100,849.97 . 99,436,889.10

11,312,658,773.06 916,948,922.78

31 December 2014
2014128318

Gross carrying Proportion Provision for Percentage
(Audited) amount (%) bad debt (%)
ARt
(BER) REHE L B1(%) ERER (%)
Individually significant items BESEENLEE
for which provision for bad debt  FHiREBEE
is recognized separately 613,010,848.57 5.85 309,797,447.50 50.54
Items for which provision for RERRRSHES
bad debt is recognized by sHR R
group with distinctive credit
risk characteristics 9,462,787,340.55 90.27 437,475,207.60 4.62
Not individually significant items ~ BIE&FE A& A(E
for which provision for bad debt  EXE R E R4
is recognized separately 406,653,921.36 3.88 75,147,852.73 18.48

10,482,452,110.48 100.00 822,420,507.83
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)
Accounts Receivable (Continued)

As at 30 June 2015, individually significant items for which provision

4.,

for bad debt is recognized separately are presented as follows:

(Unaudited)
(REEZ)

FAMIHAOQ LIMITADA

China Civil Engineering Construction Corporation
FETATREBERAR

Hubei Aoma Special Automobile Co., Ltd.
AAREERAEBRLA

Shanxi Tong Tai Automobile Sales Services Co., Ltd
LEBRAEHERBERAR

000 SHANKSIRUS

Guangzhou Jingi Trading Company Limited
BN ERESBERRA
Shaanxi Rong Chang Yuan Trading Co., Ltd
RAKEREHERAA

Anhui Anyu Engineering Machinery Sales Co., Ltd
ZRZFIREMHEERAA

Dalian Shaanxi Automobile Sales Co., Ltd
RERAAEHEBRAF

Nanjing Lerong Trading Company Limited
HRERESERAF

Others

it

Gross carrying

amount

SRR

64,404,927.35

59,851,461.01

59,212,611.99

56,927,140.00

53,878,105.05

49,159,575.31

43,173,316.66

42,763,993.80

40,525,626.59

33,443,140.43

96,685,230.97

600,025,129.16

PR 5 3 M R (4)
201564308 (A EB¥T)

T~ A O B Rk EEIH H AR

(%)

4.

Provision for

bad debt

644,049.27

49,809,156.96

11,842,522.40

51,234,426.00

10,775,621.01

39,327,660.25

34,538,653.33

17,105,597.52

28,367,938.61

26,754,512.34

72,958,964.46

343,359,102.15

FEU R =X (48)
H2015%6H30H @ B4 EEE A
BEFIREREGNEKIRFBE RN
™

Percentage Reasons

st fl sHEEH

1%  Repayment from Sinosure and
partially uncollectible
REREM ENSTEUE
Bad repayment ability
BEENZE

Bad repayment ability
RN E

Long credit age

RERR

Bad repayment ability
BEENZE

Bad repayment ability
RN ZE

Not full coverage of
preservation

EHR2EE

Bad repayment ability
BEENE

Bad repayment ability
BEENZE

Assets have been preserved
HEEEH

Cessation of business etc.

RAEHELS




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)

4.

Accounts Receivable (Continued)
As at 31 December 2014, individually significant items for which

provision for bad debt is recognized separately are presented as

Interim Report 2015 FRHEAZRE

S S ¥ R MY R (A

2015465308 (A R¥T)

T O B R R B IH H R R
(%)
4. EBUWER(E)

M2014F12A31H » BIEEFEEK
WEBTIREREBNRIERERIER

follows: m

Gross carrying Provision for
(Audited) amount bad debt Percentage Reasons
(FER) RE#E SRR SHELL A SHRER
FAMIHAO LIMITADA 81,438,361.52 1,106,142.08 1% Repayment from Sinosure and
partially uncollectible
REREN - EBs kD
000 SHANKSIRUS 61,907,184.06 1,118,175.20 2% Partially uncollectible
R REA(E
China Civil Engineering Construction Corporation 61,195,995.97 36,717,597.58 60% Bad repayment ability
HETATIREEERRA ERENE
Shanxi Tong Tai Automobile Sales Services Co., Ltd 56,927,140.00 51,234,426.00 90% Long credit age
AR AEHERBERAA RER
Guangzhou Jingi Trading Company Limited 49,159,575.31 39,327,660.25 80% Bad repayment ability
BHTEEESERAA BERENE
Shaanxi Rong Chang Yuan Trading Co., Ltd 43,173,316.66 34,538,653.33 80% Not full coverage of preservation
RAXERESHERLA K2 EE
Anhui Anyu Engineering Machinery Sales Co., Ltd 42,763,993.80 17,105,597.52 40% Bad repayment ability
ZHRTIREMHERR R ERENE
Dalian Shaanxi Automobile Sales Co., Ltd 40,556,826.59 28,389,778.61 70% Bad repayment ability
AERVSEHERRAT EERENE
Nanjing Lerong Trading Company Limited 33,443,140.43 26,754,512.34 80% Assets have been preserved
HRERESRRAA HERES
Datong City Yi Fu Commercial and Trading Co., Ltd 32,068,898.11 12,827,559.24 40% Bad repayment ability
ARTHEHERRAEAAA EEENE
Others 110,376,416.12 60,677,345.35 55% Cessation of business etc.
it NGIES oAl

613,010,848.57 309,797,447.50
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)

4. Accounts Receivable (Continued)

The Group's accounts receivable for which bad debts are provided
for using aging analysis are presented as follows:

Gross carrying  proportion

amount

Within 1 year
1102 years
2103 years
3todyears
4105 years
Qver 5 years

REHE
1N 4,980,271,972.68
122F 331,429,112.98
153% 62,077,542.70
354F 23,493,036.45
455% 30,859,830.79
SENE 128,722,068.53

5,556,853,564.13

30 June 2015
201556430
(Unaudited)

(REEH)

(%)

tAi(%)

89.62
5.96
1.12
0.4
0.56
232

100.00

Provision for
bad debt

RRER
222,900,870.47
53,994,421.31
18,145,566.82
11,746,518.23
24,687,804.63
128,539,435.87

460,014,671.33

The Group’s accounts receivable for which bad debts are provided
for using overdue periods as credit risk profile are presented as

follows:

Gross carrying

amount

RAHE

An overseas segment combination 3550 EiRIAAA

4,912,679,229.80

30June 2015
2015%6A308
(Unaudited)
(RBEH)

Provision for

bad debt

RRER

14,138,254.20

From January to June 2015, provisions for bad debts in the amount
of RMB138,933,151.95 (2014: RMB134,945,691.88) were made,
while provisions for bad debts in the amount of RMB18,260,302.78

(2014: PMB40,482,285.79) were reversed or recovered.

From January to June 2015, accounts receivable written off
amounted to RMB25,012,961.12 (2014: RMB1,360,790.35).

PR 5 3 M R (4)
201564308 (A EB¥T)

T~ B OF B R R IH H RE R

(%)
4, EBWERM(E)
REBRARE D NEFHRZERER
B MR RIE R AT -
31 December 2014
2014128318
(Audited)
(#&%)
percentage Gross camyjing — proportion Provision for  percentage
(%) amount (%) bad debt (%)
R i SRILH
(%) SHBE (%) ZEER (%)
(FERS 4,600,211,695.68 9220 230,199,578.80 5.00

176,704,041.01 354
21421,657.60 0.55
40,286,747.02 081
25543,732.35 051

119,348 934.09 239

26,101,352.11 147

8,254,005.73 30.10
20,154,109.52 50.03
20,399,749.75 7986
119,348,934.09 100.00

4,989,516,807.75 100.00

424,457,730.00 851

KABRRKERSERRRBHGE

ERERNEVRERIERANT
31 December 2014
20145124318
(Audited)
(&54%)
percentage Gross carrying Provision for percentage
)] amount bad debt (%)
bl SR
(%) FERE SHRER (%)
PR 4,473,270,532.80 13,017477.60 0.29%

2015F 1-6 AGTIREBHREEHEAREK
138,933,151.9570 (20144 : AR

#134,945,691.8
O R ERAR

87c) WM =k
#18,260,302.78

JL(2014F : AR#40,482,285.79

)

2015 1-6 HER
ANE#25,012,96
AE#1,360,790.

%R R AR T A
1.1278 (20144 :
3550) °
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30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2015F6H30H (AR % T)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. - & 0f i % it & £ HIH H 5 #
Statements (Continued) (74)

4.

Accounts Receivable (Continued)

As at 30 June 2015, the top five balances in respect of accounts
receivable had a lot closing balance of RMB980,992,623.49,
accounting for 8.67% of the total of closing balance of accounts
receivable. The closing balance in respect of bad debt provided for
the top five amounted to RMB41,015,690.25.

As at 31 December 2014, the top five balances in respect
of accounts receivable had a lot closing balance of
RMB1,079,580,523.62, accounting for 10.31% of the total
of closing balance of accounts receivable. The closing balance
in respect of bad debt provided for the top five amounted to
RMB37,976,081.31.

As at 30 June 2015, accounts receivable with carrying amount of
RMB1,909,440,615.70 (31 December 2014: 1,758,522,549.60)

was pledged for securing bank borrowings.

Prepayments

An aging analysis of prepayments is presented as follows:

4. BWERM(E)

R2015F 6 A30H ' AEAAEHN
BRERN B RAREATRARE
980,992,623.49 7T - 1k JiE Ut R 3K HA
RERFE AT HMLL B £8.67% + %Al
hAABEETROZREBHARSBER
ANER#41,015,690.257T °

M2014F12A31H  BEBEAIAEHN
FBURERHNFRBEETAARE
1,079,580,523.62 7C * 1 FE Uk BF 3K
FRBEATHOLNA10.31% -
ZA R B EET IR BERERT R
A ARY37,976,081.317T °

R2015F6 8308 - AEBBER
BE A AR 1,909,440,615.70 7T
(2014412318 : 1,758,522,549.60
TT ) B FE AR FE AR R B SR 1T 1R

h
A °

AR
BN FEORBRAIFMT -

30 June 2015 31 December 2014
20156 H30H 2014%12A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (f&&E”)
Proportion Proportion
Amount (%) Amount (%)
x| L 4(%) il L B1(%)
Within 1 year 1A 492,612,965.46 86.40 453,357,098.87 92.90
110 2 years 1826 52,378,358.44 9.19 22,130,599.57 4.54
2 to 3 years 223F 13,594,018.58 2.38 3,580,954.08 0.73
Over 3 years 3FHE 11,600,887.01 2.03 8,916,419.80 1.83
570,186,229.49 100.00 487,985,072.32 100.00

As at 30 June 2015, there was no significant prepayments with an

age of more than one year (31 December 2014: Nil).

M2015F6 300 @ EIRE—F A
MEEFEMK(2014512 8318
) o

v
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)

5.

Prepayments (Continued)

RS i 25 BT 5 (%)
20156 A30H (A R#¥T)

As at 30 June 2015, the closing balances of the top 5 prepayments

amounted in aggregate to RMB125,461,000.66, representing

22.00% of the total closing balances of all prepayments at end.

As at 31 December 2014, the closing balances of the top 5

prepayments amounted in aggregate to RMB120,459,072.69,

representing 24.68% of the total closing balances of all

prepayments as at year end.

Interests receivable

Interests on time deposits

EHIE BRI B

Dividends receivable

JULI Motorenwerk s.r.o.

Shaanxi Eurostar Auto Co., Ltd.

Huarong Xiangjiang Bank
Corporation Limited

Beigi Foton Motor Co., Ltd.

JULI Motorenwerk s.r.o.
PREGERET BRI B IR A A
ERUMITRTT

ERERRERNDERQA

(%)

5.

7.

BNREGE)

T~ B OF B R R IH H RE R

MR2015F6 A30H ' REBERIAZH
ENRENBERBREATAARE

125,461,000.66 7T -

1t TR 5RO A

RBRFEAFTHALHA22.00% °

M2014F 128318  BBRIRAEH
BRRENFRABEETAARE
120,459,072.697C ' 5T KR EF
RAREETER L] 524.68% °

FE W F 2

30 June 2015
20156 H30H
(Unaudited)

(REFEZ)

31 December 2014
201412 A31H
(Audited)
(&%)

139,006,064.67

134,246,230.24

F& W AR A

30 June 2015
2015%6H30H
(Unaudited)
(RBEX)

31 December 2014
201412 HA31H
(Audited)
(&%)

18,768,566.80
3,040,000.00

2,000,000.00
1,720,000.00

3,040,000.00

25,528,566.80

3,040,000.00
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30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)
8. Other receivables

An aging analysis of other receivables is presented as follows:
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RS i 25 BT 5 (%)
20156 A30H (A R#T)

1~ B OF B AR 1 IH H RE R

(74)
8. HitEWR

Hip UK BRER D AT AN T

30 June 2015
20156 H30H
(Unaudited)
(RRBER)

Within 1 year
1 to 2 years
2 to 3 years

Over 3 years

625,745,422.42
82,161,903.43
7,668,970.98
62,951,074.15

Less: Provision for bad debts in respect

of other receivables

778,527,370.98

37,831,580.56

740,695,790.42

Changes in provision for bad debts in respect of other receivables

are as follows:

31 December 2014
201412 A31H
(Audited)
(&%)

706,703,360.37
139,401,607.88
29,869,751.66
33,839,580.16

909,814,300.07

38,171,673.31

871,642,626.76

Hip U FIERERNESINT -

30 June 2015
2015%6H30H
(Unaudited)
(RREX)

38,171,673.31
2,017,449.87

(2,268,152.04)

(86,223.48)
(3,167.10)

Opening balance H S F 8
Charge during the period/year i
Decrease during the period/year: NEER D
Reversal #E o

Write-off LR

Decrease upon disposal of subsidiaries BEFRARD
Adjustment of exchange differences ME 2= 2R B
Closing balance HiF KRB

37,831,580.56

31 December 2014
201412 A31H
(Audited)
(&%)

40,811,014.15
964,034.59

(3,558,129.67)
(45,245.76)

38,171,673.31
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) FPHS i R M 5 (48

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2015F6 A30H (AR ¥T)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. ~ & 0f i % e & £ IH H 51 #
Statements (Continued) (74)

8. Other receivables (continued)

8. HttEEW(&E)

30 June 2015
201556 H30H
Percentage
Gross carrying ~ Proportion Provision for  of provision
(Unaudited) amount (%) bad debt (%)
FHREA
(REFER) BRI SR EE EEB1(%) BRI (%)
Individually significant items for B4 2 & KA
which provision for bad debt is BRIRERER

recognized separately

Items for which provision for bad

RERRREZAS

debt is recognized by group TSR AR
with distinctive credit risk
characteristics 778,527,370.98 37,831,580.56
Not individually significant items B IE4 3R E AE
for which provision for bad debt ~ EXF:HIRIEREE
is recognized separately
778,527,370.98 37,831,580.56
31 December 2014
2014124311
Percentage
Gross carrying Proportion Provision for of provision
(Audited) amount (%) bad debt (%)
STER LA
(&&=) RESE L B1(%) ZEERE (%)
Individually significant items for EHGEEATES
which provision for bad debt is FHRERERE
recognized separately - - - -
Items for which provision for bad 1% {2 R AR S 41E A
debt is recognized by group FHREIREE
with distinctive credit risk
characteristics 909,814,300.07 100.00 38,171,673.31 4.20
Not individually significant items ~ EIE&FE A& AR
for which provision for bad debt B FiHiRIEEREH
is recognized separately - - - -
909,814,300.07 100.00 38,171,673.31
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS i R M 5 (48
30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2015F6H30H (A E¥T)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. - & 0f i % it & £ HIH H 5 #

Statements (Continued) (%)
8. Other receivables (continued) 8. HMEWRK(E)
The Group's accounts receivable for which bad debts are provided AEBERABRRDITEAGTIRIEREE
for using aging analysis are presented as follows: R E M ERIE R T
30June 2015 31 December 2014
201556430 2014812318
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEH) (&2%)
Amount  Proportion Provision for  Percentage Amount  Proportion Provision for  Percentage
(%) bad debt (%) (%) bad debt (%)
Fig 7] STRIA
&8 A% BEER (%) - $thi ZRER (%)
Within 1 year 1ELA 325,040,728.80 82.62 1,311,667.30 IS 256,219,218.85 7240 2,707,684.00 1.06
1102 years 122% 19,256,710.95 489 2,274,.217.56 45,036,558.38 1272 5814,353.92 1291

210 3 years 153F 5731,673.38 146 1,367,818.74 29,869,751.66 844 7,623,815.66 552
3to4years 3E4E 19,681,037.54 5.00 9,048,621.52 526,808.24 0.15 256,797.49 4875
4105 years 4Z5% 1,883,066.82 0.48 1,506,453.46 2,367911.50 0.67 1,894,329.20 80.00
Over 5 years SERLE 21,848,778.88 5.5 21,848,778.88 19,874,693.04 5.62 19,874,693.04 100.00

393,441,99.37 100.00 37,357,557.46 } 353,804,941.67 100.00 38,171,673.31 10.79

Other receivables for which bad debts are provided for using KAB KRR ERERRRSEGEHE
overdue ages as a distinctive credit risk characteristic are presented as EREENEMERFERNT
follows:

30 June 2015 31 December 2014
201556 A30A 20145124318
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEH) (&&%)
Gross carrying Provision for Percentage Gross carrying Pravision for Percentage
amount bad debt (%) amount bad debt (%)
HRLA FTRILHI
REHS BEER (%) FARE EHRER (%)

An overseas segment
combination BHERBAE 385,085,374.61 474,023.10 555,919,358.40 - -
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) FPHS i R M 5 (48

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2015F6 A30H (AR ¥T)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. ~ & 0f i % e & £ IH H 51 #
Statements (Continued) (74)

H B WK ()
H bR IR I E ST

8. Other receivables (continued) 8.
Other receivables are categorized by nature as follows:

30 June 2015

31 December 2014

20156 H30H 2014912 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEER) (f&EZ)

Corporate lending and payment TETERNREBH
on behalf 122,171,724.06 152,510,573.22
Employee advance #A2 83,119,835.49 47,597,031.26
Compensation claim REEFN 67,916,115.05 79,670,849.26
Commission receivable el AS 44,228,416.20 80,058,232.80
Tax rebate receivable R SR 5 K 42,310,744.95 8,419,496.15
Value-added tax paid in advance FERIEER 9,482,586.17 19,188,683.48
Others Hih 409,297,949.06 522,369,433.90

As at 30 June 2015, the top 5 other receivables are presented as

778,527,370.98

909,814,300.07

M2015F6 300 @ BN LB

follows: AAZIT :
Percentage of
total other Closing balance
receivables of bad debt
Closing balance (%) Nature provision
fEE
ERREAE
Rt EM BRERA
AR Ee41(%) 31 i BARHE
Company A ART 44,228,416.20 5.68 Commission ~ Within 1 year
receivable 1E LR
EhfE
Company F FRA] 33,667,533.00 Export tax refund ~ Within 1 year
ORI (B
Company B BT 32,302,269.80 Security deposit ~ Within 1 year
REL 15 R
Company C CRA 20,609,700.00 Consideration for 1t0 2 years
asset transfer 1-2%
BEEER
Company G GAR] 14,085,327.39 Corporate lending ~ Within 1 year

144,893,246.39

and payment on
behalf
EREER
REEH

1E R
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS i R M 5 (48
30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20156 H30H (A E#or)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. - & 0f i % it & £ HIH H 5 #

Statements (Continued) (%)
8. Other receivables (continued) 8. HMEWR(E)
As at 31 December 2014, the top 5 other receivables are presented HR2014F12A31H » EEk=e
as follows: WHAELNT :
Percentage of
total other Closing balance
receivables of bad debt
Closing balance (%) Nature Age provision
HEA
AT
BETEM BHREE
HRBE ELP(%) g R HRHE
Company A ARE] 80,058,232.80 8.80 Commission ~ Within 1 year =
receivable 1EHUR
RS
Company B BAE] 30,500,859.60 335 Security deposit  Within 1 year =
RER 1EMNA
Company C CRA7 22,366,800.00 246  Consideration for ~ 1to 2 years =
asset transfer 126
EEEER
Company D YN 18,015,810.32 1.98 Prepaid taxes  Within 1 year 515.74
HEREER 1E0R
Company E EAR] 14,084,869.54 155  Corporate lending 2 to 3 years 704,243.48
and payment on 2-3%
behalf
TEEER
RR#R
165,026,572.26 18.14 704,759.22
As at 30 June 2015, other receivables with a carrying amount of M2015%F6A308 » AEEKEEE
RMB218,826,924.70 (31 December 2014: RMB366,524,751.60) BB ARK218826,924.707T (20144
were pledged for securing bank borrowings of the Group. 12A318 : 366,524,751.607T ) ) EH fib
W RERAREUSIRITER o
9. Inventories 9. RE
30 June 2015 31 December 2014
201556830 20148124318
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (£E%)
Gross carrying Provision for Gross carrying Gross carrying Provision for Carrying
amount decline in value amount amount decline in value amount
REHE HEER KEEE RERE KEEE RHER
Goods in transit EEhE 370,208,903.04 - 370,208,903.04 315,033,575.22 - 315,033,575.22
Raw materials BEH 2,132,984,378.53 (43,052,983.81) 2,089,931,394.72 2,320,381,508.48 (40,246,072.01) 2,280,135,436.47
Finished goods ENm 8,191,596,318.53 (231761,47062)  7,959,834,847.91 7,464,883,057.69 (218,015,651.81)  7,246,867,405.88
OEM materials ZHRMIHH 109,369,760.34 (61,989.08) 109,307,771.26 122,077,083.48 (61,989.08) 122,015,099.40
Self made semi-finished ~ EEEK @R
goods and work EER
in progress 1,316,469,593.76 (16,902,602.91)  1,299,566,990.85 1,326,675,001.53 (18620,019.11)  1,308,054,982.42
Turnover materials A 928,469,285.64 (12,079,258.65) 916,390,026.99 959,402,303.53 (5,473,962.83) 953,928,341.10
Second-hand vehicles 3 419,812,874.04 (4,541,158.84) 415,271,715.20 389,820,943.97 (1,115,782.38) 388,705,161.59

13,468,911,113.88 (308,399,463.91)  13,160,511,649.97  IVRSLIWYERNLRN) (283533476.82)  12,614,740,002.08
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) FPHS i R M 5 (48
30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2015F6A30H (A E¥T)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. ~ & 0f i % e & £ IH H 51 #

Statements (Continued) (74)

9. Inventories (Continued) 9. ®FH(#&)
The changes in provision for decline in value are as follows: FEKELEFEEHUT -
January to June 2015 2015 1-6 H

Decrease during the period

N
Charge Adjustment
Opening during of exchange Closing
(Unaudited) balance the period Reversal Write-off differences balance
(REER) L KHGHR B[ By EXEEAR BRY
Raw materials RH 40,246,072.01 11,384,450.63 (5,187,244.67) (1,536,583.31) (1,853,710.85) 43,052,983.81
Finished goods Bk 218,015,651.81 64,478,654.10 (16,608,870.29) (31,728,894.40) (2,395,070.60)  231,761,470.62
OEM materials RENINE 61,989.08 - - - - 61,989.08
Self made semi-finished goods & 25 & &
and work in progress EER 18,620,019.11 3,360,625.87 (2,389,678.22) (1,574,828.46) (1,113,535.39) 16,902,602.91
Turnover materials FEH 5,473,962.43 12,598,175.82 (5,628,921.29) (24,370.41) (339,587.90) 12,079,258.65
Second-hand vehicles —FE 1,115,782.38 6,267,832.63 (2,731,330.41) - (111,125.76) 4,541,158.84
283,533,476.82 98,089,739.05 (32,546,044.88)  (34,864,676.58) (5813,030.50)  308,399,463.91
2014 20144
Decrease during the year
RERD
Adjustment
Opening Charge of exchange Closing
(Audited) balance during the year Reversal Write-off differences balance
(&5%) ER TEHE 2[ g EXEERE XY
Raw materials RitH 5401413679 1560883330 (2,159,104.08)  (24,632,489.19)  (2,585,304.81) 40,246,072.01
Finished goods ENM 255,267,684.84  181,098,656.97  (48,533,958.53)  (167,596,836.02) (2,219,895.45) 218,015,651.81
OFM materials ZEMIHH 051712 - - - (363,188.14) 61,989.08
Self made semi-finished goods & 2L £ M B REER
and work in progress 36,854,179.53 2,684,486.50  (17,393,900.56) - (3,524,746.36) 18,620,019.11
Turnover materials EED 2,143,928.49 4,065,881.39 (228,571.72) - (507,275.73) 5,473,962.43
Second-hand vehicles —F8 - 1,219,419.82 - - (103,637.44) 1,115,782.38

348,705,106.87  204,677,277.98  (68,315,534.89)  (192,229,325.21) (9,304,047.93) 283,533,476.82
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30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20156 H30H (A E#or)
V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial i~ 0f & &K FEIHH B

Statements (Continued) (%)

9. Inventories (Continued) 9. FE(#&)

Provision for decline in value of inventories is determined based on AEEZRBERASRAUZRFENZE
the excess of cost over net realizable value and shall be reversed BTIRTEKBESE  WEURIEE
within the original provision for decline in value of inventories when FEBENTZERZELE  ERE
the factors that give rise to the decline in value of inventories in FIRNTFEREBEEFNSEANERL -
prior years are not in effect in current year.

The increase in provision for decline in value of this period was AHGFEERELEFBENEZ ZEK S
mainly due to stocking up of inventories which was in turn due to TSR E BB TR -

the weak sales of products.

10. Classified as held-for-sale assets 10. B ABERENEE
Regarding the disposal of the idle fixed assets located in the R2014F 128318 * ARAFZFA
old factory areas of Weichai Power (Weifang) Casting Co., Ltd., BIHELSEE) (L) ) EBAR A RTE
a subsidiary of the Company, on 31 December 2014, Weichai BEHES 4D BIRER A FIZER
Power (Weifang) Casting Co., Ltd. entered into an irrevocable EREETEE 27T T HBEY
transfer agreement to classify those idle fixed assets as held-for- ERE o BREBEETEES S AR
sale. The disposal of idle fixed assets is expected to be completed BHE WNERETEENREERAE
by December 2015. Carrying amounts of idle fixed assets are as fE2015F 12 ZR =K - REEE
follows: EEREBENOT

30 June 2015 31 December 2014
201556 H30H 20144128318
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(RBEZX) (F&EZ)
Cost of fixed assets BEBERE 181,943,010.51 181,943,010.51
Accumulated depreciation Z:HTE (146,172,275.19) (146,172,275.19)
Classified as held-for-sale assets D AEREFRENEE 35,770,735.32 35,770,735.32
11. Non-current assets due within one year M. —"FRIBNFERBEE

B8 A E B UGR

Finance lease receivables

30 June 2015 31 December 2014

2015%6H30H 201412 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (gesEi%)

1,122,816,456.00

1,509,870,834.00
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)
12. Other current assets

PR 5 3 M R (4)
201564308 (A EB¥T)

T~ B OF B R R IH H RE R

(%)

12. Bt RBEE

30 June 2015
201566 H30H
(Unaudited)
(REEX)

Prepaid expenses

Value-added tax credit

Principal-protected fixed income
investment products

Prepaid corporate income tax 8

=i

Others Hb

THER
IBER KB
RABEE R SR E E M

DEMEH

353,530,859.32
587,579,800.07

82,000,000.00
97,083,071.39
20,120,976.20

1,140,314,706.98

13. Available-for-sale financial assets

@ross carrying
amount

REHE

Avalable-for-sale equity ~ TEHEERT &
instruments
At fair value WAL EESS

At cost BN E

358,661,570.50
310,212,225.01

668,873,795.51

Available-for-sale financial assets at fair value:

30 June 2015
201556830
(Unaudited)
(RBEH)

Provision for
impairment

AERHE

(123,356,130.00)

(123,356,130.00)

31 December 2014
2014912 831H

(Audited)
(fE&E%)

218,384,275.16
463,327,762.71

20,000,000.00
63,047,641.04
7,417,909.34

772,177,588.25

13. ItHESHEE

31 December 2014

20145128318

(Audited)

(&%%7)
Carrying Gross carrying Provision for Carrying
amount amount impairment amount
RERE FEsE HEER REEE
358,661,570.50 256,312,290.80 - 256,312,290.80
186,856,095.01 298,661,127.71 (123,356,130.00 175,304,997.71
545,517,665.51 554,973,418 51 (123,356,130.00 431,617,288.51

UKArBEFENAHRLEEZRE

30 June 2015

20156 H30H

(Unaudited)

(RIBERZ)

Cost of equity instruments W T AR A 199,912,290.80

Fair value Ah(EE 358,661,570.50
Fair value changes accrued to other 2 &t A E 4R & 258D

comprehensive income NABEE 158,749,279.70

Provision for impairment BRI E =

31 December 2014
2014912 831H

(Audited)
(fEE%)

199,912,290.80
256,312,290.80

56,400,000.00
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V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. - & 0f i % it & £ HIH H 5 #

Statements (Continued) (%)
13. Available-for-sale financial assets (continued) 13. gt HESRMEE (&)
Available-for-sale financial assets at cost: AT EM A HEESHEE
30 June 2015 20156 H30H
(Gross carrying amount Provision for impairment
BREGE REERE
Percentage
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease of Cash
Opening during during Closing Opening during during Closing ~ shareholding ~ dividend for
(Unaudited) balance the period the period balance balance the period the period balance %) the period

RRiH 54
(K27 LE) AHEm -0 LS 84 ABEm LN ) TS (%) REAHA

Foton Heauy<uty Machinery RRELEARD

(o, ltd. ARAE 38,630,876.88 38,630,876.88 1,408,500.00 1,408,500.00
Xinje nestmentand Guerentee — EREEERBR

(o, L Mot EENAG) 5,135,800.00 5,135,800.00
Huarong Xiangjang Bank ERIHT

Corporation Limited 20,000,000.00 20,000,000.00
China National Machinery and TEBHREED

Equipment Hana Co, L1, BhERAT §79,605.00 §1960500 87960500 §79,605.00
Thuzhou Gear Share Co, L. [vEETEOETEREN  1,680,00000 1,680,00000 - -
astem Lfe Insurance Co,, Ltd. ERINL 2O 60,000,000.00 60,000,000.00 60,000,000.00 60,000,000.00
New Century Finance Leasing HtLepiE

(o, L. ERAR 61,068,025.00 61,068,025.00 61,068,025.00 61,068,025.00
Yamen FengtaiBus & Coach ERERARTER

nternationalCo,, Ltd REERAF 24,999,800.00 24,999,800.00
Vangzhou Suken Yinhe Auto BHEERTEE

Connecting Rod Co, Ltd. ARAR 1,563,949.23 = 1,563,949.23
Others £ 84,703,071.60 11,551,097.30 96,254,168.90

298,661,127.71 11,551,097.30 310,212,225.01  123,356,130.00 123,356,130.00
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) W5 R B 5 ()
30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20156 H30H (A B #or)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial i~ 0 &K FEIHH &

Statements (Continued) (%)
13. Available-for-sale financial assets (continued) 13. JtHESRMEE (&)
31 December 2014 201412 H31H
(Gross carrying amount Provision for impairment
FERE HEER
Percentage
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease of Cash
Opening during during Closing Opening during during Closing ~ shareholding ~ dividend for
(Audited) balance the year the year balance balance the year the year balance (%) the year
LA %3
(877 £4] REE REHD £F £ REEM KERD EX (%) EERE
Foton Heavy<uty Machinery BEENEARG
(o, ltd. BRAA 38,630,876.88 - - 38,630,876.88 1,408,500.00 - - 1,408,500.00 6.14 -
Yinje hvestment and Guarantee ERRERRER
(o, L Mot RELAR(R) 5,135,800.00 - - 513580000 - - - - 2500 -
Huarong Xiangjang Bank ERRIET
Corporation Limited 20,000,000.00 - - 20,000,000.00 - - - - 041 -
China National Machinery and TERRRERS
Equipment Hanan Cop, 1. RHERLA §79,605.00 - - §79,605.00 879,605.00 - - §79,605.00 066 -
Thuzhou Gear Share Co, L. RMERRNERAE 168000000 - - 168000000 - - - - 245 -
Eastern Lfe Insrance Co,, Ltd. RAABRBRERAA  60,000,000.00 - - 60,000,000.00 60,000,000.00 - - 60,000,000.00 150 -
New Century Finance Leasing tEeREg
(o, ltd. ARAE 61,068,025.00 B - 61,068,025.00 61,068,025.00 - - 61,068,025.00 11.22 -
Yamen Fengta Bus & Coach ERERARHER
Intemational Co., Ltd AEERAA 24,999,800.00 - - 24,999,800.00 - - - - 1547 -
Vangzhou Suken Yinhe Auto AlERRT 2R
Connecting Rod Co, Ltd. BRAA 1,563,949.23 - - 1,563,949.23 - - - - 15.00 -
Others 2 = 84,703,071.60 - 84,703,071.60 - - - - -
213,958,05.11 84,703,071.60 - 298661,127.71  123,356,130.00 - - 123356,130.00 -
Note: The Group has no board seats in Xinjie Investment and Guarantee Co., d AREEEERREEREREELA
Ltd., as such the Group has no significant influence over that investee. EERORMN ASEYZREKER

UEBERTE -



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
14. Long-term receivables

30 June 2015

201556830
(Unaudited)
(RBEH)

@ross carrying Provision for

amount impairment

RAHE RERH

Interim Report 2015 AR HARE

Finance lease receivables AR SR 2,928,734,548.60 IPENEDIIO  2,574,098,089.20 -

Trade receivables HER 31,078,368.00

AR # 3R M R (48)
20156 A30H (AR#T)
T~ AP B B Ak R H H AR
(%)
14. REIEWK
31 December 2014
20145124318
(Audited)
(B%#)
Carrying Gross carrying Provision for Carrying
amount amount impairment amount
REEE Fasg HEER REBE
2,574,098,089.20
31,078,368.00 - - -
2,574,098,089.20

2,959,812,916.60 2,959,812,916.60 2,574,098,089.20 -

The discount rate adopted for finance lease receivables ranged from
0% to 15%.

As at 30 June 2015, among the aforesaid finance lease receivables,
unrealized finance income amounted to RMB319,989,030.14 (31
December 2014: 282,216,826.80).

As at 30 June 2015, long-term receivables with a carrying amount
of RMB58,936,872.10 (31 December 2014: 205,058,822.40) were

pledged for securing bank borrowings of the Group.

BEHERYFRANTHRERRER

0%-15% °

MN2015%F6 4308 » Ll ERE
FERRPRERBERZ=AARKE
319,989,030.147C (20144 12 A 31

H :282,216,826.807T) °

M2015F6 8300 - NEBBREEE
A AR#58,936,872.107C (2014
#£12 A31H : 205,058,822.407T)
R BAEWKERARIGRITE

=/
e
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) FPHS i R M 5 (48
30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2015F6A30H (A E¥T)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. ~ & 0f i % e & £ IH H 51 #

. ==3
Statements (Continued) (%)
15. Long-term equity investments 15. RERERE
30 June 2015 20156 H30H
Change during the period
5529
Addition of
newly-established  Gains and losses
associates’  on investment Other Incl: closing
jointly-controlled under equity  comprehensive Otherequity  Declarationof  Closing carrying provision for
(Unaudited) Opening balance enterprises method income changes cash dividend amount impairment
fiRue/ B&AT A fK
(7EE7) BORE  SELREN REBE  HttGAKE W HhEE%E  SER4RA  HAREEE AEER
Jointly-controlled enterprises A&
Xi'an FC Inteligence ARERELED
Transmission Co, Ltd. (Note 1)~ BRAA (1) 192,653,453.02 (15,856,604.80) 176,796,848.22
Associates Betg
Shanzhong Finance Leasing ~~ WERETHRE
Co., Ltd. BRAF 391,082,871.61 7,896,985.69 398,979,857.30
Shandong Heavy Industry WEET £ 85T
Group Finance Co,, Ltd. BRAF 228,029,963.54 11,384,423.45 239,414,386.99
Bassodateswhicharenot  EEREAHF
indivicually significant BELE 665,959,370.13 63,379,902.81 (4,404,365.06) 6,330,239.21 (54,762,009.02)  676,503,138.07 (4,538,932.17)
1,477,725,658.30 66,804,707.15 (4,404,365.06) 6,330,239.21 (54,762,009.02)  1,491,694,230.58 (4,538932.17)
2014 20144
Change during the year
15EY
Addition of
newly-established (Gains and losses
associates/jointly- on investment Other
Additional controlled under equity comprehensive  Closing carrying Provision for ~ Closing carrying ~ Closing provision
(Audited) Opening balance investments enterprises Other decrease method income amount impairment amount for impairment
nHBE/ BaET LLRES S
(&54) F%E ENRE RELEEN HhoE ) REER  Efhekm  SERERF  HREERE  FXABEER HEER
Jointly-controlled enterprises 48 4%
X'an FC Intelligence BRERENED
Transmission Co, Ltd. ~~ RAF(E1)
(Note 1) 230,150,062.77 - - - (37,496,609.75) - - - 192653453.02 -
Associates BEtE
KION Group AG KION Group AG ~ 6,631,346,533.88  800,288,471.10 - (7,84097,935.00)  104,169,269.64  (165767,326.74)  (85,939,012.88) - - -
Shanzhong Finance Leasing [ ERETER
o B2 099203057 : ] - A - 6205000 o B s
Shandong Heavy Industry (LR T £EEH
Group Finance Co, Ltd. ~ ARA 213,732,394.01 = = = 21,850,102.51 = (7,552,532.98) - 22802996354 -
23 associates which are ot EBFE A
individually significant DFBELE 304,079,74941 - 419,268,642.50 (665,711.42) (220344083)  (42,794,732.82) (7,450,704.10) (425443261)  665,959,370.13 (4538932.17)

778922908064 800,288471.10 41926864250 (7,28476364642) 10375390261  (208,562,059.56)  (137,234,299.96) (4254432.61) 147772565830 (4538932.17)
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS i R M 5 (48

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2015F6H30H (AR % T)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. - & 0f i % it & £ HIH H 5 #
Statements (Continued) (74)

15. Long-term equity investments (continued)
Note 1: Xi'an FC Intelligence Transmission Co., Ltd. is held as to 51% by the

15. REIRERE (E)

1 ARBERAOREREEERERA

Group, and as to 4% and 45% by Shaanxi Fast Gear Automotive
Transmission Co., Ltd. (“Transmission Co"”) and Caterpillar (China)
Investment Co., Ltd ("Caterpillar”) respectively. Its board of directors
comprises seven directors, three of whom being nominated by the
Group, one being nominated by Transmission Co and three being
nominated by Caterpillar. According to its articles of association, board
resolutions require unanimous approval or approval by substantially all
directors, and thus Xi‘an FC Intelligence Transmission Co. is a jointly-
controlled enterprise of the Group.

Provision for impairment of long-term equity investments is presented as
follows:

FS1% M - SOMABRARA
FErREHEREREEAR(EE
SEDMRESERGH(PRIREERA
AT RERD])  BES B R4%
45% - EEEMELREEMEK - EF
ZEHAKEEAE —LHEDEER
RIE BN =2RRERHZE R
BREAERNE EFGREFTESE
ERRRNEBRZURAERE
WAZEFEHEEDERIABAAL

SEAERE -

FHBEREREEBNIEN -

January to June 2015 20154 1-6 7
Increase Decrease
Opening during the during the Closing
(Unaudited) balance period period balance
(RIgE=Z) A ¥ EREE <5338 t0 AR D HREREE
Zhuzhou Auto Trading Market WINRERZ FHE (284,499.56) - (284,499.56)
Torque Turbine Torque Turbine
Engine Co. Engine Co. (4,254,432.61) - (4,254,432.61)
(4,538,932.17) - (4,538,932.17)
2014 20144
Increase Decrease
Opening during the during the Closing
(Audited) balance year year balance
(&%) FOHRE AEHE N RER D FRHE
Zhuzhou Auto Trading Market HNAER 55 (284,499.56) - - (284,499.56)
Torque Turbine Torque Turbine
Engine Co. Engine Co. - (4,254,432.61) = (4,254,432.61)
(284,499.56) (4,254,432.61) - (4,538,932.17)
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) FPHS i R M 5 (48

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2015F6 A30H (AR ¥T)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. ~ & 0f i % e & £ IH H 51 #
Statements (Continued) (74)

16. REMFEHE
SRR AER TR R E

16. Investment property

Subsequent measure under the cost model:

January to June 2015

20154 1-6 A

Houses and

(Unaudited) buildings Land use rights Total
(REEZ) EEREEY T fEFRE &%
Gross carrying amount RE

Opening balance EHEREE 592,636,238.34 47,204,688.83 639,840,927.17

Transfer from construction in £ T 282 A

progress 75,388,095.36 - 75,388,095.36

Transfer from fixed assets BEEEEEA 13,926,078.17 - 13,926,078.17

Disposals and retirements BB RBREE (1,781,020.00) (1,169,960.25) (2,950,980.25)
Closing balance HASR $ %8 680,169,391.87 46,034,728.58 726,204,120.45
Accumulated depreciation ST E A

and amortization

Opening balance BHsREE 113,972,710.07 3,704,901.78 117,677,611.85

Provision TR 14,970,523.60 466,509.00 15,437,032.60

Transfer from fixed assets EEEEEA 1,828,607.83 - 1,828,607.83

Disposals and retirements iR B B R EE (1,352,699.21) (138,230.37) (1,490,929.58)
Closing balance L N 129,419,142.29 4,033,180.41 133,452,322.70
Carrying amount REEE

At period end AR 550,750,249.58 42,001,548.17 592,751,797.75

At period beginning R 478,663,528.27 43,499,787.05 522,163,315.32
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) B i R B 5T (A8
30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20156 H30H (A E#or)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial 1o ~ & /f o % #t 3% - 206 H 51

Statements (Continued) (%)
16. Investment property (continued) 16. REMHEME (&)
2014 20144
Houses and
(Audited) buildings Land use rights Total
(&) B ERREEY + b A A &a&t
Gross carrying amount RE
Opening balance FEHHEE 591,466,267.63 47,204,688.83 638,670,956.46
Transfer from construction in £ T 282 A
progress 2,567,968.00 - 2,567,968.00
Disposals and retirements BEKRWE (1,397,997.29) - (1,397,997.29)
Closing balance FRBEE 592,636,238.34 47,204,688.83 639,840,927.17

Accumulated depreciation and  ZEtHTE i 5E

amortization

Opening balance FYIRE 88,519,301.18 2,755,103.65 91,274,404.83

Provision =42 25,747,221.31 949,798.13 26,697,019.44

Disposals and retirements BB S E (293,812.42) - (293,812.42)
Closing balance FRHBE 113,972,710.07 3,704,901.78 117,677,611.85
Carrying amount REEE

At year end FxR 478,663,528.27 43,499,787.05 522,163,315.32

At year beginning F9) 502,946,966.45 44,449,585.18 547,396,551.63

As at 30 June 2015, investment properties for which the Group
had not obtained real estate certificates had a carrying amount
of RMB158,767,801.98, for which the Group was in the process
of applying for real estate certificates (31 December 2014:
RMB161,550,184.91).

M2015F6A308 @ RE@MEKES
EHEENNEHEHEREEBES
AR¥158,767,801.98 7T * &7 H
EEMEFEBEFR(2014F12 A31
H: AR%161,550,184.917T) °
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V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. ~ & 0f i % e & £ IH H 51 #

Statements (Continued) (74)
17. Fixed assets 17. BEEE
January to June 2015 2015 1-6 H

Forklift trucks Forklift trucks

and equipment  and equipment

Housesand ~ Machinery and Electronic leased out leased out
(Unaudited) buildings equipment equipment Vehicles (long-term) (short-term)
AKXz AEHE
(xE%H) EEREEY # TR EB%h R (RH) R (EH)
Camying amount RE
Opening balance e 9,952,875912.27 13.866,863024.78 93467252896 39227927345  2,324506968.00  4522,082,346.00  2,322,944709.27 34316,224,762.73
Addition BE 20,347,709.21 95,268,078.16 14,734,993.60 589425548 71773555560  933,128,146.60  135774,112.59  1,922,882,851.24
Transfer from construction- R T12&EA
in-progress 356,004,185.44  355,571,232.37 14,039,734.68 10,236,065.69 = 2062355302 756474771.20

Disposals or retiements — [RE S (181,757,007.88)  (100,773550.81)  (10,364,609.45) (5751,367.24)  (538,754,651.60)  (776,201,728.80)  (62,322,991.05) (1,675,925,906.83)
GEIICICE TG REL (223976,23087)  (111,774,058.55) (289,196.77) (56,80831)  (331,568987.00)  (148241,014.80)  (50,842,654.81)  (866,748,951.11)

Closing balance HARE 9,923,494,568.17  14,105,154,725.95  952,793451.02  402,601419.07  2,171,918,885.00  4530,767,749.00  2,366,176,729.02 34,452,907,527.23

Accumulated depreciation 23 HTE
Opening balance B8RS 1,418700,65065  6,491,170,205.73  625,036,855.07 28162493996  242,791,61400  621,841,773.60  1,017,872,439.48 10,699,038,478.49
Provision iR 219174,768.60  684,994,586.00 64,965,200.70 1912652910 264,142,085.20 58463476038 14542345749  1,982,461,36747
Disposals or retirements REGHE (38,771,017.21)  (57,518,786.64) (8,115,347.62) (5063,395.41)  (211,077,131.80)  (543,208426.80)  (50,259,586.01)  (914,013,691.49)
Adustment of exchange B EERE

differences (5,413,212.50)  (15,645,802.81) (226,584.07) (39,453.66)  (188,198,34450)  98,425872.41 (11,296,949.90)  (122,394,475.03)

Closing balance BAHE 1,593,691,189.54  7,103,000202.28  681,660,124.08 29564861999  107,658202.90  761,693979.59  1,101,739,361.06 11,645,091,679.44

Provision for impairment R {EE(E

Opening balance B8RS 2266,17534  103,946,231.22 144,649.06 1,047,369.85 389,164.52  107,793,589.99
Provision R - 6,637,369.07 - 6,637,369.07
Disposals or retirements — j 53R (415,631.97) (4,690,547.50) = (5,106,179.47)
Adjustment of exchange B £EBE
differences
Closing balance HRHE 1,850,543.37 105,893,052.79 144,649.06 1,047,369.85 389,164.52 109,324,779.59
Carrying amount KaEE
At period end TS 8,327,952,835.26  6,896,261,470.88 210,988,677.88 105,905429.23  2,064,260,682.10 3,769,073,769.41 1,264,048, 203.44  22,698,491,068.20

At period beginning 51 8,531,909,086.28  7,071,746,587.83  309,491,02483  109,606963.64  2,081,715354.00 3,900,240,572.40  1,304,683,105.27 23,509,392,694.25
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30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20156 H30H (A E#or)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial 1o ~ & /f o % #t 3% - 206 H 51

Statements (Continued) (74)
17. Fixed assets (continued) 17. BIEEE(E)
2014 20144

Forklift trucks Forklift trucks

and equipment ~ and equipment

Houses and Machinery and Electronic leased out leased out
(Audited) buildings equipment equipment Vehicles (long-term) (short-term) Others Total
B RE RinRE
(8%7) REREEN BERE ETRA EaRE  RRB(RE)  RRB(EH) i aif
Camying amount RE
Opening balance ENgg 6,247057,23957 12,360,196439.65 83420387170 362,041242.4 - - 145067477580 21,254,173568.9
Addition BB 174,845,882.51 218,796,027 35 11,135,822.58 14322,060.75 78233982150  1,189,810,00630  251,339,801.75  2,642,589,422.74
Transfer from construction- R T1E&EA
in-progress 43811172948 8505048530 11560381945 21398,770.26 - - 9,661,00997  1522,280.27546

Business combinationnot  3ER— 4| T
invobing entities under AR
common control 3,576,359,832.60  1,085,388,201.60 - - 218141236140 437177336640  653956,129.20  11,868,889,891.20
Disposals or retirements RELRE (102991,131.74) (463 922,975.83)  (18,056,799.76) (6,198,604.72)  (354,483,090.50)  (475,906,076.70)  (37,783,628.16)  (1,459,342,307.41)
Adustmentof exchange B £ERE
differences (380,507,640.15)  (184,099,524.29) (8,214,185.01) 71580492 (284,762,124.40)  (563,594950.00)  (91,903469.29)  (1,512,366,088.22)

Closing balance FRBE 9,952,875912.27 1386686302478 93467252896 39227927345 232450696800  4522,082,346.00  2,322,944,70927  34316,224,762.73

Accumulated depreciation ~ £3f#7E

Opening balance ENBE 107244439342 5489,309,912.04 44224979946 239,312,05.76 - - 79653553290 8039,851,693.58
Provision iR 36102065290  1,176,142,486.78  216,172,842.09 5799444626 26534287650 67960042860  348,149,422.90 3,104,423,156.03
Disposals or retirements RERHE (2,17540552)  (154,802,556.38)  (33,012,11023)  (15,632,526.75) - - (103,094,478.95) (308,717,077.83)
Adjusimentof exchange B ZERE

differences (12,588990.15)  (19,479,636.71) (373,676.25) (49,03531)  (22551,26250)  (57,758,655.00)  (23,718,037.37) (136,519,293.29)
Closing balance EXRBE 1,418,700,65065  6,491,17020573 62503685507 2816249399 24279161400 62184177360 1,01787243948  10,699,038,478.49

Provision for impaiment %[

Opening balance FIBE 252454715 61,181,933.03 8,464.02 1,047,369.85 - - 383,460.37 65,145,774.42
Provision iR - 4,771,53121 136,185.04 - - - 5,704.15 42,913 426,40
Disposals or retirements 2 53R (258,371.81) (71.239.02) = = = = = (265,610.83)
Adjustment of exchange B EEEE

differences - - - - - - - -
Closing balance FRBE 2,266,175.34 103,946,231.22 144,649.06 1,047,369.85 - - 389,164.52 107,793,589.99

Carrying amount KEEE

Atyear end EX 8,531,909,086.28  7,271,746,587.83  309,491,024.83 109,606,963.64  2,081,715354.00  3,900,240,572.40  1,304,683,10527  23,509,392,694.25

At year beginning 1) 5172,083299.00  6,809,704,59458 39194560822  121,681,816.63 = - 65375578253  13,149,176,100.96
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30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2015F6A30H (A E¥T)
V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. ~ & 0f i % e & £ IH H 51 #
Statements (Continued) (%)
17. Fixed assets (continued) 17. BEEE (&)
Fixed assets leased in under finance lease are presented as follows: MEBABRTEENT ¢

30 June 2015

201546 A30H

Gross Accumulated Provision for
(Unaudited) carrying amount depreciation impairment ~ Carrying amount
(RIEEZ) RE Rt & AEER REEE
Houses and buildings EEZEY 70,066,110.10 46,426,784.20 23,639,325.90
Machinery and equipment i 35,826,528.50 6,347,787.60 29,478,740.90
Electronic equipment BTRE 144,212,940.80 69,413,469.60 74,799,471.20
Forklift trucks and equipment ~ fHHIRE= R
leased out (long-term) HiE(EH) 1,813,877,790.45 89,910,734.95 1,723,967,055.50
Forklift trucks and equipment  FAHEYRE K&
leased out (short-term) HE(RE) 3,205,330,592.40  501,042,546.70 2,704,288,045.70
5,269,313,962.25 713,141,323.05 4,556,172,639.20
31 December 2014 201412 A31H
Gross Accumulated Provision for
(Audited) carrying amount depreciation impairment Carrying amount
(B&EZ) R(E 2EME BB REERE
Houses and buildings FEEREN 27,607,043.02 848,894.62 - 26,758,148.40
Machinery and equipment Hesez 10,321,085.30 338,036.90 - 9,983,048.40
Others Hith 93,784,737.96 5,972,681.16 - 87,812,056.80
131,712,866.28 7,159,612.68 - 124,553,253.60
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30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20156 H30H (A E#or)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial i~ 0f & &K FEIHH B
Statements (Continued) (74)
17. Fixed assets (continued) 17. BEEEE(E)

Carrying amount of fixed assets leased out under operating lease is

presented as follows:

REMHAHEEEEREEENT

30 June 2015 31 December 2014
2015%6H30H 201412 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (&%)

Houses and buildings EEREY
Electronic equipment BFHE
Machinery and equipment IR
Vehicles EHTH

Forklift trucks and equipment leased out 78 H ) X &8 & 4% (£ H))

(long-term)

Forklift trucks and equipment leased out 78 H! ) X & 2 5545 (55 H7)

(short-term)

10,007,952.84 9,548,315.51
1,008,131.31 557,556.56
12,822,718.84 13,072,484.30
604,546.62 2,449.49

2,064,260,682.10 2,081,715,354.00

3,769,073,769.41 3,900,240,572.40

As at 30 June 2015, the Group did not have significant temporarily
idle fixed assets (31 December 2014: Nil).

As at 30 June 2015, fixed assets for which the Group
had not obtained real estate certificates had a carrying
amount of RMB1,703,698,820.05 (31 December 2014:
RMB1,836,612,161.16).

As at 30 June 2015, fixed assets with a carrying amount of
RMB125,918,397.10 (31 December 2014: 136,653,692.40) were
pledged for securing bank borrowings of the Group.

From January to June 2015, impairment loss on fixed assets in the
amount of RMB6,637,369.07 was recognized. Recoverable amount
is recognized in accordance with the net realizable value for the

corresponding assets.

MN2015%E6 300  KEBEESE KM
ERMEBTEE(2014912 A 31
B:&E)-

M2015F6A308 » NEBMEKES
BMEZINETEEREEEAAR
#1,703,698,820.05 7T (2014 4 12
HA31H :1,836,612,161.167T) °

M2015F6 A308 © A&EE KK
m{EMEAARM125918,397.10
ot (2014 & 12 A 31 H
136,653,692.407T) W E E B E AR
EIRIGBRITHER

201551-6 A - AEREBRT AR
6,637,369.07 st B [E & & E F A B
ko AT Bl S FEARIEAEE A E B AT
A FEEE °
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V.

Gross
carrying amount

REGE

429,092,214.66

Weichai Power Testing Centre #5481 1 E .y

FAST transmission technology %1 #E8)
renovation project HER

Renovation for the casting #4811 B

203,259,310.03

project of Weichai Power BENE 150,587,223.90
Construction of Yulinnew — BIAFTHER %

factory area 111,071,370.21
Logistics Park of Weichai Power #4819 108,086,784.97
Weichai Power Landking BegnEE_H

Phase Il 87,271,266.51
Huadong technology e ENIEE

renovation project of HER

Weichai Power 48,466,441.20
Project T of Weichai Power ~ #4&)7TER 48,031,306.14
Weichai Power Information #4321

Centre L) 43,206,003.11
Thuzhou Gear technology — HM B s AEE

renovation project 42,981,132.87

Project onworkshop 3to 4in - 48071~
Factory | of Weichai Power ~ 3-4ZFEIER
Weichai Power interim testing  48) b 1B

35,494,443.59

workshop project %R 19,874,666.99
Phase Il of new base of Shaanxi & )5 51 24— 2

Thonggi 10,977,624.67
Sparkplug technology KEERY

renovation project 8,634,355.20
Overhaulof technological AT REAE

measures of FAST 6,841,977.68
Project for combining three T B HBA

workshops for FAST gear =B &R 4,830,369.73
Project of new heawy-duty ~ HEER £2

truck in Xinjiang HRER 2,859,160.87
150,000-tonne casting £ RHEE15EHE

projctin Jindingnew  BHTEE

factory area 962,508.00
Others Eih 1,058,899,118.94
Prepaid project equipment B TEREH

monies 629,222,735.18

Prepaid land premium BT 11,986,232.58

3,062,636,247.03

Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
18. Construction in progress

30 June 2015

2015%6A308

(Unaudited)

(REEH)
Provision for
impairment

RERR

(3,738,267.94)

(3,738,267.94)

B 5 i R B (A
2015466 H30H (AR#T)
aY » 1‘4“ 3]
I B OF Bk I H AR
==3
(%)
18. ZEIRE
31 December 2014
20148124318
(Audited)
(#&%)

Carrying Gross Provision for Carying
amount carmying amount impairment amount
REEE FERE WEEE BEEE
429,092,214.66 465,540,981.73 - 465,540,981.73
203,259,310.03 363,289,454.44 - 363,289,454 44
150,587,223.90 239,376,224.35 - 239,376,224.35
111,071,370.21 79,709,078.62 - 79,709,078.62
108,086,784.97 141,231,981.02 - 141,231,987.02
87,211,266.51 85,281,962.10 - 85,281,962.10
48,466,441.20 88,383 474.86 - 88,383,474.86
48,031,306.14 44,265,997.55 - 44,265,997.55
43,206,003.11 5873,170.99 - 5873,170.99
42,981,132.87 45,073,505.78 - 45,073,505.78
35,494,443.59 41,89%,448.11 - 41,89,448.11
19,874,666.99 49,099,876.40 - 49,099,876.40
10,977,624.67 81,174,024.18 - 81,174,024.18
4,896,087.26 6,089,782.32 (3,738,267.94) 2,951514.38
6,841,977.68 6,579,646.43 - 6,579,646.43
4,830,369.73 2,820,546.9 - 2,820,546.96
2,859,160.87 213753387 - 213153387
962,508.00 962,508.00 - 962,508.00
1,058,899,118.94 1,091,081,231.74 - 1,091,081,231.74
629,222,735.18 572,521,755.52 - 572,521,755.52
11,986,232.58 11,986,232.58 - 11,986,232.58
3,058,897,979.09 342498142355 (3738267.94)  3,421,43,155.61
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS i R M 5 (48
30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2015F6H30H (A E¥T)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. - & 0f i % it & £ HIH H 5 #

Statements (Continued) (%)

18. Construction in progress (continued) 18. EEIRE(HE)
Movement in key construction-in-progress from January to June BEEHEEITIE2015F1-6 A& HH M
2015 is presented as follows: T

Actual

costs as a

Increase Fixed asset percentage

Opening during transferred in Other Closing ~ Sourceof  of budget

(Unaudited) balance the period  during the period decreases balance funding (%)

IBRA

FHEN RS

(REEH) RE BIBE 5N BEEE HARE  EEME Wh(%)
FAST transmission technology % 45885 Internal fund

renovation project BEE 2,383,600,000.00  363,289,454.44 32,226392.21  (192,256,536.62) 203,259,310.03 BEEE  %61%
Weichai Power Testing Centre %81 1 E5aeh Internal fund

94231000000 46554098173 231415392 (655114458 (3221177641 42909221486  HEEE  98.07%
Renovation for the casting #8125 Internal fund

project of Weichai Power VERS 2,965,730,000.00  239,376,224.35 76663408 (1743612140)  (72,119513.13)  150,587,223.90 BREE  B2%

Movement in key construction-in-progress in 2014 is presented as SELRTIE014ESHMT
follows:
Actual
costs as a
Fixed asset percentage
Opening Increase transferred in Other Closing ~ Sourceof ~of budget
(Audited) Budget balance  duringtheyear  during the year decreases balance funding (%)
IREA
KEBA {fHE
(BFH) g E%E REEN Bz £t EXBE BERR A%
FAST transmission technology 1+ % &84 Internal fund
fenovation project %EH 238360000000  525889,089.70  187,750,078.60  (350,349,713.86) - 3328945444 BEES 96.27%
Weichai Power Testing Centre  #243) 7 88 )\ Internal fund
94231000000  484,177,190.28 100869201 (19,644,900.56) - 4554098173 BEAS 98%
Renovation for the casting #4311 Internal fund
projectof Weichai Power 527 iz 296573000000 17926256681 6851529957 (8401,642.03) - 936U AEES 98%
Provision for impairment of construction-in-progress was made EEIRRBREEG R NIEERNE
in respect of sparkplug technology renovation project because its B A EEREERTKNE S REENLEE
recoverable amount was lower than carrying amount. There was no EERE ANAREEREEES -

movement in the provision for impairment during the period.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) FPHS i R M 5 (48
30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2015F6A30H (A E¥T)
V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial # - & f B % #i 38 3= B IH H 5i B
Statements (Continued) ( )
19. Intangible assets 9. B EE
January to June 2015 20155 1-6 H

(Unaudited)

(REER)

Gross carrying amount BERE
Technology know-how BERM
Trademark rights ARRAE
Licence it
Land use rights TR
Orders on hand EFiE
Customer relationship REBR
Software an
Others i

Less: Accumulated amortization i - 2EH# 3
Technology know-how EER
Trademark rights AEEAE
Licence it
Land use rights TR A
Orders on hand EFiIE
Customer relationship P&
Software s
Others Eft

Net carrying amount REFE
Technology know-how AR
Trademark rights ARRAE
Licence et
Land use rights T RE
Orders on hand EFTE
Customer relationship REHE
Software qnk
Others ity

Opening
balance

HAGE

1,174,928,552.78
4,617,999,346.00
568,578,950.34
1,542,535,567.25
277,954,012.94
5,071,859,706.56
216,838,054.81
1,673,235,406.30

15,143,929,596.98

Opening balance

HAE

423,409,858.86
16,788,050.80
76,878,530.64
153,232,082.38
55,126,706.40
312,945,082.20
71,094,045.45
191,983,489.34

1,301,457,846.07

751,518,693.92
4,601,211,295.20
491,700,419.70
1,389,303,484.87
222,827,306.54
4,758,914,624.36
145,744,009.36
1,481,251,916.96

13,842,471,750.91

Addition
BE

5,787,835.60
32,100.00
26,840,219.80
46,604,498.00
6,915.80
28,757,656.27
222,518,244.59

330,547,470.06

Charge
i

64,847,793.67
1,201,264.28
68,330,192.22
16,384,356.78
9,695,951.60
218,003,305.50
8,469,743.31
159,407,234.24

546,339,841.60

Disposals or
retirements

REFEE

(41,328,820.80)
(16,878,556.80)

(2,953,046.60)

(61,160,424.20)

Disposals or
EENE

RESHE

(7,199,347.80)
(1,585,362.64)

(1,175,686.00)

(9,960,396.44)

Adjustment
of exchange
differences

ERZHAR

(51,424,638.55
(338,868,043.30
(38,623,888.75
(298,975.1
(21,835,622.26
(381,921,985.08

(7,144,719.20
(130,123,187.57

)
)
)
13)
)
)
)
)

(970,241,059.84)

Adjustment
of exchange
differences

EXZEER

(744,809.46)
487,743.70
(469,384.00)
(4,395,017.60)
(11,068,705.20)
(976,556.96)
(24,320,294.56)

(41,487,024.08)

Closing
balance

HABE

1,129,291,749.83
4,279,163,402.70
515,466,460.59
1,571,962,533.32
256,118,390.68
4,689,944,637.28
238,450,991.88
1,762,677,416.72

14,443,075,583.00

Closing
balance

HRAE

487,512,843.07
18,477,058.78
137,539,991.06
168,031,076.52
60,427,640.40
519,879,682.50
78,587,231.80
325,894,743.02

1,796,350,267.15

641,778,906.76
4,260,686,343.92
371,926,469.53
1,403,931,456.80
195,690,750.28
4,170,064,954.78
159,863,760.08
1,436,782,673.70

12,646,725,315.85
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) W5 R B 5 (4
30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20156 H30H (A E#or)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial 1o ~ & /f o % #t 3% - 206 H 51

Statements (Continued) (%)
19. Intangible assets (Continued) 19 BB EE(E)
2014 20144
Business
combination
not involving Adjustment of
Opening entities under Disposals or exchange Closing
(Audited) balance Addition common control retirements differences balance
R4
(&2%) EBE RE ThxaH REXGE EXZEHE EXBE
(Gross carrying amount 2ERE
Technology know-how EERI 397,946,054.86 24.403.56 884,765,656.20 - (107,807,561.84)  1,174,928,552.78
Trademark rights [l 226,203,400.00 559,380.00  4,935428,783.40 - (544,192,217.40)  4,617,999,346.00
Licence KiTiE 61,396,024.64 59,578,907.20 517,602,641.40 (676,292.30) (69,322,330.60) 568,578,950.34
Land use rights THERRE 1,376,361,556.58 183,647,578.50 - (12,200,760.00) (5272,807.83)  1,542,535,567.25
Orders on hand e 312,238,546.98 1,628,213.66 - - (35,912,747.70) 277,954,012.94
Customer relationship ZFBA 415,598,699.70 1618327.19 529324021380 - (638,597,534.13)  5,071,89,706.56
Software EC 125,687,552.10 27936,22892 79,824,251.40 - (16609.97761)  216,838,05481
Others =0 9,625,222.83 170,134,731.47 1,689,027,098.40 (18,479,890.80) (177,071,755.60)  1,673,235,406.30

2,925,057,057.69 445127,77050  13,399,888,644.60 (31,356,943.10)  (1,594,786,932.71)  15,143,929,596.98

Adjustment of
Opening Disposals or exchange Closing
balance Charge retirements differences balance
ENRE iR RELHEE ERZEHE EXRE
Less: Accumulated amortization 5, : it
Technology know-how ZRRM 352,052,941.15 78,660,452.74 - (7303535.03)  423,409,858.86
Trademark rights HERRE 15,562,372.69 1,330,245.61 . (104,567.50) 16,788,050.80
Licence fiTE 6,197,346.24 78,011,76930 - (7,330,584.90) 76,878,530.64
Land use rights TiHERE 128,698,867.23 30,030,248.70 (965,981.04) (453105251 153,232,082.38
Orders on hand ES 38,634,332.10 22,855,420.50 = (6,363,046.20) 55,126,706.40
Customer relationship EPER 53,670,487.50 290,068,285.95 = (30,793,691.25) 312,945,082.20
Software g 54,711,074.68 15,879,649.95 = 503,320.82 71,094,045.45
Others At 2,098,326.61 207,784,698.10 - (17,899,535.37) 191,983,489.34
651,625,748.20 724,620,770.85 (965,981.04) (73822,691.94)  1301,457,846.07
Net carying amount REAE
Technology know-how BRI 45,893,113.71 751,518693.92
Trademark rights BEFRE 210,641,027.31 4,601,211,295.20
Licence Bt 55,198,678.40 491,700,419.70
Land use rights THFRE 1,247,662,689.35 1,389,303,484.87
Orders on hand S 273,604,214.88 222,827,306.54
Customer relationship ZFBA 361,928,212.20 4,758914,624.36
Software aft 7097647142 145,744,009.36
Others At 7,526,8%.22 1,481,251,916.96

2,273,431,309.49 13,842,471,75091
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) F B i R B T (48
30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20156 H30H (A B #or)
V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial i ~ & 0F B % it 3% £ EIH H 51 B
Statements (Continued) (74)
19. Intangible assets (continued) 19. B & E (&)
2014 (continued) 20145 (48)

As at 30 June 2015, intangible assets generated from internal
R&D had a balance of intangible assets of RMB85,288,025.19 (31
December 2014: Nil), accounting for 0.6% (31 December 2014: Nil)

of the closing carrying amount of intangible assets.

As at 30 June 2015, the title to intangible assets with a
carrying amount of RMB44,468,857.75 (31 December 2014
RMB44,940,259.09) was under restriction, namely the pledge
of the Group's land use rights to secure its bank borrowings of
RMB34,000,000.00.

The trademarks are renewable every 10 years at minimal cost.
The management of the Group are of the opinion that the Group
has both the intention and ability to renew the trademarks
continuously. As a result, the useful life of the trademarks is
considered by the management of the Group as indefinite because
the trademarks are expected to contribute to the Group’s net cash
inflows indefinitely. The trademarks will not be amortised until their
useful life is determined to be finite. Instead the trademarks will be
tested for impairment annually and whenever there is an indication
that they may be impaired. Particulars of the impairment testing are
disclosed in Note V.21.

As at 30 June 2015, the intangible assets for which the Group
had not obtained title certificates had a carrying amount of
RMB239,982,611.14, for which the Group was in the process of
applying (31 December 2014: RMB226,282,458.14).

M20154 6 A308 - @@ K &
BERNERLEERBE/ARE
85,288,025.19 7T (2014 F 12 A 31
B:8) GEPEEMREEER

B A0.6% (2014412 A318
) o

2015F6 A30H @ REEEAR
#44,468,857.7570(2014F 12 A 31
A : AR®44,940,259.0970) &
BEMBEZIIRSE - ZAREEAZ
i REAER - BUSIRITER
ANE#34,000,000.007T °

BOARE+FEARKERAEE—
R AEBEERERS  AEEEE
BBERNTEHEEZSHE - Bat &
EREBAKARRNEBELRDR
ANFBR - B AREEEERRZ
SHEHAXKARERFR - BRIEZ
FRENAERAFRERERER
SAINEETHE - AR AES
SEFNEBEALRB T FERER
EITRERH o RER R FIE R T
2145 -

4

> o

M2015F6A308 - RNER &R
ERBENEFEEREEEAAR
#239,982,611.147T * EENMIEE
EEHNBEP(2014F12A8318 ¢
ANR#226,282,458.147T) °
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS i R M 5 (48

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2015F6 4308 (AR ¥oT)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. - & 0f i % it & £ HIH H 5 #
Statements (Continued) (%)
20. Expenditure on development 20. ¥ H

Capitalization of expenditure on development starts when

the development stage is reached. Capitalized expenditure on

development of the Group is presented as follows:

January to June 2015

BB HEDMERERNERFNG
B ARBEENMemRE HM

T

20154 1-6 A

Decrease during the period

EHHD
Increase in Transferred
internal R&D to intangible
(Unaudited) Opening balance  during the period assets Other decrease Closing balance
AgEm
(REE7) BI5% LS BABVEE Bt HRER
HX complete vehicle external flow HXBENRB AT RELER
field analysis and optimization project 3,457,211.33 - - 3457,271.33
Improvement project on driver's cabin EBEWEER 8,190,188.69 - - 8,190,188.69
Hydraulics project HEER 400,216,608.00 1,168,770.20 - (31,448,133.10) 369,937,245.10
Others 2 121,842,316.74 59,172,947.09 (85,288,025.19) 95,727,238.64
533,706,390.76 60,341,717.29 (85,288,025.19) (31,448,133.10) 471,311,949.76
2014 20144
Decrease during the year
KERD
Increase in Transferred
internal R&D tointangible
(Audited) Opening balance during the year assets Other decrease Closing balance
REEN
(E&%) ENB% MR EAEVEE At ExeE
HX complete vehicle external flow HXEENTEA TR EER
field analysis and optimization project 3457277133 - - - 345727733
Improvement project on driver's cabin BHEMEER 6,190,188.69 2,000,000.00 - - 8,190,188.69
Hydraulics project BEEH 450,057,556.20 54372,271.30 - (104,213,219.50) 400,216,608.00
Others e 37,713,840.12 96,418,171.02 (12,289,694.40) - 121,842,316.74
497,418,862.34 152,790,442.32 (12,289,694.40)  (104,213,219.50) 533,706,390.76
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) FPHS i R M 5 (48
30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2015F6A30H (A E¥T)
V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial # - & f B % #i 38 3= B IH H 5i B
Statements (Continued) (%)
21. Goodwill 21. B8
January to June 2015 20155 1-6 H

Decrease during

the period
Adjustment
Increase during of exchange
(Unaudited) Opening balance the period differences Closing balance
KHHD
(RigzER) BARE ARHE M EXRZEAE HREAE
Merger with TAGC AHMAANE 537,908,504.02 537,908,504.02
Merger with KION & PEKION
GROUP AG GROUP AG 6,445,375,994.17 (477,835,204.32)  5,967,540,789.85
Merger with Linde BHMERE
Hydraulics GmbH & ARLE
Co. KG 790,769,978.99 (YAPARYERY)) 728,648,355.42
7,774,054,477.18 (539,956,827.89) 7,234,097,649.29
2014 20144
Increase during
the year
Business Decrease during
combination the year
not involving Adjustment
Opening entities under of exchange
(Audited) balance common control differences Closing balance
REEM
FERI— 1T KERD
(&E=R) FHE rEAH XA FRBE
Merger with TAGC BHMNE 537,908,504.02 - - 537,908,504.02
Merger with KION A PKION
GROUP AG GROUP AG = 7,234,678,778.09 (789,302,783.92) 6,445,375,994.17
Merger with Linde Hydraulics & iR E
GmbH & BABLE
Co. KG 892,941,329.49 - (102,171,350.50) 790,769,978.99
1,430,849,833.51 7,234,678,778.09 (891,474,134.42) 7,774,054,477.18

20156 A0 BB ARE FIMEALE -
MEBRES M EFKION GROUP
AGEENEE - AREBFFEMN
EHMANE  MEREEBEEM
KION GROUP AGEEEBIEAELE
HAEETRHERERR -

Balance as at 30 June 2015 represented goodwill arising from
merger with TAGC, merger with Linde Hydraulics GmbH & Co. KG,
and merger with KION Group AG. Goodwiill is tested for impairment
based on asset groups formed by the merger with assets from
TAGC, Linde Hydraulics GmbH & Co. KG and KION Group AG on
an annual basis.
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30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)

21.

Goodwill (continued)

Mergers with TAGC and Linde Hydraulics GmbH & Co. KG

The goodwill and trademark acquired through the mergers with
TAGC and Linde Hydraulics GmbH & Co. KG using asset segments as

asset groups are as follows:

o asset group unit A: manufacture and sale of diesel engines

and related parts

o asset group unit B: major automobile components other than

automotive and diesel engines

o asset group unit C: manufacture of hydraulic pumps,
hydraulic motors, hydraulic valves, gears and other

components

Asset group unit A, B and C
The carrying amount of goodwill and trademark are allocated to the

asset groups as follows:
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RS i 25 BT 5 (%)

20156 A30H (A R#T)

T SO R EIEH R
(74)

21. EBE(E)
BOLHAIE - B RESBP %
REBLRAE - MERBABE
EMENEEBREENEERRES
BEGELWMT -

e EEMAMAAA EERHER
R e AR B T ER A

o  EEMBAAB: TERIMEI
MEERETEM

e FBEMHMAAC: EEREXR -
REBZE  BRERM - EH &
He Tt

BEHABEA - BRC
MENEZNEANcEIEEEEMR
RIERINT ¢

Carrying amount of goodwill Carrying amount of trademark

HENRESH HAENRESH

30 June 2015
2015%6H30H
(Unaudited)
(REERK)

Asset group unit A BEMABEA -
Asset group unit B EEMEAB 537,908,504.02
Asset group unit C BEHEARC 728,648,355.42

31 December 2014 {0V EPL T 31 December 2014
201412 A31H PINER: YR 2014%12831H

(Audited) (Unaudited) (Audited)
(BEZ) (REER) (BERZ)

= 116,422,784.00 116,422,784.00

537,908,504.02 94,677,346.72 94,677,740.80
790,769,978.99 = -

Total B (PSRRI RIS 1,328,678,483.01 211,100,130.72 211,100,524.80
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

i

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial # - & ff B % #t 3% = 26 H 51
Statements (Continued) (74)
21. Goodwill (continued) 21. BE (&)

Mergers with TAGC and Linde Hydraulics GmbH & Co. KG
(continued)
As at 30 June 2015, the management considers that there was no

risk of impairment for goodwill and trademarks.

KION GROUP AG

The goodwill and trademark acquired through the mergers
with TAGC and Linde Hydraulics GmbH & Co. KG are tested for
impairment using asset segments as asset groups and have been

allocated to the following asset groups/units:

o asset group unit D: forklift trucks production and

warehousing technology services

Carrying amount of goodwill

BENRESR

30 June 2015
20156 H30H
(Unaudited)
(REER)

Asset group unit D EEMBEAED

Regarding the goodwill and trademarks arising from the merger
with KION GROUP AG, asset appraisal and apportionment of costs
of business combination were completed in 2015. Adjustments
have been made to the temporary values of identifiable assets and
liabilities as at the date of combination based on the appraised
value. On 30 June 2015, the management considered that no risk

of impairment existed.

EHMNAIE - MEREE DL E
(#)

MR2015F6A30H  ERERA%LS
B IR R E AR o

KION GROUP AG

REEA FFKION GROUP AGEIBH)
FEREEAEERRIEAEEAM
AREBFEETRENR  TELH
RRETIEEMEAS

e EEMMAAD: XEEAEEKE
ERAMTART o

Carrying amount of trademark

BRNEESE

31 December 2014 SlIREA0k S 31 December 2014
2014124310 FAAdEEEEEIERS 2014612 4310
(Audited) (Unaudited) (Audited)
#F1Z) (RRBER) (&%)

SRR 6,445,375,994.17  FHARRSESPAEPAES  4,390,110,770.40

HNABKION GROUP AGHAKHI
EREE  DER2015FERNEE
FETHERDESHKADE - WR
B EEHAHBARREE - 86
WER M EEET T HE - 2015
F6A30H EREERATEFERE
[BL Bz o
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS i R M 5 (48
30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2015F6H30H (A E¥T)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. - & 0f i % it & £ HIH H 5 #

Statements (Continued) (48)
22. Long-term prepaid expenses 22. REIFHBER
January to June 2015 20155 1-6 H

Increase  Amortization

Opening during during Other Closing
(Unaudited) balance the period the period decrease balance
(REE7) B6E AN - 5 Bt HReE
Industrial mould fee TREEE 71,610,046.80 105,551,933.69 (16,173,231.54) (4,679,620.09) 156,309,128.86
Industrial equipment fee ks 52,107,937.89 7,577,309.56 (9,623,653.37) - 50,061,594.08
Expenditure on improvement of BAEEEEURAR M
fixed assets leased in 45,067,155.01 17,539,691.34 (11,899,666.80) 50,707,179.55
168,785,139.70 130,668,934.59 (37,696,551.71) (4,679,620.09) 257,077,902.49
2014 20144
Increase Amortization
Opening during during Other Closing
(Audited) balance the year the year decrease balance
(B&%) EN5E REEN KRR Afts ERBE
Industrial mould fee IEREE 75,821,131.35 2539591370 (29,613,604.25) - 71,610,046.80
Industrial equipment fee IfigAE 44,376,961.19 25,606,232.82 (17,875,256.12) - 52,107,937.89
Expenditure on improvement of BABEEEMASL
fied assets leased in 38,574,449.88 25,183,901.37 (18,691,196.24) - 45,067,155.01

158,779,148.42 76,186,047.89 (66,180,056.61) = 168,785,139.70
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
23. Other non-current assets

24.

25.

PR 5 3 M R (4)
201564308 (A EB¥T)

T~ B OF B R R IH H RE R

(%)

23. HivERBEE

30 June 2015
20156 H30H
(Unaudited)
(REER)

Scheme assets under defined

benefit scheme

o

ERImATEIZABIEAE

173,087,130.50
31,104,780.85

204,191,911.35

24. BHIE R

30 June 2015
20156 HA30H
(Unaudited)
(REER)

Others HAb
Short-term loans

Mortgage loans HIRER
Pledge loans HIRER
Credit loans EREXR

34,000,000.00
1,454,550,187.20
2,673,157,602.95

4,161,707,790.15

As at 30 June 2015, the above loans carried interest at rates
ranging from 1.09% to 7.8% (31 December 2014: 1.73% to 7.8%)

per annum.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit
or loss for the current period

31 December 2014
2014912 A31H
(Audited)
(R&ER)

161,242,261.20
11,322,517.80

172,564,779.00

31 December 2014
2014912 A31H
(Audited)
(g&EZ)

34,000,000.00
1,476,231,166.80
1,255,633,235.55

2,765,864,402.35

M2015F6A30R - Fit R FEF|
R E1.09%~7.8% (2014412 A 31
H:1.73%~7.8%) °

25. UAREEFTEBEERZTE
SFABHESENERAE

30 June 2015
20156 HA30H
(Unaudited)

(REER)

Forward contracts

124,022,304.70

31 December 2014
2014912 A31H
(Audited)
(g&ER)

76,807,591.20
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V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)

26.

27.

Notes payable
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RS i 25 BT 5 (%)
20156 A30H (A R#T)

1~ B OF B AR 1 IH H RE R

(%)
26. EHE#E

30 June 2015
20156 H30H
(Unaudited)
(REER)

6,264,433,180.64
379,591,095.36

Bank acceptance bills HRITHAH R
Commercial acceptance bills EEANESR
Total &&h

6,644,024,276.00

As at 30 June 2015, the Group had no notes payable which were
due and outstanding (31 December 2014: Nil).

Accounts Payable
Accounts payable are non-interest bearing, and are generally settled

within three to four months.

31 December 2014
2014%F12A31H
(Audited)
(R&ER)

10,387,172,130.11
480,511,714.40

10,867,683,844.51

MN2015%E6 30 » REBEFIH K
EEMZIE (2014128318

&) -

27. BB

&1 BR SR AT R

NIBME °

30 June 2015
2015%6H30H
(Unaudited)
(REER)

F& 5 BR K

Accounts payable

15,173,542,800.94

As at 30 June 2015, the aging analysis of accounts payable based
on the invoice date is presented as follows:

C WIBEAE3-4EA

31 December 2014
201412 HA31H
(Audited)
(EE%)

15,922,080,225.78

20156 300 @ EARERKER
ZHHNER ST ¢

30 June 2015
20156 H30H
(Unaudited)
(REER)

14,383,633,488.60
789,909,312.34

Within 1 year 1A
Over 1 year 1A E
Total &5t

15,173,542,800.94

As at 30 June 2015, there were no payables which were individually

significant and aged over one year (31 December 2014: nil).

31 December 2014
2014512 A31H
(Audited)
(gE=)

15,258,565,628.90
663,514,596.88

15,922,080,225.78

M2015F6 A30H @ EIRE—FIA
MEBSEEAMEMNRIBE(2014F

128318 : &) -



142 \Weichai Power Co., Ltd.

B D RHBRA A

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)

28.

29.

Advances from customers

PR 5 3 M R (4)
201564308 (A EB¥T)

T~ A O B Rk EEIH H AR

(%)
28. TR\

30 June 2015
20156 A30H
(Unaudited)

(REERK)

Advances from customers

BRI

31 December 2014
2014912 831H

(Audited)
(&%)

1,411,293,211.37

As at 30 June 2015, there was no individually significant advances

from customers which aged over one year (31 December 2014 nil).

Payroll payable
January to June 2015

(Unaudited)
(RE&ER)
Short-term remuneration 52 H T B
Post-employment benefits (defined BB 48 7
contribution plan) (RERFHE)
Severance benefits BHRER
Portion due within 1 year —FRIANHD
Other long-term payroll due —FREHEME D
within 1 year KRB T H M

Opening
balance

BABE

2,508,586,938.87

322,162,328.33

201,584,718.65

82,690,059.60

3,115,024,045.45

1,479,206,814.82

M2015F6 308 @ EIRE—F I L
MBS E ANTBUWFIE(20144F

128318 : &) -

29. BAHB T HM
20155 1-6 A

Increase during Decrease during

the period

R

the period
)

5,173,902,547.10  5,364,159,623.83

1,194,598,293.88  1,222,441,228.65
33,224,407.42 96,600,301.90

252,804,813.94 217,346,333.34

6,654,530,062.34

6,900,547,487.72

Closing balance

MR

2,318,329,862.14

294,319,393.56

138,208,824.17

118,148,540.20

2,869,006,620.07
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS i R M 5 (48
30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2015F6H30H (A E¥T)
V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial % - & 0F b % it 3% £ EIH H 51 B
Statements (Continued) (%)
29. Payroll payable (continued) 29. BB I HM (&)
2014 20144
Business
combination
not involving
Opening entities under Increase during Decrease during
(Audited) balance common control the year the year Closing balance
FE—EHTH
(EER) FOBE tEAH REEM RERD FARBE
Short-term remuneration A 1,075,396,894.99 1,380,760,597.20 8,240,839,495.08 8,188,410,048.40 2,508,586,938.87
Post-employment benefits ~ BE 1A% F
(defined contribution plan)  (RERE:E) 40,260,654.82 292,501,442.40 1,694,621,958.52 1,705,221,727.41 322,162,328.33
Severance benefits BEBA-EF/
Portion due within 1 year IREBBS 59,656,201.78 156,634,841.40 18,588,866.30 33,295,190.83 201,584,718.65
Other long-term payroll due  —E£RE|HEE
within 1 year RERTEM - 99,920,923.80 273,913,452.62 291,144,316.82 82,690,059.60
1,175,313,751.59 1,929,817,804.80  10,227,963,772.52  10,218,071,283.46 3,115,024,045.45
Short-term remuneration is presented as follows: RO T
January to June 2015 20155 1-6 5

(Unaudited)
(REE®K)

Salaries, bonuses, allowances
and subsidies
Staff welfare
Social security
Incl: Medical insurance
Work injury insurance
Maternity insurance
Supplementary medical
insurance
Housing funds
Labor union operating funds and
employee education costs
Other short-term remuneration

1% %%
R
BImHE
HERRE

HABRRR

EEAEE
1%

S
EhsEET

BEABTHE

Opening
balance

HAGE

2,048,477,621.20
19,981,723.00
8,169,937.38
3,797,634.08
448,766.83
421,484.06

3,502,052.41
13,771,309.97

286,743,090.75
131,443,256.57

2,508,586,938.87

Increase during
the period
KEE M

4,646,147,190.29
121,385,153.48
108,700,148.93
71,187,783.10
7,959,285.69
7,166,183.80

22,386,896.34
114,464,849.74

44,363,571.38
138,841,633.28

5,173,902,547.10

Decrease during
the period
EHRD

4,846,634,182.58
122,660,071.46
108,030,998.52
70,962,276.37
7,844,319.19
6,965,206.60

22,259,196.36
110,670,102.05

18,278,692.28
157,885,576.94

5,364,159,623.83

Closing balance

HAREGE

1,847,990,628.91
18,706,805.02
8,839,087.79
4,023,140.81
563,733.33
622,461.26

3,629,752.39
17,566,057.66

312,827,969.85
112,399,312.91

2,318,329,862.14
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
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V.

Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

PR 5 3 M R (4)
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T~ B OF B R R IH H RE R

Statements (Continued) (%)
29. Payroll payable (continued) 29. BB ITHM (&)
Post-employment benefits is presented as follows: REE MO T (&) -
2014 20144
Business
combination
not involving
Opening entities under Increase during Decrease during
(Audited) balance common control the year the year Closing balance
R — 12 T Y
(&ER) H8E rEabt REEM RERD HAHE
Salaries, bonuses, allowances TE - #4528
and subsidies g1 792,47882567  1,190,261939.40  7,262,039.905.17  7,196303,049.04  2,048477,621.20
Staff welfare BIEMNE 15,449,823.84 - 287,094,588.77 282,562,689.61 19,981,723.00
Social security HeRRE 5,593,719.12 - 230,104,423.79 227,528.205.53 8,169,937.38
Incl: Medical insurance Hib: BERRS 2,290,806.87 - 153,257,426.72 151,750,599.51 3,797,634.08
Work injury insurance IERKE 410,144.18 - 19,290,268.20 19,251,645.55 448,766.83
Matemity insurance EERRE 381,691.53 - 14,155,167.77 14,115,375.24 421,484.06
Supplementary medical BREERR
insurance 2,511,076.54 - 43,401,561.10 42,410,585.23 3,502,052.41
Housing funds IRAES 8,909,297.68 - 215,170,228.56 210,308,216.27 13,771,309.97
Labor union operating fundsand T & @& T
employee education costs HERE 251,933,839.78 - 103,038,503.66 68,229,252.69 286,743,090.75
Other short-term remuneration & 55 32 1,031,388.90 190,498,657.80 143,391,845.13 203,478,635.26 131,443,256.57
1,075,396,894.99 1,380,760,597.20 8,240,839,495.08 8,188,410,048.40 2,508,586,938.87
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V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial % - & 0F b % it 3% £ EIH H 51 B
Statements (Continued)

29. Payroll payable (continued)

Post-employment benefits (Defined contribution plan) is presented as B EREA (RERTFTE)OT -

follows:

January to June 2015

(%)
29. BB TE M (E)

2015 1-6 A

Opening Increase during  Decrease during

(Unaudited) balance the period the period  Closing balance
(RigEiz) BAHE AHE M XHED HRGBE
Basic pension insurance EREZRE 292,500,414.92  1,141,341,329.27  1,169,509,215.18  264,332,529.01
Unemployment insurance KERKRE 1,465,626.36 12,132,693.61 12,417,932.31 1,180,387.66
Contribution to pension fund PEFLHUB 28,196,287.05 41,124,271.00 40,514,081.16 28,806,476.89
322,162,328.33  1,194,598,293.88  1,222,441,228.65 294,319,393.56
2014 20144
Business
combination
not involving
Opening entities under Increase during Decrease during
(Audited) balance common control the year the year Closing balance
FER— 5 T
(B&F%) FOHE trEaft REEN RERD FRHE
Basic pension insurance EREERR 13,058,311.03 292,501,442.40 1,567,319,362.34  1,580,378,700.85 292,500,414.92
Unemployment insurance RERBE 863,276.19 - 29,955,360.93 29,353,010.76 1,465,626.36
Contribution to pension fund M ¥444% 26,339,067.60 - 97,347,235.25 95,490,015.80 28,196,287.05
40,260,654.82 292,501,442.40 1,694,621,958.52 1,705,221,727 .41 322,162,328 33
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

30. Taxes payable

B D RHBRA A

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)

PR 5 3 M R (4)
201564308 (A EB¥T)

T~ B OF B R R IH H RE R

(%)
30. EXHE

30 June 2015
20156 H30H
(Unaudited)
(REER)

Value-added tax
Corporate income tax
Individual income tax
Property tax

Stamp duty

Land use tax

City construction tax
Business tax

Other taxes

AR
EEMEH
[ENGEED !
FEMR
ENTERR
T E R
PR
EEM
H B A

416,836,510.49
569,099,991.26
157,626,147.06
22,171,071.85
6,300,355.69
14,673,618.49
3,354,355.35
573,810.85
15,244,184.45

1,205,880,045.49

31. Interests payable

31. EARE

30 June 2015
20156 H30H
(Unaudited)
(REER)

Interests on medium-term notes

Interests on borrowings
Others

hHREFE

&R S

Hitp

161,600,436.01
38,387,931.72
10,208,671.40

210,197,039.13

31 December 2014
2014912 A31H
(Audited)
(R&ER)

545,414,543.50
455,432,779.23
149,201,869.63
15,392,620.75
18,890,203.06
12,223,211.16
20,111,485.28
2,171,607.95
31,118,556.87

1,249,956,877.43

31 December 2014
2014912 A31H
(Audited)
(g&EZ)

147,464,676.86
39,497,318.39
9,349,322.41

196,311,317.66
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30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)

32.

33.

Dividends payable

Dividends payable to minority & F R R D ER R R FI
shareholders of subsidiaries

Ordinary share dividends payable JE A 3 i AR AR R

Other payables

Sales discount HETT

Guarantees and deposits REFEMES

Payables for purchase of construction
and fixed assets

Repair and maintenance expenses

After-sales expenses

Technology development expenses

Land facility fee and land premiums

Others

N TRAEEEEERBER

BIRgES

=p#

BT &
THAELE B K K

Hith

ol
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1~ B OF B AR 1 IH H RE R

(%)
32. ERA

30 June 2015
20156 H30H
(Unaudited)
(REER)

11,325,057.30
280,433,390.13

291,758,447.43

33. HtEAR

30 June 2015
20156 H30H
(Unaudited)
(REER)

1,158,374,133.99
796,573,614.45

531,870,500.90
313,560,667.35
71,732,174.01
45,653,356.93
30,215,979.33
815,730,967.89

3,763,711,394.85

As at 30 June 2015 and 31 December 2014, there were no other

payables that are individually significant with an age of more than

one year.

31 December 2014
2014%F12A31H
(Audited)
(R&ER)

34,772,276.45

34,772,276.45

31 December 2014
201412 A31H
(Audited)
(g&ER)

1,330,329,343.94
1,008,489,479.46

618,008,074.25
226,867,556.88
44,894,445.90
91,959,776.93
30,752,179.33
884,518,828.82

4,235,819,685.51

201546 308 &%2014412 A31
A ERE-FUALNERSEEK

EE A BT 5R o
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30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2015F6 A30H (AR ¥T)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. ~ & 0f i % e & £ IH H 51 #
Statements (Continued) (74)

3. —FREBNERDERE

34. Non-current liabilities due within one year

30 June 2015

31 December 2014

20156 A30H 2014%12H31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(RE&HFER) &)

—FRIHNRHER

Long-term borrowings due within

one year 2,441,470,392.32 2,745,527,321.20
Long-term payable due within one year —F A E| #i#) K HA & {3 2,237,203,544.70 2,888,597,664.00
Medium-term notes due within one year — & A Z|8i &) BiZE 4% 799,188,664.74 —(NoteiT)

5,477,862,601.76 5,634,124,985.20

Long term borrowings due within one  HrF » —F RE| R EE K
year include:
Credit loans L EEE

PERMER

75,568,900.00
2,365,901,492.32

149,112,000.00

Guaranteed loans 2,596,415,321.20

Note: As at 30 June 2015, balance of medium-term notes due within one year

are listed as follows:

i

M2015F6 A308 @+ —FAEIHHF
MR BREIROT ¢

Issuing Atthe beginning  Accrued interest Repaid this Atthe end

Face value date Bond period  Issued amount of period this period Amortisation period of period

A BfTES BfeH BOBE  AEHRAS b1t rHEE BRBE

Medium-term note hERE 400,000,000.00 2013-3-21 398,800,000.00 399,417,545.31  10,360,000.00 173,401.30 - 399,590,946.61

Medium-term note PEZE 400,000,000.00 2013-5-21 398,800,000.00  399,420,514.97  10,060,000.00 177,203.16 - 399,597,718.13

Total At 800,000,000.00 798,838,060.28  20,420,000.00 350,604.46 - 799,188,664.74
(1) Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company, (1) ARRZFRAAKAERTEFRA

registered at the National Association of Financial Market Institutional
Investors in February 2013 for issuing medium-term notes in a registered
amount of RMB1.4 billion to be issued in two tranches. The handling fee
was 0.3%. The first tranche, in an aggregate amount of RMBO0.4 billion,
was issued on 21 March 2013. Its maturity period was 3 years, with a
coupon rate of 5.18%. Interest was payable every 12 months. The second
tranche of RMBO.4 billion was issued on 21 May 2013 with a maturity
period of 3 years. The coupon rate was 5.03% with interest payable every
12 months.

AR2013F2 AR BRITR ISR
SEheaMBETPEREE - M
CHEAANREI4EBLT FEEXA
FHZ= " DEARET - F—ARR
2013F3A21B%1T - @EAARE
AfE - BEHHRAIF  BEMERA
5.18% ' HEBHEEA12MEA - £=X
M2013F5A21B#E1T  @BAAR
¥alEr  BHFHRAIF  EEAME
75.03% - RHEIEER12MEA -
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V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. - & 0f i % it & £ HIH H 5 #
Statements (Continued) (74)
35. Other current liabilities 35. HttRB A E

30 June 2015 31 December 2014
20156 A30H 2014%12831H

(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (&&'EZ)
Product quality assurance deposit EnSE2RES 1,044,402,428.11 1,131,513,641.97
Deferred income REW = (—FREEEHB D)
(portion due within one year) 555,867,069.00 634,648,786.80
Others =) 424,373,896.65 716,202,500.36
2,024,643,393.76 2,482,364,929.13
36. Long-term borrowings 36. REAER

30 June 2015 31 December 2014
20156 H30H 2014912 A831H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (TE%)
Guaranteed loans EIRER 5,077,565,128.40 5,493,684,669.00
Credit loans ERE® 279,343,873.80 301,987,115.20
Pledge loans BHER 1,360,240,200.00 1,476,208,800.00
6,717,149,202.20 7,271,880,584.20
As at 30 June 2015, the above loans carried interest at rates ranging M20159F6 308 + Ll fg sk F F
from 1.730% to 5.535% (31 December 2014: 1.730% to 5.535%) R A1.730%~5.535% (201412 A

per annum. 31H :1.730%~5.535%) °
As at 30 June 2015, long-term borrowings include an amount of R20156 5308 » REIEZFET
EUR1,018,000,000.00 (31 December 2014: EUR1,038,000,000.00) 1,018,000,000.00 7T (20144 12 A
which was provided by the Company to Weichai Power (Hong 31H : BJr1,038,000,000.007T) &
Kong) International Development Co., Ltd. as a guarantee for its AN RHERGHED N (FHE)
special borrowings from a bank for overseas acquisition, to invest BIBR 3R AR AR AR E ARSI
in KION Group AG and Linde Hydraulics GmbH & Co. KG. Among WEEREEIRER - ARKREKION
others, EUR308,000,000.00 will be due within one year and has GROUP AGHAIMEBRIEEZ  H
been re-classified as non-current liabilities due within one year. h B 7£308,000,000.00 7T # £ — 4

WNEH  EESBRE-FRIHNFE
mEBaE -
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) FPHS i R M 5 (48
30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2015F6A30H (A E¥T)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. ~ & 0f i % e & £ IH H 51 #

Statements (Continued) (%)
36. Long-term borrowings (Continued) 36. REFERK (&)
In addition, among the long-term borrowings, RMB200,000,000.00 ooy - KR BB R AR K
(31 December 2014: RMB200,000,000.00) represented the financial 200,000,000.007T (2014412 A 31
guarantee in respect of the loan business of Shaanxi Heavy-duty H: AR#¥200,000,000.007T) &%
Motor Company Limited, a subsidiary of the Company, granted to DIRIT(FR)BRAB AL DTAAR
the Export-Import Bank of China from the Xi‘an branch of the Bank NBIZ FARIPRAERNTEER R A
of East Asia (China) Limited, which will mature in September 2016. B ENEBF R E MR R4S T B
HOERTT - ZERK 201649 A 5
HA o
37. Bonds payable 37. BEfHES

30 June 2015 31 December 2014
2015%6H30H 201412 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (§&ER)

Medium-term notes hHEIZE R 4,726,183,850.47 5,834,582,252.32

As at 30 June 2015, balance of bonds payable are listed as follows: MN2015F6 8300 @ FER{ESLEET
I UNNE
At the beginning  Accrued interest Repaid At the end

Face value Issuing date Bond period Issued amount of period this period Amortisation this period of period

A LG E5HR §7e8 ROBE  REHEAR FRRRE KHRE HRBE

Medium-term note ki34 1,400,000,000.00 2011-7-28 5% 1,397,340,000.00 1,398219,228.23  39,550,000.00 1,364,664.48 - 1,399,583,892.71
Medium-term note hERE 3,303,755,294.40 2013-2-6 T 3,298672,593.95 3,637,52496381  105,037,170.40  (310,925,006.05) - 3,326,599,957.76

Total At 4,703,755,294.40 5,035,744,192.04  144,587,170.40  (309,560,341.57) - 4,726,183,85047




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)

37. Bonds payable (Continued)
As at 31 December 2014, balance of bonds payable are listed as

Interim Report 2015 FRHEAZRE

5 i R M 5 (48
20156 H308 (A R¥T)

o~ B B R T BIH H kR

(%)

37. BE4EZ(R)

MN2014512 8318 @ ERIES48

follows: FIREAT
Business combination
not involving entities
At the beginning under common ~ Accrued interest
Face value Issuing date Bond period Issued amount of year control this year Amortisation Repaid thisyear ~ Attheendof year  Note
#5-24T
i 2fiR% EXER E:A0E EgE bEalk FEHRAE TaEES HERE ErpE

Medunemnoe  SHER LA0000000 NN Syes® 19000000 13648333 - W00 910510 1208 ()

Medunemnoe  SEEE 10000000 2068M  Syeas® 2805000000 129727241474 S oMM 275526 (130000000 =)

Medunemnoe  HEEE MO0 W32 jsE  BEAON0N  H90BET0 - 170m M3 WIS ()

Medmiemnoe  SHER MENN0 5 dys®  BEAON0N  990534I6E - ;im0 70928 W5y ()

Medunemnoe  SHER BTHNM0 B TysE 32BENSH% L0OMEE  UBMSIUT (8IS0 AR 0

Tot A3 680375529040 JBEREITE 039650 IB6SIATD  (B9SG0204 (130000000000 58RI

(1)  The Company registered at the National Association of (1) ARFHR2009F8 AEHF BIR
Financial Market Institutional Investors in August 2009 THMSR SEngTMET
for issuing medium-term notes in a registered amount of FHER  ZMeBEAARK
RMB2.7 billion to be issued in two tranches. The handling 278t - FEBXATHZ
fee was 0.3%. The first tranche, in an aggregate amount of = OMRELT o BE—RR
RMB1.3 billion, was issued on 24 August 2009. Its maturity 200958 H24H%ETT - &% A
period was 5 years, with a coupon rate of 4.95%. Interest ARBI3ERL  EFHRAS
was payable every 12 months. This tranche was due in 2014 F o EAANEREL495% ' T8
and has been repaid. The second tranche of RMB1.4 billion HEB12EA  ZEEHFER
was issued on 28 July 2011 with a maturity period of 5 years. 2014 F BB EEE - FZR
The coupon rate was 5.65% with interest payable every 12 201167 H288 81T - &%
months. BARBI14AET  BEHHRA

59 REAMEF565% 0
BEARA12MEA -

(2) Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the (2) ARARZFRARIRAERS
Company, registered at the National Association of Financial BRAANR2013F2HEF
Market Institutional Investors in February 2013 for issuing RITREITIS R 5 g e it 3
medium-term notes in a registered amount of RMB1.4 billion THEBEE ZMeEAAR
to be issued in two tranches. The handling fee was 0.3%. The B14E L FEBEAETH
first tranche, in an aggregate amount of RMBO0.4 billion, was 2= DMIRET o BE—IRR
issued on 21 March 2013. Its maturity period was 3 years, 20133 A218%1T €8 A
with a coupon rate of 5.18%. Interest was payable every 12 ARB4BIT  BEFHRAES3
months. The second tranche of RMB0.4 billion was issued on F EEMNZERAR518% ' &
21 May 2013 with a maturity period of 3 years. The coupon AR AB12MEA - 8 ZIRM2013
rate was 5.03% with interest payable every 12 months.The F5A21BET 2BEARAR
two tranches will mature on 21 March 2016 and 21 May WAl  BEHRHRR3IF R
2016 respectively. HFEAB503% F NEHEER

1288 - ZMEREFE D BIR
20163 A21HM201645A
21HE8 -

(3) Kion Group AG, a subsidiary of the Company, issued (3) ARAlZFAAKION GROUP

medium-term notes in a registered amount of EUR450 million
in Europe in February 2013. Its maturity period was 7 years,
with a coupon rate of 6.75%. The interest was payable every
6 months.

AG * R20134F 2 A 7 B 3
THMES B4 5B ITH P
HEE ZEEHMEAE6.75%
BEHBRAETE  HEHEERA6
@A -
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

B D RHBRA A

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
38. Long-term payables

39.

Government grants for national debt
projects
Rental payable for sale and leaseback

Finance lease

B {578 B BUF &K

ENERERDEER
BMEHEE

Other financial liabilities EferaE
Long-term payroll payable

Defined benefit obligations HEXZ@EB
Long-term severance benefits REBHRB A
Cash-settled share-based payments LR & EMRH
Other long-term payroll payable H fth = HA B T % B

Defined benefit obligations

The Group operates defined benefit schemes for its staff in some

overseas subsidiaries who meet conditions. The scheme requires

that contribution be made to an independently administered fund.

Under the scheme, staff are entitled to enjoy retirement benefit

provided for under defined benefit of the plans.

RS i 25 BT 5 (%)
20156 A30H (A R#¥T)

T~ B OF B R R IH H RE R

(%)
38. REAEMNR

30 June 2015
20156 H30H
(Unaudited)
(REER)

5,500,000.00
3,825,153,450.10
2,058,593,014.60
6,622,583.60

5,895,869,048.30

31 December 2014
2014912 A31H
(Audited)
(R&ER)

5,500,000.00
3,442,198,330.80
1,727,067,373.20
10,840,442.40

5,185,606,146.40

39. R T &M

30 June 2015
20156 HA30H
(Unaudited)
(REER)

5,935,434,142.75
119,455,512.65
62,330,602.70
239,041,749.72

6,356,262,007.82

RELmELS

31 December 2014
2014912 A31H
(Audited)
(g&EZ)

6,610,683,877.97
87,816,669.37
57,452,853.60
318,030,510.26

7,073,983,911.20

REEFLARINT RRIAT A GEEN
BTEFETREX @S - %aT 8
ERMBUEENESHUETER - &

BEBT

~ o BT AREXREX R

X ERRIRAEF

wI*



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)

39. Long-term payroll payable (Continued)
Defined benefit obligations (Continued)
The Group’s defined benefit scheme is one requiring contribution
prior to termination of service. The scheme requires that
contribution be made to an independently administered fund. The
scheme is administered by an independent trustee in the legal form
of a fund. The assets held under the fund is held separately with
assets of the Group. The trustee is responsible for the investment

strategies of the scheme.

The trustee assesses the level of capital of the scheme. The
assessment includes asset-liabilities matching strategies and
investment risk management strategies. The trustee determines the

amount to be deployed based on the result of its annual assessment.

The scheme is exposed to interest rate risk, risk of change of
anticipated age of beneficiaries of the pension, and risks of the

securities market.

The latest actuarial valuation of the assets under the scheme and
the present value of the defined benefit obligations are determined

by using the projected unit credit method.

The following table sets out the key actuarial assumptions used as

at the balance sheet date:

Interim Report 2015 FRHEAZRE

RS i 25 BT 5 (%)
20156 A30H (A R#T)

B 0 B A B AR
i

39.

Discount rate (%) PR (%)
Expected growth rate of future pension
expenses (%)

Expected rate of salary increment (%)  JE 2% £ 18 & %= (%)

BHIRBERE ERIERE(%)

The actuarial valuation illustrates that the market value of assets
under the scheme is RMB4,510,783,723.82.

RBEABIHHER)
REXEET (HF)

AR B R R A B R BB ATH K
RINSHE - ZABIBERABIEE
MESHFRA - R BUES BE
BRR YRBURRARGTER
EREMAERSEENEEEES
Bl o RIEARERE L ENRER

& o

XHRABZENESKYF - ZEZ
BREEE-RBCRRBENRERR
BERE - XEARBFEEZNG

RREEHIFH -

ZATBIZ A RER - RARER AR
RS EBERME ST SRR

240
i —

ZATEBEERNRIOIBE
BEBHREFEAEHIBEETE
JEWETE ©

L HEMRER
B

TRABEABROFERN LB
HERE

30 June 2015
20156 H30H

31 December 2014
2014912 831H

2.40%-3.65% 2.95%-4.40%

0.48%-3.53%
2.14%-4.16%

0.48%-3.53%
2.44%-4.16%

BEHEBRTTIEENTMEAAR
#4,510,783,723.827T °
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

B D RHBRA A

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)

39. Long-term payroll payable (Continued)
Defined benefit obligations (Continued)

Scheme recognized in the income statement is set out below:

PR 5 3 M R (4)

201564308 (A EB¥T)

T SO BRI EIEH R
(74)

39. REIEBEMNBIHM(R)
REX & (F)
EFRBRTEROBRIBNT

January-June 2015
2015%1-6 8
(Unaudited)

(REER)

Current cost of service
Historical cost of service
Interest expenses

2 B IR A AR
BERBERA
M S &M

134,826,713.22

63,046,047.82

Net amount of the cost of post-
employment benefit

BB ENRARE

197,872,761.04

Credited to cost of sales

Credited to distribution and selling
expenses

Credited to general and administrative
expenses

Credited to financial expenses

FFABERA
SRAEER

AFFAEEER

SFAMBER

81,097,766.46

21,667,664.60

32,061,282.16
63,046,047.82

197,872,761.04

The change in present value of defined benefit scheme obligations

are as follows:

Bt

RE X T

January-June 2015
2015%1-6 8
(Unaudited)

(REER)

Opening balance
Business combinations not involving
entities under common control
Cost of services
Interest expenses
Benefits paid
Actuarial gains/(losses)
Contribution from employers
Exchange differences of
overseas benefit schemes
Others

HVIER A

JER—ZEHI THRES G

AR# A AR

MEER
EEENELEE
BEMNE(BX)
BEHF
BIMEAETEIE N =8

Lfth

N

10,997,112,057.69

134,826,713.22

131,353,539.09
(132,642,765.14)
(308,526,377.20)

(863,915,517.49)
314,923,085.90

Closing balance

10,273,130,736.07

2014
20144
(Audited)
(K5 H%)

115,466,971.29
19,384,560.00
95,881,939.77

230,733,471.06

87,224,182.74

21,091,892.40

26,535,456.15
95,881,939.77

230,733,471.06

IZBREZLSHIAT :

2014
20144
(Audited)
(&&= %)

661,899,026.85

9,187,804,281.60
134,851,531.29
186,752,507.36
(138,612,473.26)
1,301,249,554.94
176,905.88

35,599,244.23
(372,608,521.20)

10,997,112,057.69




30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

Statements (Continued)

39. Long-term payroll payable (Continued)

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Defined benefit obligations (Continued)

Interim Report 2015 AR HARE

S5 e R WA R (A

201564308 (A E¥T)

1~ B OF B AR 1 IH H RE R

(A1)
REENB M)
REE A E ()

REXDAEBRPNAENEELAE

39.

The change in defined benefit obligations and the change in fair

value of assets under the scheme are as follows:

January to June 2015

Present value of

EEFHMT

20154 1-6 A

defined benefit Fair value of
scheme assets under Net liabilities/
(Unaudited) obligations the scheme (Net assets)
(RE&ER) REZ 58 HEEE
Defined benefit scheme REX AT E EXERE AREE FEE/(FEE)
Opening balance P 10,997,112,057.69 (4,547,670,440.92) 6,449,441,616.77
Taken to profit or loss in FAEHER
the current period
Cost of services PR A 134,826,713.22 - 134,826,713.22
Net interest F 8558 131,353,539.09 (68,307,491.27) 63,046,047.82
Credited to other comprehensive SFAEMER A W
income
Actuarial gains BEFG (308,526,377.20) (308,526,377.20)
Return on assets under the scheme (net 5t &1 & & BIH (3 A
of amount included in net interest) T B BEABIN) - 56,182,042.20 56,182,042.20
Benefits paid BX MR (132,642,765.14) 80,769,414.30 (51,873,350.84)
Contribution from employers BE&F - (32,405,318.30) (32,405,318.30)
Other changes Hin &g (548,992,431.59) 648,070.17 (548,344,361.42)
Closing balance HREAE 10,273,130,736.07 (4,510,783,723.82) 5,762,347,012.25(%)

155

2015F 1-6 ATEI E EME R B HR4a
st AR56,182,042.207C ©

The effective return on assets under the scheme from January to
June 2015 amounted, in aggregate, to RMB56,182,042.20.

Note: As at 30 June 2015, an aggregate amount of RMB173,087,130.50 under i
the scheme assets was included in other non-current assets.

R2015F6 A30B 81 EE+ B Hat
AR#173,087,130.50 07 H b IER
BEERIZH -
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Business combinations not involving
entities under common control
Taken to profit or loss in the current

period
Cost of services

Net interest

Credited to other comprehensive income

Actuarial gains

Return on assets under the scheme (net of

amount included in net interest)
Benefits paid
Contribution from employers

Other changes

FR—ZHITREEH

FPAEHES

Pl 75 A A<
EAIRSOE2-]
s AH AR Y
BENF
BB ER®RGGIA
FEFEBRIN)
B X EE T
Ex&EF

9,187,804,281.60

134,851,531.29
186,752,507.36

1,301,249,554.94

(138,612,473.26)
176,905.88
(337,009,276.97)

(4,508,326,764.00)

(90,870,567.59)

(242,813,067.40)
77,285,294.76

(13,689,364.60)
286,155,834.53

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) W5 R B 5 ()
30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2015F6HA30H (AR % T)
V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial T ~ & /f I % #t 3% - 206 H 51
Statements (Continued) (%)
39. Long-term payroll payable (Continued) 39. REAEFRBE T H M (&)
Defined benefit obligations (Continued) HETHERRE)
The change in defined benefit obligations and the change in fair HESXHRBGEHNAZNEELARLE
value of assets under the scheme are as follows (Continued): BB T (&) :
2014 20144
Present value of Fair value of
defined benefit assets under Net liabilities/
(Audited) scheme obligations the scheme (Net assets)
(&%) FEX AT E HEEE
Defined benefit scheme REZmatal E%RE DREE FEE/(FEE)
Opening balance FHERTR 661,899,026.85 (55,411,806.62)  606,487,220.23

4,679,477,517.60

134,851,531.29
95,881,939.77

1,301,249,554.94

(242,813,067.40)
(61,327,178.50)
(13,512,458.72)
(50,853,442.44)

Closing balance

FAREHE

10,997,112,057.69

(4,547,670,440.92)

6,449,441,616.77




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)
40. Special payables

January —June 2015

(Unaudited)
(REER)

Interest subsidy for liquid fund LU BERTNRE
granted by provincial finance office 44 &85 5

National debt special fund - HEEEEs S8
establishment of key industry EFERENE ks
revitalization and technological BEER

renovation projects

At period-
beginning

MAGE

23,000,000.00

20,000,000.00

43,000,000.00

Interim Report 2015 AR HARE

PO 5 i 3 M R (4)
201564308 (A E¥T)

ho AU R R IE H R
(74)
40. EIHENR

2015 1-6 A

Increase during  Decrease during

the period the period At period-end
REEM XHED HRGBE

23,000,000.00

20,000,000.00

43,000,000.00

2014 20144
At year- Increase during Decrease during

(Audited) beginning the year the year At year-end
(&%) FORE AREHM KERD FRBE
Interest subsidy for liquid fund granted % Bf Th BB B¢+ #) 7 &)

by provincial finance office BeEFAE 23,000,000.00 - - 23,000,000.00
National debt special fund - BEERES-EH

establishment of key industry EEREMB M SE

revitalization and technological HEER

renovation projects 30,000,000.00 - (10,000,000.00) 20,000,000.00

53,000,000.00 - (10,000,000.00) 43,000,000.00
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) FPHS i R M 5 (48
30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2015F6A30H (A E¥T)
V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial # - & f B % #i 38 3= B IH H 5i B
Statements (Continued) (%)
41. Accruals and provisions 41. FEFFEE
January — June 2015 2015 1-6 H

42.

Increase Decrease Adjustment of
Opening during during exchange Closing
(Unaudited) Balance the period the period T EES balance
(REER) Ik REEM 8- ERZERE HABE
Product quality assurance  EREERESE
deposit 397,271,646.00 72,097,215.00 179,077,725.20 (22,557,393.00) 267,733,742.80
Pending litigation RAFFAR - 22,268,876.00 13,831.60 (298,844.00) 21,956,200.40
Guarantee provided to HOMERER
external parties 15,358,536.00 6,908,884.20 8,326,623.20 (949,816.10 12,990,980.90
Debt restraining BEHER - 19,827,598.60 - (131,595.30 19,696,003.30
Losses in contract EiEAR 4,965,429.60 - 55,326.40 (389,709.00 4,520,394.20
Others Hit 26,653,770.00 57,159,087.00 17,303,331.60 (929,460.00 65,580,065.40
444,249,381.60 178,261,660.80 204,776,838.00 (25,256,817.40) 392,477,387.00
2014 20144
Business
combinations
not involving Increase Decrease
Opening entities under during during Exchange rate Closing
(Audited) balance  common control the year the year adjustment balance
FR—EHT
(B%F%) FNEE REAH REEM RERD EX@E FREE
Product quality assurance ~ ERESRES
deposit - 371,124,856.80 56,916,050.40 37,598,590.80 6,829,329.60  397,271,646.00
Guarantee provided to MR ER
external parties - 16,834,744.80 7,798,557.60 8,357,727.60 (917,038.80)  15,358,536.00
Losses in contract BEAR - - 4,965,429.60 - - 4,965,429.60
Others Hit - 20,167,398.00 6,344,715.60 - 14165640  26,653,770.00
- 40812699960  76,024,753.20  45,956,318.40 6,053,947.20  444,249,381.60
Deferred income 42. EEW =
30 June 2015 31 December 2014
2015%6H30H 201412 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REEX) (&%)
Government grant AT 48 Bh 893,065,396.42 856,318,609.33

Deferred income of
“sales with risk” business
Deferred income of sale and
leaseback sub-leases

R R 8H 6 R 2 R W

SRR BEHERE ZIEER S

Deferred income of forklift truck services X E R 75 % & v i iE U 25

Others

Hitb

259,895,186.90

710,588,106.50
177,257,159.80
20,101,327.39

2,060,907,177.01

271,421,118.00

675,477,360.00
167,773,366.80
12,771,442 .80

1,983,761,896.93
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS i R M 5 (48
30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2015F6H30H (A E¥T)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. - & f I % e & £ HIH H 51 #

Statements (Continued) (#)
42. Deferred income (Continued) 42, EREW S (88)
As at 30 June 2015, the liability items related to government grant 20156 A308 - HRBITEBIH
are as follows: BEBEBWNT :
Credited to
non-operating
Opening Increase during income during Related to
(Unaudited) balance the period the period Closing balance assetsfincome
REGA REE/
(REER) HYLH R 3N HARE W HE
Land-related government S miEER Related to assets
grant BT B 704,862,516.67 45,279,700.01 (5,138,850.70) 745,003,365.98 HEERE
Special funds for industry ~ EZIRBEAMEM
revitalization and EHEG Related to assets
technological renovation 123,366,395.81 1,670,000.00 (4,942,491.67) 120,093,904.14 HEERE

Special assistance fund EERHES Related to assets
11,425,779.55 (70,000.01) 11,355,779.54 EEERH

National debt special fund ~ EIEZIEES Related to assets
13,945,419.59 13,945,419.59 HEEHE

Others Hity Related to assets
2,718,497.11 - (51,570.54) 2,666,927.17 EEEH

856,318,609.33 46,949,700.01 (10,202,912.92) 893,065,396.42

As at 31 December 2014, the liability items related to government MR2014F 128318 - FRBIFHE
grant are as follows: WEREEBEREWT
Credited to
non-operating
Increase during income during Related to
(Audited) Opening balance the year the year Closing balance assetsfincome
REFA HEE/
(EER) HeE REHE EEIMIA HRHE izl
Land-related government R el Related to assets
grant B8 526,020,218.96 188,612,566.67 (9,770,268.96) 704,862,516.67 HEERR
Special funds for industry EXRANKS
revitalization and EFEES Related to assets
technological renovation 94,614,132.02 35,768,390.28 (7,016,126.49) 123,366,395.81 HEERE
Special assistance fund EEEHES Related to assets
1,747,083.33 10,012,196.25 (333,500.03) 11,425,779.55 HEERS
National debt special fund BAEEEES Related to assets
15,937,622.39 - (1992,202.80) 13,945,419.59 HEEE
Others Hity Related to assets
2,821,638.79 - (103,141.08) 2,718,497.71 HEERS

641,140,695.49 234,393,153.20 (19,215,239.36) 856,318,609.33
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) FPHS i R M 5 (48
30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2015F6A30H (A E¥T)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. ~ & 0f i % e & £ IH H 51 #

Statements (Continued) (%)
43. Share capital 43. B
January — June 2015 2015 1-6 H
Increase
(decrease) of
shares in
Opening balance current period Closing balance
HARE K OH) R Y HASRE
(Unaudited) No. of shares Percentage Others No. of shares Percentage
(REER) BE E (%) Hitr RE EL B (%)
| Restricted shares - BRERERN
State-owned legal person shares Bl E A# 410,632,752.00 410,632,752.00
Qther domestic shares EtmEER 56,832,000.00 56,832,000.00
Incl: Domestic non-state-owned Ed B3RS
legal person shares EARR
Domestic natural person BRBAA
shares BR 56,832,000.00 ; 56,832,000.00
Overseas shares BIMR = -
Incl: Overseas legal person shares ~ E & : B5hEA
filk
Overseas natural person EHERA
shares 51
467,464,752.00 467,464,752.00
Il Non-restricted shares Z. BREEERS
RMB ordinary Shares ARBLER 1,046,084,887.00 1,046,084,887.00
Domestic listed foreign shares BRETRINER = =
Overseas listed foreign shares RNk op(S- Tl 485,760,000.00 485,760,000.00

1,531,844,887.00 1,531,844,887.00

Ill. Total no. of shares

Rir g 1,999,309,639.00 1,999,309,639.00
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS i R M 5 (48

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20156 H30H (A E#or)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial 1o ~ & /f o % #t 3% - 206 H 51
Statements (Continued) (%)

43. Share capital (Continued) 43. B (&)

2014 20144
Increase
(decrease) of
shares in
Opening balance current period Closing balance
BosE RHE O B & HARsE
(Audited) No. of shares Percentage Others No. of shares Percentage
(&%) Tk EL (%) Hih & £ A(%)
| Restricted shares - BREREHKH
State-owned legal person shares BHEANER 427,876,464.00 21.40 (17,243,712.00)  410,632,752.00 20.54
Other domestic shares ENERR 114,624,000.00 573 (57,792,000.00) 56,832,000.00 2.84
Incl: Domestic non-state-owned Ee BR3EEA
legal person shares EAER 57,792,000.00 2.89 (57,792,000.00) - -
Domestic natural BRERA
person shares R 56,832,000.00 2.84 - 56,832,000.00 284
Overseas shares BINFR - - - - -
Incl: Overseas legal person shares Heb o BNEA
i - - - - =
Overseas natural person shares BHERA
filk - - - - =
542,500,464.00 21.13 (75,035,712.00)  467,464,752.00 23.38
Il Non-restricted shares . BRERHRR
RMB ordinary Shares ARELER 971,049,175.00 4857 75,035,712.00  1,046,084,887.00 5232
Domestic listed foreign shares BR ETIRANE R = = - - |
Overseas listed foreign shares BN ETIEVERR  485,760,000.00 2430 - 485,760,000.00 24.30
1,456,809,175.00 72.87 75,035,712.00  1,531,844,887.00 76.62
lll. Total no. of shares = By 1,999,309,639.00 100.00 - 1,999,309,639.00 100.00
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RS i 25 BT 5 (%)
20156 A30H (A R#¥T)

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial 7 - & 0F b % it 3% £ EIH H 51 B
Statements (Continued) (%)
44, Capital reserve 44, EXNTE
January — June 2015 20155 1-6 A

Opening Increase during  Decrease during

(Unaudited) balance the period the period Closing balance
(RE&ER) BARE R XHHD HRRE
Capital reserve BRQTE 1,288,252,938.51 21,864,776.32  (1,100,217,449.41) 209,900,265.42
2014 20144
Opening Increase during Decrease during

(Audited) balance the year the year Closing balance
(BER) FMHE REEM KERD ERBE
Capital reserve BALE 758,458,887.62 632,905,352.67 (103,111,301.78)  1,288,252,938.51

In 2015, the Company acquired minority interests from Shandong
Synergy Oil Co., Ltd., a subsidiary, and its capital reserve increased
with share premium of RMB21,567,842.07. For other increase in
capital reserve arising from equity-settled share-based payment,
please refer to Note XI. Share-based Payment. During the period, as
a result of the Company’s acquisition of 4.95% minority interests
in KION GROUP AG, the capital reserve of the Company reduced by
RMB1,100,217,449.41.

In 2014, following the Company’s merger with KION GROUP AG,
the previously-held put options in relation to minority interests
in Linde Hydraulics with carrying amount of approximately
RMB632,905,352.67 were reversed. And the indirect acquisition
of minority interests in Linde Hydraulics, representing 30%
shares of Linde Hydraulics, through the acquisition of KION
GROUP AG, resulted in the decrease in other capital reserve of
RMB107,603,890.24.

20154 - AR AU F Q& BUE
mABRRAREE NERAERA
HEARY21,567,842.0770 ; HEH
HEEORMIZNIIRHERAEEM
g - 2EME+— RO -
NEFA N BB EKION GROUP AG
4.95% M D ERRBRER D ERRTE
AR#1,100,217,449 417T °

20144 - RAF&EPKION GROUP
AGHE B [R5 B ) M2 &R E D 8K
REHEMENEDEENARE
632,905,352.67 7t : I i@ @ W 15
KION GROUP AGRIEES T ¥ iz
R ) D BUR R A 2 (6 B IR B IR
MEI30% ) EHEME R AER D A
R#107,603,890.247T °
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS i R M 5 (48
30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20156 H30H (A E#or)
V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial # - & 0f B % #i 38 3= B IH H 5E B
Statements (Continued) (%)
45. Other comprehensive income 45. HniR & W=
Other comprehensive income, on a cumulative basis, attributable to EEABRTPEBEREAFMEME
parent as shown in balance sheet is as follows: Bl RETeREE -

1 January 2014 Increase/Decrease 31 December 2014 Increase/Decrease 30 June 2015
201451818 ERE 20145128318 el 201556308
Changes arising from re- B ERENS
measuring net assets or HE EELEn
net liabilties of defined FEERY
benefit plan 9,284,134.70 (408,684,348.84) (399,400,214.14) 101,476,808.22 (297,923,405.92)
Share of investee’s other BRE MERRE
comprehensive income BUTHENH
notto bereclassified into ~ ERRMEM
profit or loss using the FEhE®
equity method ZEMNE (7,196,756.00) (162,692,384.76) (169,889,140.76) - (169,889,140.76)
Share of investee’s other ERiTERRE
comprehensive income BRNERENR
to be reclassified into EBERNAMD
profit or loss using the el
equity method ZENME (38,234,210.00) 64,610,512.58 26,376,302.58 (87,328.44) 26,288,974.14
Change of fair value of HEESRER
available-for-sale MBEEED
financial assets 10,000,000.00 46,400,000.00 56,400,000.00 102,800,000.00 159,200,000.00
Effective portion of cashflow B4 HEEHH
from hedging BEuEs - (6,420,300.47) (6,420,300.47) (19,449,393.93) (25,869,694.40)
Exchange differences on MER B
foreign currency translation 4xE 9,685,893.09 2,877,656.62 12,563,549.71 (205,029,277.02) (192,465,727.31)
Relevant income tax effect RENMEHTE (1,500,000.00) 93,383,900.39 91,883,900.39 (42,573,937.78) 49,309,962.61
(17,960,938.21) (370,524,964.48) (388,485,902.69) (62,863,128.95) (451,349,031.64)
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)

45. Other comprehensive income (Continued)

The current amount of other comprehensive income attributable to

the parent on the statement of profit or loss:

January —June 2015

PR 5 3 M R (4)
201564308 (A EB¥T)

T A ORI B ik EEIEH

45. Hibéira Wz (4E)

MEXRPRENERANEMD
HmEHRAR

=l
A

20159 1-6 A

Amount

Amount
before tax Income Tax

(Unaudited)
(RigzER)
Other comprehensive income not to be ~ LAE NaEE D IBEB R
reclassified into profit or loss Hip 4R b e
Changes arising from re-measuring BN EREXHAEFEER
net assets or net liabilities of FEENEF
defined benefit plan

Share of investee’s other comprehensive
income not to be reclassified into

Rz TERREEM T8
profit or loss using the equity method

ENBERENEMES
BEFZENNE

Other comprehensive income to be

NEBENBERRENEMLEAR
reclassified into profit or loss &

Share of investee’s other comprehensive
income be reclassified into profit or

loss using the equity method

R TERRE EUARS
BB RENALEAR

KanmZENNME
Less: Amount recognised in other BRI EE A B MRS Wia E
comprehensive income in previous #ABR

period and recognised in profit or
loss in current period

Change of fair value of

available-for-sale financial assets

THUELHEER A RELD

Effective portion of cashflow

Rens8EHNERHS
from hedging

Less: Amount recognised in other B REET AR MRS i E
#AER

comprehensive income in previous

period and recognised in profit or
loss in current period

Exchange differences on

NERRFEZR

foreign currency translation

(51,612,321.48)

(32,162,927.55)

(19,449,393.93)

(20,289,191.17)

BA&®

after tax

Fri& %t HEeH

101,476,808.22 30,807,088.10 70,669,720.12

(87,328.44)

(87,328.44)

(87,328.44) (87,328.44)

102,800,000.00

15,420,000.00 87,380,000.00

(9,694,264.49) (41,918,056.99)

(6,041,114.17) (PR VAR L))

(3,653,150.32) (15,796,243.61)

(205,029,277.02)

(205,029,277.02)

42,573,937.78 (62,863,128.95)

>N ﬁf
(%)

L
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS i R M 5 (48
30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20156 H30H (A E#or)
V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial 1o ~ & /f o % #t 3% - 206 H 51
Statements (Continued) (%)
45. Other comprehensive income (Continued) 45. HittéR& W (&)
The current amount of other comprehensive income attributable to MEXRPHFERT QR EAMERE K
the parent on the statement of profit or loss: (Continued) mEHRAER (&)
January — June 2014 2014@1-6)3
Amount Amount
(Unaudited) before tax Income Tax after tax
(RigER) Uik [k PR K Eax
Other comprehensive income not to be NEPEENBEBENEMES
reclassified into profit or loss in W&
subsequent periods
Changes arising from re-measuring net EFHERTXaEFaEN
assets or net liabilities of defined BENED
benefit plan - - -
Share of investee's other comprehensive A THERIREBU T EEN
income not to be reclassified into profit ~ EREFMEMEARERZEDN
or loss using the equity method " (162,692,384.76) - (162,692,384.76)

Other comprehensive income to be
reclassified into profit or loss
Share of investee’s other comprehensive
income to be reclassified into profit or
loss using the equity method
Less: Amount recognised in other
comprehensive income in previous

period and recognised in profit or

NEHENEEE
Wezs

BRETERREBAGBED
BEBERNEMGANETESR
ik

W AR AR A YR E e
AER

SHEMES

(3,074,941.98) =

(3,074,941.98)

loss in current period (40,864,388.98) - (40,864,388.98)
37,789,447.00 - 37,789,447.00

Exchange differences on foreign currency ~ HMERRITEEE
translation (35,445,286.48) - (35,445,286.48)
(160,348,224.24) - (160,348,224.24)
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
46. Special reserve

47.

January —June 2015

PR 5 3 M R (4)
201564308 (A EB¥T)

i~ é;ﬁ?ﬁa‘%%lﬁ%igiﬁ SR
(%)
46. EIERE
20154 1-6 A

At the Increase Decrease
beginning during during At the end
(Unaudited) of period the period the period of period
(REE&ERZ) HAERE R KHHD HRGBE
Safety funds TEEEE 51,026,772.11 31,138,547.57 (16,335,768.99) 65,829,550.69
2014 20144
Increase Decrease

At the beginning during during At the end
(Audited) of period the year the year of period
(FER) FHE REREM RERD FRHE
Safety funds ZEHEE 35,605,889.68 72,481,738.51 (57,060,856.08) 51,026,772.11
Surplus reserve 47. BN E
January — June 2015 20154 1-6 H

At the Decrease
beginning Increase during during At the end
(Unaudited) of period the period the period of period
(RigzERz) BANHE REEM XEED HREAEE
Statutory surplus reserve FEBBAE 3,051,742,591.19 - 3,051,742,591.19
2014 20144
At the Increase Decrease

beginning during during At the end
(Audited) of year the year the year of year
(&ER) FNRE REEM RERD FRBE
Statutory surplus reserve EERBLE 2,683,223,334.61 368,519,256.58 - 3,051,742,591.19

According to the provisions of Company Law and the articles of
association, the Company appropriated statutory surplus reserve
at 10% of the net profit. Where the accumulated amount of the
statutory surplus reserves reaches 50% or more of the Company’s

registered capital, additional appropriation is not needed.

BBEAREMARREROFE - A
RNENRFF BN 10% REUAE & %
PRS- ATRBLABRFAEAERA
AlGEME AR50% A EH - ATTER
HY °
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30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

Interim Report 2015 AR HARE

RS i 25 BT 5 (%)
20156 A30H (A R#T)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial —#. - & 0f I % e 3% £ IH H 5 #
Statements (Continued)
48. Retained earnings

(%)
48. K7 B X

January - June

2015 2014
2015%1-6A 20144
(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REEER) (')

Retained earnings at the end of
previous period/year

Adjustment during this period/year

Retained earnings at the beginning of
current period/year

Net profit attributable to shareholders
of the parent

Less: Appropriation of surplus reserves

Note V.47
Appropriation to shareholders

Appropriation of staff welfare fund

B FRRDBEFE
A KR 22,264,536,818.92

NERFAAE (22,075,141.42) =
NE S FARDEFE
A el el el 0El | 22,264,536,818.92

BN A BB R A F B
969,149,138.37 5,024,502,354.07

B R ABATE
MsEH ~ 47 = 368,519,256.58
HRRN DR 299,896,445.85 499,827,409.75
REBI#EES - 1,085,450.21

Retained earnings at the end of

B,/ FRRDBEHMNHE

period/year 27,066,784,607.55 26,419,607,056.45
On 30 June 2015, the 2014 profit distribution scheme was M2015F 6 A30H + XA R2014
considered and approved on the 2014 annual general meeting. FRRBAFEFAGEZBIR20145F
Based on the total share capital of 1,999,309,639 shares of the EMBIRFIR - UAQE LR
Company, the Company distributed to all shareholders a cash 1,999,309,639 K A E & - [ 2 &
dividend of RMB1.5 (including tax) for every 10 shares held (totaling PEERIZI0ORRZEIBSAF AR5
RMB299,896,445.85) and issued 10 shares to all shareholders by TT(EH) ARBERESBIARE
capitalisation of surplus reserve for every 10 shares held. As at the 299,896,445.857T © AR LA B A
date of approval for issuance of these financial statements, both HemME2ERES10REBZI0MK -
the distribution of cash dividend and the capitalisation of surplus BIEAMBREMERLEA RER

reserve had been completed.

FNEBRTE  BHRAEEREKRE
KEFEMK °

167
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
49. Revenue and Cost of Sales
Revenue includes turnover and other revenue that arise in the
course of the Group's ordinary activities. The Group’s turnover,
which arises from the principal activities of the Group, represents
the net invoiced values of goods sold, after allowances for returns,
trade discounts and the value of services rendered; and gross rental

income received and receivable from investment properties.

PR 5 3 M R (4)
201564308 (A EB¥T)

T~ B OF B R R IH H RE R

(%)

49. EEW AR KA
WABEAEEE LB BRTES
MAEBERHEMRA - REEAEE
BRI REL NS LFERFANRE

g BmESm-

P 12 AR 75 0 (B 1B A

NGB EED W U E & I

NHEE »

January-June 2015 January-June 2014

2015%1-6 A 201451-6 8

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

(REER) (REER)
Revenue Revenue Cost
KA A L'ON AR

Revenue from principal FeEB

operations 35,652,402,920.85  27,314,875,631.89 [EEYRELFIAMELAN 25,997,030,433.26
Other revenue Hib %% 802,856,947.83 714,069,152.77 1,273,013,232.21 1,146,769,296.54

36,455,259,868.68

The revenue is listed as follows:

28,028,944,784.66

34,111,434,568.32

27,143,799,729.80

BERWATIRMT

January-June 2015
2015%1-6A
(Unaudited)

(RBER)

28,019,213,155.25
7,633,189,765.60

35,652,402,920.85

Revenue from principal operations FEEBUA
Sales of goods and others B 7 an S HoAth
Forklift trucks services XERB

Other revenue HmZEBKA
Sales of materials SHE MR
Sales of power HEB S
Lease income HERA
Others Eh

465,039,233.16
17,780,467.40
77,932,128.14
242,105,119.13

802,856,947.83

36,455,259,868.68

January-June 2014
2014 1-6 A
(Unaudited)
(REER)

32,838,421,336.11

32,838,421,336.11

848,565,475.14
21,072,928.41
36,084,272.17
367,290,556.49

1,273,013,232.21

34,111,434,568.32
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial —#. - & 0f I % e 3% £ IH H 5 #
Statements (Continued) (%)
50. Taxes and Surcharges 50. &EBIE KM

January-June 2015

January-June 2014

2015 1-6 A 20144 1-6 A

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

(RREX) (REER)

Business tax R 3,403,665.60 2,949,300.74
City construction tax WER 47,038,265.07 79,590,724.88
Educational surtax HEEH M 33,323,736.07 57,348,818.39
Others Hih 12,286,967.15 6,901,776.99

96,052,633.89

146,790,621.00

51. Distribution and selling expenses 51. SHEEH
January-June 2015 January-June 2014
20155 1-6A 2014%1-6 A
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(RREEX) (REEZR)
Staff costs B ITRA 1,306,012,818.06 220,993,020.19
Freight and packaging BEEBERAKE 390,723,131.26 197,583,046.89
Marketing expenses 5 EAE R 331,988,461.01 227,132,901.08
After-sales and product return fee —BRkERREER 198,106,907.94 657,011,611.65
Travel expenses ZIRE 123,718,540.64 49,474,235.21
Depreciation of fixed asset BEEEENE 102,882,076.30 47,020,960.32
Lease expenses HEB 99,113,219.88 28,046,382.72
Office expenses ENE =g 50,380,620.99 16,329,363.89
Others Hih 267,084,920.24 99,695,738.34

2,870,010,696.32

1,543,287,260.29
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)

B D RHBRA A

52. General and administrative expenses

53.

PR 5 3 M R (4)
201564308 (A EB¥T)

T~ B OF B R R IH H RE R

(%)
5. EEEEH

January - June

2015

20155 1-6 8
(Unaudited)
(REEX)

1,630,042,799.13
479,383,978.26
254,741,275.87

234,679,985.85
165,365,811.87
113,970,149.19
111,985,489.99
75,886,926.17
50,743,093.81
39,987,756.64
11,189,510.89
7,853,810.32
7,081,093.07
4,670,181.39
368,966,671.29

3,556,548,533.74

53. % EHA

January - June
2015
2015%1-6 8
(Unaudited)
(REER)

Staff costs 8T

Depreciation of fixed assets EEEENE

External support fee HNER S 35 B

Experiment expenses and ARELHEER
development expenses

Office expenses /N

Fuels and materials AR R R B

Taxes ik

Lease expenses HEE

Travel expenses ZIRE

Repair expenses ERE

Transportation charges EmE

Vehicle usage fee HIHERE

Heating expense iR &

Promotional expenses EEHEES

Others EAh

Finance expenses

Interest expenses FMEZH

Less: interest income R FEA

Exchange gains and losses R b

Handling fees and others FEERHAM

585,824,191.96

394,565,439.62

(40,420,254.36)
32,195,570.45

183,034,068.43

January — June
2014

20144 1-6 A
(Unaudited)
CREEEZ)

880,961,209.67
233,151,161.67
225,157,818.29

171,159,319.77
141,584,349.17
28,357,107.94
90,800,910.51
44,552,836.92
31,150,593.33
22,231,480.91
17,130,396.21
7,558,900.28
1,039,422.86
6,913,539.02
176,705,634.71

2,078,454,681.26

January — June
2014
2014%1-6 A
(Unaudited)
(REgEEZ)

278,736,144.40

165,994,973.63

(30,751,113.39)
22,757,258.28

104,747,315.66
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V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)
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S5 e R WA R (A

201564308 (A E¥T)

1~ B OF B AR R IH H RE R

53. Finance expenses (Continued)

Interest expenses:

Interest on bank loans, overdrafts and
other borrowings wholly repayable
within 5 years

Interest on financial leases

MEXH
SENARBEERITER
BXREMERNFE

BMEHEENFE

Other intense E A F S
54. Impairment loss of assets
Loss from bad debt ZARIBX
Loss due to decline in value of FEREEL
inventories
Impairment loss of fixed assets & F & EREER

(%)

53. K ER(E)

54.

January - June

2015

20155 1-6 8
(Unaudited)
(REER)

379,741,391.54
173,173,322.42
32,909,478.00

585,824,191.96

EERERX

January - June
2015
2015%1-6 8
(Unaudited)
(REER)

120,422,147.00

65,543,694.17
6,637,369.07

192,603,210.24

January — June
2014

20145 1-6 A
(Unaudited)
(R EZ)

264,865,417.39

13,870,727.01

278,736,144.40

January — June
2014
2014%1-6 A
(Unaudited)
(REEEZ)

199,596,860.51

41,631,418.70
32,226,047.83

273,454,327.04
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)
30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V.

Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)

55. Profit or loss on change of fair value

Financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss for the current period
Incl: Call options in relation to

minority interests
Forward contract

MAR EESEARE
SARBBRN S HEE
seb s SRR

W5 R B 5 ()
201546 H30H (A RHET)
I GO B HE L EIHAE
(%)
55. ARBEEESHER
January - June January — June
2015 2014
20155 1-6 8 20144 1-6 A
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REEZR)

(9,163,435.00)

(49,415,122.40)
BB A B - (49,415,122.40)
EHERN (CRIER L))
Other non-current liabilities EMIEREaE (3,984,335.98)
Incl: Put options in relation to Hep - EAOSRRER IR
minority interests B & HA R (3,984,335.98)
Transfer of fair value changes to NhEEEHELE
investment income ‘AW = (96,738,410.40)
(9,163,435.00) (150,137,868.78)
56. Investment gain 56. BE W=
January - June January — June
2015 2014
2015%1-6 8 2014%1-6 8
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(RREX) (REBEZR)
Gain on long-term equity investments B AZE N R A RE
under the equity method B W= 66,804,707.15 94,884,597.49
Investment gain from disposal of long-  EE& REIREREES
term equity investments K& WS 18,720,561.88
Investment gain during the period in AT ESCREERRTA
which the available-for-sale financial BRI ES R IR B U 25
assets were held 12,308,119.74 -
Recognition of loss on disposal WREE ML E AR
corresponding to call and put options HEMBEEEKX (118,615,698.00)
Fair value changes transfer-in N BEEZEFHEA 96,738,410.40
Gain arising from remeasurement of TEAFFHERERSFRE
existing equity interests during the BHTEELENREE
course of business combination - 1,670,663,605.67
Others EHih 2,911,072.62

100,744,461.39

1,743,670,915.56
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V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial —#. - & 0f I % e 3% £ IH H 5 #
Statements (Continued) (%)
57. Non-operating income 57. BEIBA

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

Extraordinary profit
and loss recognised

January - June
2015

January - June
2014

from January to
June 2015

= A2015%1-6

2015%1-6 A 2014%1-6 3 FEEURR
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(RBEXK) (REFERZ) (REFERZ)
Government grants B 75 B 28,036,290.04 56,965,057.38 28,036,290.04
Gain on disposal of non-current HERDEEREFE
assets 26,139,266.14 1,246,684.75 26,139,266.14
Incl: Gain on disposal of fixed HEih  BFEERENE
assets 24,830,373.37 989,558.72 24,830,373.37
Gain on disposal of intangible BREERENG
assets 1,252,463.67 - 1,252,463.67
Other non-current assets HiERnBEE 56,429.10 257,126.03 56,429.10
Profit from debt restructuring B ELANE 3,810,536.31 5,956,944.72 3,810,536.31
Reversal of provision for other HibaEBEEmn
liabilities 6,269,414.75 - 6,269,414.75
Others =i 155,378,676.24 9,947,443.25 155,378,676.24

219,634,183.48

Government grants charged to profit or loss for the current period

are presented as follows:

74,116,130.10

219,634,183.48

FRAEHBEENBUFMBNT

January - June January - June Related to
2015 2014 assets/income
HEE/
2015%1-6 A 2014%1-6 A Iheayicl

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

(REBER) (REER)
Income of financial subsidies FINEEETE OGN related to income
14,904,428.72 33,952,426.02 ellgsy el
Government support fund BR%EE related to income
2,251,200.00 - B 5 A
Value added tax subject to rebate £ #114 RIZ AT related to income
17,436,443.11 B 25 A
Amortization of deferred income i ZE Iz 25 5 5% related to assets
10,202,912.92 - B8 7 AR
Others Hith related to income
677,748.40 5,576,188.25 BN ESIE

28,036,290.04 56,965,057.38
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V.

Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
57. Non-operating income (Continued)

B D RHBRA A

S5 e R WA R (A

20156 A30H (A R#¥T)

(%)

During the period, the government subsidy received by the

Company and amortized via deferred income amounted in total to
RMB28,036,290.04, including the following:

(1) During the period, the Company and its subsidiaries

obtained financial grants including funding from Shandong

Provincial Finance Office for other expenses involving external

development services and funding from Datong City Finance

Bureau for industrial development, in a total amount of

RMB17,833,377.12.

(2) During the period, the Company and its subsidiaries

amortized, via deferred income, government grants including

land refunds and special funds, in a total amount of

RMB10,202,912.92.

58. Non-operating expenses

January - June

Loss on disposal of
non-current assets
Incl: Loss on disposal of
fixed assets
Loss on disposal of other
non-current assets
Loss from debt restructuring
Donation expenditure
Others

2015
2015 1-6 A
(Unaudited)
(REBERZ)

ERBEERBBAL
14,763,360.50

Ho: BEBERBRX

14,760,273.08

HibIEm B
EERBRX 3,087.42
B EEBKX 444,400.00
HoMERE 2,075,115.44

Hith 79,680,545.33

96,963,421.27

ho AU B R R IE H R
57. EEMKA(E)

R TR K 3 38 I A R S B S U
W ATHEBEZSBEEAFTARE
28,036,290.047T © A

(M

(2)

RERRQE RFRAAUWENLE
E B M IR RS
HEFBA - KETHBBE
XERASWASTSHI B
Bh 5t AR #17,833,377.12

JT ©

REARRFRTARELEN =S
BEEBEIHRERAREIE
EeSHNMBAFARE
10,202,912.927C *

58. &R

January - June

Extraordinary profit
and loss recognised
from January to

2014 June 2015

st A2015%1-6 5

2014F1-6 B FEEMER
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(Rig&wEZ) (Rig&wEZ)
6,156,044.70 14,763,360.50
6,033,654.38 14,760,273.08
122,390.32 3,087.42
473,150.49 444,400.00
3,023,684.00 2,075,115.44
2,744,705.99 79,680,545.33

12,397,585.18

96,963,421.27




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)
59. Total profit

The supplemental information of the Group's expenses which are

categorized by nature is as follows:
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1~ B OF B AR R IH H RE R

(%)
59. A 4%

wmF

January-June 2015

2015%1-6 8

(Unaudited)

(REER)

Materials used FER ek 23,240,003,210.88

Movement of inventories of ERmREEMTFEZE

finished goods and work in progress (731,046,004.06)
Staff remuneration B T 2 B 6,818,375,472.36
Depreciation and amortization expenses 7 & 2 F1i 44 & 2,581,934,793.38
Rental e 175,000,146.05
Impairment loss of non-current assets ERBEEREIEKX 6,637,369.07
Finance expenses B % E A 183,034,068.43
60. Income Tax Expenses 60. FTIBEHEH
January-June 2015

20155 1-6A

(Unaudited)

(REER)

Current tax expenses 2 HSHER 496,543,757.39
Deferred tax expenses RIEFTIS T E (60,362,313.98)

436,181,443.41

AEEERRREES BN AEER

January-June 2014
2014%1-6 4
(Unaudited)
(REgEER)

23,103,110,572.28

709,225,470.28
2,476,597,713.31
1,065,094,338.05
122,422,004.45
32,226,047.83
104,747,315.66

January-June 2014
2014%1-6 A
(Unaudited)
(REER)

647,381,202.89
(165,685,288.82)

481,695,914.07
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)
60. Income Tax Expenses (Continued)
The relationship between income tax expenses and the total profit is

listed as follows:

RS i 25 BT 5 (%)
20156 A30H (A R#¥T)

T~ B OF B R R IH H RE R

(%)

60. FTEHRER(E)
ST B8R ENBABMNE Ry R

™

January-June 2015

20155 1-6 A
(Unaudited)
(RE&HFER)

Total profit MEEEE

AT R R A H R BE
FRARKELET AT EA

Tax at statutory tax rate

Effect of different tax rates

applicable to parent company TRBENTE
and some subsidiaries

Adjustments to current tax of H AR HARE 2 AP
previous periods FRiS Ry 3 2

Profits and losses attributable to SR BRE & D EHNIELE

associates

Income not subject to tax BT R WA

Expenses not deductible for tax AN ER

Tax incentives on eligible AAFEEENSTEMELERN
expenditures BME=E

Utilization of deductible losses

A LA AT 6 2 /0 AT R A0 &S 1R

from prior years

Unrecognized deductible losses RIERM AT INAEE

Effect of unrecognized deductible 7k & 52 #9 A 35 0 & A 145
temporary difference EZRENEE

Others Hith

1,742,317,730.00

Note & 435,579,432.50

(139,498,940.77)

(12,123,212.98)

(14,228,711.64)

(30,383,582.60)

48,719,130.40

(25,149,261.49)

(3,020,004.24)
162,020,156.39

1,753,494.82
12,512,943.02

BAGSBEERBETENAR
"HER

Tax expense at the Group's

effective tax rate

436,181,443.41

Note: The income tax of the Group is calculated based on the estimated taxable
income gained in the PRC and applicable tax rate. Tax arising from
the taxable income in other regions is calculated at applicable tax rate
according to existing laws, interpretations and practices of the country in

which the Group operates.

No provision for Hong Kong profit tax has been made as the Group

had no taxable profits arising in Hong Kong for the period.

January-June 2014

2014F1-6 A
(Unaudited)
(REEZ)

4,476,152,224.97

1,119,038,056.24

(220,018,010.26)

(3,810,824.42)

(29,525,646.08)

(448,390,211.92)

12,369,837.85

(31,019,033.49)

(25,168,138.07)
91,400,421.96

16,819,462.26

481,695,914.07

AREMSHBETBEHEAMEHOMG
FHEMTIPTIS R BB R IR < R
WA E A b [ JE AR BT IS RO B IR IR IR AR
SEEEMEBRNRITER - BE
REME - RREABXRAE -

HRAEERAREERTBLERY
B BARELEANEHNEE -



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial
Statements (Continued)

61.

62.

Earnings Per Share (EPS)

The basic EPS is calculated by dividing the net profit of the current
period attribute to the ordinary shareholders of the Company by
the weighted average number of outstanding ordinary shares.

The calculation of basic EPS is detailed as follows:

Interim Report 2015 s 177

RS i R M 5 (48
2015465308 (A R¥T)
T A0 B R R B IH H RERE
(78)
61. BRW=E

EAXGREmRREBNADRER
IR E)E HUF A - BRIAEITESN
EAKOMEFAHGE -

January-June 2015

January-June 2014

2015%1-6 A 20149%1-6 A
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REE&ER) (REEZ)

969,149,138.37 3,764,836,231.86

Earnings Wz
Net profit of the current period HFERANARR R BRI R
attribute to ordinary shareholders of B EFEAE
the Company
Shares & 15

Weighted average number of

RRBBETEINEBRD

3,998,619,278.00 3,998,619,278.00

the ordinary shares outstanding of nkEFEHEE ()
the Company (Note 1)
Basic EPS (RMB/share) EARFR Y T,/ 1)

0.24 0.94

The Company holds no potential shares that are dilutive.

Note 1:Pursuant to the profit distribution scheme 2014 considered and approved
on the 2014 annual general meeting of the Company, the capitalisation of
surplus reserve occurred between the balance sheet date and the date of
approval for issuance of these financial statements. Under the Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises, the earnings per share for each of the
periods presented has been re-calculated based on the adjusted number of
shares, namely 3,998,619,278.00 shares.

Notes to items in cash flow statement

Other cash received relating to operating activities

RRABEHBIEEER -

H1: BEAQRR4EREAFAESES
BB01AFEFBEIEFTER - ZER
BRARERBAREERBELRBEARN
MEREHERHAZEAETK R
BOEGFEL  ARARNAZRED
fi%#13,998,619,278. 00 L E st E &
5| 3R EAR 0 B AR Uk 2

RERBREBTE
WEME B REEED BB RS

62.

January-June 2015 January-June 2014

20155 1-6 A 201441-6 A
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(RE&ER) (REEZ)

Government grants BT HE B
Interest income FEHA
Others HAh

17,833,377.12
389,805,605.19
30,139,836.15

51,388,875.88
182,474,820.70
222,507,472.47

437,778,818.46

456,371,169.05
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V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial i - & 0F b % it 3% £ EIH H 51 B
Statements (Continued) (%)
62. Notes to items in cash flow statement 62. BEREREEHIE(E)
(Continued)
Other cash paid relating to operating activities

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

XM EMEELESHEEN

Cash settlement of confirmation business {FH 8 %KH&F A

Marketing and external support fee MiSFARE RINIZIFE
Freight and packaging BEEREEE

Office expenses WAE

Travel expenses i =

After-sales and product return fee = BREMRE

Others EAh

Other cash received relating to investing activities

Land-related and asset-related B34 30 A& EE AR BV ER AT A B
government grants

Net cash received from acquisition or
disposal of subsidiaries and other
business units

Others HAh

BSSREE T AR MEMESR
B IKRBIRIR S FE

Other cash received relating to financing activities

Factoring business RIBZETS
Others EHAh

RBe

January - June
2015
2015%1-68
(Unaudited)
(REER)

1,414,511,518.54
591,399,918.27

398,576,941.58
215,746,432.86
174,461,634.45
171,687,283.22
1,399,983,170.07

4,366,366,898.99

January — June
2014

20144 1-6 A
(Unaudited)
CREEEZ)

743,562,274.94
459,204,258.39
214,713,443.10
157,913,713.07

80,624,828.54
373,352,457.62
174,602,003.48

2,203,972,979.14

YR E MRS SR HERNRS

January - June
2015
2015%1-6 8
(Unaudited)
(RBER)

46,079,700.01

3,782,942.59

49,862,642.60

WRIH b

January - June
2015
2015%1-6 8
(Unaudited)
(REBER)

30,000,000.00
63,268,650.92

93,268,650.92

January - June
2014

2014 1-6 R
(Unaudited)
CREEZ)

85,290,813.47

1,132,171,307.40

1,217,462,120.87

BEBAENRS

January — June
2014
2014%1-6 R
(Unaudited)
(REgER)
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)
62. Notes to items in cash flow statement

63.

(Continued)

Other cash paid relating to financing activities

Acquisition of minority interests in
subsidiaries

BE TR HEE

(%)

1~ B OF B AR R IH H RE R

62. REREBRIFBZE(E)

XNEMREEEHERNRE

January - June

January — June

2015 2014
2015%1-6 8 2014%1-6 R
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

(RBER) (REEZ)

1,334,093,538.36

Factoring business RIBEG 30,000,000.00 =
Handling fee for guarantee for ERERRRHFEE

borrowings 12,524,202.91 15,665,820.00
Others 18,740,860.66 118,882.16

Supplement to cash flow statement
(1) Supplement to cash flow statement

Net profit
Add: Loss in impairment of assets

FAE
e BERERK

1,395,358,601.93

15,784,702.16

63. R RBERBRER
(1) RerREXRBRER

January - June

January — June

2015 2014
2015%1-6 8 2014%1-6 A
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

(RREX) (REEZ)

1,306,136,286.59
192,603,210.24

3,994,456,310.90
273,454,327.04

Depreciation of fixed assets and EEEEMMENE

investment properties HEITE 1,997,898,400.07 961,853,206.94
Amortization of intangible assets B EEE 546,339,841.60 68,543,297.92
Amortization of long-term prepaid RESFEBEREE

expenses 37,696,551.71 34,697,833.19
(Gain)/loss on disposal and retirement REMNFEETEE

of fixed assets, intangible assets EBEEEMEMRAEE

and other long-term assets
Finance expenses

B (Was) SRR
MIEER

(11,375,905.64)
619,567,443.96

4,909,359.95
296,977,878.32

Investment income B (100,744,461.39) (1,743,670,915.56)
Loss from change of fair value DR BEZESER 9,163,435.00 150,137,868.78
Decrease/(Increase) in deferred tax EIEFEHEERN

assets
Decrease in deferred tax liabilities
Increase in inventories
Decrease/(Increase) in operating

WD,/ ()
EAE TS5 B (e
BRI
AN OB B )

178,559,290.50
(413,558,816.21)
(605,502,311.56)

(83,971,727.50)
(81,713,561.32)
(671,917,986.18)

receivables w (JEa0) 2,379,145,771.04 (6,539,827,666.75)
(Decrease)/Increase in operating LS IE B &Y

payables CRi) (4,599,946,338.41) 4,249,663,586.29
Others Hith (23,026,229.78) (236,601,549.45)
Increase in special reserve EHIEFEEAIE N 14,802,778.58 11,212,872.39

Net cash flow from operating activities

RERHELNRSNEFR

1,527,758,946.30

688,203,134.96
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V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial #. ~ & 0f I % it 3% £ IH H 5 #

Statements (Continued) (%)

63. Supplement to cash flow statement 63. REREBRMAER(H)
(Continued)
(1) Supplement to cash flow statement (Continued) (1) REREXRWBAEH(E)

30 June 2015 31 December 2014
2015%6H30H 201412 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (R&ER)

Net change in cash and cash equivalents: IR& KIRE©EEWFES)

The closing balance of cash NS HHFERGTE 19,729,065,767.81 20,474,618,118.42
Less: The opening balance of cash B IRERE TR A0SR PE T 16,596,941,296.20
Add: The closing balance of cash n: ReSEYNE,
equivalents FRHEE 27,000,000.00 20,000,000.00
Loss: The opening balance of cash B ReEEYRE
equivalents FHEE 20,000,000.00 -
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and B MRS EEMF
cash equivalents Cm4) g VEEIEPIEEORON  3,897,676,822.22
(2) Information related to acquisition or disposal of (2) BBFIBEEFEFLAILK
major subsidiaries and other business units HMEXEMER
Information relating to disposal of major subsidiaries and BEFZEFRAIREMEES
other business units 58

January - June January - June
2015 2014
2015%1-6 8 2014%F1-6 A
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEXK) (REEEZ)
Consideration for disposal of subsidiaries Bz & 72 &) 5 E fih & 3
and other business units BAMERE 49,893,098.00 -
Cash and cash equivalents received for R & /A 7 & H & % B 7
disposal of subsidiaries and other WHIHR SRS EED
business units 49,893,098.00 -
Less: Amount of cash and cash W RE T AR RHEHAM
equivalents in subsidiaries and BAFFAERIRESA
other business units disposed of BEEEY 2,499,038.39 -
Net cash received for disposal of BEFARRHEMEEEA

subsidiaries and other business units WH §IR & F 58 47,394,059.61 =




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

V. Notes to Key Items of Consolidated Financial

Statements (Continued)

63. Supplement to cash flow statement

(Continued)
(3) Cash and cash equivalents
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(%)

63. RERERBRER (F)

3) BEaMBEEEDY

30 June 2015

20156 H30H
(Unaudited)
(RREX)
Cash Be 19,729,065,767.81
Incl: Cash at bank Hrh : GRS 45,263,770.78
Bank deposits on demand ATBERE AR AT Y
RITER 18,629,188,247.73
Other cash equivalents on demand A BERS AR ST HY
Hitg®ES 1,054,613,749.30
Other cash equivalents HEmMREEEY 27,000,000.00
Cash and cash equivalents at end of B ERBS RES
period/year EEYERTE 19,756,065,767.81
30 June 2015
2015%6H30H
(Unaudited)
(RREEX)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of B FREBEECHE
period/year 22,120,837,738.85
Cash equivalents at the end of B/ FRE S SEMHEE

period/year
Less: Balance of restricted cash and

cash equivalents

27,000,000.00
R+ A R BIPR O

B E SRR 2,391,771,971.04

Closing balance of cash and cash

equivalents at end of period/year

B/ SRR RRESEMHRE

19,756,065,767.81

31 December 2014
201412 A31H
(Audited)
(g&ER)

20,474,618,118.42
20,163,793.01

19,944,648,833.26

509,805,492.15
20,000,000.00

20,494,618,118.42

31 December 2014
201412 HA31H
(Audited)
(EE%)

24,434,414,214.89

20,000,000.00

3,959,796,096.47

20,494,618,118.42
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

VI. The Change in Scope of Consolidation

1.

Disposal of subsidiary

RS i 25 BT 5 (%)
20156 A30H (A R#¥T)

N~ D S Y S )

1.

Total
percentage of
shareholdings

BREFRAHE

Total

percentage of

voting rights

Place of held by held by Reason for
registration Business nature the Group the Group de-consolidation
S 3L r&E
B HR BRI EEN FEESB
at fif it g1 A wRELG FARARE
Zhuzhou Torch Auto Zhuzhou Manufacturing 100% 100% Transfer of
Lighting Co., Ltd L i of lighting for equity interest
3 Jllﬁﬁ/\’iﬁmﬁbﬂ automobiles et e
BREMAER BERERA
Note: On 15 December 2014, the Company entered into a share transfer Hr O ARFHEHBEAFEBRANK(ER
agreement with Witslight Semiconductor Lighting Technology (Kunshan) ) AR A A MK2014F 12 A15
Company Limited, pursuant to which the Company disposed of its 100% AEiTREEZRBZE  UARE

equity interest in Zhuzhou Torch Auto Lighting Co., Ltd. at a consideration
of RMB49,973,700.00, and the date of disposal was 13 April 2015.
Therefore from 1 April 2015 onwards, the Group no longer included
Zhuzhou Torch Auto Lighting Co., Ltd. as part of consolidation. The
relevant financial information of Zhuzhou Torch Auto Lighting Co., Ltd. is as
follows:

31 March 2015
201543 H31H

49,973,700.00 T i E E 45 B %
M AEREEAEFEREL QAN
100% f%#E - & H B2015F4 713
H e ®EA2015F4 818 - REET
BN ETEREAREER
RIMAEDHEE - HRINE A E/RBE
EBRECATNBBIMKERIR
NN

31 December 2014
201412 A31H

(Unaudited) (Audited)
(RREZ) (=)
Carrying amount Carrying amount
AREEE FEEEE

Current assets MENEE
Non-current assets JEMEEE
Current liabilities VBRI
Non-current liabilities EREBAR
Gains or losses from disposal BREE®
Disposal consideration BREHE

Establishment of new subsidiary
On 27 February 2015, Fast Eaton (Xi'an) Powertrain System Co., Ltd.
was established with a registered capital of RMB50,000,000,00.
On 18 March 2015, Shaanxi Fast Gear Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the
Company, subscribed for RMB25,500,000.00 of registered capital,
representing 51% of the total registered capital.

47,247,010.19
10,553,696.62
26,833,639.28

30,967,067.53

18,720,561.88

49,973,700.00

MRFAE

48,012,147.41
10,896,053.03
24,128,900.70

34,779,299.74

AIRFR(BARD)BNEBERAR

NRIK I N201592 8278

CiEE

KA ANE®50,000,000.007C ° KA
RAIZFRARIBRAE LI RFEHRERET
NAEIFR2015F3 A 18 H RBEGEME R

AR #25,500,000.007T °

KHE51%

HEEE
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30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20156 H30H (A E#or)
VIL. Interest in Other Entities L AR H A B8 P R RE R
1. Interest in subsidiaries 1. EFQARAHHESR
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are AR BEEFRENBERAT :

presented as follows:

Place of key Place of Nature of Registered Percentage of
operation registration business capital shareholding (%)
TELEH dfi EBME BlEe FR (%)
Direct  Indirect
B 5t
Subsidiaries acquired through establishment or investment
BRRUIREEHFARGNTLA
(1) Weichai Power (Weifang) Casting Co., Ltd. Shandong Shandong ~ Manufacturing 460,150,000.00 100.00 -
R8N (4 BHERAT E LE industy
Bieg
) Shaanxi Wuhai Special Vehicles Co., Ltd. (Note 1) Inner Mongolia  Inner Mongolia ~ Manufacturing 228,000,000.00 - 38.60
RASEERAEERAR () REL REL industry
(3)  Weichai Power (Shanghai) Technology Shanghai Shanghai  Manufacturing 340,000,000.00 100.00 -
Development Co., Ltd. i i industry
EEBN( DR RRERARRA RE%
(4 Weichai Power Yangzhou Diesel Jiangsu Jiangsu  Manufacturing 400,000,000.00 - 85.00
Engine Co., Ltd. T8 T industry
EEB NN ERREREELR REX
(5)  Weichai Power (Chongging) Western Chongaing Chongging  Manufacturing 240,000,000.00 100.00 -
Development Co., Ltd. BF EE industry
BEEN(EE)ABRRERAT REX
(6)  Weichai Power (Beijing) International Resources Beijing Beijing Project 300,000,000.00 100.00 -
Investment Co., Ltd. IR IR Investment
EEBH (M R)ERERREBRLA HERE
(7). Weichai Power (Luxembourg) Holding S.ar.l. Luxembourg Luxembourg Project EUR100,000.00 - 100.00
HEE N (ERE)ERBERAT ERE E#E Investment B%72100,000.00
HERE
6 Weichai Power (Hong Kong)International Hong Kong Hong Kong Services USD336,242,497.00 100.00 -
Development Co., Ltd. Bk B RBE  %7336,242,497.00
EEH (BB BRERARLRA
9 Shandong Heavy Industry India Private Limited India India  Manufacturing  Rupee823,889,270.00 - 97.68
WEETHEAREAAF HE (g industry [£11823,889,270.00
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HRBORHBERDE

VII. Interest in other entities (Continued)

1.

I 7 2% BT (48
20156 A30H (A R#¥T)

U ARt B8 P RO RE £ ()

Interest in subsidiaries (Continued) 1. EFRAAHPHER(E)
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are RARREZEFRRANBERET : (B)
presented as follows: (Continued)
Place of key Place of Nature of Registered Percentage of
operation registration business capital shareholding (%)
TELEY Rl EBME FRER B EHI(%)
Direct Indirect
B ik
Subsidiaries acquired through business combinations not involving entities under common control
FR-EH T EEEHRENFAT
(100 Shandong Huadong Casting Co., Ltd. Shandong Shandong ~ Manufacturing 450,150,000.00 - 100.00
REHEEERLF LW&E IE industry
(1) Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Company Limited Shaanxi Shaanxi  Manufacturing 3,706,330,000.00 51.00 -
RAEASEERAH bR PR industry
(12)  Shaanxi Hande Axle Co., Ltd. Shaanxi Shaanxi  Manufacturing 320,000,000.00 3.06 94.00
RAZEERERAH BRE A industry
(13)  Shaanxi Jinding Casting Co., Ltd. Shaanxi Shaanxi  Manufacturing 435,360,000.00 - 100.00
RAeEEEERAT bR i industry
(14)  Shaanxi Fast Gear Co., Ltd. Shaanxi Shaanxi  Manufacturing 256,790,000.00 51.00 -
RAZTHEERERRETAT PR gl industry
(15)  Zhuzhou Gear Co., Ltd. Hunan Hunan  Manufacturing 531,314,951.00 87.91 -
HHERERRAARA il il industry
(16)  Zhuzhou Torch Sparkplugs Co., Ltd. Hunan Hunan  Manufacturing 282,480,000.00 100.00 -
HRHEAEAEEERRARR il il industry
(17)  Weichai (Chongqing) Automotive Co., Ltd. Chongaing Chongging  Manufacturing 1,295,410,000.00 77.07 22.93
BE(EE)REERLT £ BF industry
(18)  Siciété International des Moteurs Baudouin France France  Manufacturing EUR33,311,180.00 - 100.00
AERRZE NERARA A AE iz industry B7133,311,180.00
(19)  KION GROUP AG (Note 2) Germany Germany  Manufacturing EUR98,900,000.00 - 38.25
KION GROUP AG(32) (5] (] industry EN798,900,000.00

RiEx
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30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

VII. Interest in other entities (Continued)
Interest in subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are

1.

presented as follows: (Continued)

S S ¥ R MY R (A
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20156 A30H (A R#T)

U ARt 8 P RO RE AR ()

Percentage of shareholding

1.

EF QAP AER(E)
ARASBFARANERAT - ()

BRLA
Whether
Effective capital Percentage  statements
contribution at the of voting are
end of period  Direct (%) Indirect (%) rights  consolidated Minority interests
FAE  REEH
HRERLE  EE%) (%) Efl(%) $Hx DEBRELR
Subsidiaries acquired through establishment or investment
BBRVIREFTARGH LA
(1) Weichai Power (Weifang) Casting Co., Ltd. 460,150,000.00 100.00 - 100.00 Yes -
BRSO ERERAT =
(2)  Shaanxi Wuhai Special Vehicles Co., Ltd. 88,000,000.00 - 38.60 62.72 Yes 88,980,934.21
RASBERAEERAH ®
(3)  Weichai Power (Shanghai) Technology 340,000,000.00 100.00 - 100.00 Yes -
Development Co., Ltd. =
BEBN (LB RRERERRA
(4) Weichai Power Yangzhou Diesel Engine Co., Ltd. 340,000,000.00 - 85.00 85.00 Yes 91,039,089.77
HEBDNENERBEREELA IS
(5)  Weichai Power (Chongging) Western 240,000,000.00 100.00 - 100.00 Yes -
Development Co., Ltd. =
HEBH(ER)RHERERRA
(6) Weichai Power (Beijing) International Resources 300,000,000.00 100.00 - 100.00 Yes -
Investment Co., Ltd. I
BEBH (L R)EEERREARLA
(7)  Weichai Power (Luxembourg) Holding S.a r.l. EUR553,152,136.00 - 100.00 100.00 Yes -
BREN(BRZ)ERBRAF BIL553,152,136.00 2
(8)  Weichai Power (Hong Kong) International USD336,242,497.00 100.00 - 100.00 Yes -
Development Co., Ltd. %71336,242,497.00 3
BEBH (BB BERERAERLA
9) Shandong Heavy Industry India Private Limited Rupee823,889,270.00 - 97.68 97.68 Yes (96,566.48)
WRETHEBREAAH [£1823,889,270.00 2
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HRBORHBERDE

VII. Interest in other entities (Continued)
Interest in subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are

1.

presented as follows: (Continued)

I 7 2% BT (48
20156 A30H (A R#¥T)

U~ Al T P A R AR (A)
1. EF2AHPHER (&)
ARTEEFAFNBROT ¢ ()

Percentage of shareholding

BRI
Whether
Effective capital Percentage  statements
contribution at the of voting are
end of period  Direct (%) Indirect (%) rights  consolidated Minority interests
FME  REEH
HAERILE E (%) (%) E (%) BHx DERFER
Subsidiaries acquired through business combinations not involving entities under common control
FRA-EH TR HRENFAT
(10)  Shandong Huadong Casting Co., Ltd. 450,150,000.00 - 100.00 100.00 Yes -
WEEHEEERAF 3
(1) Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Company Limited 1,890,330,000.00 51.00 - 51.00 Yes 2,599,113,653.12
REERTEFRLA =
(12)  Shaanxi Hande Axle Co., Ltd. 310,592,000.00 3.06 94.00 97.06 Yes 99,763,521.57
REEEERERAA 3
(13)  Shaanxi Jinding Casting Co., Ltd. 435,360,000.00 - 100.00 100.00 Yes -
RESSEEERAT 2
(14)  Shaanxi Fast Gear Co., Ltd. 130,960,000.00 51.00 - 51.00 Yes 3,735,280,714.93
REZLEERERETAHA &
(15)  Zhuzhou Gear Co., Ltd. 467,102,295.92 87.91 - 8791 Yes 65,233,791.16
HHEREREELA 3
(16)  Zhuzhou Torch Sparkplugs Co., Ltd. 282,480,000.00 100.00 - 100.00 Yes -
HEAEAEREREA AT &
(17)  Weichai (Chongging) Automotive Co., Ltd. 1,295,410,000.00 77.07 22.93 100.00 Yes -
HE(EE)ABERARA 2
(18)  Siciété International des Moteurs Baudouin EUR33,311,180.00 - 100.00 100.00 Yes -
AR R NEARERAF B(7133,311,180.00 2
(19)  KION GROUP AG EUR1,077,648,723.00 - 38.25 38.25 Yes 2,499,736,341.02
KION GROUP AG Blr1,077,648,723.00 =



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

VII. Interest in other entities (Continued)
1. Interest in subsidiaries (Continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company are

presented as follows: (Continued)

Note 1:

Note 2:

There

On 16 March 2012, Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Company Limited, a
subsidiary of the Company, acquired 24.12% minority interest voting rights
in Shaanxi Wuhai New Power Special Vehicles Co., Ltd. via a management
and control agency agreement, representing an aggregate percentage of
voting power of 62.72% with effective control over the company. The
Company included Shaanxi Wuhai New Power Special Vehicles Co., Ltd. as
part of consolidation on 1 April 2012.

On 12 February 2015, Superlift, a shareholder of KION GROUP AG, which
is in turn a subsidiary of the Company, disposed of its 4.9% shareholding
in KION GROUP AG, as a result of which the aggregate shareholding in
KION GROUP AG held by Weichai Power (Luxembourg) Holding S.a r.I.
(“Weichai Lux"”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
and Superlift represented in aggregate 47.2% of the shareholding in KION
GROUP AG. According to the bundling arrangement between Weichai Lux
and Superlift, the Company became in control of 47.2% voting rights. On
27 March 2015, Superlift disposed of its remaining 13.9% shareholding,
among which 4.95% were sold to Weichai Lux. At this point, the bundling
arrangement between Weichai Lux and Superlift ceased to be valid.
Through Weichai Lux, the Company held 38.25% shareholding and voting
rights in KION GROUP AG and was the single largest shareholder of KION
GROUP AG. Meanwhile, due to the scattered shareholdings held by other
shareholders, the Company had effective control over KION GROUP AG. As
at 30 June 2015, the aforesaid situation remained unchanged.

was no changes in paid-in capital of principal subsidiaries

from January to June 2015.
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5 i R M 5 (48
20156 H308 (A R¥T)

oAt 32 486 b AU RE 2% (5)
EF QAP AER(E)
ARTEEFAANEROT ¢ (4)

£ 7
1.

GEaN

2

201293 A168 * "AQARFRABKA
ENABEERAFBBREETEME
HBEMETRAREERAEARAR
REDHBBHE24.12% K RE - A
ATRORELLG B62.72% A ER
AR - KRR E2012F481 81
BRASEERTEBRARMNAE G
HHE -

® 201542 A12H * F 2 & KION
GROUP AG #J & 3 Superlift tH & 7
H # & B KION GROUP AG 4.9% &)
e ARARIZEEEZETFARHS
L NEFREBER)ARIT (N #
L EFHRE]) MSuperliftA st H A
KION GROUP AG 47.2% H) % # -
R 45 52 E R 2 M Superlift E 5L /9
BEZHE - AN R R AT LA ) ROR
LB B47.2% ° K201553 A 27
B - Superlift @B 7T EF GO R E
F13.9% MR - HH4.95% KK
BHERKEERE St #L
[E #% £& M Superlift 2 & 09 # 40 2 3
KW AARBBHELEERERAE
KION GROUP AG38.25% I A &
SRIE - ZKION GROUP AGH 8 — &
ARE - ARAREMREZE R
DB - AR A %A I KION GROUP
AGHI B R EHI% - 812201546 A
308 EatdR REBEAE L -

FEFRREREAR2015F1-6 AK
BB o
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) FPHS i R M 5 (48
30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2015F6A30H (A E¥T)
VII. Interest in other entities (Continued) LR RS (5
1. Interest in subsidiaries (Continued) 1. EFR AR ER(E)
Changes in paid-in capital of principal subsidiaries in 2014 are TEFRABEWER2014F 3+ 5
detailed as follows: {EHFBAT :
Increase in Decrease in
31 December the current the current 31 December
2013 period period 2014
2013F 2014%
128318 RE R KEHD 128318
Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Company Limited B 55 5B A7 2,706,330,000.00  1,000,000,000.00 - 3,706,330,000.00
Weichai Power (Hong Kong) International 468 /) (B8 ) B2
Development Co., Ltd. (USD) BRAR(ET) 57,840,00000  278,402,497.00 - 336,242497.00
Weichai (Chongging) Automotive Co., Ltd.  #&(E ) TEARAT 1,186,000,000.00  109,410,000.00 - 1,295,410,000.00
Shandong Heavy Industry India Private LWRETHEERER
Limited (Rupee) Ral(Ek) 202,329,270.00  621,560,000.00 - 823,889,270.00
Subsidiaries with material interests of minority shareholders are as GFESEELHYRERSZNFAAW
follows: T
January to June 2015 2015%1-6 8B
Percentage of Accumulated
shareholding  Attributable to Dividends minority
minority minority  paid to minority interests at
(Unaudited) shareholders interests shareholders  the end of period
DEBRR EROH EE% 1 HARs
(REER) BRIA RREH XARA HSYRRER
Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Company Limited [RE SR 5EER A A 49% (8,671,561.47) 2,599,113,653.12
Shaanxi Fast Gear Co., Ltd. REETHES
EREARA 49% 30,895,843.61 - 3735280,714.93

KION GROUP AG KION GROUP AG 61.75%  300,177,207.23  225,059,398.69  2,499,736,341.02
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VIL. Interest in other entities (Continued)

1. Interest in subsidiaries (Continued)
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PO 5 i 3 M R (4)
201564308 (A E¥T)

+ - Tﬁf@iﬁﬂqﬂﬁl@%ﬁﬁ(%ﬁ)
EFARPHES(E)

Subsidiaries with material interests of minority shareholders are as FEEEVEREEZHNFATW
follows: (Continued) T (&)
January to June 2014 2014%1-6 A
Percentage of Accumulated
shareholding Attributable to Dividends minority
Minority minority paid to minority interests at
(Unaudited) shareholders interests shareholders the end of year
YEBER GBI B R FREGH
(REgER) Ffk b Bl kiR TR SERFRER
Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Company Limited PAFEER 5EBRAT] 49% 103,247,843 - 2,530,587,805.45
Shaanxi Fast Gear Co,, Lid., REALRERAREMLL 49% 15356241365 - 3,762,775,869.56
KION GROUP AG KION GROUP AG N/A
66.70% A - 1,877,470,135.33
The following table illustrates the summarized financial information TRIWRT L FARFTERBHE

of the above subsidiaries. The amounts disclosed are before any

inter-company eliminations:

January to June 2015
Current assets
Non-current assets
Total assets

Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Total liabilities
Revenue

Net profit

Total comprehensive income
Net cash flows from

operating activities

2015%1-6 A
RBEE
FRBEE
EEAF
RBAE
FRBARE
AEas
EELON
A
GeyEeR
REETHELM
HEREFE

KION GROUP AG

KION GROUP AG

12,372,621,201.00
26,527,379,589.58
38,900,000,790.58
12,525,895,539.90
21,607,225,274.72
34,133,120,814.62
16,782,378,217.60

478,264,589.87

929,831,750.87

1,183,895,054.60

B BEEERANEEASEEZH
HERERH S

Shaanxi Heavy-duty

Motor Co., Ltd.
REEHRE
ERAT

14,393,220,792.06
5,312,963,725.84
19,706,184,517.90
13,575,326,148.78
683,824,940.95
14,259,151,089.73
8,151,372,098.53
12,597,961.52
12,598,880.80

253,832,502.85

Shaanxi Fast
Gear Co., Ltd.
ALt SER
BREEATF

7,440,891,702.57
3,117,835,755.45
10,558,727,458.02
2,918,187,706.43
2,918,187,706.43
3,245,618,011.36
62,126,937.95
59,075,794.67

609,283,598.47
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30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

VII. Interest in other entities (Continued)

1.

Interest in subsidiaries (Continued)
The following table illustrates the summarized financial information
of the above subsidiaries. The amounts disclosed are before any

inter-company eliminations: (Continued)

I 7 2% BT (48
20156 A30H (A R#¥T)

oAt 48 v A RE 2 (48
EFoAPmER (&)
FRIART ERTFATEBHBE
B EEERAREENEDE LR
EE NS (F)

Shaanxi Heavy-duty

Shaanxi Fast

KION GROUP AG Motor Co., Ltd. Gear Co., Ltd.
RAERAE BREE TS
KION GROUP AG ARATF BREMDA
31 December 2014 2014128318
Current assets REEE 11,956,322,052.00 16,077,594,954.52 7,218,514,717.63
Non-current assets FRBEE 26,425,175,339.85 5,395,534,605.49 3,219,064,044.06
Total assets BEALH 38,381,497,391.85 21,473,129,560.01 10,437,578,761.69
Current liabilities neaR 13,368,159,201.60 14,510,231,740.50 2,873,759,545.50
Non-current liabilities ERBEE 21,526,186,371.65 1,542,450,621.38 -
Total liabilities BfEEE 34,894,345,573.25 16,052,682,361.88 2,873,759,545.50
January to June 2014 2014F1-6 A
Revenue 0N 13,968,287,412.46 5,654,998,084.00
Net profit B 202,912,266.01 318,866,890.23
Total comprehensive income RAEWSEE 202,912,266.01 318,866,890.23
Net cash flows from MEEHEEM
operating activities ReneFs 752,041,715.58 43,717,827 81
Transaction resulting in changes of EEEFRNRAINRBREREDS

proportional shareholding but not change of
control of principal subsidiaries

On 27 March 2015, the Company considered and approved
the proposal concerning the acquisition of 4.95% issued capital
capital of KION GROUP AG on its second provisional Board
meeting 2015, pursuant to which Weichai Lux, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, acquired 4.95% of the issued share
capital of KION GROUP AG, from Superlift at a total consideration
of EUR186,935,000. As a result of the transaction, the minority
interest in the consolidated financial statements has been reduced
by RMB145,666,938.59 and capital reserve has been reduced by
RMB1,100,217,449.41. Upon completion of the acquisition, the
Company’s indirect shareholding in KION GROUP AG has increased
t0 38.25%.

BEBEBLLERTERE
HENR S

20153278 * "ARF]2015F F
ZRERESESRERBBR T KE
KION GROUP AG 4.95% & % 17 %
MHER HE2ETRRAMBEERE
[ Superlift & E KION GROUP AGZ
HEBEITRMDNAI5%  WEBE
BT 186,935,000 © :ZIBAXR 5EEH
S BHREAR DBREER DA
R #145,666,938.597C © EA R
B AR #1,100,217,449.41 7T
WHEETKE  AARHEERE
KION GROUP AG HJ % 4 Lt 51 3% hn =
38.25% ©
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VII. Interest in other entities (Continued)

3. Interest in jointly-controlled enterprises and

associates

Interim Report 2015 FgAsks 191

5 i R M 5 (48
20156 A30H (A R#T)

Particulars of the principal jointly-controlled enterprise and associates

U ARt 8 P RO RE AR ()
3.

EEELEMBELESR
Ry &R

ARAEEAZELEMBEDLRNIB

of the Company are presented as follows: I
Place of key Place of Nature of Registered Percentage of Accounting
operation registration Business capital shareholding (%) treatment
TERED it RHNE &R BRELAI%) EHEE
Direct Indirect
EX 3
Jointly-controlled enterprise
aERE
(1) Xi'an FC Intelligence Transmission Shaanxi  Manufacturing 500,000,000.00 - 51.00  Equity Method
Co., Ltd. (Note) 5 industry Bk
AREFEREIERAA(E) BiER
Associate
Betk
(1 Shanzhong Finance Leasing Co., Ltd. Beiing  Finance lease 920,000,000.00 19.565 19.565  Equity Method
WEREHEERAR IR B3l Bk
2 Shandong Zhonggong Group Finance Co., Ltd. Shandong Finance 1,000,000,000.00 20,00 - Equity Method
WRETEEEHERAR W company BwA
BBLE

Note : Xi'an FC Intelligence Transmission Co., Ltd. is held as to 51% by the Group,
and as to 4% and 45% by Shaanxi Fast Gear Automotive Transmission
Co., Ltd. (“Transmission Co”) and Caterpillar (China) Investment Co., Ltd
("Caterpillar”) respectively. Its board of directors comprises seven directors,
three of whom being nominated by the Group, one being nominated by
Transmission Co and three being nominated by Caterpillar. According to
its articles of association, board resolutions require unanimous approval
or approval by substantially all directors, and thus Xi'an FC Intelligence
Transmission Co. is a jointly-controlled enterprise of the Group.

g AEERAARERTREHAERA
A151% R - BINMRALAR R R BRA A
THEHERERETAR([EHE
BDMRERS(FE)REFRAA
(TRE®E]) - HRLEOH R ALI%
Mac5% - EEGHEREFMEK - H
P=RHAKERE —EHEHE
BZET - SHN=FEFRBEEIEMT
BREAREROTE  EFTCHRET
EEQXRUERAZHAEZBRA
ALALZEREDEEHFRAABER
REBEEGEDRE-
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VIL. Interest in other entities (Continued)

3. Interest in jointly-controlled enterprises and

associates (Continued)

The Group holds 51% equity interest of Xi‘an FC Intelligence
Transmission Co., Ltd. (“FC Intelligence Transmission”), which is
principally engaged in the production of automatic gear boxes. It is
a key jointly-controlled enterprise of the Group and is accounted for

using equity method in the Group's accounts.

RS i 25 BT 5 (%)
20156 A30H (A R#¥T)

+ - Eﬁm£¥¢%%§%®
EEELEMNBELESP
ke (&)
REEBERAEALREFSHEEHE

RAB([ERFES])S1%KE - &
HREBHIZLEEADE RS AEE
BEZMNELELE  AEEYZEYE
ERAEREZE -

The following table illustrates the summarised financial information TRINRTALZEREREHARRD
of Xi'an FC Intelligence Transmission Co., Ltd. The amounts AINPEES  BLUBEEAET
disclosed are adjusted for differences in accounting policies and FrEetBEREEBFANE KRG BHHR
reconciled to the carrying accounts in this financial statement: KEMEE

30 June 2015
201556 H30H

31 December 2014
201412 A31H

Current assets
including: cash and cash equivalents
Non-current assets

REAE
Hh : BB ZEY
ERBEE

Total assets BEA
Current liabilities neas
Non-current liabilities ERBAE
Total liabilities BE4E
Minority interests DEIR RS

Shareholders’ equity attributable to
the Parent

BENERRRBIRERE

Shares of net assets based on
percentage of shareholding

BRBRLAIZENFEENTE

Carrying value of investment HEREEEEB
Revenue EEIA
Income tax expenses Fiisti& A

Net losses FET1E

Total comprehensive income e W A EE

Dividend received

Y 21 e P )

(Unaudited)
(REE&ER)

215,547,952.10
27,909,695.60
327,250,417.60

542,798,369.70

196,095,588.34

196,095,588.34

346,702,781.36

176,818,418.49
176,796,848.22

January to June
2015
2015%1-68
(Unaudited)
(REER)

28,539,390.94

(31,091,381.96)
(31,091,381.96)

(Audited)
(& FEz)

179,523,727.44
31,933,003.14
336,539,782.56

516,063,510.00

138,311,640.98

138,311,640.98

377,751,869.02

192,653,453.20
192,653,453.20

January to June
2014
2014%1-6 A
(Unaudited)
(REgER)

12,645,423.50

(37,287,006.63)
(37,287,006.63)
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30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20156 H30H (A E#or)
VII. Interest in other entities (Continued) + - f o RSP RS ()
3. Interest in jointly-controlled enterprises and EEELENBELED
associates (Continued) PR (&)

AEEFRBEURETEEUBER
AR(TWREBTHBRF])20%K
B IWRETHHE AR AN EMRME
HEEREMS RS -
RASEEENBELE  FAEEY
accounts. ZEECERAEREARE -

The Group holds 20% equity interest of Shandong Zhonggong
Group Finance Co., Ltd. (“Shandong Zhonggong Finance Co."),
which provides the Group with services of deposits, credit lending,
settlement and other financial services. It is a key associate of the Tz

Group and is accounted for using equity method in the Group'’s

TRIVR T IWRETIH B R BT
EE BUMBEEHBTMESS
BREZAFHEAVBHREEE S

The following table illustrates the summarised financial information
of Shandong Zhonggong Finance Co.. The amounts disclosed are

adjusted for differences in accounting policies and reconciled to the

carrying accounts in this financial statement:

Current assets
including: cash and cash equivalents
Non-current assets

REaE
Hh : BHTBPLZEY
ERBEE

Total assets BEST
Current liabilities mENEE
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Total liabilities aEaE
Minority interests DB R e

Shareholders’ equity attributable to
the Parent

=) IS SYNSIE O E £

Shares of net assets based on
percentage of shareholding

ERBRLIZERFEENSE

Carrying value of investment KRENEEEE
Revenue EEWA
Income tax expenses Frisfi & A

Net profit S NE

Total comprehensive income e LR

Dividend received

U 1 /9 AR )

2

30 June 2015
20156 H30H
(Unaudited)
(RREX)

13,764,280,925.53

1,980,783,561.48

15,745,064,487.01

14,548,257,298.19

14,548,257,298.19

1,196,807,188.82

239,361,437.76
239,414,386.99

January to June
2015
2015%1-68
(Unaudited)
(REER)

116,710,681.81

(18,974,372.43)
56,923,117.26
56,923,117.26

31 December 2014
2014512 A31H
(Audited)
(BEZ%)

13,259,994,847.84

869,321,303.11

14,129,316,150.95

12,989,166,333.25

12,989,166,333.25

1,140,149,817.70

228,029,963.54
228,029,963.54

January to June
2014
2014%1-6 8
(Unaudited)
(CREEEZ)

111,873,929.53
(20,335,237.60)
60,074,810.81
60,074,810.81
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

VIL. Interest in other entities (Continued)
3.

RS i 25 BT 5 (%)
20156 A30H (A R#¥T)

Interest in jointly-controlled enterprises and

associates (Continued)

The Group holds 39.13% equity interests of Shanzhong Finance

Leasing Co., Ltd. (“Shanzhong Finance Leasing”), which provides

the Group and its distributors with finance leasing services. It is

a key associate of the Group and is accounted for using equity

method in the Group’s accounts.

The following table illustrates the summarised financial information

of Shanzhong Finance Leasing Co., Ltd.. The amounts disclosed are

adjusted for differences in accounting policies and reconciled to the

carrying accounts in this financial statement:

+- Eﬁ@£¥¢%%ﬁ%®

EEELEMNBELESP
PR (&)
AEEHFELEREAEERA
(MLEmMEHRE])39.13% &% - 1L
SMEHEARNEBR R AREBMLH
HREREEEXEBRE  E4AEE
FEMBELE  AEEHRBED
ERARRERE -

TERINFTUEREHEBRAADN
MHERE  SLMBEEAETME
SRR ER AR EARM B RKREEK
[0

30 June 2015 31 December 2014

Current assets
including: cash and cash equivalents
Non-current assets

REAE
Hh : BHFBPLZEY
ERBEE

Total assets BEAG
Current liabilities mENEE
Non-current liabilities ERBALE
Total liabilities BEAE
Minority interests DB R A

Shareholders’ equity attributable to
the Parent

FElE)ISSYNSIE O E £

Shares of net assets based on
percentage of shareholding

ERBRLGIZERFEENE

Carrying value of investment HEREEEEB
Revenue SESLUN
Income tax expenses s & A

Net profit N E

Total comprehensive income e AR

Dividend received

Y 21 ) i )

20156 H30H 2014412 A831H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (R&EZ)

2,843,591,864.17
329,816,090.33
1,376,894,249.46

4,220,486,113.63

2,560,371,475.46

638,146,781.00

3,198,518,256.46

1,021,967,857.17

399,896,022.51
398,979,857.35

January to June
2015
2015%1-68
(Unaudited)
(REER)

171,064,360.60
(8,084,132.68)
22,314,023.51
22,314,023.51

3,163,522,992.05

443,118,239.03
1,661,142,690.09

4,824,665,682.14

3,031,681,741.07

793,291,128.06

3,824,972,869.13

999,692,813.01

391,179,797.73
391,082,871.61

January to June
2014
2014%1-6 8
(Unaudited)
(REER)

302,975,560.52
(8,897,190.74)
27,165,783.24
27,165,783.24
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VII. Interest in other entities (Continued) +t - T HAeh 8 i 25 (48)
3. Interest in jointly-controlled enterprises and EEELENBELED
associates (Continued) ke (&)
The following illustrates the combined financial information of the TRINRTYHAEBSEIAE S A
associates which, individually, are not significant to the Group: EBOENATHBKES -

30 June 2015 31 December 2014
2015%6H30H 2014912 831H

(Unaudited) (Audited)
(RIEER) (REEZ)

Associate Bz
Total carrying value of investments HERAEEAE 676,503,138.08 665,959,370.13
The total amount of the following calculation based on the THRIBIRFRLPIFTENEEE

percentage of shareholding:

January to June January to June

2015 2014

20155 1-6 A 2014%1-6 A

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

(REER) (REEZ)

Net losses F 88,879,902.82 54,326,222.61

Other comprehensive income Hisr AUz (72,011,395.61) 210,422,569.01

Total comprehensive income ,VT\/\Hﬁzﬁnﬁ@ %8 16,868,507.21 264,748,791.62
VIIL.Transfers of Financial Assets N~ S RLE AR

Transferred financial assets that had been CERKILEIEEES AN
derecognised in their entirety but continuously CEBEREE

involved

As at 30 June 2015, the Group have endorsed bank acceptance M 2015F 6 A30H @+ K& E Kk 7 =

bills amounting to RMB3,508,475,324.52 (31 December 2014: WEBSELAHERTRREERENER

RMB12,796,570,508.51) to suppliers to settle the accounts payable. As MRTELEZNEREEERARK

at 30 June 2015, they were due in 1 to 12 months. If acceptance banks 3,508,475,324.527t (2014412 A318 :

dishonor the bills, endorsees shall have the right to turn to the Group for AR #12,796,570,508.51 7% ) ° R 2015

recourse (“Continuing Involvement"”) according to the Law of Negotiable F6H308 - EXHBARIZ12EA - BE

Instruments. The Group considered substantially all risk and reward of the (EBREIEEBE - BERLRITEBNNK

bills have been transferred. Therefore, the Group derecognized the book B HERFEAERMASEER([EEY

value of the related accounts payable that have been settled by the bills. AD) e AEERR  AEEEKEBTH

The undiscounted cash flow and maximum loss of continuing involvement HTRHRAENRBMBEY - Bt - KIEER

and repurchase were equal to the book value of the bills. The Group HEREZ HENE SERNERS E’Jﬁﬁﬁfﬁ

considers the fair value of continuing involvement is not significant. B BESAREBOHZRERIMATE

RenEFRNEKEERE -AKERS -
BEBESANDABEITERX -
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30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2015F6A30H (A E¥T)

VIIL.Transfers of Financial Assets (Continued) N EREEER (&)
Transferred financial assets that had been EERBARIBREEEIS AN
derecognised in their entirety but continuously CEBEeREE (&)

involved (Continued)

As at 30 June 2015, the book value of the Group’s outstanding,
discounted bank acceptance bills amounted to RMB736,573,300.00 (31
December 2014: RMB26,831,833.34). As at 30 June 2015, they were due
within 1 to 5 months.

From January to June 2015, the Group did not recognize any significant
profit or loss at the date of transfer. The Group had no current or
accumulated gain or expense arising from the continuing involvement
in financial assets which had been derecognized. The endorsement and

discount were incurred evenly throughout the period.

201566 A30H * AEEARHBEMHE
BRBPTALEEZENEOEERAARE
736,573,300.0070(2014F 12 A318 + A
R#26,831,833.3470) - 201566 A30
H: - HIHAR1ZE5@EA -

20155 1-6 7 AEBEREHEB ARRE
MEXRBRETEK - AEBEEELES
ABRIBREMEES HNRTHERD
IS B A - HEMEBAEAP ARG E
B o

IX. Disclosure of fair value U~ A R EAE B R
1. Assets and liabilities measured at fair value 1. UAABEFENEEMN
=L
January to June 2015 2015 1-6 H

Inputs used in the measurement of fair value

MABEAEERNBAE

Quoted prices in Key observable  Key unobservable

active markets inputs inputs
EZAHE EZFTER
ERTSHRE AR BAE
(Unaudited) (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
(RigzER) (E—BR) (E=BR) (B=BR)
Financial assets at fair value through ~ JA A 4 B € B
profit or loss HEEHHAEE
BHMEREE 22,389,004.10 22,389,004.10
Available-for-sale listed equity REESRERE
instruments for available-for-sale A Em
financial assets riERTA 358,661,570.50 358,661,570.50
358,661,570.50 22,389,004.10 381,050,574.60
Financial liabilities at fair value WanEE:tER
through profit or loss HEHTAR

124,022,304.70 124,022,304.70
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS i R M 5 (48
30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20156 H30H (A E#or)
IX. Disclosure of fair value (Continued) yIR /A\fﬁfg; 1B 0 P 2% (4)
Assets and liabilities measured at fair value 1. ULAREBEEFENEEMN
(Continued) BE(E)
2014 20144
Inputs used in the measurement of fair value
AREEAEEANBAE
Quoted prices in Key observable  Key unobservable
active markets inputs inputs
BEAHE BENIEER
BRI RE BAE BAE
(Audited) (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(&%) (B—EX) (BZER) (B=ER) Ch
Financial assets at fair value through M AR BEER
profit or loss HEHAZH
BHENEHEE - 66,996,021.60 - 66,996,021.60
Available-for-sale listed equity MHNESREE
instruments for available-for-sale AEHEmN
financial assets s TA 256,312,290.80 - - 256,312,290.80
256,312,290.80 66,996,021.60 - 323,308,312.40

Financial liabilities at fair value

through profit or loss

MRnBEER
EEHHAEH
BHEMERARE

76,807,591.20

76,807,591.20
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) FPHS i R M 5 (48
30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2015F6A30H (A E¥T)
IX. Disclosure of fair value (Continued) A REENE ()
2. Assets and liabilities disclosed at fair value 2. UAREBEEEENEEM
=R

30 June 2015

201546 A30H

Inputs used in the measurement of fair value

AREEREERANBAE
Quoted prices in Key observable  Key unobservable
active markets inputs inputs
EZTHE EETARE
AR SHRE BAE WAE
(Unaudited) (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(RigzERz) (B—FER) €=V (B=ER) A&t
Long-term receivables REEWH 2,962,452,017.80 2,962,452,017.80
Long-term borrowings REER 6,957,244,843.96 6,957,244,843.96
Bonds payable e EH 4,792,867,850.02 - 4,792,867,850.02
Long-term payables REEMK - 5,974,653,061.50 5,974,653,061.50
31 December 2014 201412 H31H
Inputs used in the measurement of fair value
ARBEREEANEAE
Quoted prices in Key observable  Key unobservable
active markets inputs inputs
EZNHR ERTAEE
BRI ME BAE AANE
(Audited) (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(FER) (B—ER) (B=ERX) (5=ZER) Ch
Long-term receivables REEKH - 2,584,732,011.48 - 2,584,732,011.48
Long-term borrowings REBER - 8,446,207,721.92 - 8,446,207,721.92
Bonds payable e[ EH 5,927,942,734.85 - - 5,927,942,734.85
Long-term payables 3 ANE - 5,225,098,459.60 - 5,225,098,459.60




Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

IX. Disclosure of fair value (Continued)

3.

Estimation of fair value

Fair value of financial assets/liabilities

The management has assessed the cash and cash equivalents,
notes receivable, accounts receivable, financial products under
other current assets, non-current assets due within 1 year, short-
term borrowings, notes payable, accounts payable and long-term
liabilities due within 1 year and long-term payables due within one
year. In each case, the fair value and carrying value are similar due

to short remaining period.

The finance team of the Group is led by the head of finance
department. It is responsible for formulating policies and procedures
applicable to the measurement of the fair value of financial
instruments. The finance team directly reports to the Chief Financial
Officer and the Audit Committee. On each balance sheet date, the
finance team analyzes the change in value of financial instruments
and ascertain the key inputs which apply to the valuation. The
process and result of valuation is subject to approval by the Chief

Financial Officer.

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities is determined as the
amount at which well-informed parties undergo exchange of assets
or settlement of debts out of free will and in a fair transaction. The
following methods and assumptions are used in estimating fair

values.

Financial assets/liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
the forward contracts of subsidiaries. The Group believes that the
fair value estimated using valuation techniques is reasonable and

the most appropriate value as of the balance sheet date.

The fair values of listed equity instruments are determined according

to quote prices on the market.

Interim Report 2015 FRHEAZRE

5 i R M 5 (48
20156 H308 (A R¥T)

-

O FeAE R B 92 B (4)
3.

NAEBEME
TRHEE/cRBEANER
ERECKITHTERE: BRE
B EWER - Rt RsEEF AR
BEm: - —FANENERBHEE -
REER - ENRER - ENERHRR—
FAIHNRBABE - —FA2EH
REENAHE  BERBHRIAR - A
A EBEELEREREBERE

AEENPEEGHMBEHMFHIBEA
RL - BEVESRIAAAEER
ENBERNEF  MBEREERAE

FUBENEAZEERS - BEE
ERERA  UBEEITERTA
EEZY BEHER ﬁﬁE’JIxEW\
B - HERENERKERFNBE
ZHUE ©

CHMEEMSBBEENAREE N
EAFRGF  ABBERORZE S
BRETEERBRAEBHEENS
BHE - L TFAEMREBAR G2
AREE -

AABEFELEZEHFAZHER
MEREE SREBEERETEFR
AIMEMAR - AEEBEE - UHE
BRifsstmanBERAEN XA

TrRREEBBXRERAENEE -
FiHERTAR  UWSREEER
REE-
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

IX. Disclosure of fair value (Continued)

3.

Estimation of fair value (Continued)
Fair value of financial assets/liabilities (Continued)

Fair values of long-term borrowings are determined using
discounted cash flows, at rates equal to market yield of other
financial instruments with similar contract terms, credit risks and
remaining term. As at 30 June 2015, non-performance risks

underlying long-term borrowings were appraised as insignificant.

Fair values of long-term receivables/ long-term payables are
determined using the present value of net leasing receipts/ net
leasing payments, at rates equal to the market yield of other finance

leases with similar contract terms, credit risks and remaining term.

The fair values of bonds payable are determined as quoted prices

on the market.

The level change in the fair value
From January to June 2015, there were neither transfers between
Level 1 and Level 2 for the measurement of fair value of financial

assets and liabilities, nor transfer into or out of Level 3.

I 7 2% BT (48
20156 A30H (A R#¥T)

Ju~ 2 SRR R ()

3.

AREEMSEGE)
TREE /SRAEBAAREE
(&)
REERRARRAS R B BVER
EAAREE  UBRLARER - &
FIELIR A FI 4 HIR M E A £ B T ALY
B R ASFTE - 201556 7
308 HYRBERTEFTRY
BB ATEX -

EfE s BN S A 4 EE
PR E RS, FRENRENR
B ABELARER - ERARM
5164 AR ) L A0 R B A OB M2
REAFRRERE -

ENES  UTSREBREQAE
1 o

AREBEEERXER

2015 1-6  TEeREEMNS
MEBEARBEMEAEE —ERNE
ZERZHENER - EEARED
EZEBANER -
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) Foh 5 ¥k 3% BT 5 (48
30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20156 H30H (A E#or)

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions + -~ B3 i B 1& R H 2 5

The related parties defined in these financial statements included the R EHERPATHOBEE HREBEetE
related parties under accounting standards and related parties under the Al A ENBEE S  LeEEEgREER
information disclosure requirements of SFC. BEREPRERBETT -
1. Parent 1. BT
Proportion of Proportion of
ownership voting
Registered Nature of Registered interest in power in
address business capital the Company the Company
HRLE HALE
Rl ABUE iAfEx BRI RAEL
(%) (%)
Weichai Group Holdings Limited Weifang City, External investment financial quarantee RMB1,200,000,000.00 16.83 16.83
EEERERERLA Shandong Province investment advisory planning and AR
Lg% organization/ coordination and
5T management of production operating

activities of corporates under the Group
BIMRABERRRERARE

B8/ HAEESENE

PREERRED

Shandong Heavy Industry Group Co., Ltd. is the ultimate controller AARHREIEFIABLRETEE
of the Company. BRAT] -

2. Subsidiaries 2. FAFH
Details of subsidiaries are set out in Note VII.1. FRafEBFRMELE -

3. Associates 3. Hﬁ%%ﬁ%

Details of associates are set out in Note VII.3. BN EFERMNTLE 3.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions

(Continued)
Particulars of other related parties which 4,
entered into material transactions with the

4.

Group

5 i R M 5 (48)
20156 A30H (A R#¥T)

Related party relationships
B S RE

T~ B B 5 B AR B e A2 5 (B

BASEBLEEARIH
Hub B H Bn

Referred to as

L

Shandong Heavy industry Group Co., Ltd
LWRETEBEERDA

Weichai Group Holdings Limited
HEEREERRA

Weichai Deutz Diesel Englne Co., Ltd.
DR BRSO BER A

Shandong Weichai Import and Export Co., Ltd.
IR AL OB R AR

Weichai Heavy-duty Machinery Co., Ltd.

M ERBRNBRAA

Yangzhou Yaxing Coach Co., Ltd.

HBNTCEFERHERAA

Yangzhou Shengda Special Vehicles Co., Ltd.

BB ERBERRRA

Weichai Generator Equipment Co., Ltd
HEBBREARD

Chongging Weichai D|ese| Engine Works

ER BB

Chongging Jiangjin Region Chongwei Casting Co., Ltd

EEMIZRERBEERAR

Chutian Engineering Machinery Company Limited
IR R TIREWER QA

Shantui Engineering Machinery Co., Ltd.

W TREMAR N AR AT

Shandong Shantui Machinery Co., Ltd.

ISR L R 2 A

Shandong Heavy Industry Group Finance Co., Ltd.
IWRETIREBEERAA

Shanzhong Finance Leasing Co.,Ltd.
LEREHERRAT

Shanzhong Jianji Co., Ltd.

LWERKER AR

Ultimate controller

RIRZEFIA

Parent

(SN

Common control by parent

A—BARLS

Common control by parent

A—S A4

Common control by parent

R— AR S

Common control by parent

A—BARES

Common control by parent

A—S A4

Common control by parent

R— &2 FEH

Common control by parent

A— AT

Common control by parent

RA—S A4

Same ultimate parent

Rl — B A IEHIA

Same ultimate parent

Rl — & & HIA

Same ultimate parent

R — A2 A

Same ultimate parent
—RIRPERIA

Same ultimate parent

BRI A
Same ultimate parent

[/ — SRR AR A

Shandong Heavy Industry
WRBT
Weichai Group Holdings
M sz ik
Weichai Deutz
ES LA
Weichai Import and Export
LA
Weichai Heavy-duty Machinery
ML B
Yangzhou Yaxing
BNEE
Shengda Special Vehicles
BEREE
Weichai Generator
HRES
Chongging Weichai
BEEER
Chongwei Casting
P 2
Chutian Engineering
IHEEER
Shantui Engineering
TR
Shandong Shantui
HIER L
Heavy Industry Finance Company
WRETHBRA
Shanzhong Finance Leasing
LWEREMES
Shanzhong Jianji

WEEE



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions

(Continued)

4.

Particulars of other related parties which 4,
entered into material transactions with the

Group (Continued)

Interim Report 2015 FRHEAZRE

5 i R M 5 (48
20156 H308 (A R¥T)

Related party relationships

T~ B B 05 B AR B e 52 B (B

BASEBLEEARIWN
HAibBAME 5 B R ()

Referred to as

B R E [k
Beigi Foton Motor Co., Ltd. Same key management personnel Beigi Foton
e RBAERNBRAA F—FREREAR tAEE
FOTON Lovol Heavy Industries Co., Ltd. Same key management personnel FOTON Lovol
BHEABRBREIRMHBERAA R—BREEAR BEEX

Shaanxi Automotive Holdings Group Co., Ltd.
RAAEEREERRRA

Shaanxi Automobile Industry Co., Ltd.
RAEXERAR

Shaanxi Automotive Group Co., Ltd.
RAAEEERREELRA

Shaanxi Fast Gear Automotive Transmission Co., Ltd.

REELHAEEHEEERAA

Shaanxi Huazhen Vehicle Parts Co., Ltd.
PREEZFSEHAFER AT

Shaanxi Huazhen Sancan Industry and

Trading Services Co.,Ltd.
REEZ=ETIERKEERAT
Shaanxi Tongli Special Purpose Vehicle Co., Ltd.
RABNEMAERREEIAA

Shaanxi Lantong Transmission Axle Co., Ltd.

REERESHERLDF

Baoji Huashan Engineering Vehicles Co., Ltd.
BERENTREHEREEAA

Xi'an Lande New Energy Automotive Technology
Development Co., Ltd.
AR R TERMNFREER A
Shaanxi Wanfang Vehicle Parts and
Components Co. Ltd.
RAEFSEZHHAERDA

Same key management personnel
as subsidiaries

BEARIRRA—BREEAR

Same key management personnel
as subsidiaries

BEARIRRA—BREEAR

Same key management personnel
as subsidiaries

BT ARIRRA—BREEAR

Same key management personnel
as subsidiaries

BEARIRRA—BREEAR

Same key management personnel
as subsidiaries

BEIARIRRA—BREEAR

Same key management personnel
as subsidiaries

BT ARIRRA—BREEAR

Same key management personnel
as subsidiaries

BT ARRRA—BREEAR

Same key management personnel
as subsidiaries

BT ARRRA—BREEAR

Same key management personnel
as subsidiaries

B ARRRA—BREEAR

Same key management personnel
as subsidiaries

B ARRRA—BREEAR

Same key management personnel
as subsidiaries

BYNRAR—HREEAR

Shaanxi Automotive Holdings

BROTHERR

Shaanxi Industry

RAE

Shaanxi Automotive
pRAEE

Shaanxi Fast Gear Automotive

BRZEEE

Huazhen Parts

EHRAM

Huazhen Services

ERRY

Tongli Special Purpose
BOEMH

Lantong Transmission

EREDEH

Baoji Vehicle

BASH

Lande New Energy
BEE R

Shaanxi Wanfang
RES 7
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T~ B B 5 B AR B e A2 5 (B

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions
(Continued)
4. Particulars of other related parties which 4.
entered into material transactions with the

BASEBLEEARIH
HibBAME S B R ()

Group (Continued)

Related party relationships
A T B 1R

Referred to as

L

Shaanxi Fangyuan Automobile Standard
Components Co. Ltd.
AT EAEREGBRAA

Shaanxi Tongchuang Huaheng Vehicle Radiator Co. Ltd.

RAERAEZ TERAEREELQA

Shaanxi Automobile Group Xunyang Baotong
Special Purpose Vehicles Co., Ltd.
RAAEEEAOGEREREERAR
Shaanxi Automobile Group Changsha Huantong
Automobile Manufacturing Co., Ltd.
RAAEEERDRBAEHEFRAF
Shaanxi Automobile Group Yan'an Special
Purpose Vehicles Co., Ltd.
RAAEEETLZERERRRA
Shaanxi Dongming Automobile System Co., Ltd
RAREEBRGERODBERAR

Shaanxi Zhongfu IDT Techology Co., Ltd
BREH EME R ERBEER AR

Shaanxi Shaangi Auto City Hotel Co., Ltd.
BRAGRR S B HEE AR A A

Shanghai Yuanxing Supply Chain
Management (Group) Limited
FEETHERERERAR
Shaanxi Zhongjiao Tianjian Vehicle Net Information
Technology Co., Ltd.
RAEPZREEBBESRMERLDF
Shaanxi Deyin Logistic Services Co., Ltd.

BREERDRRBEBERAA

Shaanxi Deyin Leasing Co., Ltd
EREMEHERR AR

Same key management personnel
as subsidiaries
B ARIRRA—BREEAR
Same key management personnel
as subsidiaries
B ARIRFA-—BREEAR
Same key management personnel
as subsidiaries
B ARIRRA—BREEAR
Same key management personnel
as subsidiaries
BYARIRFA—BREEAR
Same key management personnel
as subsidiaries
B ARRRA—BREEAR
Same key management personnel
as subsidiaries
B ARIRRA-—BREEAR
Same key management personnel
as subsidiaries
B ARIRR—BREEAR
Same key management personnel
as subsidiaries
BYARIRRA—BREEAR
Same key management personnel
as subsidiaries
BYARIRRA—BREEAR
Same key management personnel
as subsidiaries
BYARIRRA—BREEAR
Same key management personnel
as subsidiaries
HFRAIRRA—EAREEAE
Same key management personnel
as subsidiaries
BFRAIRA—AREEAER

Fangyuan Automobile

JIERE

Tongchuang Huaheng
&I

Xunyang Baotong
AGER

Changsha Huantong
ROBRE

Yan'an Special Purpose Vehicles
ERERE

Dongming Automobile

REGEHH

Shaanxi Zhongfu
RAETE

Shaangi Auto City
BRTE

Yuanxing Supply Chain
BITHER

Zhongjiao Tianjian

PRARE

Deyin Logistic
BRI

Deyin Leasing
EREE



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions
(Continued)

Particulars of other related parties which 4,

entered into material transactions with the

Group (Continued)

Interim Report 2015 FRHEAZRE

5 i R M 5 (48
20156 A30H (A R#T)

Related party relationships

T~ B B 05 B AR B e 52 B (B

BASEBLEEARIWN
HAibBAME 5 B R ()

Referred to as

BB 5 B R ]
Shaanxi Dongfeng Axle And Transmission Same key management personnel Dongfeng Axle
System Co., Ltd as subsidiaries RHEER
RAREEBEDRGRNERAA HFRAIRRA—EREEAER
Shaanxi Automobile Group Wenzhou Yunding Same key management personnel Wenzhou Yunding

Automobile Co., Ltd.
BRETEEERMETEABERAT
Shaanxi Tongjia Automobile Co., Ltd.
REBRTEFREELA

Zhuzhou Gear Company Limited

wNESHBRO AR AF

Zhuzhou Automobile Gear Factory

TN TEE R R

Shaanxi Tonghui Automotive Transportation Co., Ltd.

RIEBESEYRER AT

Xi'an FC Intelligence Transmission Co., Ltd.
AREREHREDHERAA

CIMC-SHAC (Xi'an) Special Vehicles Co., Ltd.

PERAER(AR)ERAEERAA

Xi‘an Cummics Engine Co., Ltd.

AXEARESRARDA

Baoding Shangi Tianma Automobile Co., Ltd

REBARETEERAA

Shaanxi Eurostar Auto Co., Ltd.

PREGERET 15 A BRI B R 2 A)

Weichai Power Westport New Energy
Engine Co., Ltd.

HELRTEEE R NBRAA]

Note: As KION GROUP AG became a subsidiary of the Group in June 2014, it s

as subsidiaries
HFRAIRRA—BREEAER
Same key management personnel
as subsidiaries
HFRARRA—BREEAER
Same key management personnel
as subsidiaries
HFRAIRRA—EREEAER
Same key management personnel
as subsidiaries
BFRAIRRA—EREEAER
Same key management personnel
as subsidiaries
BFRAIRRA—EREEAER
Jointly-controlled enterprise of
subsidiaries
FRAZAKLE
Associate of subsidiaries
FRAIZBERE
Associate of subsidiaries
FREZEERE
Associate of subsidiaries
FREIZEERE
Associate of subsidiaries
FRAIZBERE
Associate of subsidiaries
FREZEERE

was still an associate of the Group during the period from January to June
2014. The comparative figures disclosed in this report include the amount
of the related party transactions between the Group and KION GROUP AG.

BMET

Tongjia Automobile
BRTE

Zhuzhou Company
R

Zhuzhou Gear Factory

TR

Tonghui Automotive
IETE

FC Intelligence Transmission
LREE

CIMC-SHAC
REER

Xi'an Cummics

78 %2 FR A A

Shangi Tianma
BOTR S

Eurostar

BRET 45

Westport New Energy
FEIEER

KION GROUP AGRA201446 A{EA
AEEFHETF AR M2014F1-6A
MAEREE KSR - N R
EREHLEFBEAEEEKION
GROUP AGH) BB 5 X H %8 ©
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions

(Continued)

PR 5 3 M R (4)
201564308 (A EB¥T)

5. Major transactions between the Group and its

related parties

(1) Transaction of goods and services with related

parties

Purchase of goods from related parties (excluding tax)

Shaanxi Fast Gear Automotive
BOEES

Westport New Energy
FEH R

Tongli Special Purpose
BOER

Shaanxi Wanfang
REET

Weichai Deutz
HESBIOR

Weichai Import and Export
MG O

Xi'an Cummics

A% BREA AT

Weichai Heavy-duty Machinery
ML E R

Lantong Transmission
EREHH
CIMC-SHAC
RERTIER

Huazhen Parts

R

+ -

ol Wty Bl A S I 52 5y ()
5. AEBEEBBAINEER
2
(1) BEHIERMNSHERS

BRBERER D (TEH)

January-June 2015 January-June 2014
2015%1-6 B 201451-6 A
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

(REER) (Rig&=RZ)
Amount  Percentage Amount  Percentage
8 54t 28 e
(%) (%)
975,420,473.41 1,534,802,885.87 32.28
515,359,315.17 1,571,183,849.50 33.04
238,041,821.53 409,105,350.53 8.60
232,297,273.56 213,363,253.50 4.49
220,810,972.19 73,433,204.17 1.54
199,189,544.41 133,525,702.18 2.81
113,537,791.09 97,095,823.10 2.04
80,919,963.22 146,596,133.74 3.08
37,938,179.59 76,620,246.83 1.61
36,824,034.02 106,604,201.71 2.24
36,424,010.38 60,033,984.61 1.26
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30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions

(Continued)
5. Major transactions between the Group and its

related parties (Continued)

(1)

20156 A30H (A R#T)

Transaction of goods and services with related

parties (Continued)

Purchase of goods from related parties (excluding tax)

(Continued)

FC Intelligence Transmission
SI5ED

Zhongjiao Tianjian
AR

Fangyuan Automobile
HERE

Baoji Vehicle
BEEEL
Tongchuang Huaheng
REIEF

Others

Hit

-~ B Bk s B AR e H AR 5 ()

5. AKREEBABELINEER
& (&)

(1)

January-June 2015
2015%1-6 B
(Unaudited)

(RBER)
Amount

G

35,930,085.13

27,976,737.77

25,435,625.51

23,653,349.82

20,594,191.08

194,358,408.61

Percentage
Bl
(%)

1.19

I EmMEBERS
(&)
BB EERR(TEH)
(%)

3,014,711,

Note:

Deyin Leasing provides Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Company
Limited, a subsidiary in the Group, with services of financial leasing.
It was agreed among Deyin Leasing and third-party distributors that
for the vehicle monies of related business to be receivable by the
Group from distributors, Deyin Leasing may take up the payment
obligation on behalf of the distributors. From January to June 2015,
the amount of vehicle sales through this business mode amounted
to RMB676,803,500.00 (January to June 2014: 708,296,752.14).

Besides, Shanzhong Finance Leasing provides Shaanxi Heavy-
duty Motor Company Limited, a subsidiary in the Group, with
services of financial leasing. From January to June 2015, the
amount of vehicle sales through this business mode amounted
to RMB1,051,498,608.00. Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Company
Limited shall provide joint liability guarantee in respect of the
leasee’s failure to pay the instalment payments and interests under
the finance lease. The related risk exposure of joint liabilities was
RMB892,030,000.00 (31 December 2014: 1,142,020,000.00). For
details, see Note XII. 3.

776.49

January-June 2014
2014%1-6 3
(Unaudited)
(REERZ)
Amount Percentage
k| dt]
(%)
3,137,334.66 0.07
29,813,198.88 0.63
48,492,868.61 1.02
10,736,880.36 0.23
46,801,940.22 0.98
193,574,606.00 4.08
4,754,921,464.47 100.00

BIRAEANEE 2 T RAIMK
mERSEFRABRERE
HEEY  BRESME=H
HAEAMBEEBNER - 01 H
ERASREHARENRE
% - 2015F1-6 A BiBZEE
BEAFEENERBRAR
#676,803,500.007C (20144
1-6H : 708,296,752.147T)

o LEREREARAE
B2 FRAIKRASHTHER
RMARREREREEY -
20154F 1-6 A BB % IE EKE
NHENEHESTBAARE
1,051,498,608.007T ° BRFHE
AAEERARABERAEN
AT AREZNOBRERES
HNRERF B RBEETRIER
fE - HBEE T & R E R R
O A& A K #892,030,000.00
ot (2014 £ 12 A 31 B :
1,142,020,000.007C ) + £ 8
BRE2AMET= 3
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions

PR 5 3 M R (4)
201564308 (A EB¥T)

-~ B B O B AR e H AR 5 ()

(Continued)
5. Major transactions between the Group and its 5. AEEHEBABINEIER
related parties (Continued) 2 (4&)
(1) Transaction of goods and services with related (1) BB ATEmMEBERS
parties (Continued) (&)
Receiving services from related parties BB S XS

Weichai Group Holdings
MR I

Tonghui Automotive
g

Shaanxi Industry
POTEE

Shaanxi Automotive
pEE

Others

HAt

Rendering services to related parties

Others
HAb

January-June 2015

2015%1-6 A
(Unaudited)
(RBEK)
Amount Percentage
=8 L B
(%)

159,409,975.98

46,371,323.19

30,741,402.31

36,032,703.43

272,555,404.91

January-June 2015
2015%1-6 A
(Unaudited)

(REER)

Amount Percentage

=8 ]
(%)

20,222,627.64 100.00

20,222,627.64 100.00

January-June 2014

20145 1-6 A
(Unaudited)
(Rig&=RZ)
Amount  Percentage
o xAt]l
(%)
55,858,054.34 37.66
36,639,478.74 24.70
30,590,720.17 20.62
25,238,547.16 17.02
148,326,800.41 100.00
1] BB 75 H@ 1 55 7%
January-June 2014
2014 1-6 A
(Unaudited)
(REERZ)
Amount  Percentage
T LBl
(%)
17,227,538.05 100.00
17,227,538.05 100.00
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS i R M 5 (48
30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2015F6H30H (A E¥T)

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions 1 ~ Bi¥i 5 B8 R HAZ 5 (4)
(Continued)

5. Major transactions between the Group and its 5. AEEHEBEBEINEER
related parties (Continued) 2 (48)
(1) Transaction of goods and services with related (1) BB ITERMEKERLS
parties (Continued) (&)
Sale of goods to related parties (excluding tax) A S ER R (T ER)
January-June 2015 January-June 2014
2015%1-6 8 20145 1-6 A
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEXK) (REER)
Amount Percentage Amount  Percentage
&8 LE 61 okt =dtt]!
(%) (%)
Shaanxi Fast Gear Automotive
BNEE 580,910,137.21 950,462,746.77 26.88
Beigi Foton
kAt H 307,175,003.30 291,532,893.79 8.24
Westport New Energy
FEEFT LR 254,721,970.27 . 728,757,033.05 20.61
Weichai Import and Export
WSS H O 183,970,717.81 . 107,008,919.58 3.03
Shaanxi Wanfang
BREaE S 105,332,938.67 ' 97,837,244.90 2.77
Weichai Generator
ML E 99,349,289.89 . 98,978,263.39 2.80
Yangzhou Yaxing
BMEE 84,373,978.43 . 67,474,755.67 1.91
Weichai Deutz
SR R 88,500,864.07 . 40,747,230.31 1.15
Baoji Vehicle
BEHEH 65,887,417.10 . 63,313,581.70 1.79
Weichai Heavy-duty Machinery
L E 55,895,298.88 . 215,901,209.67 6.11
FOTON Lovol
BHRERX 48,977,919.86 . 85,255,470.09 2.41
Shantui Engineering
T2 36,956,878.20 . 68,097,019.69 1.93
Huazhen Parts
et 25,958,357.80 . 61,487,480.43 1.74
Others
Hi 686,980,427.74 659,129,648.67 18.63
2,624,991,199.23 (000 [0M 3 535,983,497.71 100.00
During the period, the prices for the Group’s sale of goods ANE - REFEMBEHEERD
and rendering of services to related parties as well as o REAKER  EEES
purchase of goods and receiving services from related parties RS ABRETIBEBIRRTE °

were determined with reference to market rates.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions 1 ~ B 5 B8 R HAZ 5 (4)

(Continued)
5. Major transactions between the Group and its 5. XEBHEBBINIER
related parties (Continued) 2 (4&)
(2) Leasing with related parties (2) BAEAHMEE
As lessor 1ERHA
January-June January-June
2015 2014
2015%1-6 8 2014%1-6 A
Type of leased (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
property (REER) (REEZ)
HE Lease revenue Lease revenue
BERR HEWA HEWA
Xi'an FC Buildings and equipment
(i 25 FE#E 8,111,621.70 8,111,621.70
Westport New Energy Buildings
B IR E=E 6,213,530.22 2,089,850.22
Tonghui Automotive Buildings and equipment
EERE EEERE 5,023,418.67 5,024,980.32
Xi'an Cummics Buildings, equipment & land
a2 AR AT FERE T 4,137,681.84 4,080,981.84
Shanzhong Finance Leasing Buildings
LWERERSE FE 2,987,853.04 3,066,353.04
Heavy-duty Generator Buildings
EWEE EE 2,250,000.00 2,250,000.00
Huazhen Parts Buildings and equipment
EEREF FE#E 1,735,314.80 164,268.00
Weichai Import and Export Buildings
HESEN O FE 1,627,052.64 2,379,435.84
Shaangi Auto City Buildings
BT FE 221,454.00 -
Shaanxi Industry Buildings
pRE FE 161,530.20 161,530.20
Shaanxi Wanfang Buildings
R E T FE 58,620.00 58,620.00
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions 1 ~ B 7 B8 R HAZ 5 (4)
(Continued)

5. Major transactions between the Group and its 5. AEEHEBABINEIER
related parties (Continued) 2 (1&)
(2) Leasing with related parties (Continued) (2) B HTHEEE)
As Lessee tER AN

January-June

January-June

2015 2014

2015%1-6 8 2014%1-6 A

Type of leased (Unaudited) (Unaudited)

property (REEEFR) (REFEZ)

Gish= Lease fee Lease fee

BERR HEE HE?

Shaanxi Industry Buildings

B FE 9,402,948.84 3,441,563.11
Zhuzhou Company Buildings

R R FE 3,335,400.00 3,335,400.00

Weichai Group Holdings

Buildings and equipment

SRR X FE#E 6,577,567.73 15,076,520.04
Shaanxi Fast Gear Automotive Buildings
pOEEE FE 6,344,062.69 7,127,340.20
Chongging Weichai Buildings
BE ML FE 1,999,998.00 1,999,998.00
Shaanxi Automotive Buildings
OIS FE 1,427,428.82 1,427,428.84

AE NEBEEBBIAER
BER2EMHERRE °

During the period, the prices for the Group's leasing with
related parties were determined with reference to market

rates.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions

S5 e R WA R (A

201564308 (A EB¥T)

-~ B Bk s B AR S H A2 5 ()

(Continued)
5. Major transactions between the Group and its 5. XEBHEBBINIER
related parties (Continued) 2 (4&)
(3) Transfer of assets with related parties (3) B EEEE
Details of transaction January-June 2015 January-June 2014
XERE 2015%1-64 2014%1-68
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(RBER) (REEER)
Amount Percentage Amount Percentage
| fudi] £ L i
(%) (%)
KION GROUP AG Purchase of fixed assets
BEETAE 31,098,144.00 100.00
Shaanxi Fast Gear Automotive  Purchase of fixed assets
REED BEETEE 268,887.01 - -
Shaanxi Fast Gear Automotive  Sale of fixed assets
BOZEE HEBEERE 1,737.00 100.00
Weichai Group Holdings Purchase of fixed assets
HESEE IR BEETEE 48,326.02 - -
Weichai Group Holdings Sale of fixed assets
HEREIR HEETEE 112,890.41 - -
Weichai Heavy-duty Machinery  Sale of fixed assets
M EH HEBEERE 1,405.99 - -

During the period, the Group’s purchase and sale of fixed

assets from and to related parties were on prices determined

with reference to market rates.

AE - KNEE BT REN
HEBRTEEBR2EMSE
FRIRTE o
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions

(Continued)

5.  Major transactions between the Group and its 5. AEEHEBABINEIER
related parties (Continued) 2 (1&)
(4)  On 21 March 2013, the Group entered into the Financial (4) A"EFEHRLNEETEEHMBE

BRAR(NLEREIFBHBRA D)
MR2013F3 21 HE A& @b
R WaE) - RigWE - ILRE
ITHBRARARABARERFA
AREHER 5 HERHE
fEmR%EE - AR BRRE
EEMEME RRE(EBIRY
BEIMRTREARRITERAE
RAEEARENER LTS
RAGSEEEMTEBERNER
BERTRENRBREXE
ERNEREXR A FHREKF

Services Agreement with Shandong Heavy Industry
Group Finance Co., Ltd. (“Shandong Heavy-duty Finance
Company”). Pursuant to the agreement, Shandong Heavy-
duty Finance Company provided deposit, credit, accounting
and clearing services as well as other financial services to the
Company and its controlling subsidiaries. The interest rates
for credit relating to financial services as well as fee rates are
determined according to the Financial Services Agreement
and based upon the relevant requirements of the People’s
Bank of China’s under which the lending rate shall not exceed
the minimum level permitted under the interest rates and
fee rates for money lending of similar types and categories

available to the Group from other major commercial banks in

FEE -

the PRC.

30 June 2015 31 December 2014
2015%6H30H 2014124318
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(RBERZ) (&E%)
Amount Percentage Amount Percentage
| judt] £t 54t
(%) (%)
Cash and cash equivalents placed with related parties
EhEERINELED
Shandong Heavy-duty Finance Company
WREBTHHKATF 12,013,861,797.14 10,797,455,619.70 4419
Short-term borrowings
EEHER
Shandong Heavy-duty Finance Company
WREBTHHKATF 510,000,000.00 120,000,000.00 434
Long-term borrowings
REBEX
Shandong Heavy-duty Finance Company
LWRETHBAF 100,000,000.00 1.36
Non-current liabilities due within 1 year
—FRIBNERDEE
Shandong Heavy-duty Finance Company
WRETHBAR 100,000,000.00 - -
Balance of bank acceptance bills
AR RITR E R
Shandong Heavy-duty Finance Company
WRETHHAA 112,209,803.82 49,697,310.66 0.46

Except for the transactions with associates, all the above
related party transactions also constitute connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions as defined
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules of the Hong Kong

Stock Exchange.

BREBRELFRETIRHIN
P Lt B RS 75 R 5 B B 4 X
BB P TR A 14AFT
EBRZHAER SR ERER
=%
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions

(Continued)
Amounts due from/to related parties

6.

B D RHBRA A

Accounts receivable

& i BR K

Weichai Heavy-duty Machinery

MR E

Weichai Import and Export
ML O

Yangzhou Yaxing
HBMNEE

Weichai Generator

MR EE

Beigi Foton

kA H

Changsha Huantong
RYRB

Yuanxing Supply Chain
EITHERE

Eurostar

B AT 55

FC Intelligence Transmission
B {ED

Shengda Special Vehicles
RERER

Tongli Special Purpose
BIHEM

Shantui Enginecing

TR

Yan'an Special Purpose Vehicles

EZEHAE
Others
EAh,

PR 5 3 M R (4)
201564308 (A EB¥T)

-~ B B O B AR e H AR 5 ()
6. BAMETS BB FIRERE

30 June 2015
2015%6H30H
(Unaudited)
(REER)

Gross carrying

amount

AR BREE

109,740,145.28

104,110,409.45

100,853,094.21

85,771,818.62

74,385,437.76

72,137,410.03

64,747,276.00

41,004,509.04

40,504,876.45

31,430,191.19

23,823,317.97

23,281,128.54

21,497,067.00

250,511,781.38

1,043,798,462.92

Provision for
bad debt
BIRERE

(7,554,637.49)

(4,440,790.04)

(5,043,889.71)

(3,769,222.97)

(3,762,578.28)

(3,606,870.50)

(3,237,363.80)

(27,520,667.02)

(2,329,345.94)

(1,773,010.82)

(1,191,165.90)

(849,154.07)

(1,074,853.35)

(10,376,227.12)

(76,529,777.01)

31 December 2014
2014412 A31H
(Audited)

(@

WL

Gross carrying
amount

AR R %R

%)

Provision for
bad debt
EIRER

56,720,286.68

58,184,726.93

25,456,543.93

10,708,740.00

23,002,085.33

72,094,410.03

118,342,376.00

40,596,412.38

26,802,272.74

41,820,270.14

21,693,360.62

5,431,146.68

19,558,815.00

175,523,609.03

(4,151,658.94)

(2,877,197.95)

(1,274,062.20)

(535,437.00)

(1,178,178.06)

(4,739,071.75)

(5,917,118.80)

(25,035,540.50)

(1,342,430.24)

(2,091,013.51)

(1,093,860.52)

(271,564.55)

(977,940.75)

(9,883,163.03)

695,935,055.49

(61,368,237.80)
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions + -~ B 5 B1& e H A2 5 (5])
(Continued)

6. Amounts due from/to related parties 6. BHATEWENSIEHRLE
(Continued) (48)

30 June 2015
20156 H30H

31 December 2014
2014912 A318

(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (B&E%)

Other receivables
H 4t P& UK

Tongjia Automobile
BEAE

Shangi Tianma
RPN

Zhuzhou Gear Factory
N

Zhuzhou Company
=L e

Others

H A,

Gross carrying

amount

AR E EREE

14,085,327.39

13,623,932.69

11,577,943.78

6,971,326.30

70,589,492.13

116,848,022.29

Provision for
bad debt
BERERE

(704,266.37)

(10,760,778.15)

(139,178.96)

(11,604,223.48)

Gross carrying Provision for
amount bad debt
14,084,869.54 (704,243.48)

13,311,675.37

11,332,107.81

7,988,767.67

64,404,277.65

(10,649,340.30)

(250.68)

111,121,698.04

(11,353,834.46)
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions
(Continued)

Amounts due from/to related parties
(Continued)

6. BELTEWENREKRE
(%)

30 June 2015 31 December 2014

20156 A30H 2014912 831H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (BEZ)
Notes receivable (Bank acceptance bills)
EREE(RTERLESR)
Deyin Leasing
mIREE 777,740,000.00 -
Yangzhou Yaxing
HBMEE 143,834,777.51 148,078,777.51
Weichai Heavy-duty Machinery
e S BB 44,000,000.00 40,100,000.00
Baoji Vehicles
BEHEE 40,500,000.00 6,860,000.00
Shantui Engineering
TR 32,365,500.00 29,000,000.00
FOTON Lovol
BHERX 27,850,000.00 500,000.00
Others
Hth 19,197,000.00 49,209,500.00
1,085,487,277.51 273,748,277.51
Prepayments
FEATRIE
Deyin Logistic
BRI 55,153,993.41 21,863,555.82
Others
H1h 50,848,928.40 40,725,386.72

106,002,921.81

62,588,942.54

Interests receivable
BEWF R
Shandong Heavy Industry Finance Company

WLEREIHHB LA

138,112,977.67 133,399,138.89

Dividends receivable

& Wi B

Eurostar

BRAT 45

3,040,000.00 3,040,000.00
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions

(Continued)
6. Amounts due from/to related parties 6. BABAEWEMNRERE
(Continued) (48)
30 June 2015 31 December 2014
20156 H30H 2014412 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (fE®|HZ)
Accounts payable
ER R
Tonghui Automotive
mERS 663,422,599.04 189,675,651.77
Shaanxi Fast Gear Automotive
BOLEH 360,283,902.83 260,414,122.75
Shaanxi Wanfang
BREEE 155,904,724.43 112,215,499.84
Tongli Special Purpose
BHEH 134,783,145.71 108,723,117.21
Baoji Vehicle
=B 89,218,333.18 128,952,889.26

Weichai Import and Export
S O
Xi'an Cummics

45,278,064.19

43,026,012.07

P& R HT 40,729,839.81 48,065,279.22
Lantong Transmission

EimEEwH 26,841,927.39 20,634,819.97
CIMC-SHAC

FEEFR 24,942,509.75 30,172,556.92
Huazhen Parts

ERIMH 21,705,839.05 5,237,518.70
Fangyuan Automobile

HEAE 21,365,277.13 21,981,866.07
Others

HAh 143,991,815.65 139,805,430.64

Notes receivable
BERRB(RITERLESR)
Westport New Energy
BT BER

Shaanxi Wanfang
PREGE T

Others

H A,

1,728,467,978.16

186,913,327.83

75,800,000.00

45,182,873.94

307,896,201.77

1,108,904,764.42

17,532,400.00

17,532,400.00
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

X. Related Party Relationships and Transactions

Other payables

Hp AR

Shaanxi Automotive
PR %

Shaanxi Industry
B E %

Shandong Heavy Industry
WRET

Others

HAth

84,871,495.53

40,766,092.95

28,793,434.79

154,431,023.27

Dividends payable
FEF R
Shaanxi Automotive

PR s E

4,882,978.72

Long-term payables
REEMRK
Other immaterial associates

HpIFERB & D E

240,735,035.80

Non-current liabilities due within one year

—FRIBFRBRME

Other immaterial associates

HiFERBELE

77,636,739.90

Amounts due from/to related parties were non-interest bearing
and unsecured. Of which the terms of repayment for amounts of
trading nature will follow the requirement of terms of trading, while
amounts of non-trading nature have no fixed terms of repayment.

R Ui K% A< B e

(Continued)
6. Amounts due from/to related parties 6. BT EWENRERE
(Continued) (&)
30 June 2015 31 December 2014
20156 H30H 2014912 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (fe&%)
Prepayments
AW KIE
Baoji Vehicle
ERER 5,037,163.00 4,142,950.00
Tongli Special Purpose
BmOEHA 1,513,573.00 2,024,565.00
Weichai Deutz
LB 181,000.00 -
Wenzhou Yunding
BINETE 118,574.90 125,378.90
Changsha Huantong
ENIRE 2,201.60 999,574.23
Huazhen Parts
EREH 2,288,482.00
Others
Hih 104,718.00 69,718.00
6,957,230.50 9,650,668.13

112,701,337.18
15,605,596.21
33,000,000.00

22,025,498.63

183,332,432.02

32,827,177.30

129,153,358.80

191,407,618.80

BB AFFIE

EEM - H o BHERMNERRE
HEZEFMRE  FEZERERE

B e
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) B i R B 5T (A8
30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20156 H30H (AR #or)
XI. Share-based Payment = e S A%

Share-based Payment Project Applicable to Staff
Members of KION

As at 30 June 2015, 28,997 valid bonus shares had been granted by
KION GROUP AG (31 December 2014: 29,116 shares). In the first half of
2015, with the lapse of some bonus shares, the number of valid bonus
shares decreased by 119 shares. From January to June 2015, total costs
recognized in respect of equity-settled share-based payment related to
this project was EUR113,000.00 (equivalent to RMB776,298.70) (January
to June 2014: Nil).

Share Incentive Scheme Applicable to KION
Managers

In March 2015, a Share Incentive Scheme implemented by KION GROUP
AG became applicable to managers with retrospective effect from 1
January 2015, for a term of three years (KION 2015 Senior Management
Long-term Incentive Scheme). At the beginning of the period subject to
appraisal, on 1 January 2015, 200,000 virtual shares with specific fair
value were granted to managers. Such virtual shares were apportioned in
proportion to the total annual remuneration of the respective managers

who were granted such shares.

As at 30 June 2015, accumulated liabilities incurred from the cash-settled
share-based payments amounted to EUR5,501,000.00 (or equivalent to
RMB37,791,319.90 (31 December 2014: EUR1,623,000.00 (or equivalent
to RMB11,928,960.00). In particular, EUR4,170,000.00 belonged to the
2014 tranche, which was equivalent to RMB28,647,483.00 (31 December
2014: EUR1,623,000.00, equivalent to RMB12,100,438.80), and
EUR1,331,000.00 belonged to the 2015 tranche, which was equivalent to
RMB9,143,836.90.

Share Incentive Scheme Applicable to KION
Executive Board

As part of the Share Incentive Scheme of KION GROUP AG, members of
the Executive Board were granted virtual shares over a fixed period of time
(2.5 years for the 2013 tranche and 3 years for the tranches in subsequent
years). At the beginning of the period subject to appraisal, on 1 January
2015, 200,000 virtual shares with specific fair value were granted to
members of the Executive Board. Such virtual shares were apportioned
in the manner stipulated under the respective service contract of each

member of the Executive Board.

KIONEIR#®BX{SEE

#HZE2015F6H30H ' KION GROUP AG
128,997 IR B KA IR (2014F 12 A 31
H:29,1168%) » f£2015F ¥ FRHRI D
ATRR AR AR A 11908% » 20154 1-6 A #iAK
BEHENUEREEORG X HHERY
B ARIT113,000.00 0 FTrAEARE
776,298.7070 (20145 1-6 B : £) o

KIONKE R BBt 2

2015937 * KION GROUP AGH #1218
MEHET B2015F1 A1ARRAH =F MK
BN ET 2 (KION2015F & & & BB =1
Zl) - F2015F 1 A1BEMEZIE &
BHEET2080EAREAR BENE#R
Bt - ZERRODIEBECLCEFERR TR
DIFEABEFHOERLAETHER ©

HZEZ2015F6A30H  UWBESHEER
BN EENRFTEBEBSEASR T
5,501,000.00 * i & AR #37,791,319.90
JL(20149F12A318 : Byt1,623,000.00
e ARM11,928,960.007T) » He - B
7C4,170,000.00 B R 2014 F 1% T 1758 -
A AR 28,647,483.00 70 (20144 12
HA318 : BJ7T1,623,000.00 ° 1A AR
#12,100,438.80 7T ) ' |8 7C 1,331,000.00
BR201GFHRTHE  TEARKE
9,143,836.907T °

KION# 1T Z S &R E R B =T &

YEBKION GROUP AGR#E S B =t &l 80 —
By FTEESRBEE—EEEREHE
(20135 R H2.5F  BEMTBEAIFT )W
BT ERIG o 201591 818 E M
EZYEH  HITEEERERK T208H
EEREAARBEMNERRD  ZEHRK
MIRBEUATEE SR ENRGE S B+
RERNTADE o
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

XI. Share-based Payment (Continued)

Share Incentive Scheme Applicable to KION
Executive Board (Continued)

As at 30 June 2015, accumulated liabilities incurred from the cash-settled
share-based payments amounted to EUR12,771,000.00 (or equivalent to
RMB87,735,492.90 (31 December 2014: EUR6,083,000.00 (or equivalent
to RMB45,352,414.80). In particular, EUR8,118,000.00 belonged to the
2013 tranche, which was equivalent to RMB55,769,848.20 (31 December
2014: EUR4,356,000.00, equivalent to RMB32,476,593.60), and
EUR3,719,000.00 belonged to the 2014 tranche, which was equivalent
to RMB25,549,158.10 (31 December 2014: EUR1,727,000.00, equivalent
to RMB12,875,821.20). EUR934,000.00 belonged to the 2015 tranche,
which was equivalent to RMB6,416,486.60.

XII. Commitments and contingencies
1. Significant commitments

PR 5 3 M R (4)
20156 A30H (A R#¥T)

T ey A (41)

KION#{TZESREX B E
(&)

HZE200566 8308 LA SHEEK
KON EENRFTEBEBSE AR T
12,771,000.00 * #1& AR¥87,735,492.90
JL(201412 8318 : B£6,083,000.00
#fr& ANR#45352,414807L) * Hep - B
J1.8,118,000.00 B 2013 F M=% F1H 58 -
#r & AR #55,769,848.20 7t (2014 4F 12
H31H8 : BJT4,35600000  TéE AR
#32,476,593.60 7t ) + B 7T 3,719,000.00
BR204FHETHE  TEARE
25,549,158.107L (2014412 A318 : Bt
1,727,000.00 * # & A K #12,875,821.20
JL) + BRT934,000.00 R 2015F M T 15
% 1A AR6,416,486.607T °

T2 A& R BR R H

1. EERHEEE

30 June 2015 31 December 2014
201556 H30H 201412 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(RBER) (g&E=)

Capital commitments BARAEH

2,020,424,707.45 2,119,627,932.26

2. Exposure to Confirmation Risks

Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a tri-party cooperation agreement with distributors and
endorsing bank. Distributors will deposit guarantee money of not
lower than 30% to the bank and apply for establishment of bank
acceptance bill according to the amount of credit facility provided
by the bank. Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd. assumes security
obligation in favour of the distributors for the difference between
amount of notes and guarantee money. As at 30 June 2015, open
position of outstanding acceptance bill was RMB911,798,293.06 (31
December 2014: RMB812,232,432.15).

2. REBHORRE

KRR ZFRARKAENTEARA
BIEQHE  RERITZHAEIS
A VEwRE - EEERRITEATE
R30%HRFES - REBERITHTH
—EEREE  AEALIRITELE
ZoRRAERRBARARBEHE
REZERESERREBSIMEZENE
FRFEEMT - HE201586A308
BARZHMNA L ERHOEAARE
911,798,293.06 7L (20144 12 A 31
B : AR#812,232,432.155T) °



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

XII. Commitments and contingencies (Continued)
3. Finance lease business

Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a cooperation agreement with Shanzhong Finance
Leasing Co., Ltd.. It is agreed by and between the two parties that
Shanzhong Finance Leasing Co., Ltd. shall provide finance lease
service to Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd. or its distributors.
Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd. shall provide joint liability
guarantee in respect of the leasee’s failure to pay the instalment
payments and interests under the finance lease. As at 30 June
2015, risk exposure of joint liabilities was RMB892,030,000.00 (31
December 2014: RMB1,142,020,000.00).

4. Guarantee
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3. EHMEREARERANE
%
RARZFRARARAEE AEFRA
AELEMEHAEBERAREA
Bt AN TEILERERESR
NRAARAEARBHRRASEL
HEREREAERTY - BRAER Y
BEERAR AMERS/AM T K
SRHBERE S AR R S RE
EHRFEME - BLE2015F 6 A30
B @%ETREERRHBOBARE
892,030,000.007T (2014412 A 31
H: AR#1,142,020,000.007T) °

4., EREHE

30 June 2015 31 December 2014
201556 H30H 201412 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(RBER) (gE=)

Loan guarantee B RER
Other guarantee E MR

144,577,045.50 156,903,102.00
38,526,399.20 41,811,004.80

183,103,444.70 198,714,106.80

XIIIl. Subsequent Events

Issuance of Bonds by an overseas wholly-owned
subsidiary and the Company’s provision of
guarantee

Pursuant to the resolutions of the Board in its sixth provisional meeting
held on 13 July 2015, in order to repay the bank loans involved in the
Group's acquisition of further shares in KION, Weichai International
(Hong Kong) Energy Group Co., Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, intends to issue bonds overseas in the total amount of EUR500
million or its equivalent amount in US Dollars. The Company intends to
provide Weichai International (Hong Kong) Energy Group Co., Ltd. with

unconditional and unsubordinated guarantee for this issuance of bonds.

= EEAMEHREHE

ARBRENPEEFLARER
RERHER

BIBEARRB2015F7A13HERNRGRE
EECRAE BTIREBERSEHER
KION GROUP AGH& ¥ R&IIRITE R » X
RAEIZEFRARKEBRBR(EA)REE
BRARHREHEINETRES BT S E
ELMES - ARRBAKREER(EE)
BEREEAR AR A X B ERBEEE -
ERBHER -
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

XIIIl. Subsequent Events (Continued)

Exercise of put option by LMH

On 31 August 2012, the Company, through its indirectly wholly-owned
subsidiary Weichai Lux, entered into a Framework Agreement with KION
GROUP AG, for the acquisition of a 70% interest in both LHY GP and
LHY Co from KION GROUP AG. Linde Material Handling GmbH (“LMH"),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of KION GROUP AG, held the remaining 30%
shareholding in LHY GP and LHY Co (hereinafter the “Transaction”).
The Transaction was completed on 27 December 2012. Pursuant to
the Framework Agreement, LMH was granted a put option to request
Weichai Lux to acquire from LMH a 20% interest in both LHY GP and
LHY Co and such option is exercisable during any time (i) within the six
months after the fourth anniversary of completion of the Transaction, or (ii)
within three months after the second anniversary of the completion of the
listing of KION GROUP AG. The trading of the KION GROUP AG shares
on the Frankfurt Stock Exchange commenced on 28 June 2013 (Central

European Time).

On 20 July 2015, LMH exercised the put option by serving a written notice
to Weichai Lux, to request Weichai Lux to acquire from LMH a 20%
interest in both LHY GP and LHY Co. The consideration for this transaction
was EUR77,429,000. As of the date of approval for issuance of these

financial statements, the transaction was yet to be completed.

Dividend payment

On 27 August 2015, under the authority granted by the shareholders
of the Company, the board of directors of the Company considered
and approved the distribution to all shareholders of a cash dividend
of RMB1.00 (including tax) for every 10 shares held based on the
3,998,619,278 shares, representing the total share capital of the

Company, without any capitalisation of reserve.

MEYR HEETE

20128 A31H  ARFIABHELZET
NAHEEEFREHEKION GROUP AGEE
CHEZE %) BEEKION GROUP AGHIBEH
RKOMERBELEBERATINEREERE
E(TEBIMERE])E70%R4 - KION
GROUP AGHIZETRAIMEMEIIRESR
RAR(THEIMEDE D FEREREY
BEBANMMEREBEFH30%KE (AT
GHWIZARS])  ZRXHER20124F
12A278BFEAK - IRIBCGEZRWGHE) - HiE
MBI T -BELERE  ERERH
LERBRENEYHBEONEREYS
EE R A20% 8 I FARIEIR EE20 % 8 7
o Pl E BRI TE O BITE
(WVFZAR S TR ERENF RN SNEAN
77{# - K (ii)EKION GROUP AGLEM&E
ZFERMN=EARNITE - 2013F6H28H
(BN E0RERS) - KION GROUP AGHIRR
DFRREEN R BESRRHIETEER °

201557 A208 - WEY R A4 5 B AR R
BRI ERETRBAN  ERALERE
BEHRAOMBERELBEY A20%H)
BRI RE20% M s - RABER
SEERT, 742 98T - BHERMERK
HAEREA  FRXZEARTA -

K & AL F|

201598 A27H * AR EZERIEK
RERGHEE  FRBBURFLREK
3,998,619,278 R AEE - MEERES
TORRERSAFARBITT(ER) - T
B ABESEERA -



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

XIV. Other Significant Events

1.

Leases

As the lessor

Finance leases: As at 30 June 2015, the balance of unrealized
finance income is RMB442,666,228.37 (31 December 2014:
477,158,400.00) and is apportioned to the leasing period using
effective interest rate method. Pursuant to the leasing contract
signed with the lessee, the minimum lease receivables under non-

cancellable leases are as follows:

BEHEEFERHEA

Finance lease, as lessor

4,494,217,232.97

For fixed assets leased out under operating lease, refer to Note V.17.

As the lessee

Finance leases: As at 30 June 2015, the balance of unrecognised
finance costs is RMB724,435,507.49 (31 December 2014:
RMB688,897,440.00) and is apportioned to the leasing period using
effective interest rate method. Pursuant to the leasing contract
signed with the lessor, the minimum lease payables under non-

cancellable leases are as follows:

BEHEEFEREEA

Finance lease, as lessee

8,845,385,516.89

For fixed assets leased in under finance lease, refer to Note V.17.
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T ﬁmiE%

HE

EREMEA

BEME  R2015F6A308H -
RERMEWNEZNHRERARE
442,666,228.37 7L (20144 12 A 31
H :477,158,400.00) * WA EEF
EEEHERNEERBETOH -
RIEEERBARITNEESR - T8
BEEHENREEERFEOT

30 June 2015 31 December 2014

20156 H30H 201412 A831H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (L ®|HZ)

4,561,127,323.20

REMLBEEEE  2RKEH
17 ¢

T’E?%E@ﬂ}\
FhEFE - MN2015F6 8308
AEAMEEANBRTEARARK
724,435,507.497C (2014412 A 31
H: AR%688,897,440.007T) * £
BRFEEEREHANSE
mﬂ% BEEHBAZTNRES
B FNRAIREEENSRERENRE
(I N

30 June 2015 31 December 2014

2015%F6H30H 201412 A831H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (e #&Z)

8,746,760,808.00

MEAABEEE  28MER -
17 »
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

XIV. Other Significant Events

1.

Leases (Continued)

As the lessee (Continued)

Material operating lease: Pursuant to the leasing contract signed
with the lessor, the minimum lease payables under non-cancellable

leases are as follows:

RS i 25 BT 5 (%)
20156 A30H (A R#¥T)

T 3 Ay 2 0 (4

1.

REMEEREEA

Operating lease, as lessee

Segment reporting

Operating segments

The Group organizes and manages its operating business in
accordance with the nature of business and provision of products
and services. Each operating segment of the Group is one operating
group, providing products and services with risks and rewards

different from those of other operating segments.

The details of operating segments are as follows:

(@ manufacturing and sale of diesel engines and related parts

("Diesel engines”);

(b)  manufacturing and sale of automobiles and major automobile
components other than diesel engines (“Automobiles and

other major automobile components”);

(0 manufacturing and sale of other automobile components

("Other components”);

(d) provision of import and export services (“Import & export

services"”);

(e)  forklift trucks production and warehousing technology

(“Forklift trucks and warehouses technology services”).

HE(H|)
tERAEA (&)
BAGEHEE - REREAARTH

HEAR TARBEAENRERAE
NEENT -

Minimum lease payments

BEAENRE
30 June 2015 31 December 2014
2015%6H30H 201412 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(RBER) (§&ER)

2,134,472,667.72

2,030,835,481.72

7 B E

L& Ep
AEBEHNRERBRBERHOHELIA
KPR E R ARG H AN E
2o AEENSEALESBE—EX
BEE - RHERIRREMEED
BB &Y B2 2 BXAS A R R EL A AR 4 0 B
) 3 M ) 2 A AR 7S

AT REHE & 5 BB A B AR EE -
() HEMHERHERAHETH

(T 5emi ) -

(by 4EREERERETBAET
(B ELEmE) ([FER
HiFBREZEM])

(0 HERFEEEMAIETHME
(TEAZEM])
H A AR

(d) RHEEDL RS ([£

%1

() XELERBERM(IXER
BEREMRE ] -



Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

XIV. Other Significant Events (Continued)

2.

Segment reporting (Continued)

Operating segments (Continued)

Management monitors the results of operating segments separately
for the purpose of making decisions about resources allocation and
performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based
on reportable segment profit, which is a measure of adjusted total
profits. The adjusted total profits are measured consistently with the
Group's total profits, except that interest income, finance expenses,
investment income, dividend income, gains from changes in fair
value of financial instruments as well as head office expenses are

excluded from such measurement.

Other than forklift trucks production and warehousing technology
segment, segment assets exclude equity investments at fair value
through profit or loss for the current period, derivative instruments,
dividends receivable, interests receivable, available-for-sale financial
assets, long-term equity investments, goodwill, deferred tax
assets and other unallocated head office assets as these assets are

managed on a group basis.

Other than forklift trucks production and warehousing technology
segment, segment liabilities exclude derivative instruments,
borrowings, income tax payable, deferred tax liabilities and other
unallocated head office liabilities as these liabilities are managed on

a group basis.

Inter-segment transfers are transacted with reference to the prices

used in the transactions carried out with third parties.
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2.

2 EHE (&)

rEDE(E)
EREHREEERMIBEREN)
KEH  HREBETHNEERRD
FETER - DEEE  UREND
MIBREMETHE - ZEFRRY
MERBEETHBRNEERE BITE
EHBWA MIBER - RE W -
BFBA - 2RIEAREEEZDHW
AR EBERZIN  ZEREARE
BAHAREE A o
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) FPHS i R M 5 (48
30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2015F6A30H (A E¥T)
XIV. Other Significant Events (Continued) 0 At B SE RO (4)
2. Segment reporting (Continued) 2. DEMwE(E)
Operating segments (Continued) EDEB(4E)
January to June 2015 20154 1-6 H
Automobiles Forklift trucks
and other major and warehouses
automobile Other  Import & export technology
Diesel engines components components services services
(Unaudited) ARER YELER
(727 Kini TERRM B 254 EHNER BERIRE
Segment revenue: LEL
Sale to external customers NPEPHE 7,066459,211.86  11,524123359.10  1,027,929,11335 54.369,966.77  16,782,378,217.60  36,455,259,868.68
Inter-segment sale HPHEE 1,691,508, 415.01 469,415,049.50 16,415,093.88 - 2177,338558.39
Total At 8,757,967,626.87 1152412335910  1,497,344,162.85 70,785,060.65  16,782,378,217.60  38,632,598,427.07
Adjustment: Fi
Elimination of inner-segment sale BHEIHERE (2,177,338,558.39)
Revenue WA 36,455,259,868.68
Seqment results NHzE 816,19521432  (38,23146251) (678,92643)  (2581479040)  812,661,82640  1,564,131,861.38
Adjustment: i
Eimination of inter-segment resuls EErBR%E 137,804,713.45
Interest income FEWA 394,565,439.62
Dividend income and unallocated income 8 A R AT MR 320,378 644.87
Corporate and other unallocated expenses M EREA AT R (96,963,421.27)
Finance expenses BBRAR (577,599,508.05)

Profit before tax RartlE 1,742,317,730.00
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS i R M 5 (48
30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2015F6H30H (A E¥T)
XIV. Other Significant Events (Continued) 0 At B SR T (4)
2. Segment reporting (Continued) 2. DEEHE(E)
Operating segments (Continued) rEDEUE)
30 June 2015 2015F6H30H
Automobiles Forklift trucks
and other major and warehouses
automobile Other  Import & export technology
Diesel engines components components services services
(Unaudited) RER XELER
(7420) K TETRM e £ 0RH RERIRS
Segment assets AEE 21,336,503,600.64  24832,166,581.78  11,564713,71030  6,309,442,100.62  35,661,907,775.08  99,704,733,768.42
Adustment: HE
Elimination of inter-segment assets BENIHEE (10,475,697,481.25)
Comorate and other unallocated assets ~ A¥REHANTEAE 25,941,785,227.28
Total assets HeE 115,170,821,514.45
Seqment liabilties AHEE 11,501,079,512.12  16,296,378,660.04 7,594,557 472.52 473,280,643.66  20,964,070,051.70  56,829,375,340.04
Adjustment: i
Elimination of intersegment liabiles ~ EH7IEEE (8,816,897,736.16)
Cororate and other unallocated liabilies ¥ REMAAT &R 25,623,401,160.01
Total iabilties ek 73,635,878,763.89
January to June 2015 2015 1-6 A
Automobiles Forklift trucks
and other major and warehouses
automobile Other  Import & export technology
Diesel engines components components services services
(Unaudited) &R NELER
(ABEH) K TETHH GRS EHNEE RERIRE
Other segment information EfAPEH:
Share of profit and loss from: EETSIARMERESR:
Losy/(gain) from associatesfointly controlled B2 20 £ % /(i)
enterprises (15,070,318.27) 11,128,114.25 - (277,656.57) (62,584,846.56) (66,804,707.15)
Loss of impairment of inventories FRABEREEX 20,189.442.31 29,163,185.12 547,527.14 - 1564353960 6554369417
Lossfreversal) of impairment of accounts B S R Bt G
receivable and other receivables nEEL/(8R) 17,327,956.24 76,661,800.37 1,671,887.58 (46,471.79) 24,806,974.60 120,422,147.00
Depreciation and amortization TEREH (38,753,52431)  (46267894863)  (8976692386)  (12,345,12998) (1,634,390,266.60)  (2,581,934,793.39)
Gaind(oss) from disposal of fired assets ~ EFBERERG/(BX) 4,360,395.65 1,836,863.61 (76,248.55) 167.78 3,948,921.80 10,070,100.29

Gain from disposal of intangble assets AL AZEEFS

Investment in associatesfointly controlled ~ NEFEFIAE M EHRE
enterprises 581,648,245.67 508,820,378,51 - 33,203,155.73 368,022,450.67  1,491,694,230.58
Capital expenditure BRR% (329.893,839.20)  (555,052,698.70)  (127,783,869.82) (4823,097.93)  (2,096,580,096.40)  (3,114,133,602.0)

1,252,463.67 = = 1,252,463.67
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30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20156 H30H (A B #or)
XIV. Other Significant Events (Continued) +1 ﬁﬂﬁ$£$ 1(4)
Segment reporting (Continued) o EREREH (,%H)
Operating segments (Continued) gD E (&)
January to June 2014 2014%1-6 5
Automobiles Forklift trucks
and other major and warehouses
automobile Other  Import & export technology
Diesel engines components components services services Total
{Unaudited) R TELER
(kEzh) S TERPE EfpZHe EHORE AEHIRE At
Seqment revenue: AHUA -
Sale to external customers NPRERE 1320361388943 19,251488621.11  1,613,078,710.78 43,253,347.00 - 3411143456832
Inter-segment sale TRHE 3,178,851,188.45 1,392,004.54 69,218,609.66 24 413603.15 - 3273871546580
Total At 16,382,465,077.88  19,252,880,685.65  1,682,297,320.44 67,666,950.15 - 37,385,310,034.12
Adjustment: HE
Elimination of inner-segment sale REpBREE (3,273,875,465.80)
Revenue WA 34,111,434568.32
Seqment results e 2,661,945,257.80 49059991338 (161,074322.08) (55,578,065.96) 107,568,664.45  3,043,46144759
Adjustment: HE
Elimination of inter-segment results BHEIBEE (87,375,393.10)
Interest income LN 165,994,973.63
Dividend income and unallocated income. kB RARFHELE 1,637.211,071.32
Corporate and other unallocated expenses — ERABFAEFR (12,397,585.18)
Finance expenses AR (270,742,289.9)
Profit before tax RakE 4.476,152,204.97
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

XIV. Other Significant Events (Continued)

2. Segment reporting (Continued) 2. ;\ ﬁﬁfﬁﬁ (%);)
& pva
Operating segments (Continued) 2014%12 4318
31 December 2014
Forklift trucks
Automobiles
‘ and warehouses
and other major
automobile Other  Import & export technology
Diesel engines components components services services Total
(Audited) EY ELER
(@27 Sn TETHR EfpZHe EfNRE AERIRE ait
Segment assets AHEE 23,781 95427427 25,042,687,064.62  10.832,401,07539  6,863,237,159.04  37296,351,149.62  103822,630,722.94
Adjustment: Fi8
Eimination of inter-segment assets P BHEE (9,149,330,927.93)
Corporate and other unallocated assets PERREMAIREE 27,58,475,386.83
Total assets BEE 122,255,575,181.84
Seqment liabilties HHEE 15,073,020,200.65  18,109,778,638.28  8,715,284,039.39 506,589,74346  21,323858482.80  63,728531,104.58
Adjustment: gE:
Eimination of inter-segment abilies BHATHAR (9,752,792,127.56)
Corporate and other unallocated liabilites ~— AEREMFIEER 26,337,947,871.49
Total liabilties ek 80,313,686,848 51
January to June 2014 20144 1-6 4
Automobiles Forklft trucks
and other major and warehouses
automobile Other Import & export technology
Diesel engines components components services services Total
(Unaudited) AER XEEER
(REER) S FERPE EZHe EHORR REHRIRE it
Other segment information EABEH
Share of profit and loss from: EETIIRANERER
Loss/(gain) from associatesfointly controled ~ BERAZAERE /(%)
enterprises (5,250,690.81) 17,921,668.62 (107,568,664.45) 13,089.15 - (94,884,597.49)
Loss of impaiment of inventories GENREERE 8,725,278.57 26,210,358.93 6,635,781.20 - - 4163141870
Loss of impairment of accounts receivable and ~ FEMER T RE (B B 060
other receivables REEX 100,687 846.96 96,926,798.09 1974,090.36 8,125.10 - 199,596,860.51
Depreciation and amortization FEREH (461588347.75)  (462,61,821.96)  (129,154,504.45) (12,021,406.23) - (1,065,026,080.39)
Gainfloss) from disposal of fixed assets ETEERENE/(BX (2,599,467.11) (2,054,468.62) (396,180.95) 6,021.02 = (5,044,095.66)
Gainfloss) from disposal of intangible assets ~ EFAEREFIE/(B% - - - - - -
Investment in assodiatesfointly controlled —— REEAAEPERRE
enterprises 581,111,467.88 520,764,331.58 - 42412,84183 38783255990 1,532,121,207.19
Capital expenditure EERR (349.865,446.51)  (496,083,134.66)  (119,743,554.51) (12,824,754.48) - (978516,890.16)

Given the addition of Forklift trucks and warehousing technology

H2015F1-6 AFENELEREE

services segment in January — June 2015, the comparative figures 5 mﬂﬂx/\i i F\F LA E
. B RESHMHLEBRELELBE
on the operating segments have been restated for the purpose of it o

comparison.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) FPHS i R M 5 (48
30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2015F6A30H (A E¥T)
XIV. Other Significant Events (Continued) +19 ﬁ 1’@ HEFIE(H)
2. Segment reporting (Continued) o EM®wE (&)
Group information EBER
Information about products and services EmAEBEE
Revenue from external transactions HINZ HIA

January-June 2015 January-June 2014

2015%1-6 8 2014%1-6 A
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(RE&HFER) (REEZ)
Complete vehicles and key components 28 [ B8 Z 2 16,296,279,893.77 24,411,992,291.42
Non-automobile engines IR A B 1,955,345,833.05 3,472,829,719.34
Other automobile components H b= 5645 141,541,273.44 4,146,833,165.64
Forklift trucks and warehouses technology X E 4 2 & & B 1 i1 iR 75
services 16,782,378,217.60 -
Others Hith 1,279,714,650.82 2,079,779,391.92
36,455,259,868.68 34,111,434,568.32
Geographic information HhFE (= 8
Revenue from external transactions NS Z U A
January-June 2015 January-June 2014
2015%1-6 8 2014%1-6 A
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEXR) (REEZ)
China R K fE 18,432,760,865.91 32,913,935,988.38
Other countries and regions E b B K A4 [@ 18,022,499,002.77 1,197,498,579.94
36,455,259,868.68 34,111,434,568.32
Revenue from external transactions is attributable to the areas HINZ GWABRBRNEEATEE, -

where customers are located.
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS i R M 5 (48
30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20156 H30H (A E#or)
XIV. Other Significant Events (Continued) F0 - H Al B B SR (4
2. Segment reporting (Continued) 2. DWHwE(E)
Geographic information (Continued) (=8 (&)
Total non-current assets ERBEELET

30 June 2015 31 December 2014
201556 H30H 201412 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (g&E=)

China el N 17 kPl Gsevlae il 19,313,448,073.29
Other countries and regions E ) B R R b [ leles el ] 32,110,627,312.78

48,664,059,637.33 51,424,075,386.07

Non-current assets are attributable to the areas where the assets FRBDEEGERNZEEMERYE -
are located, excluding financial assets and deferred tax assets. TEREMEENMELEMSHEE
Information about major customers FEEFPEE

Revenue of RMB3,645,506,605.13 (January to June 2014: & WA ANRK3,645,506,605.13
RMB4,024,701,553.00) was derived from sales by Diesel engines 7t (2014 F 16 A ¢+ AR
segment and Automobiles and other major automobile components 4,024,701,553.007T ) 2k B 7 42 ) #
segment to a single customer, including sales to a group of entities DEMABEREMEZTEEEHFH
which are known to be under common control by that customer. HHEX-—BHEZF(BEEMRZE

PESITHMALE)NKA -
3. Other financial information 3. HtBiEEE

30 June 2015 31 December 2014
2015%6H30A 2014F12A318
(Unaudited) (Audited)

(RBER) (BE=)

The Group The Company The Group The Company

1] & A

Net current assets FEEEFE R Y Y W YR V W VX IE VRS I 16,311,778,309.14  13,781,402,964.04
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBAR PANAER VAR LR BRI ZSS 72, 351,734,690.58  31,038,954,043.62
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) FPHS i R M 5 (48

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2015F6A30H (A E¥T)

XIV. Other Significant Events (Continued) 10 ﬁ il B B RO (5]
4. Comparative Figures b B 2 1%

The Group obtained control over KION Group AG on 12 June
2014. As the assessment work was not yet completed at that stage,
the fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities or contingent
liabilities acquired under the consolidation were only temporarily
determined. Pursuant to s. 16 of the “Accounting Standard for
Business Enterprises No. 20 — Business Combination” ({{b%
SETERE205: — AP ) |, recognition and measurement
for the business combination based on the temporary values
determined by the Group and adjustments to the temporary values
so determined within 12 months upon acquisition shall be deemed
to be recognition and measurement as at the date of acquisition.
Adjustments have been made to the temporary values of the
relevant items in these interim financial statements pursuant to the
requirements under the accounting standard, and re-statements
have been made for the relevant statements. Major impacts on the
consolidated balance sheet for January to June 2015 caused by the

re-statements to the aforesaid items are as follows:

January —June 2015

REBMN2014F6 A 12BER T Y
KION GROUP AGHJZH| - AR &K
T TEM AT - AFPEERE
BUBRREE  BERIAAEBH
AREEIRGELHETE  BE(LE
FETERIE205 —EAMIBE LA
e ANEBUFMBEENEREARE
WHEESFEITERNGTE - Wi
EHEEAENIN2EAANEERNY
REBELETAR SATEEANE
RMETE o A HAB B3R R AB IR R
REHHEBERNE EEEETTH
B WHMEBMMERET TEM - £t
SIEEMBFIAE B ANEE2015
FI-6AEGHEERBERNIZRE
R

2015 1-6 A

Re-statement

“Accounting

Standard

for Business
Before Enterprises After
re-statement at No. 20 — re-statement at
beginning of Business beginning of
period Combination” period

Bl EEs
(Unaudited) R[] ZRIZE205% — Bii®
(RE&ER) H A EREE EESH) HMANeRE
Fixed assets BEEEE 22,219,357,185.13 1,290,035,509.12 23,509,392,694.25
Intangible assets BVEE 12,715,477,787.47 1,126,993,963.44 13,842,471,750.91
Goodwill Pﬁéﬁ 8,347,260,453.97 (573,205,976.79) 7,774,054,477.18
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFRE M AT 3,628,608,697.29 756,347,843.04 4,384,956,540.33
Other comprehensive income Higma W (342,209,472.70) (46,276,429.99) (388,485,902.69)
Retained earnings R B A 26,419,607,056.45 (22,075,141.42) 26,397,531,915.03
Minority interests DERG R 2 8,386,683,156.04 1,155,827,224.14 9,542,510,380.18
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30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20156 H30H (A E#or)
XIV. Other Significant Events (Continued) F0 - H Al B B SR (4
4. Comparative Figures (Continued) 4. LEEEE (&)

As the purchase date is 12 June 2014, the aforesaid adjustments
have had no significant impact on the comparative figures of these
interim consolidated income statement of the Group, i.e. the
consolidated income statement for the period from January to June
2014. Retrospective adjustments to the figures in the consolidated

income statement for year 2014 of the Group are as follows:

January — December 2014

HREBERAR2014F6H12H » Lilt
ABREAEBPHAEHFEROLR
K - B12014F1-6 AN A HFIBER
BEEATE  HAEE20145E
WE SR ER BB AFEZZN
T

2014F1-12 A

Re-statement

" Accounting
Before Standard for After
re-statement  Business Enterprises re-statement
Incurred No. 20 — Business Incurred
during the year Combination” during the year

Bl EEE
(Audited) =g UI%:I] AERIZE 2058 — ESuks
(FER) RNEZEER hESH) REFEERR
Cost of sales EE DN 62,547,775,525.88 71,134,984.61 62,618,910,510.49
Distribution and selling expenses HE 2 A 5,088,075,987.64 4,502,598.00 5,092,578,585.64
General and administrative expenses EEER 6,405,263,078.43 21,610,568.03 6,426,873,646.46
Income tax expenses 8 & m 1,181,199,964.08 (30,956,434.66) 1,150,243,529.42
Minority interests LHREER 759,993,324.72 (44,216,574.56) 715,776,750.16

Other comprehensive income Hirsg & UWEs (1,274,541,284.32)

(138,968,258.23) (1,413,509,542.55)
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30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

XV.Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial
Statements

1.

Cash and cash equivalents

RS i 25 BT 5 (%)
20156 A30H (A R#¥T)

T2 ] B B R T H R R

1. E¥ES

30 June 2015 31 December 2014
2015%6H30H 201412 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (R&ER)

Cash at bank EFRE
Bank deposits HRITIF R
Other cash equivalents HthE¥ES

191,011.21 108,814.77
12,663,951,914.70 13,418,505,629.66
36,915,924.91 52,976,025.07

12,701,058,850.82 13,471,590,469.50

As at 30 June 2015, the other cash and cash equivalents of the
Company included an amount of RMB36,915,924.91 (31 December
2014: RMB52,976,025.07), which is used in letter of guarantee and
security monies for special accounts such as bank acceptance bills

and letter of credit.

Notes receivable

#2015 6 A30H * AR A EfhE
EePBEARY36,915,924.91
T (2014F 12 A31H : AR¥
52,976,025.07 70 ) FA AR B A R 9%
BIRTARLEE ERAESIEFPMEH
FORES °

2. EWEE

30 June 2015 31 December 2014
2015%6H30H 201412 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (gE=)

Bank acceptance bills RITAGESR

6,873,042,033.86 9,387,204,158.36

Among which, notes receivable that were pledged are as follows:

Hep DERWEREENT :

30 June 2015 31 December 2014
2015%6H30H 201412 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (R&ER)

Bank acceptance bills HITERAEE

2,139,978,408.17 4,956,129,597.96
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30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20156 H30H (A E#or)

XV.Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial % /A &) 3= 2 B % #t 2 6 H 51 B

Statements (Continued) (%)

2. Notes receivable (Continued) 2. BWEE(E)
Notes receivable that were endorsed but no yet expired as at the ESEETEEEABRA MR BN
balance sheet date are as follows: FEREBEIT

30 June 2015 31 December 2014
2015%6H30H 2014512 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REBERK) (&=
Derecognition Derecognition
KIETERE R AEFERR

Bank acceptance bills RITERNESR

260,053,922.88 389,920,570.19

As at 30 June 2015 and 31 December 2014, the Group had not
transferred any notes into accounts receivable due to issuers’ failure

in performance.

Accounts receivable

The Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly on credit
except for new customers, where payment in advance or cash
on delivery is normally required. The credit period of accounts
receivable is generally one to six months, extending up to six
months for major customers. Accounts receivable is non-interest

bearing.

An aging analysis of accounts receivable based on the invoice date is

presented as follows:

201556 A30 R 2014412 A31
A AAREREBREANEDEOM S
FEREBREUIRRNTR

3. EWERR
RAREREFENE S BRAEAR
SRE  B—REXHEFLEMRL
ERERNZRS#ET  ERBART
B1-6AA FEEFPANERES
BA - BUBRFRILTETE ©

RERAZAE - KRR ER S0
T

30 June 2015 31 December 2014
20156 H30H 201412 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REBER) (&&ER)

992,725,556.74 1,072,477,796.82
12,745,455.58 2,552,744.81
164,500.00 =
3,518,650.03 3,518,650.03

Within 1 year 1F AR

1 year — 2 years 15825

2 years — 3 years 2EE3F

Over 3 years 3EP L

Less: Provision for bad debt for Bt FE R SRR B A A

accounts receivable

1,009,154,162.35 1,078,549,191.66

49,368,817.31 52,183,546.35

959,785,345.04 1,026,365,645.31
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30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2015F6A30H (A E¥T)

XV.Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial +% /2 &) 3= % B % #2086 H 51 &

Statements (Continued) (74)
3. Accounts receivable(Continued) 3. BWERM(E)
Changes in provision for bad debt for accounts receivable are JEUBR FIZBREFBMEFHIT ¢

presented as follows:

30 June 2015 31 December 2014
20156 H30H 2014%12831H

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(RE&FEZR) &)

Opening balance B FEXHE 52,183,546.35 8,408,952.31

Provision for the period/ year RHFEHR - 43,774,594.04
Decrease during the period/ year: NEFR A

Reversal #E (2,814,729.04) -

Closing balance B ERE 49,368,817.31 52,183,546.35

30 June 2015
20156 H30H

Provision  Percentage

Amount Proportion for bad debt  of provision

(Unaudited) &8 L f5 HIRE S sz L4l
(REEER) (%) (%)

Individually significant ~ BIESFEAW
items for which IR R AR
provision for bad debt
is recognized separately

Items for which provision 1% {Z & & 4 &1

for bad debt is BEEHHIRERSEE

recognized by credit

risk characteristics 1,009,154,162.35 49,368,817.31
Not individually BEIESBEETEAME

significant items BRI IR S

for which provision
for bad debt is

recognized separately

1,009,154,162.35 49,368,817.31
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XV.Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial +% /A &) 3= % B % # % H H 51 &
Statements (Continued) B

3. Accounts receiva

ble(Continued)

»

3. EBWERMR(R)

31 December 2014
2014%12A318

Provision Percentage
Amount Proportion for bad debt  of provision
(Audited) T L i ERER FHEL O
(&%) (%) (%)
Individually significant BHEHSBEAL
items for EIRGHEERER
which provision
for bad debt is
recognized separately - - - -
ltems for which provision 1% {Z B &b 14
for bad debt is HAFTIRERER
recognized by credit risk
characteristics 1,078,549,191.66 100.00 52,183,546.35 4.84
Not individually significant BB 4 58 N &E A (2
items for which provision B IBFHZIZER&E
for bad debt is recognized
separately - - - -
1,078,549,191.66 100.00 52,183,546.35

As at 30 June 2015, there was no individually significant accounts

receivable for which provision for bad debt was recognized

separately (31 December

20714: Nil).

Account receivables of which provision for bad debts is made

according to aging analysis by the Company are as follows:

(Unaudited)

(REEER)

Within 1 year 1R
1-2 years 1224
2-3 years 2E3F
Over 5 years SEIE

Amount

3]

992,725,556.74
12,745,455.58
164,500.00
3,518,650.03

1,009,154,162.35

Proportion

MN2015F6A30H  EBIHESESE A
WE AR B EENEURERER
(2014128318 : &) -

ARBRAKEDIEHRIERER
B MR FIERAT

30 June 2015
20156 H30H

Provision
for bad debt

Percentage

of provision
FHiR L Al
(%)

£t Bl
(%)

98.37
1.26
0.02
0.35

44,887,368.40
913,448.88
49,350.00
3,518,650.03

4.52
7.17
30.00
100.00

100.00 49,368,817.31
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

XV.Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial +% /2 &) 3= % B % #2086 H 51 &
Statements (Continued) (74)
3. Accounts receivable(Continued) 3. BWRERF(E)

31 December 2014
2014%12A31H

Provision Percentage

Amount Proportion for bad debt of provision

(Audited) ©EE et BRER ST Al
(=) (%) (%)
Within 1 year 1 AR 1,072,477,796.82 99.44 48,511,075.76 4.52
1-2 years 15224 2,552,744.81 0.24 153,820.56 6.03
Over 5 years S5F 3,518,650.03 0.32 3,518,650.03 100.00

1,078,549,191.66 100.00 52,183,546.35

From January to June 2015, no provision for bad debts (2014: 20154 1-6 A R A st IR B BR 22 4

RMB43,774,594.04) were made, while provision for bad debts
in the amount of RMB2,814,729.04 (2014: Nill) was reversed or

recovered.

From January to June 2015, there was no accounts receivable
actually written off (2014 nil).

As at 30 June 2015, the top five balances in respect of accounts
receivable had a total closing balance of RMB480,346,775.27,
accounting for 47.60% of the total of closing balance of accounts
receivable. The closing balance in respect of bad debt provided for
the top five amounted to RMB24,017,338.76.

As at 31 December 2014, the top five balances in respect
of accounts receivable had a total closing balance of
RMB732,369,505.39, accounting for 67.90% of the total of closing
balance of accounts receivable. The closing balance in respect of
bad debt provided for the top five amounted to RMB33,716,319.02.

As at 30 June 2015, no accounts receivable (31 December 2014:

Nil) was pledged for securing bank borrowings by the Company.

(2014%F + AR ¥ 43,774,594.04
Jr) c W Elsk e EEEEE AR
2,814,729.0470(2014%F « &) ©

20154 1-6 B & B R 1% 35 09 FE WL BR 3K
(20144 : 4E) o

M201546 A30H @ B AEH
BREFNEBARABBEEATAARE
480,346,775.27 7T 15 & W BR 5K A7
RBBATHN LN A47.60% %
Al A AB B AT IR 0 I AR AR 1 HA R 88 58
AAR®24,017,338.767T °

20144128318 » BEATAEH
BRERNFERAREATRARKE
732,369,505.397C - {h /B U AR R
RERFEATENLPIH67.90% @ 7%
Al A B ABEET IR OV B AR B FF R AR EE
AANRY33,716,319.027T °

20156 A30H @ AR AE 5 EW
R (2014F12A31H « &)EHHE
REGBRITEZROER °
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XV.Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial +% /A &) 3= % B % # % 0H H 51 &

Statements (Continued)
4. Other receivables

An aging analysis of other receivables is presented as follows:

(%)

4.

Within 1 year
1-2 years

2-3 years

3 years

15 AR
1824
2E3F
3FAE

Less: Provision for bad debt for
other receivables

R EL R R AR

Closing balance

H,/FRE

Changes in provision for bad debts in respect of other receivables

are as follows:

Opening balance B FOH
Provision for the period/ year NEFEHR
Decrease during the period/ year: NE R
Reversal # g

Closing balance R

Individually significant items for which B BEAY EE

provision for bad debt HRERER
is recognized separately

Items for which provision for ERERERNEART
bad debt is recognized by REBER

credit risk characteristics

Not individually significant items for B BEFEAE
which provision for bad debtis  EBHEEEER
recognized separately

30June 2015
201556830

(Unaudited)

(REFH)
Provision for
Amount  Proportion bad debt
2 tAl BRER

(%)

1,901,812,968.64 31,199,137.81

1,901,812,968.64 31,199,137.81

Percentage
of Provision
R
(%)

H 1t P& WK

Hip UK BRER D AT A0 T

30 June 2015
2015%6H30H
(Unaudited)
(REER)

31 December 2014
2014912 831H
(Audited)
(&%)

1,862,582,562.39
8,650.00
3,217,382.06
36,004,374.19

1,854,850,509.23
43,064.00
3,192,301.40
37,308,908.29

1,901,812,968.64

31,199,137.81

1,895,394,782.92

32,250,189.05

1,870,613,830.83

1,863,144,593.87

Hip U FIERERNESIT ¢

30 June 2015
20156 H30H
(Unaudited)
(REEX)

31 December 2014
2014%F12A31H
(Audited)
(REZ)

32,250,189.05

(1,051,051.24)

27,516,215.38
4,733,973.67

31,199,137.81

32,250,189.05

31 December 2014
20148128318
(Audited)
(8%7)

Amount  Proportion
% ]
(%)

Provision for ~ Percentage
bad debt  of Provision
SRR RU
(%)

1,895,394,782.92 100.00

32,250,189.05 170

1,895,394,782.92 100.00

32,250,189.05 170
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B D RHBRA A

XV.Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial

Statements (Continued)

4. Other receivables (Continued)

Other receivables of which provision for bad debts is made

according to aging analysis by the Company are as follows:

Within 1 year 1L
1-2 years 1225

23 years 1535

34 years 324F

45 years 4E5%

Over 5 years SEBLE
Total At

Amount

£

1,862,582,562.39
8,650.00
3,217,382.06
9,627,276.48
9,770,601.06
16,606,496.65

1,901,812,968.64

30 June 2015
2015568308
(Unaudited)
(REBEH)

Provision for
Proportion bad debt
tAl BRER

(%)

97.94 997,144.38
0.00 163.08
0.17 965,214.62
0.51 4,813,638.24
051 7,816,480.85
0.87 16,606,496.64

31,199,137.81

From January to June 2015, no provision for bad debts (2014:
RMB4,733,973.67) were made, while provision for bad debts in the
amount of RMB1,051,051.24 (2014: Nill) was reversed.

From January to June 2015, there was no accounts receivable

actually written off (2014 nil).

Other receivables by nature are as follows:

S5 e R WA R (A

201564308 (A EB¥T)

T2 ) R B R I H kR

(%)

4. H WK ()
D RIRA IR D AT AR R AR
B H At BRI T -

31 December 2014

2014127318

(Audited)

(857)
Percentage Provision for ~ Percentage
of Provision Amount Proportion bad debt  of Provision
R £% il SEEE RN
(%) (%) (%)
MBS 1,854,850,509.23 9786 998,002.05 0.05
1.89 43,064.00 0.00 6,459.60 15.00
30.00 319230140 017 957,69042 3000
50.00 9,711,573.73 0.51 4,855,786.87 50.00
80.00 10,830,210.24 057 8,665,125.79 80.00
100.00 16,767,124.32 089 16,767,124.32 100.00
I 1,895,394,782.92 100.00 32,250,189.05 170

2015 1-6 AR et IRIBER %
(2014 & : AR ™ 4,733,973.67
L) EBEZBEREHRSARE
1,051,051.247C(20144F : &) ©

2015 1-6 A E B Z 58 H B
(201445 ) -

Hi W FIRIEE D ENT -

Temporary loan to subsidiaries

Corporate lending and payment
on behalf

Employee advance

Others

pa)

AR R
(H

%
EEEERRABRK

30 June 2015
20156 H30H
(Unaudited)
(REER)

1,841,830,413.69
38,583,609.59

14,412,770.73
6,986,174.63

1,901,812,968.64

31 December 2014
201412 A31H
(Audited)
(g&EZ)

1,827,411,186.13

39,186,647.02
16,585,976.36
12,210,973.41

1,895,394,782.92
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PO 5 i 3 M R (4)
201564308 (A E¥T)

T2 ) B B R I H kR

(%)

4.

As at 30 June 2015, the top 5 other receivables are presented as

follows:

Closing balance

(Unaudited) HRERER

(Rig&EZ)

Weichai Power (Weifang) 1,841,830,413.69
Casting Co., Ltd.

HeseB) N (L) SR
BRAA

Weichai Power (Chongging) 12,808,968.39
Western Development
Co., Ltd.

HEE N (EE)A
BRARAA

Zhuzhou Torch Machinery 9,773,085.84
Manufacturing Co., Ltd.

RO MBS E
BEREERTA

Hangzhou Hongyuan 9,203,387.08
Machinery Manufacturing
Co., Ltd.

MM B IRHEAR 2 )

Xinjiang Machinery 6,350,399.53
Equipment Import
& Export Co., Ltd.

MBERREELOAF

1,879,966,254.53

Percentage of

total other
receivables
fhE A
FEWREREE
B
o))

(%)

96.85

Nature

HE

Temporary loan
to subsidiaries
FRAERER

Corporate
lending
and payment
on behalf
PETERR
RBR
Corporate
lending

and payment

on behalf
EEEERK

RBZK

Corporate

lending

and payment

on behalf
PETERR

RBR
Corporate

lending

and payment

on behalf
EEEERK

RBR

HbEW(E)
MN2015%66A30H » HibfEl &5
MAZWET :

Closing balance of
provision for
bad debts

fRife

within 1 year
and 1-2 years

1R 1225

2-3 years 9,292,667.14
and 3-4 years

2E3FERIFAF

4-5 years 7,818,468.67

4FE5E

over 5 years 9,203,387.08

SFLLE

over 5 years 6,350,399.53

SFLLE

32,664,922.42
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XV.Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial

Statements (Continued)

4. Other receivables (Continued)

As at 31 December 2014, the top 5 other receivables are presented

S5 e R WA R (A

20156 A30H (A R#¥T)

T2 R T B AR IH H R R

(%)

4. HtoREUGR ()

M2014F12831H » HbEWRZ S

as follows: HAIRAWT
Percentage of Closing balance of
total other provision for
Closing balance receivables Nature Age bad debts
EEM
FEM TR ERER
AFTE SRR
(Audited) FRME olaadl] HE Rk FRERF
(&&EZ) (%)
Weichai Power (Weifang) 1,827,411,186.13 96.41 Temporary loan within 1 year -
Casting Co., Ltd. to subsidiaries 1 AR
HseE) N (L) SR FRALER
BRAA
Weichai Power 12,808,968.39 0.68 Corporate 2-3 years and 5,768,145.81
(Chongging) Western lending 3-4 years
Development Co., Ltd. and payment 2E3FERIFAF
LB N (ER) A on behalf
BEREBRAA CETERR
RB®
Zhuzhou Torch Machinery 10,823,892.02 0.57 Corporate 4-5 years 8,659,113.62
Manufacturing Co., Ltd. lending AZ5EF
RN N R 23 and payment
BREMAA on behalf
CEEERR
RERK
Hangzhou Hongyuan 9,203,387.08 0.49 Corporate over 5 years 9,203,387.08
Machinery Manufacturing lending 5L E
Co., Ltd. and payment
M B IR A R on behalf
CEEERR
RBHK
Xinjiang Machinery 6,350,399.53 0.34 Corporate over 5 years 6,350,399.53
Equipment Import lending SEME
& Export Co., Ltd. and payment
MERAMREELOAT on behalf
PETERK
RBHK
1,866,597,833.15 98.49 29,981,046.04
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XV.Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial +% /A &) 3= % B % #) % 0H H 51 &

Statements (Continued) (#)
5. Inventories 5. B8
30 June 2015 31 December 2014
201556 A30H 2014£12A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (B2R)
Gross carrying Provision for Carrying Gross carrying Provision for Carrying
amount  decline in value amount amount decline in value amount
R BEER RERE RESE BEERE REER
Raw materials FHR 447,801,958.02 (2,236,097.98)  445,565,860.04 EERIRITWEINYS (2,236,097.98)  354,648,133.44
Finished goods ERm 1,235,790,384.83 S ELEIRLIER 1,516,750,375.34 - 1516,750,375.34
Self made semifinished ~ BEELKAREER

goods and work in progress 56,832,276.48 - 56,832,276.48 80,056,026.17 - 80,056,026.17
Turnover materials BEIR 2,750,386.88 - 2,750,386.88 1,022,783.60 1,022,783.60

1,743,175,006.21 (2,236,097.98)  1,740,938,908.23 |MNEUWARFAIRE} (2,236,097.98)  1,952,477,318.55

The changes in provision for decline in value are as follows: FEREEEEHOT :
January to June 2015 20154 1-6 A
Write-off

Charge for for the
(Unaudited) Opening balance the period period Closing balance
(CREgEERZ) M TR A HAAR B
Raw materials R E 2,236,097.98 2,236,097.98
2014 20144

Charge for Write-off for

(Audited) Opening balance the year the year Closing balance
(g% B8 NG NEEH HAREL

Raw materials R A 2,284,511.00 = (48,413.02) 2,236,097.98
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XV.Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial

6.

HESRE N RHBRA A

S5 e R WA R (A

20156 A30H (A R#¥T)

T2 R 3 B AR IH H R R

Statements (Continued) (%)
Investment in associates 6. HEELERE
Place of
registration/ Registered Percentage of
Key operation capital Nature of business shareholding
Eaiiibpd
TEEEH HMER EHBUE F AL B
Shanghai Xinlian Chuangye Investment Shanghai 150,000,000.00 Industrial investment, 33.00%
Co., Ltd. fiabist investment management
FEEBAEREFR LA BERE REER
Guanya (Shanghai) Investment Shanghai 400,000,000.00 Equity investment, 24.75%
Fund Partnership Enterprise & investment management
(Limited Partnership) and investment
BE(LE)REKREES consultation
ERPE(ERER) BHERE  REEH
R E S
Shandong Heavy Industry Group Shandong 1,000,000,000.00 Business approved by China 20.00%
Finance Co., Ltd. TS Banking Regulatory
WRETEBEHBERAA Commission
MERBRIRITEEE
EREE N E
Dalian Hongyuan Machinery Liaoning UsD22,818,208.00 Hardware tools and 17.31%
Manufacturing Co., Ltd. RE %722,818,208.00 automobile parts and
RER R ELERR DA accessories
e ITAMSEZEM
Shanzhong Finance Leasing Co., Ltd.  Beijing 920,000,000.00 Finance leasing 19.565%
LWERMEEERR LA R MEMEEH
Long-term equity investments 7. RERERE

Non-listed investment under cost method 3 _E % & ik A%

Non-listed investment under equity

method

FFEMREREDE

Less: Provision for impairment of

long-term equity investment

o REBRERERERER

30 June 2015 31 December 2014
2015%6H30H 2014912 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (g&ER)

9,504,273,827.68 9,501,348,543.17

581,648,245.66 566,232,838.19

10,085,922,073.34 10,067,581,381.36

12,118,687.10 12,118,687.10

10,073,803,386.24 10,055,462,694.26
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201564308 (A E¥T)

XV. Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial

Statements (Continued)

7. Long-term equity investments (Continued) 7.
As at 30 June 2015, the breakdown of long-term equity investments

under cost method was as follows:

Weichai Power Freshen Air Technology
Co, Ltd.
BESNERFRRERAT
Baudouin (Weifang) Power Co., Ltd.
BHZ (BN NERLT
Weichai Power Hydraulic
Technology Co., Ltd.
BESNRERBEERAF
Weichai Power (Weifang)
Equipment Service Co., Ltd.
BN AY) R BRI
RBERAR
Weichai International (Hong Kong)
Energy Group Co., Ltd.
BRER(ER)REE
ARAA
Weichai Power (Weifang)
Spare Part Resources Co., Ltd.
EEHNEY) BRER
ARAA
Weichai Power (Weifang)
0il Co., Ltd.
EXFN R RmBRAT
Weichai Power (Weifang)
Casting Co., Ltd.
BN LR ERERAA
Zhuzhou Torch Sparkplugs Co., Ltd.
HNRAEAEZEREAAR
Zhuzhou Torch Machinery
Manufacturing Co., Ltd.
HIRABRHESEER
BEAT
Zhuzhou Torch Auto
Lighting Co., Ltd.
FNEAEAEREAR
BfEAH
Torch Import & Export Co., Ltd.
KEEENERERAAT
Weichai America Crop.
Weichai Power (Weifang)
Reconstruction Co., Ltd.
BN () BRERT
Weichai Power (Hong Kong)
International Development Co., Ltd.
B8N (B8 ERER
BRAA

Opening balance

65
100,000,000.00

13,066,352.00

50,000,000.00

76,000,000.00

7,987,632.00

101,410,238.34

10,706,159.11

460,150,000.00

245,574,858.40

130,898,993.14

38,363,180.85

33,973,054.98

262,811,997.28
122,000,000.00

2,087,069,782.12

(%)

T2 ) B B R I H kR

RERERE(E)
20156 A30H » FAE K B

RERA@WT :

Changes during the period
rH29

Decrease upon
disposal of
subsidiaries

RE
70D

Additional
investment

Closing
carrying amount

ENRE HAREEE

100,000,000.00

13,066,352.00

50,000,000.00

76,000,000.00

7,987,632.00

101,410,238.34

10,706,159.11

460,150,000.00

245,574,858.40

130,898,993.14

(38,363,180.85)

33,973,054.98

262,811,997.28
122,000,000.00

2,087,069,782.12

Incl: Closing
provision for
impairment
i HR
EERERA HEER

97,659,313.99 =

Declared
cash dividend

2,104,822.48

70,066,549.52

355,521.73

24,725,174.26
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XV. Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial % /A &) 32 22 B % it 2 6 H 51 B

Statements (Continued) (%)
7. Long-term equity investments (Continued) 7. RERERE(E)
As at 30 June 2015, the breakdown of long-term equity investments 201564308 « fASE REAR 2
under cost method was as follows: (Continued) WEREMIT (&)
Changes during the period
rH29
Decrease upon Incl: Closing
disposal of Additional (T Declared provision for
Opening balance subsidiaries investment carrying amount cash dividend impairment
RE ERY S
B8 FRRES EMRE HAREEE EERERA HEER
Weichai Power (Shanghai) Technology 340,000,000.00 - - 340,000,000.00 - -
Development Co., Ltd.
BE N LE)HERER
BRAR
Weichai Power (Chongaing) Western 240,000,000.00 240,000,000.00
Development Co., Ltd.
BYHNER)RPER
BARAR
Weichai Power (Beijing) International 300,000,000.00 300,000,000.00

Resource Investment Co., Ltd.
BEHNLR)ERER
RERR
Xinjiang Equipment Imports and (12,118,687.10)
Exports Co., Ltd.
HERBELOBRAA
Weichai Power (Qingzhou) Drive 150,000,000.00 150,000,000.00
Control Technology Co., Ltd.
BN (EN) BRI
BRAA
Zhuzhou Gear Co,, Ltd. 532,334,743.21 532,334,743.21
KNESRERRARR
Shanghai He Da Auto 39,163,469.71 39,163,469.71
Accessory Co., Ltd.
ENERRARAR
Weichai Power (Weifang) Intensive 10,400,000.00 10,400,000.00
Logistics Co., Ltd.
HEE N (K5 R
BARAR
Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd. 1,992,116,000.85 1,992,116,000.85
RESHREARAA
Shaanxi Fast Gear Co., Ltd. 1,082,558,680.59 1,082,558,680.59
REETRERERAR
Shaanxi Hande Axle Co., Ltd. 14,507,358.03 14,507,358.03
REEEERERAR
Shandong Synergy Qil Co., Ltd. 9,426,918.00 41,288,465.36 50,715,383.36
WRBEARERAA
Baoji Fast Gear Co., Ltd. 10,986,483.27 10,986,483.27
BEEIRERERAR
Weichai (Chongging) 1,027,410,000.00 1,027,410,000.00
Automotive Co,, Ltd.
HX(ER)REBRAT
WEICHAI SINGAPORE PTE. LTD 12,432,641.29 - - 12,432,641.29 - -

9,501,348,543.17 (38,363,180.85) 41,288,465.36 9,504,273,821.68 194,911,381.98 (12,118,687.10)
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201564308 (A E¥T)

T2 ) B B R I H kR

Statements (Continued) (%)

7. Long-term equity investments (Continued) 7. RERERE(E)
As at at 30 June 2015, breakdown of long-term equity investments P2015F6 A30H @ R AREIARRE
under equity method was as follows: HERMANT :

Guanya (Shanghai) Investment fund
Partnership Enterprise (Limited
Partnership)

BE(LE)REREES
ABLE(BRAR)

Dalian Hongyuan Machinery
Manufacturing Co., Ltd.

REBRHEREERR QA

Shanghai Xinlian Chuangye Investment
Co., Ltd.

FEEBAERERRAR

Shandong Heavy Industry Group
Finance Co., Ltd.

WRETEBUBERAT

Shanzhong Finance Leasing Co., Ltd.

WEREHEFTBELQA

Changes during the period

L L)

Adjustment in

profit and loss

under equity

method
EEET
BEAR

Opening balance

MR

18,816,375.60 180,702.90

24,388,598.36 (89,425.14)

99,407,878.37 (427,148.14)

228,029,963.54 11,384,423.45

195,590,022.32 4,366,854.40

566,232,838.19 15,415,407.47

Closing

carrying amount

HREEEE

18,997,078.50

24,299,173.22

98,980,730.23

239,414,386.99

199,956,876.72

581,648,245.66

Incl: Closing
provision for
impairment
Heh @ HiK
BB %

247
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XV.Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial
Statements (Continued)
7. Long-term equity investments (Continued)
As at 31 December 2014, the breakdown of long-term equity

investments under cost method was as follows:

PR 5 3 M R (4)
20156 A30H (A R#¥T)

T2 R 3 B AR IH H R R

(%)

7. RERERE(E)

MR2014F12 8318 » kA AR B
R ERRMAINT -

Changes during
the year
K
Incl: Closing
Additional Closing carrying Declared provision for
Opening balance investment amount cash dividend impairment
Hh R
FNHBE EMRE FREREE EERERM WEER
Weichai Power Freshen 100,000,000.00 - 100,000,000.00 1,704,714.74 -
Air Technology Co., Ltd.
HEBHHZERFERRERLA
Baudouin (Weifang) Power Co., Ltd. 13,066,352.00 - 13,066,352.00 - -
BHZE) B HERAF
Weichai Power Hydraulic Technology 50,000,000.00 - 50,000,000.00 - -
Co., Ltd.
X NEENEBRAF
Weichai Power (Weifang) Equipment 76,000,000.00 - 76,000,000.00 - -
Service Co., Ltd.
HEH G R BRI
REERRLA]
Weichai International (Hong Kong) 7,987,632.00 - 7,987,632.00 - -
Energy Group Co., Ltd.
HEER(BR)REEFRAT
Weichai Power (Weifang) Spare Part 101,410,238.34 - 101,410,238.34 70,124,759.08 -
Resources Co., Ltd.
HERB (Y ) BB RERA A
Weichai Power (Weifang) Oil Co., Ltd. 10,706,159.11 = 10,706,159.11 536,121.22 -
HXRBN ()RR ERAR
Weichai Power (Weifang) Casting 460,150,000.00 - 460,150,000.00 - -
Co., Ltd.
B OB ) RREBERLD A
Zhuzhou Torch Sparkplugs Co., Ltd. 245,574,858.40 - 245,574,858.40 22,257,250.91 -

WA EREREERR

Zhuzhou Torch Machinery Manufacturing ~ 130,898,993.14 -
Co., Ltd.

WA ERHEERREE AR

130,898,993.14
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XV.Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial
Statements (Continued)
7. Long-term equity investments (Continued)
As at 31 December 2014, the breakdown of long-term equity

investments under cost method was as follows: (Continued)
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S S ¥ R MY R (A

2015465308 (A R¥T)
Tho o w) BB R IE H RERE
(%)

7. REBRERE(E)
MR2014F12 8318 » kA AR B
BERERMIT - (&)

Changes during
the year
K
Incl: Closing
Additional Closing carrying Declared provision for
Opening balance investment amount cash dividend impairment
H: X
FNHE EMRE FREREE EERERM WEER
Zhuzhou Torch Auto Lighting Co., Ltd. 38,363,180.85 - 38,363,180.85 - =
IR EAERABEREEAA
Torch Import & Export Co., Ltd. 33,973,054.98 - 33,973,054.98 - -
NEELABREERA
Weichai America Crop. 227,412,122.28 35,399,875.00 262,811,997.28 = =
Weichai Power (Weifang) Reconstruction  122,000,000.00 - 122,000,000.00 23,933,504.72 -
Co., Ltd.

HRE N () BRERR

Weichai Power (Hong Kong) International ~ 378,750,138.28  1,708,319,643.84
Development Co., Ltd.

HEE N (FE)ERERARAT

Weichai Power (Shanghai) Technology 340,000,000.00 -
Development Co., Ltd.

XN (LB REERBRAF

Weichai Power (Chongging) Western 240,000,000.00 =
Development Co., Ltd.

HEHN(ER)ABERERAA

Weichai Power (Beijing) International 300,000,000.00 -
Resource Investment Co., Ltd.

HEH N R ERERRE R

Xinjiang Equipment Imports and = =
Exports Co., Ltd.

HESBENDERAF

Weichai Power (Qingzhou) Drive Control  150,000,000.00 -
Technology Co., Ltd.

HRB N (BN BERIERA A

Zhuzhou Gear Co., Ltd. 532,334,743.21 -

NEREREEAR

2,087,069,782.12 - -

340,000,000.00 = =

240,000,000.00 = .

300,000,000.00 = _

. - (12,118,687.10)

150,000,000.00 = =

532,334,743.21 = =
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

XV.Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial
Statements (Continued)
7. Long-term equity investments (Continued)
As at 31 December 2014, the breakdown of long-term equity

PR 5 3 M R (4)
20156 A30H (A R#¥T)

T2 E] E B AR E H RE R

(%)

7. REBRERE(H)

R2014F12A31H » KAEREAK

investments under cost method was as follows: (Continued)

R ERAMT - (8)

Changes during
the year
K
Incl: Closing
Additional Closing carrying Declared provision for
Opening balance investment amount cash dividend impairment
H: X
FHHE BMEE FREREE EEREMM BEER
Shanghai He Da Auto Accessory 39,163,469.71 - 39,163,469.71 5,835,297.36 -
Co., Ltd.
LANEAEERAR
Weichai Power (Weifang) Intensive 10,400,000.00 - 10,400,000.00 - -
Logistics Co., Ltd.
XD N EY ) ENREBRAF
Shaanxi Heavy-duty Motor Co., Ltd. 1,482,116,000.85 510,000,000.00  1,992,116,000.85 95,625,000.00 -
RAEHABERAE
Shaanxi Fast Gear Co., Ltd. 1,082,558,680.59 - 1,082,558,680.59 198,526,617.12 -
REETHERERAA
Shaanxi Hande Axle Co., Ltd. 14,507,358.03 - 14,507,358.03 4,882,978.72 -
REEEEBERRDA
Shandong Synergy Qil Co., Ltd. 9,426,918.00 - 9,426,918.00 - -
LEREERmERD A
Baoji Fast Gear Co., Ltd. 10,986,483.27 - 10,986,483.27 - -
BRI HERERRA
Weichai (Chongging) Automotive 918,000,000.00 109,410,000.00  1,027,410,000.00 - -
Co., Ltd.
A (ER)REBRAT
WEICHAI SINGAPORE PTE. LTD 12,432,641.29 = 12,432,641.29 - -
7,138,219,024.33 2,363,129,518.84 9,501,348,543.17 423,426,243.87 (12,118,687.10)
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XV.Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial
Statements (Continued)

Long-term equity investments (Continued)
As at 31 December 2014, the breakdown of long-term equity

(%)

7. RERERE(E)

Interim Report 2015 FRHEAZRE

T2 R T B WK IEH H R R

R2014F12 8318 » BRERBK

investments under equity method was as follows: R EBEANT
Changes during the year
KESD
Adjustment in Incl: Closing
profit and loss under Declared Closing carrying provision for
Opening balance equity method cash dividend amount impairment
BRAET H X
FNHE B EERSRA FREREE WEER
Guanya (Shanghai) Investment fund 18,335,757.92 480,617.68 - 18,816,375.60 -
Partnership Enterprise (Limited
Partnership)
BE( L8 REREESABEE
(BR&%)
Dalian Hongyuan Machinery 24,373,415.47 15,182.89 - 24,388,598.36 -
Manufacturing Co., Ltd.
NEBREMEEBRAF
Shanghai Xinlian Chuangye Investment 114,646,461.80 (15,238,583.43) - 99,407,878.37 -
Co., Ltd.
HEBMAIEREBRRR
Shandong Heavy Industry Group Finance ~ 213,732,394.01 21,850,102.51 (7,552,532.98) 228,029,963.54 -
Co., Ltd.
IWRETREGHKERRA
Shanzhong Finance Leasing Co., Ltd. 204,772,747.87 8,963,299.45 (18,146,025.00) 195,590,022.32 -
LWERERERRAR
575,860,777.07 16,070,619.10 (25,698,557.98) 566,232,838.19 -

251
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

XV.Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial +% /2 &) 3= % B % #2086 H 51 &
Statements (Continued) (%)

8. Investment property 8. REMEHME
Subsequent measurement under the cost model: HKAKRAERETERE=E -

January to June 2015

2015 1-6 A

Houses
(Unaudited) and buildings Land use rights Total
(RigEiz) FEREEY THERE L
Gross carrying amount RE
Opening balance HIBE 1,199,695,698.48 100,766,676.00 1,300,462,374.48
Transfer from construction in progress 732 Ti2 8 A 196,071,920.00 - 196,071,920.00
Disposal and retirement RERRE = = =
Closing balance HRHBE 1,395,767,618.48 100,766,676.00 1,496,534,294.48
Accumulated depreciation EGEiE-FiE 5
and amortization
Opening balance WHBE 295,269,424.01 11,395,411.93 306,664,835.94
Provision R 31,976,933.83 1,007,666.76 32,984,600.59
Disposal or retirement R E R = = =
Closing balance HRHBHE 327,246,357.84 12,403,078.69 339,649,436.53
Carrying amount IREEE
Closing S 1,068,521,260.64 88,363,597.31 1,156,884,857.95
Opening 1 904,426,274.47 89,371,264.07 993,797,538.54
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XV.Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial

8.
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T2 ) BB B R I H kR

Statements (Continued) (%)
Investment property (Continued) 8. REMEHE(E)
Subsequent measurement under the cost model: KARABERETERETZ -
(Continued) (%)
2014 20144
(Audited) Houses and buildings Land use rights Total
(&E%) FEEREEY T A CH)
Gross carrying amount RE
Opening balance FNHE 1,199,695,698.48 100,766,676.00 1,300,462,374.48
Transfer from construction in progress ERIRREA - - =
Disposal and retirement BERBE - - |
Closing balance FRBE 1,199,695,698.48 100,766,676.00 1,300,462,374.48
Accumulated depreciation SR MENGE
and amortization
Opening balance FONHE 235,847,791.77 9,380,078.41 245,227,870.18
Provision iR 59,421,632.24 2,015,333.52 61,436,965.76
Disposal or retirement 5B ok - - -
Closing balance FRBE 295,269,424.01 11,395,411.93 306,664,835.94
Carrying amount REEE
Closing FR 904,426,274.47 89,371,264.07 993,797,538.54
Opening F4 963,847,906.71 91,386,597.59 1,055,234,504.30
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) FPHS i R M 5 (48
30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2015F6A30H (A E¥T)

XV.Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial +% /2 &) 3= % B % #2086 H 51 &

Statements (Continued) (%)
9. Fixed assets 9. EEEE
January to June 2015 20154 1-6 A
Housesand ~ Machinery and Electronic ~ Transportation
(Unaudited) buildings equipment equipment equipment Others
(REEHR) EERREY HBRE EEEL EaRh At
Gross carrying amount FE
Opening balance BBE 1,340,546,401.49  2,402,755,097.52 585,580,083.98 131,054,310.23 751,668,875.63  5,211,604,768.85
Acquisition BE - 567,099.52 2,681,721.69 - - 3,48,821.21
Transfer from construction in progress ~ E T8 A 94,055,675.27 25,973,195.97 10,252,814.73 5,335,066.53 12,000339.76  147,617,692.26
Disposal or retirement REJHE - (754,457.12) (793,147.89) (505,568.87)  (2,226,649.67)  (4,279,82354)
(Closing balance BRBE 143460207676 242854153589 59772147252 135883807.89 76144256572  5358,191,458.78
Accumulated depreciation ZithE
Opening balance BN8E 337,853,883.50  1,240,545,766.39 404,464,357.62 100,000,024.22 507,987,284.60  2,590,851,316.33
Provision BE 33,150,112.55 96,786,882.84 39,003,445.58 7,485,407.68 25637,22888  202,063,077.53
Disposal or retirement RENHE = (458,307.25) (768,895.64) (472,548.02) (1,931,940.89) (3,631,691.80)
Closing balance HRpE 371,003,996.05  1,336,874,341.98 442,698,907.56 107,012,883.88 531,692,572.59  2,789,282,702.06
Carrying amount REERE
Closing iy S 1,063,598,080.71  1,091,667,193.91  155,022,564.96 2887092401 229,749993.13  2,568,908,756.72

Opening ] 1,002,692517.99  1,162,209,331.13  181,115,726.36 31,054.286.01  243,681,591.03  2,620,753,452.52
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XV.Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial % /A &) 3= 2 B % it 2 6 H i1 B

Statements (Continued) (%)
9. Fixed assets (Continued) 9. BEIEEE (&)
2014 20144
Houses and Machinery and Electronic Transportation
(Audited) buildings equipment equipment equipment Others Total
(&E%) REREEN BERE ERE EEEL L4 ait
Gross carrying amount RE
Opening balance ENBE 1,092,546,401.49  2,277,462,424.11 511,854,590.42 124,200,631.16 755,555,435.80  4,761,619,482.98
Acquisition BE - 1,061,740.95 276,358.90 192,395.63 22,815.00 155327048
Transfer from construction in progress ERIREA 248,000,000.00 168,965,214.78 84,703,201.11 14,666,381.49 5414,354.08 521,749,151.46
Disposal o retirement RENRE - (44,734,280.32)  (11,254,066.45) (8,005,058.05) (93237295 (13317,136.07)
Closing balance EXBE 134054640149 2402,755,09752  585580,083.98  131,05431023 75166887563  5211,604,768.85
Accumulated depreciation ZithE
Opening halance EN%E 28429215267 1,068,711,931.83 257,630,933.67 82,506,853.19 456,414,759.12  2,149,556,630.48
Provision g 5356173083 205458,095.14  157,495,790.04 24,370,358.74 59,434,58039  500,320,555.14
Disposal or retirement RESHE - (33,624,260.58) (10,662,366.09) (6,877,187.71) (7,862,054.91) (59,025,869.29)
Closing balance EXBE 33785388350 1,240,545,766.39 404,464,357.62 100,000,024.22 507,987,28460  2,590,851,316.33
Carrying amount KEEE
Closing £X 100269251799 1,162,209331.13  181,115,726.36 3105428601 243,681,591.03  2,620,753,452.52
Opening 9 808,254,24882  1,208750492.28  254,223,6%.75 469377797 299,140,676.68  2,612,062,852.50
As at 30 June 2015, fixed assets for which the Company had MR2015%F6 8308 » AR A HAER
not obtained real estate certificates had a carrying amount of EHEENECEEREBERAR
RMB397,224,427.46 (31 December 2014: RMB511,792,099.27). #5397,224,427.46 T (2014 12 A

318 : AR#S511,792,099.277T) °
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XV.Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial

Statements (Continued)

10. Intangible assets
January to June 2015

(Unaudited)
(REEEZ)
Gross carrying amount & ERE
of asset
Technology know-how BERAM
Trademark rights [ERcdEdst
Land use rights T A
Software EIgGs
Less: Accumulated W BRI E
amortization
Technology know-how BEERM
Trademark rights AR A
Land use rights T AR
Software ;i
Net carrying amount RERE
Technology know-how HH M
Trademark rights [EreEdsk-
Land use rights T A
Software i

Opening

balance

CEIE

218,365,759.46
124,448,000.00
260,497,899.05

16,190,139.03

619,501,797.54

Opening
balance

IR

218,121,693.01
15,555,996.00
34,232,125.25
16,143,609.99

284,053,424.25

Opening
balance

IR

244,066.45
108,892,004.00
226,265,773.80

46,529.04

335,448,373.29

PR 5 3 M R (4)
201564308 (A EB¥T)

T2 ) R B R I H Rk

(%)
10. BEEE
20154 1-6 A

Disposal or
Acquisition retirement

BE BERRE

Disposal or
retirement

BER®RE

29,287.98

2,678,690.28
43,474.84

2,751,453.10

Closing balance

HRE

218,365,759.46
124,448,000.00
260,497,899.05

16,190,139.03

619,501,797.54

Closing balance

ARE

218,150,980.99
15,555,996.00
36,910,815.53
16,187,084.83

286,804,877.35

Closing balance

HRE

214,778.47
108,892,004.00
223,587,083.52

3,054.20

332,696,920.19
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Statements (Continued)
10. Intangible assets (Continued)
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T2 R T B R IEH H R R

(%)

10. B EE ()
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2014 20144
Opening Disposal or
(Audited) balance Acquisition retirement Closing balance
(gE”) FOE BE BB S mRE EARH
Gross carrying amount EERE
of asset
Technology know-how BHEF 218,365,759.46 - - 218,365,759.46
Trademark rights IS A 124,448,000.00 - - 124,448,000.00
Land use rights T A A 260,497,899.05 - - 260,497,899.05
Software g 16,190,139.03 - - 16,190,139.03
619,501,797.54 - - 619,501,797.54
Opening Disposal or
balance Charge retirement Closing balance
FME AR R B S FERE
Less: Accumulated o RETEe
amortization
Technology know-how E-¥=E530 218,063,117.07 58,575.94 - 218,121,693.01
Trademark rights PR 15,555,996.00 - - 15,555,996.00
Land use rights T A 28,874,744.78 5,357,380.47 = 34,232,125.25
Software EIgES 15,842,312.08 301,297.91 - 16,143,609.99
278,336,169.93 5,717,254.32 - 284,053,424.25
Opening
balance Closing balance
FNH FARH
Net carrying amount REEE
Technology know-how EEHEM 302,642.39 244,066.45
Trademark rights I {5 F 4 108,892,004.00 108,892,004.00
Land use rights T3 A4 231,623,154.27 226,265,773.80
Software ;i 347,826.95 46,529.04

341,165,627.61

335,448,373.29
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30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 2015F6A30H (A E¥T)

XV.Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial +% /2 &) 3= % B % #2086 H 51 &

Statements (Continued) (%)
11. Payroll payable 1. BNBIEM
January to June 2015 2015 1-6 H

Opening Increase during  Decrease during

(Unaudited) balance the period the period Closing balance
(RE&ER) BARE R XHHD HRRE
Short-term remuneration 52 % 531,482,27449  446,169,672.30  (419,226,140.54)  558,425,806.25
Post-employment benefits BERaER

(Defined contribution plan) (RERFEE) 8,458,501.71 74,857,446.75 (75,114,489.32) 8,201,459.14
Severance benefits BHREA

Portion payable within one year —ERIZ AN 2,877,585.46 21,900,973.85 (11,221,864.28) 13,556,695.03

542,818,361.66 542,928,092.90 (505,562,494.14) 580,183,960.42
2014 20144
Opening Increase during Decrease during

(Audited) balance the year the year Closing balance
(BER) FNHE REEM KERD ERHE
Short-term remuneration pk i Eil 535,508,976.73  1,009,345,783.79  (1,013,372,486.03) 531,482,274.49
Post-employment benefits B2

(Defined contribution plan) (FREHRF:E) 7,691,649.74  157,529,563.36  (156,762,711.39) 8,458,501.71
Severance benefits BHRAEN

Portion payable within one year —FAZANEH - 8,105,039.99 (5,227,454.53) 2,877,585.46

543,200,626.47  1,174,980,387.14  (1,175,362,651.95) 542,818,361.66
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XV.Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial

Statements (Continued)
11. Payroll payable (Continued)

Short-term remuneration is as follows:

January to June 2015
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PO 5 i 3 M R (4)
201564308 (A E¥T)

T2 ) BB B R I H kR

(%)

1. B TEHM(E)
EEHMMT

20154 1-6 A

Opening Increase during ~ Decrease during
(Unaudited) balance the period the period Closing balance
(RE&ER) BARE A ) BRRE
Salaries, bonuses, allowances I%- %% 28
and subsidies ik 487,657,187.07 343,201,724.49 (323,310,730.74) 507,548,180.82
Staff welfare BIRMNE 662,231.41 13,451,515.51 (13,901,226.18) 212,520.74
Social security HERRE 2,726,081.38 42,948,267.47  (42,895,635.15) 2,778,713.70
Housing funds FERED 6,406,110.49 32,633,985.52 (32,744,058.88) 6,296,037.13
Union running costs and TELBENET
employee education costs ERE 34,030,664.14 13,934,179.31 (6,374,489.59) 41,590,353.86
531,482,274.49 446,169,672.30  (419,226,140.54)  558,425,806.25
2014 20144
Increase during Decrease during
(Audited) Opening balance the year the year Closing balance
(BER) FNHE RELM KERD ERHE
Salaries, bonuses, allowances T8 %% 28
and subsidies AL 492,746,337.12 801,856,032.51 (806,945,182.56)  487,657,187.07
Staff welfare BIRME 139,950.46 27,728,820.01 (27,206,539.06) 662,231.41
Social security HeREE 1,804,253.57 85,097,957.07 (84,176,129.26) 2,726,081.38
Housing funds FERES 4,931,091.46 61,481,666.27 (60,006,647.24) 6,406,110.49
Union running costs and ISEEBEART
employee education costs BB 35,887,344.12 33,181,307.93 (35,037,987.91) 34,030,664.14
535,508,976.73  1,009,345,783.79  (1,013,372,486.03) 531,482,274.49
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XV.Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial +% /A &) 3= % B % #2086 H 51 &
Statements (Continued) (748)

. ENBIHMGE)
B AEA GRERFHENMT -

11. Payroll payable (Continued)

Post-employment benefit (defined contribution plan) is as follows:

January to June 2015

20159 1-6 A

Opening Increase during  Decrease during
(Unaudited) balance the period the period  Closing balance
(RigzER) BANHE A AR D HREAEE
Basic pension insurance EXEERE 4,872,751.98 50,153,652.22 (50,294,046.11) 4,732,358.09
Unemployment insurance KERRE - 2,956,409.49 (2,956,409.49) =
Corporate contribution to PEFLHE
pension fund 3,585,749.73 21,747,385.04 (21,864,033.72) 3,469,101.05
8,458,501.71 74,857,446.75 (75,114,489.32) 8,201,459.14
2014 20144
Increase during Decrease during
(Audited) Opening balance the year the year Closing balance
(BE=R) FHHE REEM KERD FRHBE
Basic pension insurance EREERRE 4,872,751.98 107,794,971.80 (107,794,971.80) 4,872,751.98
Unemployment insurance RERRE 117,562.63 5,755,679.20 (5,873,241.83) -
Corporate contribution to pension fund MEF&HE 2,701,335.13 43,978,912.36 (43,094,497.76) 3,585,749.73
7,691,649.74 157,529,563.36  (156,762,711.39) 8,458,501.71

12. Taxes payable

12. BXBE

30 June 2015

31 December 2014

20154 6H30H 201412 A31H

(Unaudited) (Audited)

(REEZR) (T %)

Value-added tax HEF - 35,856,902.24
Corporate income tax TSR - 122,420,212.23
Individual income tax EAFTEEL 1,757,330.60 5,684,096.90
Property tax BER 5,439,942.38 4,824,492.39
Stamp duty ETERR - 1,838,426.55
Land use tax TR AR 5,500,041.00 4,304,854.00
City construction R 11,456.17 2,573,797.15
Business tax R 152,179.75 903,482.10
Educational surtax B &N 8,182.98 5,147,188.00
Others H 1,636.59 354,320.37

12,870,769.47

183,907,771.93
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13. Other current liabilities
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+14 ﬁgﬂ)i%%%*ﬁﬁiﬁ H &k B
13, RAEHEE

30 June 2015 31 December 2014
2015%6H30H 201412 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (R&ER)

Expected after-sales expenses (Note)

B =2 &GE)

564,010,595.83 722,824,200.00

Note: The Group’s expected after-sales expenses were recognized according
to the historical after-sale expenses incurred for the units of product
effectively sold and the number of product sold which are still within the

after-sale period.

14. Deferred income

g ARAEAZEEARBES LEE
BEBNEMN=EBERNNE=R
HAMCEERBER R -

14. EE W =R

30 June 2015 31 December 2014
201556 H30H 201412 A31H
(Unaudited) (Audited)
(REER) (g&E=)

Asset-related government grant:
Land-related government grant
Technological renovation and

financial special funds

HEEMBNRTHE

S8+ Hb 4 R A AT ik B
BRHEMMBERES

244,796,121.44 246,249,585.56

9,822,847.42 13,113,660.93

254,618,968.86 259,363,246.49

15. Revenue and cost of sales

15. BEIW AR KA

January-June 2015 January-June 2014
2015%1-6 A 2014%1-6 5
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REBER)
Revenue Revenue Cost
O %N WA Z%N
Principal operations TR
Sale of goodsand others 7R $46& B H i (LRI VAR K-y LN pAvE Il 13,143,476,525.93  9,115,025,281.06
Other revenue Hi %75 373,635,910.53 355,224,543.90 623,127,626.56 574,956,198.78

6,735,199,082.09

SRR 13,766,604,152.49  9,689,981,479.84
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XV.Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial

Statements (Continued)
16. Investment income

17.

PR 5 3 M R (4)
201564308 (A EB¥T)

Gain on long-term equity investments
under the cost method

Gain on long-term equity investments
under the equity method

Investment income arising from the
disposal of other long-term equity
investments

Investment gain during the period in
which available-for-sale

financial assets were held

RASEZE B R R E W

REERENRARERE RS

REHMEHMREREELN
BB W

FAEAHRLESREENRE
WS E W

Total profit

Supplemental information on the Company’s expenses by nature is

presented as follows:

Materials used
Movement of inventories of finished
goods and work in progress

Staff remuneration

Depreciation and amortization expenses

Rental

Finance expenses

R MR
ERGREERE NS

B8 T %5 B
FEENHHER
ik

s8R

+ﬂﬁ3$%%%ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ%
16. BEWZH

January-June 2015 January-June 2014
2015%1-6 8 2014%1-6 A
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(RBER) (REgEER)

194,911,381.98 96,299,099.76

15,415,407.47 5,250,690.81

11,227,751.15 -

1,720,000.00 -

223,274,540.60 101,549,790.57

17. N4 %E
AAFEBRRBEE S EORTER
M

January-June 2015 January-June 2014
2015%1-6 8 2014%1-6 A
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REER) (REER)

3,152,516,962.40 6,264,922,177.93

250,258,844.91 202,737,293.30
542,928,092.90 611,875,848.61
237,799,131.22 282,421,616.18
4,217,046.33 3,714,306.29
(79,257,580.68) (31,978,303.31)
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS i R M 5 (48
30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20156 H30H (A E#or)

XV.Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial +% /A &) 3= % B % # % 0H H 51 &
Statements (Continued) (%)
18. Income tax expenses 18. FiISHER

January-June 2015 January-June 2014
2015%1-6 8 2014%1-6 A
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REBERK) (REEER)

Current tax expenses BHMETER 21,364,376.35 331,550,890.81
Deferred tax expenses EBIEFERER 64,936,027.02 26,179,469.54

86,300,403.37 357,730,360.35

The relationship between income tax expenses and the total profit is Frisii B AEFBAENERIROT

listed as follows:

January-June 2015 January-June 2014

2015%1-6 8 2014%1-6 8
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
(REEZR) (REEEZ)
Total profit T a%g 922,393,302.09 2,586,946,387.38
Tax at statutory tax rate REEBEFTERNTIE 230,598,325.52 646,736,596.85
Effect of different applicable tax rates 3 3 N [E 5 R ) 52 2 (CYELEEIRE)) (258,694,638.74)
Adjustments to current tax of AR AR & BB
previous periods Firi5 it 6 38 2 (133,026.45) (307,635.97)
Gain and losses attributable REREECENER
to associates (2,260,547.74) (787,603.62)
Income not subject to tax 7B AN B U (29,496,957.30) (14,444,864.96)
Expenses not deductible for tax AR EA 1,806,304.28 1,906,598.12
Tax benefit applicable to qualified HEMBBEENTHEZRZ
expenses MG EE (14,466,367.67) (16,678,091.33)
Effect of unrecognised deductible RERNATENGREEEZEY
temporary differences T (7,507,997.08) =

Tax expense at the Company's effective 32 AR & BFEF R+ E /)
SRR T FriER B 86,300,403.37 357,730,360.35
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

XV.Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial
Statements (Continued)
19. Supplement to cash flow statement

PR 5 3 M R (4)

201564308 (A EB¥T)

ThoE R R E E R
(%)

Net profit

Add: Provision for impairment of assets

Increase in special reserve
Depreciation of fixed assets and
investment properties
Amortization of intangible assets
Amortization of long-term
deferred expenses
Gains on disposal of fixed assets,
intangible assets and other
long-term assets
Finance expenses
Investment income
Decrease in deferred tax assets
Decrease in inventories
Decrease/(increase) in
operating receivables
(Decrease)/increase in

operating payables

e ZAIE

m:EHEMEERERERE
SR R IE N
BEEENMXEEFSBE
e
B EEMSH
REGF B R

REBTEE  BWEE

FE M & HE E /W
MHEM
B W

BT FTS A ERR D
FEMNED
YR B MR
($&hn)
gEMENERENCRD)
el

Net cash flow from operating activities

REETHELNRESREFE

January-June 2015
2015%1-6 8
(Unaudited)
(RBER)

836,092,898.72

(3.865,780.28)

6,269,514.58

235,047,678.12
2,751,453.10

1,245,498.00

(342,830.49)
40,914,664.50

(223,274,540.60)
78,094,299.65
211,538,410.32

2,659,404,626.27

(4,045,438,785.60)

(201,562,893.71)

19. RERERBETEHR

January-June 2014
2014%1-6 A
(Unaudited)
(REgEER)

2,229,216,027.03

77,421,690.85
5,683,197.23

310,224,596.94
2,915,502.26

(316,949.61)
75,158,839.47

(101,549,790.57)
25,610,207.53
120,702,497.92

(3,635,297,949.74)

1,013,836,515.08

123,604,384.39
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Notes to Financial Statements (Continued) RS i R M 5 (48
30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan) 20156 H30H (A E#or)

XV.Notes to Key Items of the Company Financial

Statements (Continued)
20. Cash and cash equivalents

(%)

T2 ) BB B R I H kR

20. BeERBEEEY

30 June 2015

20156 H30H
(Unaudited)
(RREX)
Cash Re
Incl: Cash on hand Hod 5 FH4S 191,011.21
Bank deposit on demand ATRERE AR XY
RITEHX 12,663,951,914.70
Closing balance of cash and H/FRBe R
cash equivalents ReEEBMHE 12,664,142,925.91
30 June 2015
201556 H30H
(Unaudited)
(REEZR)
Closing balance of cash and B/ FREEESHE

cash equivalents
Less: Balance of restricted cash and

cash equivalents

12,701,058,850.82

B R EIR H 8

Closing balance of cash and

cash equivalents

EMECHE 36,915,924.91
B/ FREER
ReFEMHE 12,664,142,925.91

31 December 2014
2014%F12A31H
(Audited)
(R&ER)

108,814.77

13,418,505,629.66

13,418,614,444.43

31 December 2014
201412 A31H
(Audited)
(g&ER)

13,471,590,469.50

52,976,025.07

13,418,614,444.43
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Supp

lemental Information on

Financial Statements
30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

1.

B 15 ik 3%
7T &R

201564308 (A EB¥T)

Schedule of Extraordinary Profit and Loss 1~ FERHES VAR

(Unaudited)
(REEZ)

Amount in

January to June 2015
2015F1-6 A&

Gains or losses from disposal of non-current assets,
including the offset portion of impairment provision
for such assets

Government grants charged in profit or loss for the
current period, except for those closely related to
the ordinary operation and gained constantly at
a fixed amount or quantity according to certain
standard based on state policies

Profit and loss from debt restructuring

Profit and loss on the changes in fair value generated
from financial assets and financial liabilities held
for trading and investment income received from
disposal of financial assets held for trading,
financial liabilities held for trading and available-for-sale
financial assets, other than effective hedging business
relating to ordinary operating business of the Company

Reversal of impairment provision of receivables tested

FTBEEREER  BECHIR
BERMEEGHNELD
30,096,467.53
SFPAEBHBREMEAHE (BERL
EEBEYIER  FEERBE
ME BB - TFTERETHERTE
FHEZ ZHBUT #E BIBR SN )
28,036,290.04
B EHER 3,366,136.31
BRREAARIEELEZBEANER
ERREEBIN HEXZMNS
MEE  RXZUSHEBEELED
AREBEEEYEZ  UREEX
SUeREE RHUEEHAR
MaEEEeMmEERENEE
U 2§

B EITRER S SRR E

142,592,133.74

individually A Bl 1,200,809.49
Non-operating income and expenses other than the R b ot 578 7 HNEY B Ath 2 S ANIE A

above items M H 79,892,430.37
Tax effect

IS EEHR (34,146,120.01)

Effect on minority interests

DB RS A (22,299,300.61)

86,146,713.12

The Group recognized extraordinary profit and loss items in accordance REBEIFLEMIBRTERNBRKR
with the provisions in Explanatory Announcement on Information (RARBTEFNAREEREREER
Disclosure for Companies Offering their Securities to the Public No. 1 — HEFEVR-ERBHER)(BEEQE

Extraordinary Items (CSRC Announcement [2008] No. 43).

[2008]435% ) K43 E#TT ©



Supplemental Information on
Financial Statements (Continued)

30 June 2015 (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

2. Return on Net Assets (“RONA”) and
Earnings Per Share (“EPS”)
January to June 2015

Interim Report 2015 FisRsE 267

B %
WL E R (4)
20156 A30H (A R#T)

20155 1-6 B

Weighted
average RONA
hn¥EFg

FEEWER
(Unaudited) (%)

(REER)

Net profit attributable to the HEN QAT AR
Company’s ordinary shareholders F R

Net profit attributable to the MEBRIELEMERERFER
Company's ordinary shareholders N A)E R R R ) A

after extraordinary profit and loss

Diluted
1

January to June 2014 2014%1-6 A
Weighted
average RONA EPS
hogEF 19
FEEKREE sk
(Unaudited) (%) Basic Diluted
(REEZ) E- YN M
Net profit attributable to the FEAN AR BRRER
Company'’s ordinary shareholders F A 12.64 0.94 0.94
Net profit attributable to the MBI E M BEEEER
Company’s ordinary shareholders NGRS G = obep b
after extraordinary profit and loss 7.37 0.55 0.55

The Company holds no potential ordinary shares that are dilutive.

The Group presents RONA and EPS in accordance with Compilation Rules
No. 9 for Information Disclosure by Companies Offering Securities to the
Public — Calculation and Disclosure of Return on Net Assets and Earnings
per Share (Revised in 2010) of the CSRC.

ARBERELECLBM

REBHFEEWR XN R TIHR
KERPEEBEES(AFETESFNARES
BERBMRANEIR —FEEREXNER
W BET E R E ) (2010F B IRE °
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Other Information

Directors” and Supervisors’ Interests in Shares
and Underlying Shares

As at 30 June 2015, the interests and short position (if any) of the directors,
the chief executive and the supervisors in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")), as recorded in
the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO,
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed

Companies (the “Model Code”), were as follows:

oAt &R

S B Ay K A B Bk
%%4‘

R-T—HEAAZ+E EF SHEEIAR
BESHAD T&ﬁﬁ%il(@%ﬁ %R
B ([ 38 % R DB ) ) SEXVD) HOARES 48
BRGHRESST - HARIEES RO EAE
352 E AR AAFENBRMAES - SR
B A A TSRS NIRRT R (R
S DREDARADRTREBHRANMAR
TR (AT :

Percentage of

the issued

Number of Number of share capital

Name of Director Capacity "A" shares held "H" shares held of the Company

BERRRE

Eps 47} FARSE FEHREE BITRFEDIL

Tan Xuguang Beneficial owner 14,710,649 (Note 1) - 0.74%
BN EGEAA (FitzE1)

Zhang Quan Beneficial owner 3,421,081 (Note 1) - 0.17%
SRR EaEAA GiEa

Xu Xinyu Beneficial owner 3,421,081 (Note 1) - 0.17%
B E EGEAA (FitzE1)

Sun Shaojun Beneficial owner 3,421,081 (Note 1) - 0.17%
BROE EGEAA (F¥zE1)

Percentage of

the issued

Number of Number of share capital

Name of Supervisor Capacity "A" shares held "H" shares held of the Company

HERRRAE

ESHE E=47) FisARSE FHRE A BITRFEDL

Lu Wenwu Beneficial owner 150,000 - 0.008%

B3R EHEAA



Other Information (Continued)

Directors” and Supervisors” Interests in Shares
and Underlying Shares (Continued)

Notes:

1. These shares were derived from the previous domestic shares of the Company. The
domestic shares were ordinary shares issued by the Company, with a Renminbi-
denominated par value of RMB1.00 each, which were subscribed for and paid up in
Renminbi or credited as fully paid up. These shares became “A” shares of the Company
upon the “A” share listing of the Company on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange.

2. Al the shareholding interests listed in the above table are “long” position.
3. The percentage shareholding is calculated on the basis of 1,999,309,639 issued shares

of the Company as at 30 June 2015 (comprising 1,513,549,639 “A" shares and
485,760,000 “H" shares).

Interests in the shares of associated corporations
of the Company
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HALE R (4

5 B 0 B
it 35 (480

BiEE

1. ZEBRNMZARRNRRANER - NERRAAR QA Z
TEOEEER - UARKIIE SREBAR®1.00
T UARBERBREBRIARI AR - ZER
MRARBABRERINESFRSA ETERKBAR
Rl Z AR »

2. EERMIIMPIERE#SITRITA
3. HRESEDIREARANR-F -HFANA
=+ H#M1,999,309,639 K2 ETKMN (BE

1,513,549,6390% A% %2 485,760,0000%HA% ) 5t B 15
ﬁ °

A 24 0 A e 0 2

Approximate

Class and percentage

number of interest in the

securities entire issued

interested share capital

Name of associated Nature of or deemed of associated

Name of Director corporation interest to be interested corporations

FAEEER G EEEE 2 A

BERTEERN EBRITRAEN

EEpE HECEEER EHEME BEEERREA EREBNESL

Gordon Riske (Note) KION Group AG Beneficial owner 227,350 ordinary shares 0.23%
(P&E) Emia A P i

Interest held by spouse 3,000 ordinary shares 0.003%

mEBR AN ER

P & R X

Note: Gordon Riske, a non-executive Director, was the beneficial owner of 227,350 shares in
KION Group AG and he was also deemed to be interested in 3,000 shares in KION Group
AG which were beneficially held by his wife, Ms. Benita Riske.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2015, none of the Directors, the chief
executive nor the supervisors had an interest or short position in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations that was recorded in the register required to be kept pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company pursuant to
the Model Code.

Mz : JE #1 77 & = Gordon Riske & KION Group AG &)
227350 RBHMERFEAAN  THRANEZT
Benita Riske 2z &= & %5 £ A #73,000 iR KION Group
AGRI A -

BREXFEEEN RZE—RAFA=1H -
HMEBEEE HETRAEREZTRARARELE
R EE D - AR REFTEERE
& 5 N BB (6 55 352 15 4R € 78 RE 8 1A 5% 14 191 BT
AFENBSLMANERIRE - HIBRBELET
AIZEMEARNRARINERIORE -
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Other Information (Continued)

Details of Changes in Share Capital
Substantial Shareholders” Shareholdings

(I) Changes in share capital
Changes in share capital (as at 30 June 2015)

Before the movement
FREEH
Percentage
No. of shares (%)
48 B Al(%)

and

New shares
issued

BT

oAt kL (A1)

Jie A A Bl A 2 2 e R A B 1 DL

() BREZEHER
BARBEHERR(BE-_FT—HFAN

A=+H)

Increase/decrease in the movement (+, -)

Bonus issue

2R

FREBER (+-)
Transfer of
surplus to capital

DREER

Others
i

Sub-total
Nt

After the movement
LY i
Percentage
No. of shares (%)
HE K Al(%)

Restricted circulating shares
1. State-owned shares

2. State-owned legal person shares
3. Shares held by other domestic entities
including: Shares held by domestic
non-state-owned legal persons
Shares held by domestic natural persons
4. Shares held by foreign entities
including: Shares held by overseas legal persons
Shares held by overseas natural persons

Non-restricted circulating shares
1. RMB ordinary shares

2. Domestic isted foreign shares
3. Overseaslisted foreign shares
4

Others

Total number of shares

BRERHHR

Bxslk

BEEASR
AMERRK

A ARFEREARR

SRR
AR
A RNEARR
SNARARR

ERERRRD
AEBEEK
BRLAINER
b LmesAR
ity

Kireg

467,464,752 23.38%

410,632,752 2054%
56,832,000 2.84%

56,832,000 2.84%

1,531,844,887 76.62%
1,046,084,887 52.32%

485,760,000 2430%

1,999,309,639 100%

467,464,752 23.38%

410,632,752 20.54%
56,832,000 2.84%

56,832,000 2.84%

1,531,844,887 76.62%
1,046,084,887 52.32%

485,760,000 2430%

1,999,309,639 100%



Other Information (Continued)

Details of Changes in Share Capital and

Substantial Shareholders’” Shareholdings

(Continued)

(I) Shareholdings of the Substantial Shareholders (as
at 30 June 2015)

The number of shareholders is
169,730 among which 169,460 are

shareholders of “A" shares and 270

Total number of Shareholders

are shareholders of “H" shares.

Shareholdings of the top ten shareholders

Interim Report 2015 FRHEAZRE

HALE R (4

F 2 B 3R HF BB A Dl

B A 5 B A

()

(I) TERRFERBER(R=2—F
FXA=1AH)
R

#169,7307 + HAARKR
169,460F » HIXIRE270F

BI10RZ I EIFIRIE N

Approximate Number of Number of
percentage of  Total number of restricied  shares pledged
Name of shareholder Type of Shareholder shares held (%) shares held shares held or frozen
BRENEAL BRERE ERGRER
BRER BE#E (%) BRay ko#e Be#E
HKSCC Nominees Limited Foreign shareholder 24.23% 484,419,934 - N/A
BERREEREAGRAF MERR A
Weichai Group Holdings Limited State-owned legal person 16.83% 336,476,400 336,476,400 -
BERREEERAA BBEA =
Weifang Investment Company State-owned legal person 3.71% 74,156,352 74,156,352 -
EHTRERT EAEA -
IVM Technical Consultants Wien Overseas legal person 1.98% 39,600,000 - -
Gesellschaft m.b.H
B MIVMERT# S R ER AT BINEA
Peterson Holdings Company Limited Overseas legal person 1.84% 36,796,538 - -
BHERERLA BINEA
Shenzhen Chuangxin Investment Group Domestic non-state-owned 137% 27,426,912 - -
Co, ltd legal person
RINTEFREEEARLA BREEFEA
Tan Xuguang Domestic natural person 0.74% 14,710,649 14,710,649
Elib BREARA
CITIC Securities Company Limited Domestic non-state-owned 0.57% 11,365,388 - -
legal person
REEFRNHERAT BRFEEEA
Shandong Enterprise Trust Operation Domestic non-state-owned 0.48% 9,572,200 - =
Company Limited legal person
WRECEHELZRNERAR FRFEREA
Guangxi Liugong Company Limited State-owned legal person 0.43% 8,621,856 = =

ERNTSEERAR

LY IN

271
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Other Information (Continued)

Details of Changes in Share Capital and

Substantial Shareholders” Shareholdings

(Continued)

(1) Shareholdings of the Substantial Shareholders (as
at 30 June 2015) (Continued)

Shareholdings of the top ten non-restricted shareholders

Name of shareholder

oAt kL (A1)

E%j?%éﬁ%ﬂigﬂﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁ‘%?ﬁ
i<}

() FERREFREFER(R=-F—1
FRXA=1H)&)
Al 104 S R BRI IR AIB

Number of
the non-restricted
shares held Types of shares

IR AHME FREREFRTIROVBE KROEE

HKSCC Nominees Limited
EBEPREZREBABRAT

IVM Technical Consultants Wien Gesellschaft m.b.H
B FIIVMEIT 4 0 L AR A ]

Peterson Holdings Company Limited
BRI B R AT

Shenzhen Chuangxin Investment Group Co., Ltd
AR IR ELEERAQF

CITIC Securities Company Limited
REEFBROHER AT

Shandong Enterprise Trust Operation Company Limited
IWERECERELERNHBRAF

Guangxi Liugong Group Company Limited
B TEEABR AR

PICC Life Insurance Company Limited — Internal fund

TERARASRBBRNEBELAF-BEES

Credit Suisse (Hong Kong) Limited
Wt EE(BB)BRAF

Gao Xiang
=

Notes:

1. It is not certain whether there is any connected relationship among the top ten
shareholders and the other top ten non-restricted shareholder or whether there is any
acting in concert relationship among them.

28 Among the shareholders, Gao Xiang, a shareholder, held 5,062,900 shares through
general account and 509,000 shares through client account of collateral securities for
margin trading at Huatai Securities Company Limited, totaling 5,571,900 shares.

3. No earmarked repurchase transaction has been conducted by the top ten shareholders
and the top ten non-restricted shareholders of the Company during the reporting period.

484,419,934 Overseas listed foreign
shares

BN ETINE B

39,600,000 RMB ordinary shares
AR E B

36,796,538 RMB ordinary shares
AR E R

27,426,912 RMB ordinary shares
AR EEE B

11,365,388 RMB ordinary shares
AR EE R

9,572,200 RMB ordinary shares
AR E B

8,621,856 RMB ordinary shares
AR T E R

7,519,437 RMB ordinary shares
AR E B

6,048,748 RMB ordinary shares
AR EE R

5,571,900 RMB ordinary shares
AR EEE B

BiEE

1. AN B AR ENE AT+ A BRR K E A B+ R R
BRHAROFERBER  CRAELRTEN—
BITBAL -

2. REAIBRRF  BRASABBLTBEFLPFHA
5,062,900/ - MBERIFIFROHARDARTFE
ARSEREHEFFAS509,00008 @ BEREHF
A5,571,9000% °

3. R AR+ BB BB+ B AR E R B AR R
BEPRARETHERBERS -



Other Information (Continued)

Substantial Shareholders

The register of substantial shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant
to Section 336 of the SFO (including interests filed with the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange) shows that as at 30 June 2015, the following persons (other than the
directors, chief executive and supervisors) had the following interests and the

short positions (if any) in the shares and underlying shares of the Company:
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HALE R (4

FEEBER
ARRRERESFRAEKRIE36HEFENT
ERRELTM(BRAMBEBEZMARYME)
R N-_ZT-HFAA=tH " TIAL(E
2 RREEABREFHRINEARRRND R
AN EE TIEaRER(NE)

Percentage of Percentage of
share capital share capital Percentage of
Long/Short ~ Number of comprising Number of comprising total issued
Name Capacity position Ashares  only A shares Hshares  only H shares share capital
EARBRA EHRBA HERTRA
£ a4 e/ %E AR%E g HR%E g BHEA
Weichai Group Holdings Limited Beneficial owner Long 336,476,400 22.23% - - 16.83%
HEEREEER AT EHBEAA e
Shandong Heavy Industry Group Co., Ltd. (Note 1) Held by controlled corporation Long 336,476,400 22.23% - - 16.83%
WRETSERRAF M) BREEERE ffa
State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration  Held by controlled corporation Long 336,476,400 22.23% - - 16.83%
Commission of Shandong Province HEEEERE e
(‘Shandong SASAC) (Note 1)
IE%E4EEEEERZES
(WREEZ])(H1)
Brandes Investment Partners, LP Investment manager Long - - 78,578,612 16.18% 3.93%
REGR e
Lazard Asset Management LLC Investment manager Long - - 63,164,476 13.00% 3.16%
REGR &
JPMorgan Chase & Co. Beneficial owner Long - - 2,621,183 0.54% 0.13%
BREEA e
Investment manager Long - - 13,493,548 2.78% 0.68%
REGR e
Custodian - Corporation/approved Long - - 51,856,120 10.67% 2.59%
lending agent
REA - KB/ BEREREA Fe
67,970,851 13.99% 3.40%
Beneficial owner Short - - 1,600 0.00% 0.00%
EEAEA e
Templeton Investment Counsel, LLC Investment manager Long - - 34,224,980 7.05% 1.71%
RARE e
Lazard Emerging Markets Equity Portfolio (Note 2) Investment manager Long - - 23,707,500 5.86% 1.42%
(Fzr2) RERE 39
Barclays PLC Person having a security interest Long - - 525,552 0.11% 0.03%
in shares
AROREREEROA 8
Interest of corporation controlled by~ Long - - 25,453,050 5.24% 1.27%

the substantial shareholders

KRR 2R A B S e

25,978,602 5.35% 1.30%
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Other Information (Continued)

Substantial Shareholders (Continued)

oAt kL (A1)

TR ()

Percentage of Percentage of
share capital share capital Percentage of
Long/Short ~ Number of comprising Number of comprising total issued
Name Capacity position Ashares  only A shares Hshares  only H shares share capital
fEARKRA fEHRR A ERITRA
£ &4 #E/%E AR#E At HREE Rl agEM
Interest of corporation controlled by~ Short - - 24,102,475 4.96% 1.21%
the substantial shareholders
RRRFAEHE RS KB
Deutsche Bank Aktiengesellschaft [%Enefifial owner Long - - 19,585,133 4.03% 0.98%
EEARA e
Person having a security interest in Long - - 1,931,000 0.40% 0.10%
shares.
HERNEARE AT e
Interest of corporation controlled by~ Long - - 104,300 0.02% 0.01%
the substantial shareholders
ARRFES S EEER e
Custodian - Corporation/approved Long - - 5,728,400 1.18% 0.28%
lending agent
REA-ZE/BEELREA  #E
27,348,833 5.63% 1.37%
Beneﬁgial owner Short - - 18,718,000 3.85% 0.94%
EEAGA e
BlackRock, Inc. Interest of corporation controlled by~ Long - - 24,519,055 5.05% 1.23%
the substantial shareholders
RRRFESGEEER i1
Interest of corporation controlled by~ Short - - 69,000 0.01% 0.00%
the substantial shareholders
RRRFEHEEERR KB
Notes: BIEE -

State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of Shandong Province
(“Shandong SASAC") held the entire capital of Shandong Heavy Industry Group Co., Ltd.,
which in turn held the entire capital of Weichai Group Holdings Limited (formerly known as
Weifang Diesel Engine Works).

The number of H shares reported above held by the relevant substantial shareholder does
not take into consideration the Company’s bonus share issuance on 17 August 2012 as
there is no disclosure of interest obligation under the SFO where there is no change in
percentage of shareholdings for a substantial shareholder.

The percentage shareholding is calculated on the basis of 1,999,309,639 issued shares
of the Company as at 30 June 2015 (comprising 1,513,549,639 “A" shares and
485,760,000 “H" shares).

Save as disclosed above, the Company had not been notified of any other

relevant interests or short positions in the issued share capital of the Company as
at 30 June 2015.
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Other Information (Continued)

Emolument Policy
The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and

competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regarded to the Group’s operating results,

individual performance and comparable market statistics.

Arrangements to Purchase Shares or Debentures
At no time during the Period was the Company and any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the

Company or any other body corporate.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Securities of the
Company
During the Period, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,

sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

Pre-emptive Rights
There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company'’s articles of
association or the laws of the PRC, which would oblige the Company to offer

new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”) comprises
five independent non-executive Directors of the Company. The Chairman of
the Audit Committee is Mr. Wang Gongyong, an independent non-executive
Director. Mr. Wang has appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise as required under Rule 3.10(2) of the
Listing Rules for the purpose of this appointment. During the Period, the Audit
Committee discharged its responsibilities, reviewed and discussed the financial
results and internal control matters of the Company. In accordance with the
requirements of Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules, the Audit Committee has

reviewed the reviewed consolidated financial statements for the Period.
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Other Information (Continued)

Compliance With Corporate Governance Code
in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules

Throughout the Period, other than the roles of the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer being performed by Mr. Tan Xuguang (“Mr. Tan"”), and that
the directors of the Company did not attend each of the Company’s annual
general meeting and extraordinary general meeting during the Period due to
other essential business engagements, the Company has complied with all the
code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to

the Listing Rules.

Mr. Tan is in charge of the overall management of the Company. The Company
considers that the combination of the roles of the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer can promote the efficient formulation and implementation
of the Company’s strategies which will enable the Group to grasp business
opportunities efficiently and promptly. The Company considers that through the
supervision of its board and its independent non-executive Directors, there is

adequate balance of power and authority in place.

Compliance with the Model Code

During the Period, the Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by Directors on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in the Model Code. Having made specific enquiry of all
Directors, the Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the

required standard set out in the Model Code for the Period.

Sufficiency of Public Float
Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the directors of the Company, the Company has maintained

the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules as at the date of this report.

Approval of the Financial Statements
The reviewed consolidated financial statements for the Period were approved by
the Board on 27 August 2015.

Publication of the Interim Report on the
Websites of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and
the Company

The 2015 interim report will be despatched to the shareholders as well as made
available on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s website at www.hkexnews.hk

and the Company’s website at www.weichaipower.com in due course.
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WEICHAI POWER CO..LTD.

o ouk CIIREBSS T S MR E XM ERSRA197RF
= A 1 +86-536-8197777 (#42#)

g EH : +86-536-8231074

i H= 1 261061

BR#% 2R : 800 860 3066

EFEH . weichai@weichai.com

4 1k : http://www.weichaipower.com

Address : Section A 197, Fu Shou East Street, High Technology Industrial Development Zone, Weifang, Shandong Province
Tel : +86-536-8197777 (Gen)

Fax 1 +86-536-8231074

P.C. 1 261061

Service hotline : 800 860 3066

E-mail : weichai@weichai.com

Website : http://www.weichaipower.com
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